Tony Evers, Governor Preston D. Cole, Secretary Telephone 608-266-2621 Toll Free 1-888-936-7463 TTY Access via relay - 711



October 28, 2019

Lloyd's Cleaners Attn: Mr. Thomas Anderson 12340 NE Shoreland Drive Mequon, WI 53092

> Subject: Final Case Closure with Continuing Obligations Lloyd's Cleaners, 4837 North Teutonia Avenue, Milwaukee, WI FID: 241417330 BRRTS: 02-41-556811

KEEP THIS DOCUMENT WITH YOUR PROPERTY RECORDS

Dear Mr. Anderson:

The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) considers Lloyd's Cleaners closed, with continuing obligations. No further investigation or remediation is required at this time. However, you, future property owners, and occupants of the property must comply with the continuing obligations as explained in the conditions of closure in this letter. Please read over this letter closely to ensure that you comply with all conditions and other on-going requirements. Provide this letter and any attachments listed at the end of this letter to anyone who purchases, rents or leases this property from you. Certain continuing obligations also apply to affected property owners or rights-of-way holders. These are identified within each continuing obligation.

This final closure decision is based on the correspondence and data provided and is issued under chs. NR 726 and 727, Wis. Adm. Code. The DNR reviewed the request for closure on February 7, 2019. The DNR reviewed this environmental remediation case for compliance with state laws and standards to maintain consistency in the closure of these cases. A request for additional information was issued by the DNR on February 21, 2019, and documentation that the conditions described in that email were met was received on September 23, 2019.

The Lloyd's Cleaners site was investigated for discharges of hazardous substances from a dry-cleaning solvent storage tank in the basement of the building and sewer laterals beneath the basement floor. Case closure is granted for the chlorinated volatile organic compound (VOC) contaminants analyzed during the site investigation, as documented in the case file. Environmental investigations conducted at this drycleaner site addressed soil, groundwater, and sub-slab vapor contaminated with chlorinated VOC compounds. Response actions taken to address this contamination included soil excavation and installation of a vapor mitigation system. The conditions of closure and continuing obligations required were based on the property being used for commercial purposes.



Continuing Obligations

The continuing obligations for this site are summarized below. Further details on actions required are found in the section <u>Closure Conditions.</u>

- Residual soil contamination exists that must be properly managed should it be excavated or removed.
- Pavement and the building foundation must be maintained over contaminated soil and the DNR must be notified and approve any changes to this barrier.
- If a structural impediment that obstructed a complete site investigation and/or cleanup is removed or modified, additional environmental work must be completed.
- A vapor mitigation system must be operated and maintained, and inspections must be documented.
- A dewatering system must be operated and maintained due to the specific hydrogeologic conditions at the site, for the vapor mitigation system to work, and inspections must be documented.
- Site specific vapor exposure assumptions were used, based on commercial or industrial use. Current land or property use must be maintained to be protective. If changes to the current property use or land use are planned, an assessment must be made of whether the closure will be protective of the proposed use.
- Remaining contamination could result in vapor intrusion if future construction activities occur. Future construction includes expansion or partial removal of current buildings as well as construction of new buildings. Vapor control technologies will be required for occupied buildings, unless the property owner assesses the potential for vapor intrusion, and the DNR agrees that vapor control technologies are not needed.

The DNR fact sheet "Continuing Obligations for Environmental Protection," RR-819, helps to explain a property owner's responsibility for continuing obligations on their property. The fact sheet may be obtained online at dnr.wi.gov and search "RR-819."

DNR Database

This site will be included on the Bureau for Remediation and Redevelopment Tracking System (BRRTS) on the Web (BOTW) online at dnr.wi.gov and search "BOTW," to provide public notice of residual contamination and of any continuing obligations. The site can also be viewed on the Remediation and Redevelopment Sites Map (RRSM), a map view, at dnr.wi.gov and search "RRSM."

The DNR's approval prior to well construction or reconstruction is required in accordance with s. NR 812.09 (4) (w), Wis. Adm. Code. This requirement applies to private drinking water wells and high capacity wells. To obtain approval, complete and submit Form 3300-254 to the DNR Drinking and Groundwater program's regional water supply specialist. This form can be obtained on-line at dnr.wi.gov and search "3300-254."

All site information is also on file at the Southeast Regional DNR office, at 2300 N. Dr. M. L. King Drive, Milwaukee, Wisconsin. This letter and information that was submitted with your closure request application, including any maintenance plan and maps, can be found as a Portable Document Format (PDF) in BOTW.

Prohibited Activities

Certain activities are prohibited at closed sites because maintenance of a barrier is intended to prevent contact with any remaining contamination. When a barrier is required, the condition of closure requires notification of the DNR before making a change, to determine if further action is needed to maintain the protectiveness of the remedy employed. The following activities are prohibited on any portion of the property where pavement or the building foundation is required, as shown on the **attached map**, **Location and Extent of Asphalt/Concrete Cap**, **Figure D.2.a.3**, **dated April 19**, **2017**, <u>unless prior</u> written approval has been obtained from the DNR:

- removal of the existing barrier or cover;
- replacement with another barrier or cover;
- excavating or grading of the land surface;
- filling on covered or paved areas;
- plowing for agricultural cultivation;
- construction or placement of a building or other structure;
- changing the use or occupancy of the property to a residential exposure setting, which may include certain uses, such as single or multiple family residences, a school, day care, senior center, hospital, or similar residential exposure settings;
- changing the construction of a building that has a vapor mitigation system in place.

Closure Conditions

Compliance with the requirements of this letter is a responsibility to which you, and any subsequent property owners must adhere. DNR staff will conduct periodic prearranged inspections to ensure that the conditions included in this letter and the attached maintenance plan are met. If these requirements are not followed, the DNR may take enforcement action under s. 292.11, Wis. Stats. to ensure compliance with the specified requirements, limitations or other conditions related to the property.

Please send written notifications in accordance with the following requirements to:

Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources Attn: Remediation and Redevelopment Program, Environmental Program Assistant 2300 N. Dr. M. L. King Dr. Milwaukee, WI 53212

Residual Soil Contamination (ch. NR 718, chs. 500 to 536, Wis. Adm. Code or ch. 289, Wis. Stats.)

Soil contamination remains at locations indicated on the **attached map**, **Residual Soil Contamination**, **Figure B.2.b**, **dated January 18**, **2018**. If soil in the specific locations described above is excavated in the future, the property owner or right-of-way holder at the time of excavation must sample and analyze the excavated soil to determine if contamination remains. If sampling confirms that contamination is present, the property owner or right-of-way holder at the time of excavation will need to determine whether the material is considered solid or hazardous waste and ensure that any storage, treatment or disposal is in compliance with applicable standards and rules. Contaminated soil may be managed in accordance with ch. NR 718, Wis. Adm. Code, with prior DNR approval. This continuing obligation also applies to the right-of-way (ROW) owner for North Teutonia Avenue and the owner of 4811 N. Teutonia Avenue

In addition, all current and future owners and occupants of the property and right-of-way holders need to be aware that excavation of the contaminated soil may pose an inhalation or other direct contact hazard and as a result special precautions may need to be taken to prevent a direct contact health threat to humans.

Cover or Barrier (s. 292.12 (2) (a), Wis. Stats., s. NR 726.15, s. NR 727.07 Wis. Adm. Code)

The asphalt parking/walkway areas and building concrete floor slab and foundation that exist in the locations shown on the **attached map**, **Location and Extent of Asphalt/Concrete Cap**, **Figure 3**, **dated April 19**, **2017** shall be maintained in compliance with the **attached maintenance plan** in order to minimize the infiltration of water and prevent additional groundwater contamination that would violate the groundwater quality standards in ch. NR 140, Wis. Adm. Code. In this case, the building is also considered a structural impediment, and additional investigation and response requirements apply as described in the section titled <u>Structural Impediments</u>.

The entire building floor located in the basement and slab on-grade portions of the building, as shown on the **attached map**, **Vapor Intrusion Map**, **Figure B.4.a**, **dated June 26**, **2017** shall be maintained in compliance with the **attached Sub-Slab Depressurization System Operation**, **Maintenance & Monitoring Plan** in order to prevent or limit vapor intrusion into the building.

The cover approved for this closure was designed to be protective for a commercial or industrial use setting. Before using the property for residential purposes, you must notify the DNR at least 45 days before taking an action, to determine if additional response actions are warranted.

A request may be made to modify or replace a cover or barrier. Before removing or replacing the cover, you must notify the DNR at least 45 days before taking an action. The replacement or modified cover or barrier must be protective of the revised use of the property and must be approved in writing by the DNR prior to implementation. A cover or barrier for industrial land uses, or certain types of commercial land uses may not be protective if the use of the property were to change such that a residential exposure would apply. This may include, but is not limited to, single or multiple family residences, a school, day care, senior center, hospital or similar settings. In addition, a cover or barrier for multi-family residential housing use may not be appropriate for use at a single-family residence.

The **attached maintenance plan and inspection log (DNR form 4400-305)** are to be kept up-to-date and on-site. Inspections shall be conducted annually in accordance with the attached maintenance plan. Submit the inspection log to the DNR only upon request.

Structural Impediments (s. 292.12 (2) (b), Wis. Stats., s. NR 726.15, s. NR 727.07, Wis. Adm. Code)

The onsite building and the location of utilities as shown on the **attached map Residual Soil Contamination, Figure B.2.b, dated January 8, 2018**, made complete investigation and/or remediation of the soil contamination on this property impracticable. If the structural impediment is to be removed, the property owner shall notify the DNR at least 45 days before removal and conduct an investigation of the degree and extent of chlorinated solvent contamination below the structural impediment. If contamination is found at that time, the contamination shall be properly remediated in accordance with applicable statutes and rules.

Vapor Mitigation or Evaluation (s. 292.12 (2), Wis. Stats., s. NR 726.15, s. NR 727.07, Wis. Adm. Code)

Vapor intrusion is the movement of vapors coming from volatile chemicals in the soil or groundwater, into buildings where people may breathe air contaminated by the vapors. Vapor mitigation systems are used to interrupt the pathway, thereby reducing or preventing vapors from moving into the building.

Vapor Mitigation System: Soil vapor beneath the building contains chlorinated volatile organic compounds at levels that would pose a long-term risk to human health, if allowed to migrate into an occupied building on the property. The vapor mitigation system installed in April 2017, must be operated, maintained and inspected in accordance with the **attached** maintenance plan. System components must be repaired or replaced immediately upon discovery of a malfunction. Annual inspections and any system repairs must be documented in the inspection log (DNR form 4400-305). The inspection log shall be kept up-to-date and on-site. Inspections shall be conducted annually in accordance with the attached maintenance plan. Submit the inspection log to the DNR only upon request.

If a decision is made to no longer use the vapor mitigation system, or to make a change to the vapor mitigation system, the property owner must notify the DNR at least 45 days before shutting the vapor mitigation system and the dewatering system off, or before making any other change to the system, and evaluate whether conditions are protective of public health and safety. Additional response actions may be necessary.

The integrity of the building and basement floors that exist on the property, shown on the **attached map**, **Location and Extent of Asphalt/Concrete Cap**, **Figure D.2.a.3**, **dated April 19**, **2017**, must be maintained in compliance with the **attached maintenance plan**. This will help ensure proper functioning of the vapor mitigation system and limiting vapor intrusion to indoor air spaces.

Dewatering system: As of August 2014, a sealed sump pump connected to a corrugated and perforated drainage tile is required to be operated and maintained to control groundwater and/or vapor from entering the building. The sealed sump pump is needed to lower the water table to provide for air space between the foundation and groundwater.

Commercial/Industrial Use: Soil vapor beneath the drycleaner building contains vapors at levels that would pose a long-term risk to human health, if allowed to migrate into an occupied building. Concentrations of sub-slab vapors below the southern portion of the slab on-grade portion of the building exceeded vapor risk screening levels based on residential use but were below vapor risk screening levels based on small/commercial property use. Case closure is based on restricting the use of the property for non-residential purposes. If changes in property or land use are planned, the property owner must notify the DNR at least 45 days before changing the use and evaluate whether the closure is protective for the proposed use.

Future Concern: Chlorinated volatile organic compounds remain in soil at locations as indicated on the **attached map, Residual Soil Contamination, Figure B.2.b, dated January 8, 2018** at levels that may be of concern for vapor intrusion in the future, depending on construction and occupancy of a building. The current building is split with a partial concrete basement and slab on-grade concrete foundation occupied by a drop-off drycleaner and attached coin operated laundry. Therefore, before a building is constructed and/or an existing building is modified, the property owner must notify the DNR at least 45 days before the change. Vapor control technologies are required for construction of occupied buildings unless the property owner assesses the vapor pathway and the DNR agrees that vapor control technologies are not needed. This continuing obligation also applies to the owner of 4811 N. Teutonia Avenue.

Chapter NR 140, Wis. Adm. Code Exemption

Recent groundwater monitoring data at this site indicates that for tetrachloroethene (PCE) at monitoring points MW-1, MW-2, New Sump, and PZ-1, trichloroethene (TCE) at monitoring points MW-1 and PZ-1, and cis-1,2-dichloroethene (cis-1,2-DCE) at monitoring point MW-1, contaminant levels exceed the NR 140 preventive action limit (PAL) but are below the enforcement standard (ES). The DNR may grant an exemption to a PAL for a substance of public health concern, other than nitrate, pursuant to s. NR 140.28 (2) (b), Wis. Adm. Code, if all of the following criteria are met:

- 1. The measured or anticipated increase in the concentration of the substance will be minimized to the extent technically and economically feasible.
- 2. Compliance with the PAL is either not technically or economically feasible.
- 3. The enforcement standard for the substance will not be attained or exceeded at the point of standards application. [Note: at this site the point of standards application is all points where groundwater is monitored.]
- 4. Any existing or projected increase in the concentration of the substance above the background concentration does not present a threat to public health or welfare.

Based on the information you provided, the DNR believes that these criteria have been or will be met. The response actions that have been taken include soil excavation and installation of a dewatering and sub-slab depressurization system. Therefore, pursuant to s. NR 140.28, Wis. Adm. Code, an exemption to the PAL is granted for PCE at monitoring points MW-1, MW-2, New Sump, and PZ-1, TCE at monitoring points MW-1 and PZ-1, and cis-1,2-DCE at monitoring point MW-1. Please keep this letter, because it serves as your exemption.

In Closing

Please be aware that the case may be reopened pursuant to s. NR 727.13, Wis. Adm. Code, for any of the following situations:

- if additional information regarding site conditions indicates that contamination on or from the site poses a threat to public health, safety, or welfare or to the environment,
- if the property owner does not comply with the conditions of closure, with any deed restrictions applied to the property, or with a certificate of completion issued under s. 292.15, Wis. Stats., or
- a property owner fails to maintain or comply with a continuing obligation (imposed under this closure approval letter).

The DNR appreciates your efforts to restore the environment at this site. If you have any questions regarding this closure decision or anything outlined in this letter, please contact John J. Hnat at 414-263-8644, or at john.hnat@wisconsin.gov.

Sincerely,

Pamela A. Mylotta Southeast Region Team Supervisor Remediation & Redevelopment Program

Attachments:

- Location and Extent of Asphalt/Concrete Cap Lloyd's Cleaners, Figure D.2.a.3, Enviroforensics, dated April 17, 2017
- Residual Soil Contamination Lloyd's Cleaners, Figure B.2.b, EnviroForensics, dated January 8, 2018
- > Vapor Intrusion Map, Figure B.4.a, Enviroforensics, dated June 26, 2017
- Cap Maintenance Plan 4837 North Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI, dated September 18, 2017
- Sub-Slab Depressurization System Operation, Maintenance, & Monitoring Plan, Lloyd's Cleaners, 4837 North Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI, dated August 1, 2019
- Continuing Obligations Inspection and Maintenance Log, Form 4400-305
- Vapor Mitigation System Inspection and Maintenance Log
- cc: Wayne Fassbender Enviroforensics Bill Phelps, DG/5, DNR Madison



GAS WTR UGT SAN STM	Property boundary Underground gas utility line Underground water utility line Fiber optic utility line Sanitary sewer utility line Storm sewer utility line Previous excavation area) Sanitary sewer manhole
(F) Fire Hydrant
DP-6 •	Direct-push boring location
DP-15/SG-1 🕥	Direct-push/Soil Gas boring location
DP-11/PZ-1 +	Direct Push boring/Piezometer location
FS-1-1	Floor excavation soil sample location (Floor Sample-Sample ID-Depth)
WS-1-1●	Side wall excavation soil sample location (Wall Sample-Sample ID-Depth)
	Excavation Limits (0-5 ft)
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Excavation Limits (5-13 ft)
	Impervious Barrier location
] 	Extent of residual soil contamination exceeding soil to groundwater pathway RCLs
Note: There are no unsaturated	Direct-Contact RCL exceedances in the zone
Str	uctural impediment to further investigation







CAP MAINTENANCE PLAN

September 18, 2019

Property located at:

4837 NORTH TEUTONIA AVENUE MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN 53209 BRRTS# 02-41-556811

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO 2994 IN SE 1/4 SEC 36, TOWNSHIP 8 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN PARCEL 3

TAX ID#: 2070833000

INTRODUCTION

This document is the Maintenance Plan for the asphalt and concrete surface materials (the "Cap") covering soil contaminated with chlorinated volatile organic compounds at the abovereferenced property in accordance with the requirements of s. NR 724.13(2), Wis. Adm. Code. The maintenance activities relate to the existing asphalt parking lot areas and concrete building foundation, which occupy the area over the residual soil contamination.

More site-specific information about this property/site may be obtained from:

- The case file in the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) Regional office;
- <u>BRRTS on the Web (WDNR's internet based data base of contaminated sites)</u>for the link to a PDF for site-specific information at the time of closure and on continuing obligations;
- <u>RR Sites Map/GIS Registry layer</u> for a map view of the site, and
- The WDNR project manager.



DESCRIPTION OF CONTAMINATION

Soil contaminated by chlorinated volatile organic compounds (CVOCs) is located at a depth of approximately 1 to 14 feet below ground surface (bgs) in the area under the southern half of the site building and asphalt parking/walkway areas on the south and east sides of the building. Groundwater contaminated by CVOCs is encountered at a depth of approximately 10-20 feet bgs beneath the same areas. The extent of residual CVOC contamination in soil and groundwater is shown on the attached **Figure D.2.a.1** and **Figure D.2.a.2**, respectively.

DESCRIPTION OF CAP

The cap consists of the site building, including its concrete floor slab and foundation, and the asphalt parking/walkway areas that extend from the building to the property boundary to the south and east; and north to the defined extent of soil and groundwater impacts. The location and extent of the cap is depicted on **Figure D.2.a.3**. The existing cap is an infiltration barrier to minimize soil-to-groundwater contamination migration. There are no soil concentrations that pose a risk of direct contact exposure to humans. The asphalt/concrete cap is 4 to 6 inches think across the property.

ANNUAL INSPECTION

The asphalt/concrete cap will be inspected once per year, normally in the spring after all snow and ice is gone, for deterioration, cracks and other potential problems that would allow a direct conduit for infiltration of rain water. The inspections will be performed by the property owner or their designated representative. The inspections will be performed to evaluate damage due to settling, exposure to the weather, wear from traffic, increasing age, and other factors. Any area where large cracks or other openings have occurred or are likely to occur will be documented.

A log of the inspections and any repairs will be maintained by the property owner on WDNR Form 4400-305 (Continuing Obligations Inspection and Maintenance Log), included as **Attachment D.4.a**. The log will include recommendations for necessary repair of any areas where underlying soils are exposed. Once repairs are completed, they will be documented in the Inspection Log. A copy of this Cap Maintenance Plan and the Inspection Log will be kept at the property and available for submittal or review by WDNR representatives upon their request.

MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES

If problems are noted during the annual inspections or at any other time during the year, repairs will be scheduled as soon as practical. Repairs can include patching and filling or larger



resurfacing or construction operations. In the event that maintenance activities that involve soil removal and disposal are necessary, the property owner must sample any soil excavated from the site prior to disposal to ascertain if contamination is present. The soil must be treated, stored, or disposed of by the owner in accordance with applicable local, state and federal law.

In the event the asphalt and or concrete building foundation cover overlying the contaminated soil are removed or replaced, the replacement barrier must be equally impermeable. Any replacement barrier will be subject to the same maintenance and inspection guidelines as outlined in this Cap Maintenance Plan unless indicated otherwise by the WDNR or its successor. The property owner, in order to maintain the integrity of the asphalt/concrete cap, will maintain a copy of this Maintenance Plan on-site and make it available to all interested parties (i.e. on-site employees, contractors, future property owners, etc.) for viewing.

PROHIBITION OF ACTIVITIES AND NOTIFICATION

The following activities are prohibited on any portion of the property where an asphalt/concrete cap is required as depicted on the attached **Figure D.2.a.3**, unless prior written approval has been obtained from the WDNR: 1) removal of the existing barrier; 2) replacement with another barrier; 3) excavating or grading of the land surface; 4) filling on capped or paved areas; 5) plowing for agricultural cultivation; 6) construction or placement of a building or other structure; 7) changing the use or occupancy of the property to a residential exposure setting, which may include certain uses such as single or multi-family residences, a school, a daycare, or senior center; or 8) changing the construction of the building if the changes affect the operation of the vapor mitigation system.

If removal, replacement or other changes to the asphalt/concrete are considered, the property owner will contact WDNR at least 45 days before taking such an action, to determine whether further action may be necessary to protect human health, safety, or welfare or the environment, in accordance with s. NR 727.07, Wis. Adm. Code.

AMENDMENT OR WITHDRAWAL OF MAINTENANCE PLAN

This Maintenance Plan can be amended or withdrawn by the property owner and its successors with the written approval of the WDNR.



CONTACT INFORMATION

Site Owner and Operator:	Lloyd's Cleaners Thomas Anderson 4837 N. Teutonia Ave Milwaukee, WI 53209
Consultant:	EnviroForensics, LLC Wayne Fassbender, PG, PMP N16 W23390 Stone Ridge Dr., Suite G Waukesha, WI 53188 (262) 290-4001
WDNR Project Manager:	John Hnat Wisconsin Dept. of Natural Resources 2300 Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Dr. Milwaukee, WI 53212 (414) 263-8644



FIGURES



GAS	Property boundary Underground gas utility line Underground water utility line Fiber optic utility line Sanitary sewer utility line Storm sewer utility line Previous excavation area
(M)	Sanitary sewer manhole
F	Fire Hydrant
DP-6 ●	Direct-push boring location
DP-15/SG-1 🕥	Direct-push/Soil Gas boring location
DP-11/PZ-1 +	Direct Push boring/Piezometer location
FS-1-1	Floor excavation soil sample location (Floor Sample-Sample ID-Depth)
WS-1-1●	Side wall excavation soil sample location (Wall Sample-Sample ID-Depth)
	Excavation Limits (0-5 ft)
	Excavation Limits (5-13 ft)
I	mpervious Barrier location
——— I е I	Extent of residual soil contamination exceeding soil to groundwater pathway RCLs
Note:	
There are no	Direct-Contact RCL exceedances in the
	voturel improvement to further investigation
500	uctural impediment to further investigation



Legend	
	Property boundary
GAS	Underground gas utility line
WTR	Underground water utility line
UGT	Fiber optic utility line
SAN	Sanitary sewer utility line
STM	Storm sewer utility line
	Previous excavation area
M	Sanitary sewer manhole
F	Fire Hydrant
DP-11/PZ-1 🕁	Direct Push boring / Piezometer
I	location
MW-1 🔶	Monitoring well location
HA1/HB-1	Grab groundwater location
	Stub groundwater iscation

Analyte	Public Health Preventive Action Limit	Public Health Enforcement Standard
PCE	0.5	5
TCE	0.5	5
cis-1,2-DCE	7	70

Note:

- 1. Bolded and blue shaded values exceed the Public Health Preventive Action Limit
- 2. Bolded and orange shaded values exceed the Public Health Enforcement Standard
- Bolded values are above detection limits 3.
- J = Estimated concentration above the method detection 4. limit and below the reporting limit
- 5.
- Samples analyzed using EPA SW-846 Method 8260 All results reported in units of micrograms per liter (ug/L) 6.
- PCE = Tetrachloroethene 7.
- 8. TCE = Trichloroethene
- 9. cis-1,2-DCE = cis-1,2,-Dichloroethene
- 10. VOCs = Volatile Organic Compounds
- 11. ND = Not detected

Extent of residual groundwater impacts exceeding PALs

	EXTENT OF GROUNDWATER IMPA REGULATORY STANDA	CTS EXCEEDING ARDS
	Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 N. Teutonia Avenu Milwaukee, WI	e
22/17		Figure
EB	ENVIRO Prensics	D.2.a.2
EB		Dutut
BK	825 North Capital Avanua	Project
-1058	EnviroForensics.com	6229



	LOCATION AND EXTEN ASPHALT/CONCRETE	T OF CAP
	Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 N. Teutonia Avenu Milwaukee, WI	e
19/17		Figure
EB	ENVIRO Prensics	D.2.a.3
KH	/	
BK	ENVIRONMENTAL FORENSIC INVESTIGATIONS, INC.	Project
-1011	602 N. Capitol Ave., Ste. 210 Indianapolis, IN 46204 EnviroForensics.com	6229



ATTACHMENT D.3.a

PHOTOGRAPHS





Overview of asphalt cap – facing north





Overview of asphalt cap – facing south





Asphalt on south side of building – facing west





Basement concrete floor slab





Basement mechanical room concrete floor slab



ATTACHMENT D.4.a

Continuing Obligations Inspection and Maintenance Log

State of Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources dnr.wi.gov

Continuing Obligations Inspection and Maintenance Log

Form 4400-305 (2/14)

Page 1 of 2

Directions: In accordance with s. NR 727.05 (1) (b) 3., Wis. Adm. Code, use of this form for documenting the inspections and maintenance of certain continuing obligations is required. Personal information collected will be used for administrative purposes and may be provided to requesters to the extent required by Wisconsin's Open Records law [ss. 19.31-19.39, Wis. Stats.]. When using this form, identify the condition that is being inspected. See the closure approval letter for this site for requirements regarding the submittal of this form to the Department of Natural Resources. A copy of this inspection log is required to be maintained either on the property, or at a location specified in the closure approval letter. Do NOT delete previous inspection results. This form was developed to provide a continuous history of site inspection results. The Department of Natural Resources project manager is identified from the database, BRRTS on the Web, at http://dnr.wi.gov/botw/SetUpBasicSearchForm.do, by searching for the site using the BRRTS ID number, and then looking in the "Who" section.

Activity (Site) Name

BRRTS No.

, tourny (one	,						
Inspections	are required to be O annual O semi-ar O other –	conducted (see closure a y nnually specify	pproval letter):	When submittal of this form is required, submit manager. An electronic version of this filled out the following email address (see closure appro	the form electronical form, or a scanned v val letter):	y to the D ersion ma	NR project ay be sent to
Inspection Date	Inspector Name	Item	Describe the condition of the item that is being inspected	Recommendations for repair or mainte	enance Pre- recomm implen	vious endations nented?	Photographs taken and attached?
		monitoring well cover/barrier vapor mitigation system other:	-		OY	⊖ N	OYON
		monitoring well cover/barrier vapor mitigation system other:			OY	() N	OYON
		monitoring well cover/barrier vapor mitigation system other:			OY	⊖ N	O Y O N
		monitoring well cover/barrier vapor mitigation system other:			ОY	⊖ N	O Y O N
	14	monitoring well cover/barrier vapor mitigation system other:			OY	() N	O Y O N
		monitoring well cover/barrier vapor mitigation system other:			OY	⊖ N	O Y O N





SUB-SLAB DEPRESSURIZATION SYSTEM OPERATION, MAINTENANCE & MONITORING PLAN

Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 North Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI 53209 WDNR BRRTS# 02-41-556811 FID# 241417330

August 1, 2019

Prepared For:

Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 North Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI 53209

Prepared By:

EnviroForensics, LLC N16 W23390 Stone Ridge Drive, Suite G Waukesha, WI 53188 Phone: (262) 290-4001 <u>www.enviroforensics.com</u>



TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0	BACKGROUND 1.1 Site History	1
2.0	CONTACTS	1
3.0	SYSTEM DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION	2
	3.1 System Commissioning	3
4.0	SYSTEM OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, AND MONITORING	4
	4.1 System Operation	4
	4.2 System Inspection, Monitoring, and Maintenance	4
5.0	DECOMMISSIONING AND CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS	5

FIGURES

Figure D.2.b.1	Site Layout Map
Figure D.2.b.2	Sub-Slab Depressurization System Layout

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment D.4.b Inspection and Maintenance Log



1.0 BACKGROUND

Lloyd's Cleaners is located at 4837 North Teutonia Avenue, Milwaukee, Wisconsin (Site). The layout of the Site is shown on **Figure D.2.b.1**. The Site is located in an area of mixed land use consisting of residential, commercial, and industrial properties. The dry cleaning building is a single story structure with a partial basement having concrete block walls. The attached coin-operated laundry is a single story structure with a slab on grade. Sub-slab vapor sampling conducted in the basement in 2017 indicated that VOCs were present in vapor at concentrations above the vapor risk screening level (VRSL) for small commercial structures. Therefore, a sub-slab depressurization (SSD) system was installed to mitigate the vapor intrusion risk.

The SSD system is designed to depressurize the sub-slab space and prevent vapors from migrating into the building and affecting indoor air quality. The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) requires that SSD systems be monitored and maintained to ensure ongoing effectiveness. Proper operation of the SSD system is necessary to prevent exposure to the chemicals of concern via vapor intrusion.

1.1 Site History

The Site was operated by others as an active dry cleaning facility from the early 1960's until 1981, when current owner Tom Anderson bought the property now known as Lloyd's Cleaners. Tetrachloroethene (PCE) was historically used as a dry cleaning solvent at this property until 2011, when Mr. Anderson discontinued active dry cleaning. PCE migrated vertically through soil in the vicinity of the former PCE holding tank, and along the sanitary sewer lateral beneath the Site building causing soil, groundwater, and sub-slab vapor impacts that exceed WDNR health-based standards and screening levels.

2.0 CONTACTS

Property Owner: Tom Anderson Address: 4837 North Teutonia Avenue, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53209 Telephone #: 414-442-1010

System Design and Installation: EnviroForensics, LLC Address: 825 N. Capital Ave., Indianapolis, IN 46204 Contact: Vapor Mitigation Technician Contact/Telephone #: 317-972-7870



Consultant: EnviroForensics, LLC Address: N16 W23390 Stone Ridge Dr., Suite G, Waukesha, WI 53188 Contacts: Brian Kappen, Project Manager; Wayne Fassbender, Senior Project Manager Telephone #: 262-290-4001 Email: <u>bkappen@enviroforensics.com</u> or <u>wfassbender@enviroforensics.com</u>

WDNR Project Manager: John Hnat Address: 2300 N. Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Dr. Milwaukee, Wisconsin Telephone #: 414-263-8644 Email: John.Hnat@wisconsin.gov

3.0 SYSTEM DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION

EnviroForensics designed and installed the SSD system in the basement of the Site building. The system was installed during April 6-7 and April 13-14, 2017. The layout of the SSD system is depicted on **Figure D.2.b.2**. Sub-slab vacuum is induced by a Radon-Away model GP-501 fan mounted on the roof and hardwired to a dedicated circuit breaker in the electrical panel in the southeast room of the Site building. There is also a dedicated on/off switch located next to the fan. The fan is connected to the following sub-slab extraction points:

- Combined horizontal extraction piping (EP-1) installed within the backfill of an excavation beneath the basement floor slab;
- The sealed sump crock (EP-2) for the purpose of venting the drainage tile and block wall along the west side of the building. In addition to venting, the west block wall was repaired by sealing holes and cracks in the block, followed by sealing with a vapor protection coating; and
- One (1) vertical extraction point (EP-3) along the north wall of the mechanical room.

Each extraction point is equipped with a u-tube manometer located a few feet above floor level. The manometers are u-shaped tubes filled with red liquid and a fixed gauge that measures vacuum in inches of water. Individual ball valves are also installed just above the manometers on each extraction point for system balancing. The ball valves have red plastic handles that are open when positioned parallel to the pipe and closed when positioned perpendicular to the pipe. Directions for opening and closing the valves are imprinted on the handles.

The extraction point pipes connect to a common 4-inch diameter PVC vent pipe in the mechanical room. The vent pipe is routed to the fan on the roof through an unused pipe chase in the mechanical room.



An audible low-pressure alarm was also installed on one of the horizontal extraction points in the main storage room. If there is a loss of vacuum caused by fan failure, vent pipe obstruction, high water level, or other issue, a loud beeping sound will occur. Additional description and photos of system components are provided in **Attachment D.4.b**.

3.1 System Commissioning

Commissioning of the SSD system was performed to demonstrate vapor intrusion mitigation in all conditions. System measurements were collected on three (3) occasions during the first year of operation. System commissioning events included the following activities:

- 1. Measurement of sub-slab pressure field extension (PFE). The PFE were measured by connecting a hand-held digital manometer to sub-slab test ports installed in the basement floor. Two (2) permanent test ports designated TP-1 and TP-2 are installed at the locations shown on **Figure D.2.b.2**.
- 2. Measurement of flow rate in the vent pipe leading to the fan using a thermo-anemometer inserted into a port in the piping.
- 3. Checking u-tube manometers at each extraction point for confirmation of induced vacuum.
- 4. Visual inspection of the concrete floor penetration seals and all system components including fans, manometers, pressure switches, and piping connections.

The pressure field extension (PFE) testing indicated that the system applied negative pressure across the entire main storage room and mechanical room of the basement where elevated vapor concentrations were previously detected. Vacuum readings at the extraction points (observed in u-tube manometers) and permanent test ports TP-1 and TP-2 are summarized in the table below and shown on **Figure D.2.b.2** for reference.

Dete	Flow Rate		Vacuum (inches of water)				
Date	(FPM)	EP-1	EP-2 (Sump)	EP-3	TP-1	TP-2	
6/14/2017	NM	-0.8	-0.3	-0.8	-0.131	-0.415	
4/6/2018	1,078	-1.5	-1.1	-1.5	-0.250	-0.197	
7/3/2018	1,312	-1.7	-0.6	-1.7	-0.320	-0.237	

Notes: NM = not measured. Fpm = feet per minute



4.0 SYSTEM OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, AND MONITORING

Lloyd's Cleaners will be responsible for operation, maintenance, and monitoring (OM&M) of the SSD system installed in the building until the WDNR grants case closure for the Site. After closure, any current or future owner of the Site will be responsible for OM&M of the SSD system if there is a continued vapor intrusion risk that must be mitigated. Future sub-slab vapor sampling may be performed to confirm that the vapor intrusion risk is no longer present (see Section 5.0 below).

System monitoring and maintenance procedures described below and in **Attachmennt D.4.b** follow the recommendations presented in WDNR Publication RR-800: *Addressing Vapor Intrusion at Remediation Redevelopment Sites in Wisconsin*. The conditions that must be maintained for continued long-term protection from vapor intrusion are listed on the Inspection and Maintenance Log in **Attachment D.4.b**.

4.1 System Operation

The system is designed and intended to operate continuously. Operation of the SSD system can be confirmed as follows:

- Inspect the fan mounted on the roof, which can be accessed using a ladder from outside. Noise caused by the movement of air and slight vibration are indications that the fan is running; and
- Check the u-tube manometers located on the extraction point piping. The liquid level inside the u-shaped tube will be uneven if vacuum is present.

If the fan stops operating the audible alarm will sound. In that event, a vapor mitigation professional should be contacted as soon as possible to troubleshoot the problem and make the necessary repairs.

4.2 System Inspection, Monitoring, and Maintenance

System inspection and monitoring is required to be conducted at least once during the heating season. A second inspection and monitoring event is recommended in spring when the water level beneath the floor slab is expected to be highest. Inspection and maintenance logs (**Attachment D.4.b**) shall be completed by the person or group responsible for OM&M of the SSD system. The property owner will maintain a copy of this SSDS OM&M Plan on-site and make it available to all interested parties (i.e., on-site employees, contractors, future property owner, etc.) for viewing and made available to WDNR upon request.



Inspection and monitoring requirements are summarized in **Attachment D.4.b**. The fan and outdoor vent pipe, suction points, and alarm unit must be inspected for integrity and normal function as described in **Attachment D.4.b**. Under normal operating conditions, the manometers affixed to each suction point should read between 0.3 and 1.7 inches of vacuum. The concrete floor of the basement must be inspected for penetrating cracks, holes, or open joints that would cause "short-circuiting" of indoor air and limit sub-slab vacuum influence. Keeping the concrete floor in good condition is essential for SSD system effectiveness.

Proper function of the basement sump is also required for the SSD system to operate effectively. The sump should be inspected to confirm air-tight seals around the cover and pipe penetrations. If there are leak(s), the vacuum indicated by the EP-2 manometer will drop. The lowest vacuum observed at EP-2 during system commissioning was -0.3 inches of water. The sump pump should also be tested as part of the routine inspection. If the sump pump fails, water around the foundation may rise to the bottom of the floor slab, which restricts vacuum created by the fan. The pump can be tested by adding water through the capped opening in the sump lid. The pump should start automatically once the water reaches a certain level. If it does not, make sure the pump is plugged in to an energized outlet and the float moves freely. Replace the sump pump if troubleshooting does not resolve the problem.

The mitigation fan is factory sealed and requires no maintenance. In the event that a fan stops operating due to mechanical failure, the fan shall be replaced with an identical model or a fan with the same performance specifications. Replacement of fans should be handled by a mitigation contractor and/or an electrician. Maintenance and repair activities on other components, including piping, suction point seals, or openings in the concrete floor, can be performed by the environmental consultant or building maintenance personnel. Leaks around suction point seals can be fixed by adding caulk around the openings and/or tightening the bolts securing the sump lid and pipe penetrations. Minor cracks or holes in the concrete floor can typically be fixed with hydraulic cement patch or self-leveling sealant. More significant deterioration will require repair by a concrete professional.

5.0 DECOMMISSIONING AND CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS

The SSD system will be operated until it is no longer needed to prevent vapor intrusion. The WDNR shall be notified at least 45 days before any actions are taken which would terminate or interrupt operation of the SSD system for more than one week.



Decommissioning of the system will require re-assessment of vapor intrusion according to the following procedure:

- Notify WDNR of the decommission plan;
- Turn the fan off at the switch or circuit breaker;
- Collect sub-slab vapor samples for analysis of volatile organic compounds (VOCs) according to the following schedule, ensuring that two (2) of the sampling events occur during the heating season:
 - First event 2 to 4 weeks after shutting off the fan;
 - Second event 2 to 6 months after shutting off the fan;
 - Third event within 1 year of shutting off the fan.
- If the concentration of a VOC in any sample exceeds the applicable VRSL, return to long-term SSD system operation and monitoring.
- Request WDNR approval to remove the vapor mitigation requirement from the Site.

Because the SSD system was needed to mitigate vapor intrusion at the time of case closure, there was a continuing obligation for any owner of 4837 N. Teutonia Ave to operate and maintain the SSD system post-closure. The continuing obligation can be removed by going through the post-closure modification process. Contact WDNR for current guidance on this process.



FIGURES



Legend

	Property boundary
GAS	Underground gas utility line
WTR	Underground water utility line
UGT	Fiber optic utility line
SAN	Sanitary sewer utility line
STM	Storm sewer utility line
	Previous excavation area
(M)	Sanitary sewer manhole
\cup	~~····
F	Fire Hydrant
) F PZ-1 ↔	Fire Hydrant Piezometer location (Proposed to be abandoned)
(F) PZ-1 ↔ MW-1 �	Fire Hydrant Piezometer location (Proposed to be abandoned) Monitoring well location (Proposed to be abandoned)

	SITE LAYOUT MAP	
	Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 N. Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI	
22/17	ENVIRO Frensics 825 North Capitol Avenue • Indianapolis, IN 46204 EnviroForensics.com	Figure
EB		D.2.b.1
EB		Dutut
BK		Project
-1057		6229


Legend

₽-1 🔂	Floor drain Extraction point with u-tube manometer and ball valve
	Conveyance piping
	Horizontal extraction pipe
TP-1 💿	Sub-slab vacuum test port
(-0.131)	Vacuum reading in inches of water during system commissioning







ATTACHMENT D.4.b

Inspection and Maintenance Log

VAPOR MITIGATION SYSTEM INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE LOG LLOYD'S DRY CLEANERS, MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

NME PHO0 IPUCO IDUCTION PACINAL CONCUMUE PACORAL DECOMPANY PACORAL DECOM			S	SYSTEM COMPONENT			
Fail Interfact with a scalar and power process of particular scalar process of particular scalar power process of particular power process of particular power process proces process process proces process process process pro	NAME	РНОТО	FUNCTION	CHECK	NORMAL OBSERVATION	POSSIBLE REPAIR	DATE
Since price in the second s			Fan creates a vacuum and lowers pressure below foundation.	Fan Operation	Fan is on Fan mounted outside and secure	Fan may need to be replaced every 15 to 20 years.	
Notice Point with Statute Point with Vent FyeSinction Point Statut and large as an contract of part 	NAME Fan Suction Point with Vent Pipe Manometer Audible Alarm Outdoor Vent Pipe Foundation Floor Sump and Sump Pump		The fan also removes soil gasses from below foundation for discharge to	Fan Location	Fan motor is quiet (loud motor may indicate a problem)	Replacement fan to have similar specifications as original with respect to flow and vacuum.	
Succion Point with Vent Pipe Succion Point Scall server to pipe may need to be particularly the success of point be defined and pipe is connected to fan and have of pipe success and definitions. Succion Point scall server to pipe may need to be particularly the success of point definition of pipe scales of point scales or year point matching. Image: particular point scales or year point scales or year point matching. Mummeter Image: particular point scales or year point scales or year point scales or year point scales or year point definition or unknown point. Image: particular point scales or year point scales point scales or year point scales or year point scales or		1 2	atmosphere.	Wotor Worse		Fan Type = RadonAway GP501	
Suction Point with Verri Pper Suction Point Point Point Suction Point Point Point Point Suction Point			Suction Point : Soil gases are collected in a				
Section Point with Your Pipe Prover to get not using up on thomage on pipe on the section Point Seat Your Pipe Configure Section Point Seat Your Pipe Configure Prover Pipe Pipe Pipe Pipe Pipe Pipe Pipe Pipe		-11	pit below the foundation, and tight seal		Seals are air tight around pipe	Suction point seals or vent pipe may need to be	
Year Pope Next Pope Vert Pope Conveyt the vacuum from the fax, and collects to alg gases for excluding pope for each solution of the analysis of	Suction Point with		building.	Suction Point Seal	penetrations.	replaced if clacks of leaks appeal.	
Number of the second	Vent Pipe			Vent Pine Condition			
Image: carded modified or cards appear. modified or cards appear. Manometer Implified or cards appear. Implified or cards appear. Manometer Implified or cards appear. Implified or cards appear. Manometer Implified or cards appear. Implified or cards appear. Manometer Implified or cards appear. Implified or cards appear. Manometer Implified or cards appear. Implified or cards appear. Manometer Implified or cards appear. Implified or cards appear. Manometer Implified or cards appear. Implified or cards appear. Manometer Implified or cards appear. Implified or cards appear. Manometer Implified or cards appear. Implified or cards appear. Manometer Implified or cards appear. Implified or cards appear. Manometer Implified or cards appear. Implified or cards appear. Manometer Implified or cards appear. Implified or cards appear. Manometer Implified or cards appear. Implified or cards appear. Manometer Implified or cards appear. Implified or cards appear. Manometer Implified or cards appear. Implified or cards appear. Manometer Implified or cards appear. Implified or cards appear. Manometer <t< td=""><td></td><td></td><td>Vent Pipe: Pipe conveys the vacuum from the fan and collects soil gases for</td><td>vent i pe condition</td><td>Vent pipe is connected to fan and has not</td><td>Have professional test pressures if pipes are</td><td></td></t<>			Vent Pipe: Pipe conveys the vacuum from the fan and collects soil gases for	vent i pe condition	Vent pipe is connected to fan and has not	Have professional test pressures if pipes are	
Manometer Measures differential pressure between vacuum side of vent pipe and indoor space harmonic space in the second space		1 / United	discharge to the atmosphere.		cracked.	modified or cracks appear.	
Manometer Measures differential pressure between vacuum side of vert pipe and indoor spec. Inpuid I avel in manufactor spect. A change in liquid level indicates a change in the indit indicates a change in the indicates a change					l		
Manometer we cound side of ven pipe and indoor spec instances we cound side of the u-bes in revenue and revenue and the u-bes in rev			Measures differential pressure between			A change in liquid level indicates a change in the vacuum below the foundation. This could be	
Manometer Image: A properties of the image: A second of the image: A	Manometer		vacuum side of vent pipe and indoor space.		Liquid level on each side of the u-tube is	caused by fan failure, vent pipe blockage,	
Image: second				Liquid Level in Manometer	uneven. Normal range is 0.3 to 1.7	shallow water below foundation, or other	
Image: state of the state o			This measurement confirms the fan is		inches of water.	conditions.	
Audible Alarm Signals a loss of vacuum in the system piping Power to alarm unit Tubing from the alarm to extraction point pipe Contact a professional if the alarm sounds to trabelshoot the cause. Outdoor Vent Pipe Image: Contact a professional if the alarm sounds to the extraction point pipe Push tubing back through the small hole in the pipe Outdoor Vent Pipe Image: Contact a professional if the alarm sounds to the extraction point pipe Push tubing back through the small hole in the pipe Outdoor Vent Pipe Image: Contact a professional est pressure of pipe are more the arrowsphere. Vent Pipe Condition Vent Pipe carries soil gas outside and vents it to the alarm ophice. Vent Pipe Condition Vent Pipe carries soil gas outside and vents it to the alarm ophice. Vent Pipe condition Vent Pipe carries soil gas outside and vents it to the alarm ophice. Vent Pipe condition Vent Pipe carries soil gas outside and vents it to the alarm ophice. Vent Pipe condition Vent Pipe carries soil gas outside and vents it to the alarm ophice. Vent Pipe condition Vent Pipe carries soil gas outside and vents it to the alarm ophice. Vent Pipe condition Vent Pipe carries soil gas outside and vents it to the alarm ophice. Vent Pipe condition Vent Pipe carries soil gas outside and vents it to alarm ophice. Vent Pipe condition Vent Pipe carries soil gas outside			creating a vacuum.			Troubleshoot or hire professional to identify the cause and repair if needed	
Audible Alarm Signals a loss of vacuum in the system Power to alarm unit indicator light is on Contact a professional if the alarm sounds to Audible Alarm inpipus Signals a loss of vacuum in the system Tubing from the alarm unit Tubing from the alarm unit connects to Pish tubing back through the small hole in the Outdoor Vent Fipe Image: Alarm is silent Pipe carries soil gas outside and vents it to the atmosphere. Vent Fipe Condition Vent Pipe remains connected to fan. Pish tubing form the small hole in the pipe Foundation Floor Foundation is a barrier that minimizes soil gas outside and vents it to building. Vent Fipe Condition Vent Pipe remains connected to fan. Have professional test pressures if pipes are modified or cracks appear. Foundation Floor Foundation is a barrier that minimizes soil gas eutry into building. Foundation to state from the foundation to ensure unaturated sub-slab conditions and pipe penetrations and pipe penetration and pipe					Alarm unit is plugged in and green		
Audible Alarm Signals a loss of vacuum in the system piping Tubing from the alarm is silent Pue huming back through the small hole in the pipe may require replacement, or cleaning to remove use or debris. Outdoor Vent Pipe Pipe carries soil gas outside and vents it to the atmosphere. Vent Pipe Condition Vent pipe remains connected to fan. End of pipe free from obstructions. Vent pipe may require replacement, or cleaning to remove use or debris. Outdoor Vent Pipe Pipe carries soil gas outside and vents it to the atmosphere. Vent Pipe Condition Vent pipe remains connected to fan. End of pipe free from obstructions. Have professional test pressures if pipes are modified or cracks appear. Foundation Floor Pipe carries soil gas outside and vents it to gas entry into building. Pointation Condition foundation for gas entry into building. Non pertertains cracks or holes in modified or cracks appear. Foundation Floor Pointation is a barrier that minimizes stip gas entry into building. Pointation Condition foundation foundation foundation. No alterations or additions to building. If building floor plun has changed, contact a modified or cracks appear. Sump and Sump Pump Collects water from the foundation to ensure dust. Sealed sump cover and pipe poenings are air tight pipe refractions of wacuum any piperation of vacuum. Sealed sump cover and pipe poenings are air tight for gam and application of vacuum. Sealed sump cover and pipe poenings are air tight for gam and application of vacuum. <		9		Power to alarm unit	indicator light is on	Contact a professional if the alarm sounds to troubleshoot the cause	
Image: propuls Tubing from the alarm to extraction point pipe Tubing from the alarm to extraction point pipe Push tubing back through the small hole in the pipe Ourdoor Vent Pipe Image: pipe carries soil gas outside and vents it to the atmosphere. Vent Pipe Condition Vent Pipe Con	Audible Alarm		Signals a loss of vacuum in the system		The alarm is silent	noubleshoot the cause.	
Image: control of the struction point pipe pipe pipe pipe Outdoor Vent Pipe Image: control of the amosphere. Vent Pipe Condition Vent Pipe Condition Vent Pipe Condition Vent Pipe Tee from obstructions. Vent Pipe mains connected to fan. End of pipe free from obstructions. Vent Pipe condition Have professional test pressures if pipes are modified or cracks appear. Image: control of the amosphere. Poundation Floor Foundation is a barrier that minimizes of gas entry into building. Foundation Footprint No penetrating cracks or holes in fondation. Seal cracks or other penetrations as you would to prevent water from entering. Image: control of the amosphere. Sump and Sump Pump Sealer struction of vacuum. Sealer struction footprint No penetrating cracks or holes in fondation. Seal cracks or other penetrations as you would to prevent water from entering. Sump Pump Collects water from the foundation to ensure vacuum or vacuum. Seale sump cover and pipe openings are air-tight from the stanged. Tighten seals and clamps; replace the cover if damaged. Image: control of the stanged in add the float inclusion or prevent water fore the pump is plugged in add the float inclusion or vacuum. Image: control of the stanged in add the float inclusion or port print is a sample port to measure vacuum or vacuum. Pin Seal/Cap Pin Seal/Cap Pin Seal/Cap Pin Condition Pin seal and coper an concerted to the vaper op in to check sub-stala vacuum (not required). Vacuu			piping	Tubing from the alarm to	Tubing from the alarm unit connects to	Push tubing back through the small hole in the	
Outdoor Vent Pipe Pipe carries soil gas outside and vents it to the atmosphere. Vent Pipe Condition Vent Pipe Location Vent Pipe remains connected to fan. End of pipe free from obstructions. The exhaust is more than 15 feet from windows and air intakes. Vent Pipe may require replacement, or cleaning to remove ice or debris. Foundation Floor Foundation is a barrier that minimizes soil gas entry into building. Foundation Condition Foundation Footprint No penetrating cracks or holes in foundation. Seal cracks or other penetrations as you would to protestinate contract or wDNR to evaluate if modifications to the mitigation system are necessary. Sump and Sump Pump Collects water from the foundation to ensure unsaturated sub-slab conditions application of vacuum. Sealed sump cover and pipe penetrations Cover and pipe openings are air-tight Sump Pump Tighten seals and clamps; replace the cover if damaged. Sub-Slab Test Port This is a sample port to measure vacuum or collect soil gas sample(s) if needed. Pin Seal/Cap Pin Condition Pin Seal/Cap Pin Seal/Cap <td< td=""><td></td><td>- 18</td><td></td><td>extraction point pipe</td><td>the extraction point pipe</td><td>pipe</td><td></td></td<>		- 18		extraction point pipe	the extraction point pipe	pipe	
Outdoor Vent Pipe Pipe carries soil gas outside and vents it to the atmosphere. Vent Pipe Condition Vent Pipe Condition Vent Pipe Condition Vent Pipe Location Image: Condition Vent Pipe Condition Vent Pipe Condition Vent Pipe Condition Vent Pipe Location Image: Condition Vent Pipe Condition Support Image: Condition Vent Pipe Condition Support Image: Condition Vent Pipe Condition Support Image: Condition Vent Pipe Condition Vent Vent Pipe Conditio					Vent nine remains connected to for		
Outdoor Vent Pipe Pipe carries soil gas outside and vents it to the atmosphere. Image: Control of the pipe form obstructions. The exhaust is more than 15 feet from windows and air intakes. Have professional test pressures if pipes are modified or cracks appear. Foundation Floor Image: Control of the pipe form obstructions. The exhaust is more than 15 feet from windows and air intakes. No generating cracks or holes in foundation. Seal cracks or other penetrations as you would to professional test pressures if pipes are modified or cracks appear. Foundation Floor Foundation is a barrier that minimizes soil gas entry into building. Foundation Footprint No alterations or additions to building foundation. Seal cracks or other penetrations as you would to professional contractor or WDNR to evaluate if modifications to the mitigation system are necessary. Sump and Sump Pump Collects water from the foundation to ensurtarted sub-slab conditions an application of vacuum. Sealed sump cover and pipe penetrations professional contractor or work. Replace the pump is plugged in and the float is free to move. Replace the pump is plugged in and the float is free to move. Replace the pump in the event of failure. Sub-Slab Test Port This is a sample port to measure vacuum or collect soil gas sample(s) if needed. Pin Seal/Cap Pin Condition Pin Sealed and capped when not in use. Repair or replace the seal and cover as needed. Permanently seal hole if vapor pin is ever removed.		+		Vent Pine Condition	vent pipe remains connected to ran.	to remove ice or debris.	
Image: anisophic in a missiphic in the anisophic is a barrier that minimizes soil gas entry into building. Yent Pipe Location The exhaust is more than 15 feet from windows and air intakes. Have professional test pressures if pipes are modified or cracks appear. Foundation Floor Foundation is a barrier that minimizes soil gas entry into building. Foundation Condition No penetrating cracks or holes in foundation. Seal cracks or other penetrations as you would to prevent water from entering. Image: Condition Provention as prevent water from entering. Seal cracks or other penetrations as you would to prevent water from entering. Image: Condition Provention are prevent water from entering. Seal cracks or other penetrations as you would to prevent water from entering. Image: Condition Provention are prevent water from entering. Image: Condition Provention Provention are prevent water from entering. Image: Condition Provention Provention are prevent water from entering. Image: Condition Provention Proventin Proventin Prov	Outdoor Vent Pipe		Pipe carries soil gas outside and vents it to	vent i ipe condition	End of pipe free from obstructions.		
Image: constraint of the set of the	Outdoor Vent Pipe		the atmosphere.	Vent Pipe Location	The exhaust is more than 15 feet from	Have professional test pressures if pipes are	
Foundation Floor Foundation is a barrier that minimizes soil gas entry into building. Foundation Condition No penetrating cracks or holes in foundation. Seal cracks or other penetrations as you would to prevent water from entering. Sump and Sump Pump Collects water from the foundation to ensure usaturated sub-slab conditions and application of vacuum. Sealed sump cover and pipe openings are air-tight Sump pump operates automatically as water accumulates in the sump. Pump operation can be tested by adding water through the capped opening. Tighten seals and clamps; replace the cover if damaged. Sub-Slab Test Port This is a sample port to measure vacuum or collect soil gas sample(s) if needed. Pin Seal/Cap Pin Condition Pin Seal/Cap Pin Condition Pin Seal/Cap Pin Condition Pin Seal/Cap Pin Condition Pin Seal/Cap Pin to check sub-slab vacuum (not required). Vacuum should be less than - 0.004 in H ₃ 0. Repair or replace the seal and cover as needed. Permanently seal hole if vapor pin is ever removed.					windows and air intakes.	modified or cracks appear.	
Foundation Floor Foundation is a barrier that minimizes soil gas entry into building. Foundation Condition Foundation Condition Foundation Condition Foundation Condition Foundation Condition If building floor plan has changed, contact a professional contractor or WDNR to evaluate if modifications to building floor plan has changed, contact a professional contractor or WDNR to evaluate if modifications to the mitigation system are necessary. If building floor plan has changed, contact a professional contractor or WDNR to evaluate if modifications to the mitigation system are necessary. Sump and Sump Pump Collects water from the foundation to ensure vacuum. Sealed sump cover and pipe openings are air-tight size to move. Replace the cover if failure. If building floor plan has changed, contact a professional contractor or WDNR to evaluate if modifications to the mitigation system are necessary. Sump and Sump Pump Collects water from the foundation to ensure vacuum. Sealed sump cover and pipe openings are air-tight size automatically as water accumulates in the sump. Pump operates automatically as water accumulates in the sump. Pump operation can be tested by adding water intrough the capped opening. Make sure the pump is plugged in and the float is free to move. Replace the pump in the event of failure. Image: Collect size and cover as needed. Image: C					No penetrating cracks or holes in	Seal cracks or other penetrations as you would to	
Foundation Floor Foundation is a barrier that minimizes soil gas entry into building. Foundation Footprint No alterations or additions to building foor plan has changed, contact a professional contractor or WDNR to evaluate in constraints on the mitigation system are increasary. Sump and Sump Pump Collects water from the foundation to ensure unsaturated sub-slab conditions an application of vacuum. Sealed sump cover an pipe penetrations pump Cover and pipe openings are air-tight proper function of sump pump operates automatically as water accumulates in the sump. Pump operation can be tested by adding water introgenetic can be tested by adding water introgenetic can be tested by adding water of failure. Tighten seals and clamps; replace the cover if damaged. Sub-Slab Test Port This is a sample port to measure vacuum or collect soil gas sample(s) if needed. Pin Seal/Cap Pin Condition Pin is sealed and capped when not in use. Output to the sum should be less than on the test part in the concert of the vapor pin is ever removed. Permanently seal hole if vapor pin is ever removed.		HILLING		Foundation Condition	foundation.	prevent water from entering.	
Sump and Sump unp Collects water from the foundation to ensure unsaturated sub-slab conditions and application of vacuum. Sealed sump cover and pipe openings are air-tight pump operates automatically as water accumulates in the sump. Pump operates automatically as water accumulates in the sump. Pump operation can be tested by adding water through the capped opening. Tighten seals and clamps; replace the cover if damaged. Sub-Slab Test Port This is a sample port to measure vacuum or collect soil gas sample(s) if needed. Pin Seal/Cap Pin Condition Pin Seal/Cap Pin Condition Pin Seal/Cap Pin Condition Pin condition Pin Seal/Cap Pin Condition Pin condi	Foundation Floor		Foundation is a barrier that minimizes soil		No alterations or additions to building	If building floor plan has changed, contact a	
Image: Construction of the sump cover and application of vacuum. Sealed sump cover and pipe openings are air-tight results and clamps; replace the cover if damaged. Tighten seals and clamps; replace the cover if damaged. Sump and Sump Pump Collects water from the foundation to ensure unsaturated sub-slab conditions an application of vacuum. Sealed sump cover and pipe openings are air-tight pump operates automatically as water accumulates in the sump. Pump operation can be tested by adding water through the capped opening. Tighten seals and clamps; replace the cover if damaged. Sub-Slab Test Port This is a sample port to measure vacuum or collect soil gas sample(s) if needed. Pin Seal/Cap Pin is sealed and capped when not in use. Vapor pin to check sub-slab vacuum (not required). Vacuum should be less than - 0.004 in H ₂ 0. Repair or replace the seal and cover as needed. Image: Company operation can be connected to the vapor pin to check sub-slab vacuum (not required). Vacuum should be less than - 0.004 in H ₂ 0.		19	gus entry into building.	Foundation Footprint	foundation.	modifications to the mitigation system are	
Sump and Sump Pump Sealed sump cover and pip penetrations Cover and pipe openings are air-tight sump pump operates automatically as water accumulates in the sump. Pump operation can be tested by adding water through the capped opening. Tighten seals and clamps; replace the cover if damaged. IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII		1 martine				necessary.	
Sump and Sump Pump Collects water from the foundation to ensure unsaturated sub-slab conditions and application of vacuum. pipe penetrations pump Sump pump operates automatically as water accumulates in the sump. Pump operation can be tested by adding water Make sure the pump is plugged in and the float is free to move. Replace the pump in the event of failure. Image: Collects water from the foundation to ensure unsaturated sub-slab conditions and application of vacuum. Proper function of sump pump Sump pump operates automatically as water accumulates in the sump. Pump operation can be tested by adding water through the capped opening. Make sure the pump is plugged in and the float is free to move. Replace the pump in the event of failure. Image: Collect water from the foundation to ensure the pump in the event of failure. Image: Collect water from the foundation to is free to move. Replace the pump in the event of failure. Image: Collect water from the foundation to is free to move. Replace the pump in the event of failure. Image: Collect water from the foundation to is free to move. Sub-Slab Test Port This is a sample port to measure vacuum or collect soil gas sample(s) if needed. Pin Seal/Cap Pin Condition Pin is sealed and capped when not in use. Pin Condition Repair or replace the seal and cover as needed. Image: Collect water from the foundation for equiption of the pump in the event of failure. Sub-Slab Test Port This is a sample port to measure vacuum or collect soil gas sample(s) if needed. Pin Condition				Sealed sump cover and	Cover and pipe openings are air-tight	Tighten seals and clamps; replace the cover if damaged.	
Sump Pump Induct of instruction of vacuum. Proper function of sump pump water accumulates in the sump. Pump operation can be tested by adding water through the capped opening. Induct state the pump in the event of failure. Sub-Slab Test Port This is a sample port to measure vacuum or collect soil gas sample(s) if needed. Pin Seal/Cap Pin Seal/Cap Pin is sealed and capped when not in use. Repair or replace the seal and cover as needed. Sub-Slab Test Port This is a sample port to measure vacuum or collect soil gas sample(s) if needed. Pin Seal/Cap Pin is sealed and capped when not in use. Repair or replace the seal and cover as needed. Output Pin Condition Pin Quitter Pin is calce sub-slab vacuum (not required). Vacuum should be less than - 0.004 in H ₂ 0. Permanently seal hole if vapor pin is ever removed.	Sump and		Collects water from the foundation to ensure unsaturated sub-slab conditions and	pipe penetrations	Sump pump operates automatically as	Make sure the pump is plugged in and the float	
Sub-Slab Test Port This is a sample port to measure vacuum or collect soil gas sample(s) if needed. Pin Seal/Cap Pin is sealed and capped when not in use. Repair or replace the seal and cover as needed. Image: Cap Pin Condition Pin Condition Pin Condition Pin is sealed and capped when not in use. Repair or replace the seal and cover as needed. Image: Cap Pin Condition Pin Condition Pin Condition Pin Condition Permanently seal hole if vapor pin is ever removed. Image: Cap	Sump Pump	, (59 D	application of vacuum.	Proper function of sump	water accumulates in the sump. Pump	is free to move. Replace the pump in the event	
Sub-Slab Test Port Finis is a sample port to measure vacuum or collect soil gas sample(s) if needed. Pin Seal/Cap Pin is sealed and capped when not in use. Repair or replace the seal and cover as needed. Image: Cap Pin Seal/Cap Pin Condition Pin Condition Pin is sealed and capped when not in use. Repair or replace the seal and cover as needed. Image: Cap Output Pin Condition Pin Condition Pin Condition Permanently seal hole if vapor pin is ever removed. Image: Cap		0		pump	through the capped opening.	of failure.	
Sub-Slab Test Port This is a sample port to measure vacuum or collect soil gas sample(s) if needed. Pin Seal/Cap A manometer can be connected to the vapor pin to check sub-slab vacuum (not required). Vacuum should be less than - 0.004 in H ₂ 0. Permanently seal hole if vapor pin is ever removed.							
Sub-Slab Test Port This is a sample port to measure vacuum or collect soil gas sample(s) if needed. If it sear/Cap A manometer can be connected to the vapor pin to check sub-slab vacuum (not required). Vacuum should be less than - 0.004 in H ₂ 0. Permanently seal hole if vapor pin is ever removed. Image: Cap		A '		Din Seel/Con	Fin is sealed and capped when not in use.	Repair or replace the seal and cover as needed.	
$\begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	Sub-Slab Test Port		This is a sample port to measure vacuum	r m Sear Cap	A manometer can be connected to the		
$0.004 \text{ in } \text{H}_2 0.$		- 10	or collect soil gas sample(s) if needed.	Pin Condition	vapor pin to check sub-slab vacuum (not required). Vacuum should be less than -	Permanently seal hole if vapor pin is ever	
		and the second			$0.004 \text{ in H}_20.$		

ANNUAL INSEPECTION										
NOTES / REPAIR COMPLETED										

SUBMIT AS UNBOUND PACKAGE IN THE ORDER SHOWN

Notice: Pursuant to ch. 292, Wis. Stats., and chs. NR 726 and 746, Wis. Adm. Code, this form is required to be completed for case closure requests. The closure of a case means that the Department of Natural Resources (DNR) has determined that no further response is required at that time based on the information that has been submitted to the DNR. All sections of this form must be completed unless otherwise directed by the Department. DNR will consider your request administratively complete when the form and all sections are completed, all attachments are included, and the applicable fees required under ch. NR 749, Wis. Adm. Code, are included, and sent to the proper destinations. Personal information collected will be used for administrative purposes and may be provided to requesters to the extent required by Wisconsin's Open Records Law (ss. 19.31 - 19.39, Wis. Stats.). Incomplete forms will be considered "administratively incomplete" and processing of the request will stop until required information is provided.

Site Information									
BRRTS No.	VPLE No.								
02-41-556811									
Parcel ID No.									
20-70-833000									
FID No.	WTM Coordinates								
241417330	X (07027	004550							
BRRTS Activity (Site) Name	68/02/	294558							
Lloyd's Cleaners									
Site Address	City	El Center							
4837 North Teutonia Avenue	NG	State ZIP Code							
Acres Ready For Use	Milwaukee	W1 53209							
,	0.5								
Responsible Party (RP) Name									
Thomas Anderson									
Company Name									
Lloyds Cleaners									
Mailing Address	City	State ZIP Code							
12340 NE Shoreland Drive	Mequon	WI 53092							
Phone Number	Email	W1 55092							
(414) 405-4399									
Check here if the RP is the owner of the source property.									
Environmental Consultant Name									
Wayne Fassbender									
Consulting Firm									
EnviroForensics, LLC	1								
Maining Address	City	State ZIP Code							
N16 W23390 Stone Ridge Drive	Waukesha	WI 53188							
Phone Number	Email								
(414) 982-3988	wfassbender@enviroforensics.com								
Send a copy of page one of this form and the applicable ab									
(Environmental Program Associate) at http://dnr.wi.gov/topi	c/Brownfields/Contact.html#tabx3. Check a	egional EPA Il fees that apply:							
\$1,050 Closure Fee	\$300 Database Fee for Soil								
\$350 Database Fee for Groundwater or	Total Amount of Payment \$								
Monitoring Wells (Not Abandoned)	Resubmittal, Fees Previously Paid								
 Send one paper copy and one e-copy on compact disk of assigned to your site. Submit as <u>unbound</u>, <u>separate documer</u> electronic document submittal requirements, see http://dnr.w 	the entire closure package to the Regional P <u>ats</u> in the order and with the titles prescribed by i.gov/files/PDF/pubs/rr/RR690.pdf.	roject Manager this form. For							

Site Summary

If any portion of the Site Summary Section is not relevant to the case closure request, you must fully explain the reasons why in the relevant section of the form. All information submitted shall be legible. Providing illegible information will result in a submittal being considered incomplete until corrected.

1. General Site Information and Site History

- A. Site Location: Describe the physical location of the site, both generally and specific to its immediate surroundings. The Site encompasses 0.43 acres and is improved with a one story, 7,662 square foot commercial building with a partial basement and asphalt/concrete parking and driveway areas. The Site is occupied by a drop-off facility for clothes dry cleaned elsewhere and has an attached coin-operated laundromat. There are no surface water features or private wells on the Site. The Site is bound by commercial property to the north; N. Teutonia Avenue to the east; a commercial property (gasoline service station) to the south; and an industrial property (Benz Oil) to the west. The surrounding area consists of a mix of residential and commercial properties.
- B. Prior and current site usage: Specifically describe the current and historic occupancy and types of use. The Site was operated by others as an active dry cleaning facility from the early 1960's until 1981, when current owner Tom Anderson bought the property now known as Lloyd's Cleaners. Tetrachloroethene (PCE) was historically used as a dry cleaning solvent at this property until 2011, when Mr. Anderson discontinued active dry cleaning. According to Mr. Anderson, during active operations there was a 55-gallon drum of PCE in the basement area that was accessed periodically to top off product within the dry cleaning machine. The dry cleaning machine was located on the first floor in the southwest part of the building (see Figure B.1.b.2). The Site is currently used as a drop-off location for clothes dry cleaned elsewhere.
- C. Current zoning (e.g., industrial, commercial, residential) for the site and for neighboring properties, and how verified (Provide documentation in Attachment G).

Site is zoned commercial based on the Milwaukee zoning map and the property record.

- D. Describe how and when site contamination was discovered. A release of PCE to the subsurface was identified during due diligence activities performed by Sigma on December 10, 2010.
- E. Describe the type(s) and source(s) or suspected source(s) of contamination. The contaminants of concern at the Site are the dry cleaning solvent PCE and its degradation products. PCE was the main dry cleaning solvent used in the cleaning process until its use was discontinued in 2011. PCE was detected in subsurface soil, indicating a release of PCE at the Site. The suspected sources of contamination are leaks from the sanitary and storm sewer laterals (which were replaced during remediation), releases to the basement floor from the PCE above-ground storage tank formerly located in the basement, and minor surface spills related to historic dumpster use.
- F. Other relevant site description information (or enter Not Applicable). Not applicable.
- G. List BRRTS activity/site name and number for BRRTS activities at this source property, including closed cases. 02-41-556811 LLOYDS CLEANERS
- H. List BRRTS activity/site name(s) and number(s) for all properties immediately adjacent to (abutting) this source property. 03-41-003731 AKAL QUIK MART 03-41-001065 BENZ OIL 02-41-206849 BENZ OIL 03-41-247265 BENZ OIL 03-41-004481 LAKESIDE OIL CO INC

2. General Site Conditions

- A. Soil/Geology
 - Describe soil type(s) and relevant physical properties, thickness of soil column across the site, vertical and lateral variations in soil types.

Site is underlain by relatively uniform, stiff, moist clay. The clay is brown in color to a depth of approximately 13 feet below ground surface (bgs) where the color changes to gray. The clay continues to at least 28 feet bgs, which represents the maximum boring depth completed. Three (3) very thin (i.e., approximately one-inch) sand and gravel seams were logged at depths of 6.5, 17.5 and 19.0 feet deep; however, the coarser grained layers are discontinuous across the site.

- ii. Describe the composition, location and lateral extent, and depth of fill or waste deposits on the site. No unlicensed fill or waste deposits were identified. Source area soil within the basement and to the east of the site along the water, sanitary, and storm laterals have been removed. The exterior excavation extended to depth of 5 to 13 feet deep and and was backfilled with compactable fill. A portion of the basement was excavated to a depth of about one foot below grade and was backfilled with pea gravel to support sub-slab venting.
- iii. Describe the depth to bedrock, bedrock type, competency and whether or not it was encountered during the investigation. According to the Preliminary bedrock geologic map of Milwaukee County, Wisconsin (Evans, 2004), bedrock beneath

Form 4400-202 (R 8/16)

the site is the Silurian Racine Formation, a medium to coarse-grained dolomite. The estimated depth to bedrock is 50 to 100 feet. Bedrock was not encountered in the investigation borings.

iv. Describe the nature and locations of current surface cover(s) across the site (e.g., natural vegetation, landscaped areas, gravel, hard surfaces, and buildings).

The site is entirely covered by the building and asphalt, with the exception of a narrow strip of grass between the east edge of the parking lot and North Teutonia Ave.

Groundwater B

Discuss depth to groundwater and piezometric elevations. Describe and explain depth variations, including high and low i. water table elevation and whether free product affects measurement of water table elevation. Describe the stratigraphic unit(s) where water table was found or which were measured for piezometric levels.

Saturated conditions were not observed during installation of the groundwater monitoring well nests. However, all wells/piezometers eventually produced water between one (1) week and one (1) year following installation. A consistent water table elevation was not identified at the Site. The water table varied between 5 and 13 feet below ground surface as measured in monitoring wells. The piezometric surface was encountered at 12 to 23 feet below ground surface depending on location. Free product was not observed in any of the monitoring wells.

Groundwater elevations appeared higher near the southern (original) portion of the building. This may be due to roof drainage entering leaky underground storm sewer laterals along the eastern side of the building. These laterals were not inspected for leakage during camera inspections of the main storm lateral and sanitary sewer lateral. It is likely that storm water drainage may be leaking through these laterals and contributing to the higher water levels nearer to the building. Site soil is clay of low permeability and groundwater recharge is from seepage. Leakage from these laterals would likely cause temporary groundwater mounding that would seep downward over time at various seepage rates depending on location. This may explain why water levels vary widely across the site and it has been impossible to identify a consistent hydraulic gradient or groundwater flow direction. Clay soil was observed to be oxidized (brown in color) within the top 10-13 feet, with reduced clays (gray in color) below that. The point of color change is the anticipated horizon of the stable water table. Based on our review of site data from the adjacent Quik Mart to the south, the direction of groundwater flow is to the northeast.

Discuss groundwater flow direction(s), shallow and deep. Describe and explain flow variations, including fracture flow if ii. present.

Groundwater flow directions were not established due to inconsistent groundwater elevations.

iii. Discuss groundwater flow characteristics: hydraulic conductivity, flow rate and permeability, or state why this information was not obtained.

Due to the fine grained soils present at the site and slow recharged of monitoring wells during groundwater sampling, hydraulic conductivity was not obtained.

iv. Identify and describe locations/distance of potable and/or municipal wells within 1200 feet of the site. Include general summary of well construction (geology, depth of casing, depth of screened or open interval). No potable or municipal wells are within 1200 feet of the site.

3. Site Investigation Summary

- A. General
 - Provide a brief summary of the site investigation history. Reference previous submittals by name and date. Describe i. site investigation activities undertaken since the last submittal for this project and attach the appropriate documentation in Attachment C, if not previously provided.

A release of PCE to the subsurface was identified during a Phase II Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) performed by Sigma on December 10, 2010. Sigma collected one (1) soil sample (GP-1) within the basement, and one sample from each of four (4) borings (GP-2 through GP-5) outside the building. One (1) grab-groundwater sample was collected from each of three (3) borings (GP-2 through GP-4). The results of the Phase II ESA were reported to WDNR by EnviroForensics on the Notification For Hazardous Substance Discharge (Form 4400-255) as required by Section 292.11 of Wisconsin Statutes.

Investigations to determine the extent and magnitude of subsurface impacts were performed by EnviroForensics starting July 2011 through present. The results of investigations activities performed during 2011 through 2013 were reported in the Further Site Investigation Report dated July 22, 2013. A summary of the activities is listed below.

July 2011

- One (1) soil sample was collected from each of five (5) exterior soil borings (DP-6 through DP-10).

- Grab-groundwater samples were collected from two (2) exterior borings (DP-9 and DP-10)
- One (1) soil sample and one (1) groundwater sample were collected from one (1) basement hand auger boring (HA-1).

February/March 2013

- A total of 11 soil samples were collected from five (5) exterior soil borings (DP-11 through DP-15).

Page 4 of 17

Form 4400-202 (R 8/16)

A total of 12 soil samples were collected from four (4) basement hand auger borings (HB-1 through HB-4).
One (1) grab-groundwater sample was collected from each of two (2) basement hand auger borings (HB-1 and HB-3), and two (2) water samples were collected from boring HB-4.

- Three (3) water table monitoring wells (MW-1 through MW-3) and three peizometers (PZ-1 through PZ-3) were installed.

- Soil gas samples were collected from SG-1 and SG-2.

- Three (3) sub-slab vapor samples were collected from the slab-on-grade laundromat part of the building.

May 2013

- Groundwater monitoring

A letter proposing interim remedial actions was submitted to WDNR and approved on September 11, 2013. The interim remedial action, which consisted of soil excavation and replacement of sanitary sewer, storm sewer, and water service laterals, was performed during April and May, 2014. A new perimeter drain system was installed along the south and west walls of the basement, the sump was abandoned, and a new sump was installed and connected to the perimeter drain system. An Interim Remedial Action Report was submitted on August 28, 2014.

The site investigation continued after the interim action. The results of site investigation activities performed during 2014 and 2015 were reported in the Site Investigation Report dated August 7, 2015. A summary of the activities is listed below.

July 2014

- Groundwater monitoring

- Six (6) soil samples were collected from five (5) exterior soil borings (DP-16 through DP-19).

- Two (2) soil gas samples were collected at SG-3 and SG-4.

- Five (5) sub-slab vapor samples were collected from the beneath the slab-on-grade and basement in the dry cleaning part of the building.

October 2014 - Groundwater monitoring

January 2015 - Groundwater monitoring

March 2015

- Sub-slab vapor samples SSV-9 and SSV-10 were collected at the adjacent Benz Oil property.

April 2015

- Groundwater monitoring

During November 2016, soil samples were collected from beneath the basement floor for pre-remedial characterization purposes. Seven (7) soil samples were collected from seven (7) basement hand auger borings (HB-5 through HB-11).

Additional basement excavation activities were performed in February 2017. During that time, one foot of soil was excavated from underneath part of the basement slab, a new concrete floor was replaced, two floor drains were cleaned, and two (2) four inch PVC piping were installed for use in a sub-slab depressurization system (SSDS). These additional remedial actions are provided in report format and included in Attachment C.

 ii. Identify whether contamination extends beyond the source property boundary, and if so describe the media affected (e.g., soil, groundwater, vapors and/or sediment, etc.), and the vertical and horizontal extent of impacts.
 As shown on Figure B.2.b, soil impacts in the unsaturated zone (i.e. above 6 feet bgs) are limited to the Site with the exception of location DP-17 (3 feet bgs) located on the adjacent property to the south (Akal Quik Mart - 4811 N. Teutonia Ave) and along the sidewalls of the excavation in city of Milwaukee right-of-way (i.e., beneath the sidewalk and terrace along N. Teutonia Ave). The shallow DP-17 soil sample collected at 4811 N. Teutonia Ave contained 650 µg/kg PCE, which is well below the direct-contact residual contaminant level (RCL) for a commercial property. A deeper sample at the same location did not exhibit impacts.

Several post-remediation soil samples collected from the right-of-way contained volatile organic compounds (VOCs) at concentrations below industrial direct-contact RCLs but above the soil to groundwater RCL, including FS-1-6, FS-9-11, WS-1-4, WS-2-4, WS-8-8, and WS-9-8 as shown on Figure 2.b.a. The impacts are associated with leaky sewer laterals that were replaced, and meet the main lines in the terrace. Contamination likely does not extend beyond the N. Teutonia Ave curb. Residual contamination is present below the new pipes; however, the native clay limits vertical migration. Soil-gas samples collected north and south along the sanitary main did not contain VOC vapors above risk levels.

Form 4400-202 (R 8/16)

Identify any structural impediments to the completion of site investigation and/or remediation and whether these iii. impediments are on the source property or off the source property. Identify the type and location of any structural impediment (e.g., structure) that also serves as the performance standard barrier for protection of the direct contact or the groundwater pathway.

The outside area of excavation could not extend beneath the site building footing on the east side, which could compromise the structure. The extent of impacts outside the partial basement to the west could not be investigated because there are multiple buried natural gas and electrical utilities in this area, which is also a narrow and constricted space. Conventional drilling is impossible in this area and the use of hand-augers creates an unacceptable risk of contacting electrical supply lines. The slab-on-grade portion of the dry cleaner building, and the asphalt parking lot are considered performance standard barriers for protection of the groundwater pathway.

B. Soil i.

Describe degree and extent of soil contamination. Relate this to known or suspected sources and known or potential receptors/migration pathways.

Soil samples were collected from the basement of the site building and exterior locations to document soil contamination, to characterize waste in advance of remediation, or document residual contaminant concentrations at the boundaries of excavation areas. Sample locations are depicted on Figures B.2.a, B.2.a.1, B.2.a.2, and B.2.a.3.

Soil contamination was detected below the basement slab and outside the building, primarily along the sanitary and storm sewer laterals. It is likely that PCE contamination beneath the basement slab is due to the occasional spillage of PCE during product transfers from aboveground vessels located in the basement. The spilled PCE may have entered the foundation through the joint between the concrete floor slab and the concrete block wall, or possibly through leaky floor drains. The locations of the laterals outside of the building foundation were traced and found to be coincident with the highest concentrations of soil impacts detected. Based on site data collected to date, the leaky sewer laterals were determined to be the likely sources of exterior subsurface solvent impacts. PCE concentrations as high as 217 milligrams per kilogram (mg/kg) were detected along the sanitary sewer lateral in sample GP-5 (8-10 feet bgs). In the basement near the location of the former solvent AST, the PCE concentration in soil was 18 mg/kg (sample GP-1).

The lateral extent of soil impacts is mainly limited to fill beneath the building foundation and the sanitary and storm lateral utility trenches due to the surrounding native clay soil. Vertical migration in soil is limited to approximately 14-15 feet in outside areas and to just below the fill (10 feet) in basement areas due to the low permeability of native clay soil.

The vast majority of the impacted soil on the exterior of the building was excavated during interim remedial actions and transported to permitted disposal facilities. Likewise, impacted soil from beneath the basement slab was excavated and transported off-site for disposal during installation of the vapor mitigation system.

Describe the concentration(s) and types of soil contaminants found in the upper four feet of the soil column. ii. The highest concentrations of contaminants in soil are greater than four feet below ground surface. Field screening performed with a PID at the investigative boring locations generally did not indicate shallow impacts. Therefore, most of the exterior soil samples were collected from depths greater than five feet.

The laboratory detection limit for PCE is greater than the soil to groundwater RCL; therefore any detection results in an exceedence. The following soil to groundwater RCL exceedences were identified:

- One (1) soil sample collected at DP-14 from a depth of between 2-4 feet contained PCE at a concentration of 3,700 μg/kg;

- One (1) sample at DP-17 from a depth of 3 feet contained PCE at a concentration of 650 µg/kg; and - Several samples collected from 3 feet bgs at pre-excavation boring locations PEB-1 through PEB-17 contained PCE at elevated concentrations up to 47,000 µg/L. The locations and sample results are depicted on Figure B.2.a.3. However, all soil from the upper four feet of the soil column at the PEB locations was subsequently excavated and transported offsite for disposal.

iii. Identify the ch. NR 720, Wis. Adm. Code, method used to establish the soil cleanup standards for this site. This includes a soil performance standard established in accordance with s. NR 720.08, a Residual Contaminant Level (RCL) established in accordance with s. NR 720.10 that is protective of groundwater quality, or an RCL established in accordance with s. NR 720.12 that is protective of human health from direct contact with contaminated soil. Identify the land use classification that was used to establish cleanup standards. Provide a copy of the supporting calculations/ information in Attachment C.

The RCLs used at this site were calculated according to the procedures described in publication RR-890 using default input parameters.

C. Groundwater

Form 4400-202 (R 8/16)

i. Describe degree and extent of groundwater contamination. Relate this to known or suspected sources and known or potential receptors/migration pathways. Specifically address any potential or existing impacts to water supply wells or interception with building foundation drain systems.

The extent of groundwater contamination as defined by samples collected from the monitoring wells/piezometers and basement borings/collection trench is depicted on Figure B.3.b.

Of the five (5) grab groundwater samples collected, only GP-3, located near the southeast corner of the Site building, contained VOCs at concentrations above enforcement standards (ESs). GP-3 contained PCE [58 micrograms per liter (µg/L)], TCE (trichloroethene - 22 µg/L), and vinyl chloride (11.1 µg/L). Monitoring well nest MW-1/PZ-1 was installed near the GP-3 location to confirm and monitor groundwater impacts. PCE, TCE and cis-1,2-DCE were detected in groundwater samples collected from permanent monitoring wells and piezometers at the Site. However, the concentrations of these compounds were below ESs in all samples collected from the monitoring wells and piezometers. Because the results of the grab groundwater sample at GP-3 was not duplicated in MW-1, the grab sample result is not used for delineating impacts.

Water samples collected from basement borings HB-1, HB-3, and HB-4 contained PCE, TCE, cis-1,2-dichloroethene (cis-1,2-DCE), and vinyl chloride at concentrations exceeding their respective ESs. The highest PCE concentrations of 1,000 µg/L and 970 µg/L were detected in samples collected from boring HB-4, located along the west wall of the basement. The basement water samples are representative only of precipitation that accumulates in fill beneath the slab.

The initial basement water sample result at HA-1-V (PCE = $5,780,000 \mu g/L$) could not be duplicated in subsequent samples. The PCE concentration in a sample collected from the same location two years later was only 38 µg/L. The depth of the basement is nine (9) feet. This is just above the water table. PCE entering the subsurface through wall joints and leaky floor drains in the southwest corner of the basement would migrate within the building foundation. During periods of heavy rain, damaged foundation drain tiles caused water to well up below the basement slab and it would contact the contaminated clay soil and flood the foundation fill. The backfill and one foot of native clay soil in that area was removed during installation of the perimeter drain system.

Describe the presence of free product at the site, including the thickness, depth, and locations. Identify the depth and ii. location of the smear zone. Free product was not observed.

D. Vapor

i. Describe how the vapor migration pathway was assessed, including locations where vapor, soil gas, or indoor air samples were collected. If the vapor pathway was not assessed, explain reasons why.

Sub-slab vapor and soil gas samples were collected to assess the vapor intrusion pathway. Indoor air samples were not collected from inside of the dry cleaner building because even though the building is a drop-off and pick up center, the clothes are still cleaned at an off-site facility that uses PCE, and off-gassing of residual PCE from the cleaned clothes could have skewed the results of indoor air samples.

The sub-slab vapor and soil gas samples were collected using 1-liter sample vacuum canisters according to the procedures presented in WDNR guidance document PUB-RR-800. All appropriate quality control procedures, including leak detection and vacuum testing, were performed prior to sample collection.

Soil gas samples SG-1 and SG-2 were collected near the natural gas and sanitary sewer laterals, respectively. Sample SG-1 did not contain the contaminants of concern. Sample SG-2, which was collected along the eastern Site boundary as shown on Figure B.4.a, contained several compounds at concentrations above detection limits, including PCE (1,640 µg/m3) and TCE (17.9 µg/m3). The concentrations of all compounds detected in soil gas samples were below the VRSLs for small commercial properties. The PCE concentration in SG-2 exceeded the residential VRSL of 1,400 µg/ m3; however, residential screening levels do not apply to the site unless land use changes to residential.

Two samples (SG-3 and SG-4) were collected along the sanitary sewer main in the terrace of N. Teutonia Avenue at a depth of 10-feet bgs. A relatively low concentration of PCE (161 µg/m3) was detected in the SG-3 sample, and VOCs were not detected in the SG-4 sample.

Sub-slab vapor samples were collected from the basement and slab-on-grade portions of the site building as shown in Figure B.4.a. The samples collected from the slab-on-grade portion of the Site building (SSV-1 through SSV-6) each contained PCE at concentrations ranging from 4.88 to 1,790 µg/m3. These concentrations are less than the small commercial VRSL of 6,000 µg/m3. The residential VRSL for PCE was exceeded in samples collected from SSV-5 and SSV-6; however, residential screening levels do not apply to the site unless land use changes to residential. Lesser concentrations of TCE were also detected in some of the slab-on-grade samples. Benzene was detected at a concentration just above the reporting limit in sample SSV-6, which was collected at the north end of the building. The source of benzene in the sample is unknown.

Sub-slab vapor samples SSV-7, SSV-8, SSV-11, and SSV-12 were collected from the basement. As listed on Table A.4 and illustrated on Figure B.4.a, each sample contained PCE, TCE, and/or vinyl chloride at concentrations exceeding the

02-41-556811	
02-41-556811 BBBTS No	

VRSLs for a small commercial building. Some concentrations also exceeded VRSLs for residential buildings; however, residential screening levels do not apply to the site unless land use changes to residential.

The sub-slab vapor samples collected from the neighboring Benz Oil building (SSV-9 and SSV-10) contained only PCE. The concentrations were 57.0 and 84.8 µg/m3, respectively, which are well below the VRSL.

The Quik Mart building was not evaluated for vapor intrusion because of site geology, relative concentrations in soil, and the distance from the Lloyds source areas to the Quik Mart building. The Site geology consists of low permeability clay which does not readily transmit vapors. This is evidenced by concentrations of vapor detected beneath the slab-ongrade portion of the Lloyds building that are below vapor risk screening levels, yet are overlying or in close proximity to residual soil impacts that contain PCE concentrations of up to 138,000 micrograms per kilogram (µg/kg). The concentration discovered at the Quik Mart is low at 650 µg/kg, is located between 25-30 feet from the Quik Mart building, and not anticipated to produce vapors that would pose a vapor risk to that building based on our vapor intrusion screening results at the Lloyds property. The area of potential future risk of vapor intrusion on the Quik Mart property, which is outlined in Figure B.4.a., is based on the 650 µg/kg PCE result in soil detected at boring DP-17. The risk would apply only if a new building is constructed over that area. Quik Mart property soil borings DP-16 and DP-17 are shown on Figure B.4.a. for reference.

ii. Identify the applicable DNR action levels and the land use classification used to establish them. Describe where the DNR action levels were reached or exceeded (e.g., sub slab, indoor air or both).

The soil gas and sub-slab vapor analytical results were compared to residential and small commercial vapor risk screening levels (VRSLs), as appropriate for the use of the structure. The levels are based on US EPA's regional screening levels with an attenuation factor of 0.03 for sub-slab vapor samples. A 0.1 adjustment for a 1 x 10-5 lifetime cancer risk for carcinogens is also applied based on WDNR guidance. The applicable screening levels for the site are small commercial based on current land use. A comparison to residential screening levels is included in Table A.4 for reference only. Sample locations and concentrations are depicted on Figure B.4.a.

Residential VRSL exceedences were identified at the following locations:

- soil gas sample SG-2.

- sub-slab vapor samples SSV-5 and SSV-6 in the slab on grade portion of the building, and
- sub-slab vapor samples SSV-8, SSV-11, and SSV-12 in from the basement.

Small commercial VRSL exceedences were identified at the following locations: - sub-slab vapor samples SSV-7, SSV-8, SSV-11, and SSV-12 in the basement.

E. Surface Water and Sediment

Identify whether surface water and/or sediment was assessed and describe the impacts found. If this pathway was not assessed, explain why.

Surface water features are not present on the site or adjacent properties.

Identify any surface water and/or sediment action levels used to assess the impacts for this pathway and how these were ii. derived. Describe where the DNR action levels were reached or exceeded. Neither surface water nor riparian/ lacustrine sediment are present at the site. Therefore, this pathway was not assessed.

Remedial Actions Implemented and Residual Levels at Closure 4

General: Provide a brief summary of the remedial action history. List previous remedial action report submittals by name and date. Identify remedial actions undertaken since the last submittal for this project and provide the appropriate documentation in Attachment C.

An interim remedial action was conducted in 2014 and consisted of soil excavation and off-site disposal, as well as installation of a perimeter drain and sump in the basement. Soil sampling was performed in advance to define the horizontal and vertical extent of the excavation area, and to characterize waste. Soil was excavated along the sanitary and storm sewer laterals from the east building wall to N. Teutonia Ave. Previous visual inspection with a sewer camera indicated several breaches along both the sanitary and storm sewer laterals; therefore, the sewer and water laterals were also replaced. Hazardous and non-hazardous waste was segregated in roll-off containers and transported to permitted disposal facilities. 62.57 tons of hazardous waste was sent to the U.S. Ecology treatment facility in Belleville, MI. 605.86 tons of nonhazardous waste was transported to Orchard Ridge landfill in Menomonee Falls, WI.

The excavation was backfilled and the asphalt was replaced. In the basement of the site building, soil was excavated along the south and west building walls, and perforated drain pipe was installed, leading to a new sump. The sump discharges water to the sanitary sewer under permit issued by the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District (MMSD). An Interim Remedial Report dated August 28, 2014 was submitted to WDNR.

Additional remedial actions were performed in the basement of the building during 2017. A summary of the actions is present in Section 4.C. The Remedial Action Report, dated July 13, 2017, is presented in Attachment C.4.

02-41-556811 BRRTS No.

Lloyd's Cleaners Activity (Site) Name

Case Closure - GIS Registry Page 8 of 17

Form 4400-202 (R 8/16)

B. Describe any immediate or interim actions taken at the site under ch NR 708, Wis. Adm. Code.

Initial excavating was performed outside the building at the location where the water, storm, and sanitary sewer laterals exited from beneath the building and in City of Milwaukee right-of-way where they connected to mains adjacent to N. Teutonia Avenue. During this initial excavation, the area of hazardous soil was removed and placed in covered roll-offs for transport and disposal at the EQ landfill located in Michigan. A 60-mil rubber liner was installed near the Site property boundary in close proximity to the sanitary sewer man-way and also at the storm sewer lateral connection to inhibit potential future migration of residual contaminants to utility mains along N. Teutonia Avenue. The storm, sanitary, and water laterals were replaced with code-compliant materials under permit and inspection by the City of Milwaukee and MMSD. Backfill consisted of medium-grained sand with some silt, clay, and trace gravel. The fines in this material allowed the backfill to be compacted tightly. 668 tons of contaminated soil was transported off-site for disposal, comprising approximately 12 pounds of VOCs. 62.57 tons of hazardous waste was sent to the U.S. Ecology treatment facility in Belleville, MI. 605.86 tons of non-hazardous waste was transported to Orchard Ridge landfill in Menomonee Falls, WI.

The basement foundation drainage was improved by installing a new drain pipe along the west wall and re-plumbing this foundation drainage to the sanitary sewer system to avoid continued discharge of contaminated foundation water to the storm sewer system. Portions of the concrete slab within the basement were saw-cut and removed and staged for disposal as special solid waste. Hazardous foundation fill material was excavated using hydrovac equipment. The contaminated basement fill was also placed in covered roll-offs for transport and disposal at the EQ landfill as hazardous waste. Sub-slab fill and a small amount of native clay was removed to a depth of 0.75 feet using hydrovac equipment. A flexible 4" perforated drainage pipe was installed within this trench. The drainage pipe was bedded in 3/4" crushed dolomite, which was washed to remove fines. Weep holes were drilled in the block wall all along the base of the footing to facilitate drainage of foundation water built up within the wall. A plastic drain plate was then affixed to the wall to channel this water into the collection trench. The drainage plate was then covered with fill and new concrete was laid. The old, damaged, basement sump crock was abandoned by filling with crushed stone, and the slab repaired with concrete. A new, sealed, sump crock with pump was installed closer to the west wall.

C. Describe the active remedial actions taken at the source property, including: type of remedial system(s) used for each media affected; the size and location of any excavation or in-situ treatment; the effectiveness of the systems to address the contaminated media and substances; operational history of the systems; and summarize the performance of the active remedial actions. Provide any system performance documentation in Attachment A.7.

Remedial actions consisted of excavation only. No systems were installed other than an SSDS in the basement of the site building.

In addition to the interim action described in Section 4B, excavation was also conducted in the basement of the site building to facilitate installation of an SSDS. Excavating was performed in an area comprising a main storage room, two (2) bathrooms, and a hallway in the basement. The other areas of the basement, including an office, secondary storage room, and mechanical room were not targeted for remediation based on past investigation results.

The concrete slab was saw-cut around the perimeter of the excavation area, and the slab itself was broken into pieces by jackhammer. The concrete pieces were loaded onto a conveyor system that moved material up the stairs and outside to a staging area on the south side of the building. The limited fill material beneath the floor slab and native clay soil was removed by hand to a depth of approximately 12 inches below the bottom of the slab. Soil was also transported by the conveyor system to the staging area. All soil excavated from the basement was loaded into dump trucks and sent to the Waste Management Orchard Ridge Landfill in Menomonee Falls, Wisconsin. A total of 15.27 tons of excavated material was managed and disposed of as special solid waste.

The excavation area was backfilled with pea gravel. Two lengths of 4-inch diameter perforated PVC vent pipes were bedded within the pea gravel to facilitate sub-slab venting. The pipe was wrapped in filter fabric to prevent entry of soil particles. A vapor barrier (6-mil sheet plastic) was placed on top of the pea gravel. The concrete slab was replaced to an equivalent thickness as the existing slab, having an approximate thickness of 4-5-inches. In addition, a concrete barrier was poured immediately adjacent to the previously installed drain tile along the west basement wall. In that area, the concrete is now 14-inches thick and is intended to prevent groundwater in the foundation drain tile from entering into the excavation backfill.

An SSDS was installed in the basement, utilizing the two (2) horizontal vent pipes installed within the excavation backfill, one (1) vertical extraction point along the north wall of the mechanical room, and the sealed sump crock for the purpose of venting the drainage tile and block wall. The pipes are manifolded, and a single 4-inch diameter PVC pipe is routed to the roof through an unused pipe chase in the mechanical room. The pipe is connected to a RadonAway Model GP-501 fan mounted on the roof. The post-installation pressure field extension testing indicated that the system applies negative pressure across the main room and mechanical room of the basement where elevated vapor concentrations were previously detected. The SSDS layout is shown on Figure B.4.c.1, and a cross-section of the basement excavation and SSDS piping is shown on Figure B.4.c.2.

Remedial activities also included cleaning floor drains and sealing the west basement block wall. Two (2) floor drains were cleaned by plumbers using a drain auger followed by flushing with water. The post-cleaning photo-ionization detector readings collected from the floor drains demonstrated that the cleaning procedure removed the source of vapors. The west block wall of the basement was sealed to mitigate potential vapor movement from the wall to indoor air. Sealing included using mortar or expanding foam to patch holes and cracks; caulking the joint between the base of the wall and the floor slab;

Form 4400-202 (R 8/16)

and applying two (2) layers of elastomeric rubberized coating.

D. Describe the alternatives considered during the Green and Sustainable Remediation evaluation in accordance with NR 722.09 and any practices implemented as a result of the evaluation.

The interim action excavation was done under NR 708. Sustainability of the action was not specifically considered. However, characterizing soil in advance allowed for minimizing shipment of hazardous waste.

E. Describe the nature, degree and extent of residual contamination that will remain at the source property or on other affected properties after case closure.

Residual soil contamination above soil to groundwater RCLs is present within and adjacent to the exterior remedial excavation area as shown on Figure B.2.b. There is also an area of shallow soil impact on the south side of the building at DP-11 containing PCE and petroleum compounds. This area of residual soil impacts extends along the south wall of the site building and south to DP-17 (3-feet deep) on the Quik Mart property. The area is bound by clean soil samples collected at GP-2 to the west, DP-6 to the north, DP-15 to the east, and DP-16 to the south. There are no direct-contact exceedences remaining.

The only area of residual groundwater contamination exceeding ESs is along the basement foundation. Water that collects around the foundation is directed to a basement sump. Preventive action limits (PALs) are exceeded under the building and parking lot west of the building as shown on Figure B.3.b.

Impacted vapor exists under the basement floor slab. An SSDS was installed to mitigate vapor intrusion risk, along with wall repair and sealing.

- F. Describe the residual soil contamination within four feet of ground surface (direct contact zone) that attains or exceeds RCLs established under s. NR 720.12, Wis. Adm. Code, for protection of human health from direct contact. The residual soil contaminant concentrations within four feet of the ground surface are below direct contact RCLs.
- G. Describe the residual soil contamination that is above the observed low water table that attains or exceeds the soil standard(s) for the groundwater pathway.

The water table elevations measured in site monitoring wells were highly variable. Residual soil impacts above the soil to groundwater RCL exist along the sidewalls and floor of the exterior excavation area as shown on Figure B.2.b. There is a second area on the south side of the building defined by DP-11 (PCE = 16,000 μ g/kg at 4-6 feet bgs) and DP-17 (PCE = 650 µg/kg at 3 feet bgs) on the adjacent Quik Mart property. This area is remote from the primary contaminant source areas. It is likely that the contaminants detected at this location are from a small amount of surface spillage.

The highest residual PCE concentrations are present at sample locations DP-11 and certain locations along the floor and sidewalls of the exterior excavation as listed on Table A.3 and shown on Figure B.2.b.

H. Describe how the residual contamination will be addressed, including but not limited to details concerning: covers, engineering controls or other barrier features; use of natural attenuation of groundwater; and vapor mitigation systems or measures.

Soil impacts appear limited in depth to the lean clay horizon at approximately 13 feet bgs indicating that the clay is acting as a barrier to vertical migration. Foundation water is being collected and discharged to the MMSD sanitary sewer system. Groundwater in outside areas has not had impacts above the ES. Concentrations of CVOC's in sump discharge water are monitored at least twice per year per MMSD requirements. Sump concentrations have decreased dramatically since implementing basement remedial measures, and it is hopeful that concentrations will remain at levels below the ES at which point discharge to the storm sewer system may be possible. In addition, future vapor intrusion assessments will be performed to determine the continued need for mitigation.

An engineered cover, consisting of the asphalt parking lot and the portion of the building used as a drop-off for dry cleaned goods, will be maintained as a performance standard barrier to protect against infiltration of storm water and subsequent "flushing" of soil impacts to the water table. The area of contamination near DP-11 is capped with asphalt that will prevent infiltration of precipitation and associated further spread of impacts. Maintenance of the cover will be required. The Quik Mart property also has an existing continuing obligation to maintain their asphalt as an engineered cover.

The sub-slab depressurization system will be operated and maintained to mitigate vapor intrusion risk.

- If using natural attenuation as a groundwater remedy, describe how the data collected supports the conclusion that natural L attenuation is effective in reducing contaminant mass and concentration (e.g., stable or receding groundwater plume). Natural attenuation is not being used to remedy groundwater impacts along the west basement foundation. Remaining groundwater impacts are below enforcement standards.
- Identify how all exposure pathways (soil, groundwater, vapor) were removed and/or adequately addressed by immediate, J. interim and/or remedial action(s).

The contaminant soil sources were excavated, and there is no remaining direct-contact risk. Groundwater is not used as a resource at the site or surrounding area, and the drainage collection system includes a sealed sump crock. The vapor intrusion pathway was addressed by repairing and sealing the west basement block wall and installing an SSDS. The

Form 4400-202 (R 8/16)

pressure field extension measurements demonstrate that the SSDS induces a negative pressure under the entire affected area. Sub-slab vapor beneath the slab-on-grade portion of the building contained PCE at concentrations above residential VRSLs. This would present an exposure risk only if the site land use changes to residential. Therefore, vapor mitigation was not required in this portion of the site building.

- K. Identify any system hardware anticipated to be left in place after site closure, and explain the reasons why it will remain. Active remediation system hardware is not present at the site, and no hardware will be left in place after closure. The SSDS installed in the basement of the site building will remain and continue to operate after case closure.
- Identify the need for a ch. NR 140, Wis. Adm. Code, groundwater Preventive Action Limit (PAL) or Enforcement Standard (ES) exemption, and identify the affected monitoring points and applicable substances. PCE, TCE and cis-1,2-DCE were detected in groundwater samples collected from monitoring wells and piezometers at the Site. None of these compounds were detected at concentrations above ESs at any time during the investigation. Concentrations of CVOCs in groundwater along the basement foundation currently exceed ESs; however, the results of recent sump discharge samples indicate rapidly decreasing concentrations.

Monitoring well MW-1, located near the southeast corner of the building, consistently exhibited PCE and TCE at concentrations above the PALs but below the ESs of 5 µg/L. Likewise, nested piezometer PZ-1 exhibited intermittent detections of PCE and TCE. Samples collected from monitoring well MW-2 yielded PCE only, with concentrations ranging from 1 to 1.2 µg/L. There were no CVOCs detected in samples collected from monitoring wells PZ-1, MW-3, or PZ-3. We request a PAL exemption for monitoring wells MW-1 and MW-2, which contained PCE at concentrations of 2.18 µg/L and 1.04 µg/L, respectively, as of the final sampling event.

M. If a DNR action level for vapor intrusion was exceeded (for indoor air, sub slab, or both) describe where it was exceeded and how the pathway was addressed.

Sub-slab vapor samples collected from the basement (SSV-7, -8, -11, and -12) contained PCE, TCE, and/or vinyl chloride at concentrations above screening levels for a small commercial building. A sub-slab depressurization system was installed, and will be operated and maintained to mitigate the vapor intrusion risk.

Sub-slab vapor beneath the slab-on-grade portion of the building (SSV-5 and SSV-6) contained PCE at concentrations above residential VRSLs. This would present an exposure risk only if the site land use changes to residential. Therefore, vapor mitigation was not required in this portion of the site building.

N. Describe the surface water and/or sediment contaminant concentrations and areas after remediation. If a DNR action level was exceeded, describe where it was exceeded and how the pathway was addressed. Neither surface water nor riparian/ lacustrine sediment are present at the site.

Case Closure - GIS Registry Page 11 of 17

Form 4400-202 (R 8/16)

Continuing Obligations: Situations where sites, including all affected properties and rights-of-way (ROWs), are included on the DNR's GIS Registry. In certain situations, maintenance plans are also required, and must be included in 5. Attachment D.

Directions: For each of the 3 property types below, check all situations that apply to this closure request.

(NOTE: Monitoring wells to be transferred to another site are addressed in Attachment E.)

	This situatio property o	n applies to t r Right of Wa	he following ay (ROW):		
	Property Typ	e:		Case Closure Situation - Continuing Obligation Inclusion on the GIS Registry is Reguired (ii xiv.)	Maintenance Plan
	Source Property	Affected Property (Off-Source)	ROW	3 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Required
i.				None of the following situations apply to this case closure request.	NA
ij.				Residual groundwater contamination exceeds ch. NR 140 ESs.	NA
iii.	\boxtimes	\square	\boxtimes	Residual soil contamination exceeds ch. NR 720 RCLs.	NA
iv.				Monitoring Wells Remain:	
				Not Abandoned (filled and sealed)	NA
				Continued Monitoring (requested or required)	Yes
v.				Cover/Barrier/Engineered Cover or Control for (soil) direct contact pathways (includes vapor barriers)	Yes
vi.	\boxtimes			Cover/Barrier/Engineered Cover or Control for (soil) groundwater infiltration pathway	Yes
vii.	\boxtimes			Structural Impediment: impedes completion of investigation or remedial action (not as a performance standard cover)	NA
viii.				Residual soil contamination meets NR 720 industrial soil RCLs, land use is classified as industrial	NA
ix.	\boxtimes		NA	Vapor Mitigation System (VMS) required due to exceedances of vapor risk screening levels or other health based concern	Yes
x.	\boxtimes		NA	Vapor: Dewatering System needed for VMS to work effectively	Yes
xi.			NA	Vapor: Compounds of Concern in use: full vapor assessment could not be completed	NA
xii	\boxtimes		NA	Vapor: Commercial/industrial exposure assumptions used.	NA
xiii.	\boxtimes	\square		Vapor: Residual volatile contamination poses future risk of vapor intrusion	NA
xiv.				Site-specific situation: (e. g., fencing, methane monitoring, other) (discuss with project manager before submitting the closure request)	Site specific

Underground Storage Tanks 6.

Α.	Were any tanks, piping or other associated tank system components removed as part of the investigation or remedial action?	⊖ Yes	No

B. Do any upgraded tanks meeting the requirements of ch. ATCP 93, Wis. Adm. Code, exist on the property? No ⊖ Yes

C. If the answer to question 6.B. is yes, is the leak detection system currently being monitored?

○ Yes ○ No

Activity (Site) Name

Form 4400-202 (R 8/16)

General Instructions

All information shall be legible. Providing illegible information will result in a submittal being considered incomplete until corrected. For each attachment (A-G), provide a Table of Contents page, listing all 'applicable' and 'not applicable' items by Closure Form titles (e.g., A.1. Groundwater Analytical Table, A.2. Soil Analytical Results Table, etc.). If any item is 'not applicable' to the case closure request, you must fully explain the reasons why.

Data Tables (Attachment A)

Directions for Data Tables:

- Use bold and italics font for information of importance on tables and figures. Use bold font for ch. NR 140, Wis. Adm. Code ES attainments or exceedances, and italicized font for ch. NR 140, Wis. Adm. Code, PAL attainments or exceedances.
- Use bold font to identify individual ch. NR 720 Wis. Adm. Code RCL exceedances. Tables should also include the corresponding groundwater pathway and direct contact pathway RCLs for comparison purposes. Cumulative hazard index and cumulative cancer risk exceedances should also be tabulated and identified on Tables A.2 and A.3.
- Do not use shading or highlighting on the analytical tables.
- Include on Data Tables the level of detection for results which are below the detection level (i.e., do not just list as no detect (ND)). .
- Include the units on data tables. .
- Summaries of all data must include information collected by previous consultants. .
- Do not submit lab data sheets unless these have not been submitted in a previous report. Tabulate all data required in s. NR 716.15 (3)(c), Wis. Adm. Code, in the format required in s. NR 716.15(4)(e), Wis. Adm. Code.
- Include in Attachment A all of the following tables, in the order prescribed below, with the specific Closure Form titles noted on the separate attachments (e.g., Title: A.1. Groundwater Analytical Table; A.2. Soil Analytical Results Table, etc.).
- For required documents, each table (e.g., A.1., A.2., etc.) should be a separate Portable Document Format (PDF).

A. Data Tables

- A.1. Groundwater Analytical Table(s): Table(s) showing the analytical results and collection dates for all groundwater sampling points (e.g., monitoring wells, temporary wells, sumps, extraction wells, potable wells) for which samples have been collected.
- A.2. Soil Analytical Results Table(s): Table(s) showing all soil analytical results and collection dates. Indicate if sample was collected above or below the observed low water table (unsaturated versus saturated).
- A.3. Residual Soil Contamination Table(s): Table(s) showing the analytical results of only the residual soil contamination at the time of closure. This table shall be a subset of table A.2 and should include only the soil sample locations that exceed an RCL. Indicate if sample was collected above or below the observed low water table (unsaturated versus saturated). Table A.3 is optional only if a total of fewer than 15 soil samples have been collected at the site.
- A.4. Vapor Analytical Table(s): Table(s) showing type(s) of samples, sample collection methods, analytical method, sample results, date of sample collection, time period for sample collection, method and results of leak detection, and date, method and results of communication testing.
- Other Media of Concern (e.g., sediment or surface water): Table(s) showing type(s) of sample, sample collection A.5. method, analytical method, sample results, date of sample collection, and time period for sample collection.
- A.6. Water Level Elevations: Table(s) showing all water level elevation measurements and dates from all monitoring wells. If present, free product should be noted on the table.
- A.7. Other: This attachment should include: 1) any available tabulated natural attenuation data; 2) data tables pertaining to engineered remedial systems that document operational history, demonstrate system performance and effectiveness, and display emissions data; and (3) any other data tables relevant to case closure not otherwise noted above. If this section is not applicable, please explain the reasons why.

Maps, Figures and Photos (Attachment B)

Directions for Maps, Figures and Photos:

- Provide on paper no larger than 11 x 17 inches, unless otherwise directed by the Department. Maps and figures may be submitted . in a larger electronic size than 11 x 17 inches, in a PDF readable by the Adobe Acrobat Reader. However, those larger-size documents must be legible when printed.
- Prepare visual aids, including maps, plans, drawings, fence diagrams, tables and photographs according to the applicable portions of ss. NR 716.15(4), 726.09(2) and 726.11(3), (5) and (6), Wis. Adm. Code.
- Include all sample locations. •
- Contour lines should be clearly labeled and defined.
- Include in Attachment B all of the following maps and figures, in the order prescribed below, with the specific Closure Form titles . noted on the separate attachments (e.g., Title: B.1. Location Map; B.2. Detailed Site Map, etc).
- For the electronic copies that are required, each map (e.g., B.1.a., B.2.a, etc.,) should be a separate PDF.
- Maps, figures and photos should be dated to reflect the most recent revision. .
 - B.1. Location Maps
 - B.1.a. Location Map: A map outlining all properties within the contaminated site boundaries on a United States Geological Survey (U.S.G.S.) topographic map or plat map in sufficient detail to permit easy location of all affected and/or adjacent parcels. If groundwater standards are exceeded, include the location of all potable wells, including municipal wells, within 1200 feet of the area of contamination.
 - B.1.b. Detailed Site Map: A map that shows all relevant features (buildings, roads, current ground surface cover, individual property boundaries for all affected properties, contaminant sources, utility lines, monitoring wells and potable wells) within the contaminated area. This map is to show the location of all contaminated public streets, and highway and railroad rights-of-way in relation to the source property and in relation to the boundaries of groundwater contamination attaining or exceeding a ch. NR 140 ES, and/or in relation to the boundaries of soil contamination attaining or exceeding a RCL. Provide parcel identification numbers for all affected properties.
 - B.1.c. RR Sites Map: From RR Sites Map (http://dnrmaps.wi.gov/sl/?Viewer=RR Sites) attach a map depicting the source property, and all open and closed BRRTS sites within a half-mile radius or less of the property.

Page 13 of 17

Form 4400-202 (R 8/16)

B.2. Soil Figures

- B.2.a. Soil Contamination: Figure(s) showing the location of <u>all</u> identified unsaturated soil contamination. Use a single contour to show the horizontal extent of each area of contiguous soil contamination that exceeds a soil to groundwater pathway RCL as determined under ch. NR 720.Wis. Adm. Code. A separate contour line should be used to indicate the horizontal extent of each area of contiguous soil contamination that exceeds a direct contact RCL exceedances (0-4 foot depth).
- B.2.b. Residual Soil Contamination: Figure(s) showing only the locations of soil samples where unsaturated soil contamination remains at the time of closure (locations represented in Table A.3). Use a single contour to show the horizontal extent of each area of contiguous soil contamination that exceeds a soil to groundwater pathway RCL as determined under ch. NR 720 Wis. Adm. Code. A separate contour line should be used to indicate the horizontal extent of each area of contiguous soil contamination that exceeds a direct contact RCL exceedence (0-4 foot depth).

B.3. Groundwater Figures

- B.3.a. Geologic Cross-Section Figure(s): One or more cross-section diagrams showing soil types and correlations across the site, water table and piezometric elevations, and locations and elevations of geologic rock units, if encountered. Display on one or more figures all of the following:
 - Source location(s) and vertical extent of residual soil contamination exceeding an RCL. Distinguish between
 direct contact and the groundwater pathway RCLs.
 - Source location(s) and lateral and vertical extent if groundwater contamination exceeds ch. NR 140 ES.
 - Surface features, including buildings and basements, and show surface elevation changes.
 - Any areas of active remediation within the cross section path, such as excavations or treatment zones.
 - Include a map displaying the cross-section location(s), if they are not displayed on the Detailed Site Map (Map B.1.b.)
- B.3.b. Groundwater Isoconcentration: Figure(s) showing the horizontal extent of the post-remedial groundwater contamination exceeding a ch. NR 140, Wis. Adm. Code, PAL and/or an ES. Indicate the date and direction of groundwater flow based on the most recent sampling data.
- B.3.c. Groundwater Flow Direction: Figure(s) representing groundwater movement at the site. If the flow direction varies by more than 20° over the history of the site, submit two groundwater flow maps showing the maximum variation in flow direction.
- B.3.d. Monitoring Wells: Figure(s) showing all monitoring wells, with well identification number. Clearly designate any wells that: (1) are proposed to be abandoned; (2) cannot be located; (3) are being transferred; (4) will be retained for further sampling, or (5) have been abandoned.
- B.4. Vapor Maps and Other Media
 - B.4.a. Vapor Intrusion Map: Map(s) showing all locations and results for samples taken to investigate the vapor intrusion pathway in relation to residual soil and groundwater contamination, including sub-slab, indoor air, soil vapor, soil gas, ambient air, and communication testing. Show locations and footprints of affected structures and utility corridors, and/or where residual contamination poses a future risk of vapor intrusion.
 - B.4.b. Other media of concern (e.g., sediment or surface water): Map(s) showing all sampling locations and results for other media investigation. Include the date of sample collection and identify where any standards are exceeded.
- B.4.c. Other: Include any other relevant maps and figures not otherwise noted above. (This section may remain blank).
 B.5. Structural Impediment Photos: One or more photographs documenting the structural impediment feature(s) which precluded a complete site investigation or remediation at the time of the closure request. The photographs should

document the area that could not be investigated or remediated due to a structural impediment. The structural impediment should be indicated on Figures B.2.a and B.2.b.

Documentation of Remedial Action (Attachment C)

Directions for Documentation of Remedial Action:

- Include in Attachment C all of the following documentation, in the order prescribed below, with the specific Closure Form titles noted on the separate attachments (e.g., Title: C.1. Site Investigation Documentation; C.2. Investigative Waste, etc.).
- If the documentation requested below has already been submitted to the DNR, please note the title and date of the report for that
 particular document requested.
 - C.1. Site investigation documentation, that has not otherwise been submitted with the Site Investigation Report.
 - C.2. Investigative waste disposal documentation.
 - C.3. Provide a **description of the methodology** used along with all supporting documentation if the RCLs are different than those contained in the Department's RCL Spreadsheet available at: http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/Brownfields/Professionals.html.
 - C.4. Construction documentation or as-built report for any constructed remedial action or portion of, or interim action specified in s. NR 724.02(1), Wis. Adm. Code.
 - C.5. Decommissioning of Remedial Systems. Include plans to properly abandon any systems or equipment.
 - C.6. Other. Include any other relevant documentation not otherwise noted above (This section may remain blank).

Maintenance Plan(s) and Photographs (Attachment D)

Directions for Maintenance Plans and Photographs:

Attach a maintenance plan for each affected property (source property, each off-source affected property) with continuing obligations requiring future maintenance (e.g., direct contact, groundwater protection, vapor intrusion). See Site Summary section 5 for all affected property(s) requiring a maintenance plan. Maintenance plan guidance and/or templates for: 1) Cover/barrier systems; 2) Vapor intrusion; and 3) Monitoring wells, can be found at: http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/Brownfields/Professionals.html#tabx3

- D.1. Descriptions of maintenance action(s) required for maximizing effectiveness of the engineered control, vapor mitigation system, feature or other action for which maintenance is required:
 - Provide brief descriptions of the type, depth and location of residual contamination.

Case Closure - GIS Registry

Page 14 of 17

Form 4400-202 (R 8/16)

- · Provide a description of the system/cover/barrier/monitoring well(s) to be maintained.
- Provide a description of the maintenance actions required for maximizing effectiveness of the engineered control, vapor mitigation system, feature or other action for which maintenance is required.
- Provide contact information, including the name, address and phone number of the individual or facility who will be conducting the maintenance.
- D.2. Location map(s) which show(s): (1) the feature that requires maintenance; (2) the location of the feature(s) that require(s) maintenance on and off the source property; (3) the extent of the structure or feature(s) to be maintained, in relation to other structures or features on the site; (4) the extent and type of residual contamination; and (5) all property boundaries.
- D.3. **Photographs** for site or facilities with a cover or other performance standard, a structural impediment or a vapor mitigation system, include one or more photographs documenting the condition and extent of the feature at the time of the closure request. Pertinent features shall be visible and discernible. Photographs shall be submitted with a title related to the site name and location, and the date on which it was taken.
- D.4. **Inspection log**, to be maintained on site, or at a location specified in the maintenance plan or approval letter. The inspection and maintenance log is found at: http://dnr.wi.gov/files/PDF/forms/4400/4400-305.pdf.

Monitoring Well Information (Attachment E)

Directions for Monitoring Well Information:

For all wells that will remain in use, be transferred to another party, or that could not be located; attach monitoring well construction and development forms (DNR Form 4400-113 A and B: http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/groundwater/documents/forms/4400_113_1_2.pdf)

Select One:

No monitoring wells were installed as part of this response action.

All monitoring wells have been located and will be properly abandoned upon the DNR granting conditional closure to the site

Select One or More:

Not all monitoring wells can be located, despite good faith efforts. Attachment E must include a description of efforts made to locate the wells.

One or more wells will remain in use at the site after this closure. Attachment E must include documentation as to the reason (s) the well(s) will remain in use. When one or more monitoring wells will remain in use this is considered a continuing obligation and a maintenance plan will be required and must be included in Attachment D.

One or more monitoring wells will be transferred to another owner upon case closure being granted. Attachment E should include documentation identifying the name, address and email for the new owner(s). Provide documentation from the party accepting future responsibility for monitoring well(s).

Source Legal Documents (Attachment F)

Directions for Source Legal Documents:

Label documents with the specific closure form titles (e.g., F.1. Deed, F.2. Certified Survey Map, etc.). Include all of the following documents, in the order listed:

F.1. Deed: The most recent deed with legal description clearly listed.

Note: If a property has been purchased with a land contract and the purchaser has not yet received a deed, a copy of the land contract which includes the legal description shall be submitted instead of the most recent deed. If the property has been inherited, written documentation of the property transfer should be submitted along with the most recent deed.

- F.2. Certified Survey Map: A copy of the certified survey map or the relevant section of the recorded plat map for those properties where the legal description in the most recent deed refers to a certified survey map or a recorded plat map. In cases where the certified survey map or recorded plat map are not legible or are unavailable, a copy of a parcel map from a county land information office may be substituted. A copy of a parcel map from a county land information office shall be legible, and the parcels identified in the legal description shall be clearly identified and labeled with the applicable parcel identification number.
- F.3. Verification of Zoning: Documentation (e.g., official zoning map or letter from municipality) of the property's or properties' current zoning status.
- F.4. Signed Statement: A statement signed by the Responsible Party (RP), which states that he or she believes that the attached legal description(s) accurately describe(s) the correct contaminated property or properties. This section applies to the source property only. Signed statements for Other Affected Properties should be included in Attachment G.

02-41-556811 BRRTS No. Lloyd's Cleaners

Activity (Site) Name

Notifications to Owners of Affected Properties (Attachment G)

Directions for Notifications to Owners of Affected Properties:

Complete the table on the following page for sites which require notification to owners of affected properties pursuant to ch. 292, Wis. Stats. and ch. NR 725 and 726, Wis. Adm. Code. Personal information collected will be used for administrative purposes and may be provided to requesters to the extent required by Wisconsin's Open Records law [ss. 19.31- 19.39,Wis. Stats.]. The DNR's "Guidance on Case Closure and the Requirements for Managing Continuing Obligations" (PUB-RR-606) lists specific notification requirements http://dnr.wi.gov/files/PDF/pubs/rr/RR606.pdf.

State law requires that the responsible party provide a 30-day, written advance notification to certain persons prior to applying for case closure. This requirement applies if: (1) the person conducting the response action does not own the source property; (2) the contamination has migrated onto another property; and/or (3) one or more monitoring wells will not be abandoned. Use form 4400-286, Notification of Continuing Obligations and Residual Contamination, at http://dnr.wi.gov/files/PDF/forms/4400/4400-286.pdf

Include a copy of each notification sent and accompanying proof of delivery, i.e., return receipt or signature confirmation. (These items will not be placed on the GIS Registry.)

Include the following documents for each property, keeping each property's documents grouped together and labeled with the letter G and the corresponding ID number from the table on the following page. (Source Property documents should only be included in Attachment F):

- Deed: The most recent deed with legal descriptions clearly listed for all affected properties. Note: If a property has been purchased with a land contract and the purchaser has not yet received a deed, a copy of the land contract which includes the legal description shall be submitted instead of the most recent deed. If the property has been inherited, written documentation of the property transfer should be submitted along with the most recent deed.
- Certified Survey Map: A copy of the certified survey map or the relevant section of the recorded plat map for those properties where
 the legal description in the most recent deed refers to a certified survey map or a recorded plat map. In cases where the certified
 survey map or recorded plat map are not legible or are unavailable, a copy of a parcel map from a county land information office may
 be substituted. A copy of a parcel map from a county land information office shall be legible, and the parcels identified in the legal
 description shall be clearly identified and labeled with the applicable parcel identification number.
- Verification of Zoning: Documentation (e.g., official zoning map or letter from municipality) of the property's or properties' current zoning status.
- Signed Statement: A statement signed by the Responsible Party (RP), which states that he or she believes the attached legal description(s) accurately describe(s) the correct contaminated property or properties.

Page 15 of 17

Form 4400-202 (R 8/16)

02-41-556811 BRRTS No.

Lloyd's Cleaners Activity (Site) Name

Case Closure-GIS Registry Form 4400-202 (R 8/16)

Page 16 of 17

	Notifications to Owners of Affected Properties	(Attachment G)										10-81-1						
						353 Pr			F	Reas	ons I	Noti	ficat	ion l	ette	er Se	nt:		
ID	Address of Affected Property	Parcel ID No.	Date of Receipt of Letter	Type of Property Owner	WTMX	WTMY	Residual Groundwater Contamination = or > ES	Residual Soil Contamination Exceeds RCLs	Monitoring Wells: Not Abandoned	Monitoring Wells: Continued Monitoring	Cover/Barrier/Engineered Control	Structural Impediment	Industrial RCLs Met/Applied	Vapor Mitigation System(VMS)	Dewatering System Needed for VMS	Compounds of Concern in Use	Commercial/Industrial Vapor Exposure Assumptions Applied	Residual Volatile Contamination Poses Future Risk of Vapor Intrusion	Site Specification Situation
Α	Right-of-Way	NA	06/26/2017	ROWH	687023	294522		\times											
В	4811 N. Teutonia Avenue	20-70-743210	06/26/2017	APO	687035	294566		\times										\times	
с																			
D																			

02-41-556811	Lloyd's Cleaners	Case Closure - GIS Registry
BRRTS No.	Activity (Site) Name	Form 4400-202 (R 8/16) Page 17 of 17

Signatures and Findings for Closure Determination

Check the correct box for this case closure request, and have either a professional engineer or a hydrogeologist, as defined in ch. NR 712, Wis. Adm. Code, sign this document.

A response action(s) for this site addresses groundwater contamination (including natural attenuation remedies).

The response action(s) for this site addresses media other than groundwater.

Engineering Certification

L

Andrew Horwath

hereby certify that I am a registered professional engineer in the State of Wisconsin, registered in accordance with the requirements of ch. A-E 4, Wis. Adm. Code; that this case closure request has been prepared by me or prepared under my supervision in accordance with the Rules of Professional Conduct in ch. A-E 8, Wis. Adm. Code; and that, to the best of my knowledge, all information contained in this case closure request is correct and the document was prepared in compliance with all applicable requirements in chs. NR 700 to 726, Wis. Adm. Code. Specifically, with respect to compliance with the rules, in my professional opinion a site investigation has been conducted in accordance with ch. NR 716, Wis. Adm. Code, and all necessary remedial actions have been completed in accordance with chs. NR 140, NR 718, NR 720, NR 722, NR 724 and NR 726, Wis. Adm. Codes."

Andrew Horwath		Senior Engineer
Printed Name	······································	Title
Andrew D. Herrold	8/8/2019	PE No. E-43831-6
Signature	Date	P.E. Stamp and Number
Hudrogoologist Coulifierd	the shirts fragments of strengtheners	

Hydrogeologist Certification

Brian Kappen

I Brian Kappen hereby certify that I am a hydrogeologist as that term is defined in s. NR 712.03 (1), Wis. Adm. Code, and that, to the best of my knowledge, all of the information contained in this case closure request is correct and the document was prepared by me or prepared by me or prepared under my supervision and, in compliance with all applicable requirements in chs. NR 700 to 726, Wis. Adm. Code. Specifically, with respect to compliance with the rules, in my professional opinion a site investigation has been conducted in accordance with ch. NR 716, Wis. Adm. Code, and all necessary remedial actions have been completed in accordance with chs. NR 140, NR 718, NR 720, NR 722, NR 724 and NR 726, Wis. Adm. Codes."

Brian Kappen

Printed Name

Bill rapp ignature

Senior Geologist

Title

ATTACHMENT A – DATA TABLES

- **Table A.1. Groundwater Analytical Results**
- Table A.2.
 Soil Analytical Results
- Table A.3. Residual Soil Analytical Results
- Table A.4. Vapor Analytical Results
- **Table A.5. Sump Discharge Analytical Results**
- **Table A.6. Water Level Elevations**
- Table A.7. Pressure Field Extension Measurements

TABLE A.1.GROUNDWATER ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Sample Identification	Sample Date	Tetrachloroethene	Trichloroethene	cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	Vinyl Chloride	Benzene	Ethylbenzene	n-Propylbenzene	Toluene	Xylenes (total)	Chloromethane	1,1-Dichloroethene	Methylene Chloride
Enforcement Standard		5	5	70	100	0.2	5	700	NE	1,000	10,000	30	7	5
Preventive Action Limit		0.5	0.5	7	20	0.02	0.5	140	NE	200	1,000	3	0.7	0.5
Grab Groundwater Samples														
GP-2	12/13/2010	< 0.43	< 0.39	< 0.78	< 1.3	< 0.19	< 0.38	< 0.55	< 0.67	< 0.7	< 1.1	<1.2	< 0.7	< 0.47
GP-3	12/13/2010	58	22	43	9.4	11.1	0.40 J	< 0.55	0.82 J	0.91 J	< 1.1	<1.2	< 0.7	< 0.47
GP-4	12/13/2010	< 0.43	< 0.39	< 0.78	< 1.3	< 0.19	< 0.38	0.90 J	< 0.67	19.5	3.11	<1.2	< 0.7	< 0.47
6229-DP-10-16W	7/26/2011	< 0.45	< 0.48	< 0.83	< 0.89	< 0.18	< 0.41	< 0.54	< 0.81	< 0.67	< 1.8	< 0.24	< 0.57	< 0.43
6229-DP-9-18W	7/27/2011	< 0.45	< 0.48	< 0.83	< 0.89	< 0.18	< 0.41	< 0.54	< 0.81	< 0.67	< 1.8	< 0.24	< 0.57	< 0.43
					Monitorin	ng Well/Piez	cometer San	nples						
	5/7/2013	2.3	0.56	0.89 J	< 0.25	< 0.10	< 0.074	< 0.13	< 0.13	< 0.11	< 0.068	< 0.18	< 0.31	< 0.68
	7/17/2014	2.74	1.43	1.94	< 0.35	< 0.18	< 0.24	< 0.55	< 0.25	< 0.69	< 0.63	< 0.81	< 0.4	< 0.5
6229-MW-1	10/15/2014	3.5	1.07	1.75	< 0.35	< 0.18	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
Sample Identification	1/7/2015	2.37 J	0.86 J	1 J	< 0.54	< 0.17	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
	4/11/2015	2.18 J	0.72	0.62 J	< 0.54	< 0.17	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
6229-MW-1	5/7/2013	< 0.17	< 0.19	< 0.12	< 0.25	< 0.10	< 0.074	< 0.13	< 0.13	< 0.11	< 0.068	< 0.18	< 0.31	< 0.68
	7/17/2014	1.62	0.45 J	< 0.38	< 0.35	< 0.18	< 0.24	< 0.55	< 0.25	< 0.69	< 0.63	< 0.81	< 0.4	< 0.5
6229-PZ-1	10/15/2014	1.31	< 0.33	< 0.38	< 0.35	< 0.18	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
	1/7/2015	< 0.74	< 0.47	< 0.45	< 0.54	< 0.17	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
	4/11/2015	< 0.74	< 0.47	< 0.45	< 0.54	< 0.17	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
	10/15/2014	1.2	< 0.33	0.43 J	< 0.35	< 0.18	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
6229-MW-2	1/7/2015	1.16 J	< 0.47	0.47 J	< 0.54	< 0.17	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
	4/11/2015	1.04 J	<0.47	< 0.45	<0.54	<0.17	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
	10/18/2014	< 0.33	< 0.33	< 0.38	< 0.35	<0.18	< 0.24	< 0.55	<0.25	< 0.69	< 0.63	<0.81	<0.4	<0.5
6229-PZ-2	10/15/2014	< 0.33	<0.33	< 0.38	< 0.35	<0.18	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
	1/1/2015	<0.74	<0.47	<0.45	< 0.54	<0.17	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
	4/11/2015	<0.74	<0.47	<0.45	< 0.54	<0.17	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA



TABLE A.1.GROUNDWATER ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Lloyd's Dry Cleaners Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Sample Identification	Sample Date	Tetrachloroethene	Trichloroethene	cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	Vinyl Chloride	Benzene	Ethylbenzene	n-Propylbenzene	Toluene	Xylenes (total)	Chloromethane	1,1-Dichloroethene	Methylene Chloride
Enforcement Standa	ard	5	5	70	100	0.2	5	700	NE	1,000	10,000	30	7	5
Preventive Action Lin	nit	0.5	0.5	7	20	0.02	0.5	140	NE	200	1,000	3	0.7	0.5
	5/7/2013	< 0.17	< 0.19	< 0.12	< 0.25	< 0.10	< 0.074	< 0.13	< 0.13	< 0.11	< 0.068	< 0.18	< 0.31	< 0.68
	7/17/2014	< 0.33	< 0.33	< 0.38	< 0.35	< 0.18	< 0.24	< 0.55	< 0.25	< 0.69	< 0.63	< 0.81	< 0.4	< 0.5
6229-MW-3	10/15/2014	< 0.33	< 0.33	< 0.38	< 0.35	< 0.18	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
Sample Identification	1/7/2015	< 0.74	< 0.47	< 0.45	< 0.54	< 0.17	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
	4/11/2015	< 0.74	< 0.47	< 0.45	< 0.54	< 0.17	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
	5/7/2013	< 0.17	< 0.19	< 0.12	< 0.25	< 0.10	< 0.074	< 0.13	< 0.13	< 0.11	< 0.068	< 0.18	< 0.31	< 0.68
	7/17/2014	< 0.33	< 0.33	< 0.38	< 0.35	< 0.18	< 0.24	< 0.55	< 0.25	< 0.69	< 0.63	< 0.81	< 0.4	< 0.5
6229-PZ-3	10/15/2014	< 0.33	< 0.33	< 0.38	< 0.35	< 0.18	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
	1/7/2015	< 0.74	< 0.47	< 0.45	< 0.54	< 0.17	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
	4/11/2015	< 0.74	< 0.47	< 0.45	< 0.54	< 0.17	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
					Basement	Foundatior	n Water Sar	nples						
6229-HA-1-V	7/26/2011	5,780,000	< 24,000	< 41,500	< 44,500	< 9,000	<20,500	<27,000	<40,500	<33,500	<41,500	<12,000	<28,500	34,500 J
6229-HB-1 (GW-1)	3/5/2013	28	5.9	77	0.89 J	2.5	< 0.074	< 0.13	< 0.13	< 0.11	< 0.068	2.9	< 0.31	< 0.68
6229-HB-3 (GW-1)	3/6/2013	38	15	1,400	22	22	< 0.074	< 0.13	< 0.13	< 0.11	< 0.068	3.3	2.2	< 0.68
6229-HB-4 (SW)	3/5/2013	1,000	31	100	1.0	6.4	< 0.074	< 0.13	< 0.13	< 0.11	< 0.068	< 0.18	< 0.31	< 0.68
6229-HB-4 (GW-1)	3/6/2013	970	45	280	2.5	18	< 0.15	< 0.26	< 0.26	< 0.22	< 0.14	3.1	< 0.62	<1.4

Notes:

All concentrations reported in units of micrograms per liter (µg/L)

Samples analyzed using EPA SW-846 Method 8260

Bolded values exceed the WDNR Enforcement Standard

Italicized values exceed the WDNR Preventive Action Limit

J = Analyte concentration is above the method detection limit and below the reporting limit

MW/PZ denotes monitoring well sample

DP/GP denotes grab groundwater sample from soil boring

HA/HB denotes grab water sample collected immediately beneath the basement floor slab



SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Sample Identification	Sample Date	Sample Depth (feet)	Tetrachloroethene	Trichloroethene	cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	Vinyl Chloride	Methylene Chloride	sec-Butylbenzene	n-Butylbenzene	Isopropylbenzene	n-Propylbenzene	Naphthalene
Residual Con Inc	ntaminant Lev dustrial	vel -	145,000	8,410	2,340,000	1,850,000	2,080	1,150,000	145,000	108,000	268,000	264,000	24,100
Residual Cor Non-	Residual Contaminant Level - Non-Industrial		33,000	1,300	156,000	1,560,000	67	61,800	145,000	108,000	268,000	264,000	5,520
Residual Con Soil to C	Residual Contaminant Level - Soil to Groundwater		4.5	3.6	41.2	58.8	0.1	2.6	NE	NE	NE	NE	658
					Exterior	r Investigatio	on Samples						
GP-1	12/10/2010	2-2.5	18,400	2,500	1,330	61 J	<33	<119	<35	<46	<39	<44	<100
GP-2	12/10/2010	8-10	<53	<50	<44	< 43	<33	<119	<35	<46	<39	<44	<100
GP-3	12/10/2010	6-8	116 J	<50	<44	< 43	<33	<119	280	810 1	223	1,100	<100
GP-4	12/10/2010	10-12	430	<50	<44	< 43	<33	<119	<35	<46	<39	<44	<100
GP-5	12/10/2010	8-10	217,000	276	274	< 43	<33	<119	<35	<46	<39	<44	<12,500
6229-DP-6	7/26/2011	4-6	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	<40.4	<25.0	<25.0	<25
6229-DP-7	7/26/2011	26-28	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	<40.4	<25.0	<25.0	<25
6229-DUP (6229-DP-7)	7/26/2011	26-28	731	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	128	<25.0	<40.4	<25.0	<25.0	<25
6229-DP-8	7/26/2011	18-20	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	172	<25.0	<40.4	<25.0	<25.0	<25
6229-DP-9	7/26/2011	4-6	65.8 J	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	139	<25.0	<40.4	<25.0	<25.0	<25
6229-DP-10	7/26/2011	16-18	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	182	<25.0	<40.4	<25.0	<25.0	<25
		4-6	16,000	610	170	<20	<8.3	<54	<12	<10	<20	<14	<39
6229-DP-11	2/4/2013	14-16	<14	<15	<10	<20	<8.4	<55	<12	<10	<20	<14	<40
		20-22	610	33 J	<12	<25	<10	<67	<15	<13	<25	<17	<49
		4-6	120	32 J	<12	<25	<10	<68	<15	<13	<25	<17	<49
6229-DP-12	2/4/2013	16-18	240	<17	<11	<22	<9.3	<61	<14	<11	<22	<16	<44
		24-26	<13	<14	<9.2	<19	<7.8	<51	<12	<9.7	<19	<13	<37
		6-8	<16	<18	<12	<24	<10	<66	<15	<13	<24	<17	<48
6229-DP-13	2/5/2013	10-12	<15	<16	<11	<22	<9.0	<59	<13	<11	<22	<15	<43
		18-20	<14	<15	<10	<21	<8.6	<56	<13	<11	<21	<14	<41
6229-DP-14	2/5/2013	2-4	3,700	<11	<7.5	<15	<6.3	<42	<9.4	<7.8	<15	<11	<30
6229-DP-15	2/5/2013	2-4	<16	<18	<12	<24	<9.9	<65	<15	<12	<24	<17	<47
6229-DP-16	7/17/2014	6	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
6229-DP-16	7/17/2014	13	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
6229-DP-17	7/17/2014	3	650	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
6229-DP-17	7/17/2014	9	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
6229-DP-18	7/17/2014	8	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	<221	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
6229-DP-19	7/17/2014	9	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	<221	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114



SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Sample Identification	Sample Date	Sample Depth (feet)	Tetrachloroethene	Trichloroethene	cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	Vinyl Chloride	Methylene Chloride	sec-Butylbenzene	n-Butylbenzene	Isopropylbenzene	n-Propylbenzene	Naphthalene
Residual Co In	ntaminant Le dustrial	vel -	145,000	8,410	2,340,000	1,850,000	2,080	1,150,000	145,000	108,000	268,000	264,000	24,100
Residual Contaminant Level - Non-Industrial		33,000	1,300	156,000	1,560,000	67	61,800	145,000	108,000	268,000	264,000	5,520	
Residual Co Soil to	Residual Contaminant Level - Soil to Groundwater		4.5	3.6	41.2	58.8	0.1	2.6	NE	NE	NE	NE	658
					Basemer	nt Investigati	on Samples						
6229-HA-1	7/26/2011	0-2	5,430,000	< 12,500	< 12,500	< 12,500	<12,500	<12,500	<12,500	<20,200	<12,500	<12,500	<12,500
	3/6/2013	2	<14	<16	<10	<21	<8.8	<58	<13	<11	<21	<15	<42
6229-HB-1	3/6/2013	3	<13	<14	<9.5	<18	<8.0	<53	<12	<10	<19	<14	<38
	3/6/2013	5.5	<15	<16	<11	<22	<9.0	<59	<13	<11	<22	<15	<43
	3/5/2013	1.5	<15	<16	<11	<22	<9.1	<60	<13	<11	<22	<15	<43
6229-HB-2	3/5/2013	3.5	<14	<15	<10	<21	<8.6	<57	<13	<11	<21	<15	<41
	3/5/2013	8	<14	<16	<11	<22	<9.0	<59	<13	<11	<22	<15	<43
	3/6/2013	1.5	<16	<18	<12	<24	<9.9	<65	<15	<12	<24	<17	<47
6229-НВ-3	3/6/2013	3	<14	<16	<10	<21	<8.7	<57	<13	<11	<21	<15	<41
	3/6/2013	7.5	<13	<14	<9.5	<19	<8.0	<53	<12	<9.9	<19	<13	<38
	3/8/2013	2	<15	<17	<11	<23	20 J	<62	<14	<12	<23	<16	<45
6229-HB-4	3/8/2013	4	<14	<16	<10	<21	<8.7	<57	<13	<11	<21	<15	<41
	3/8/2013	7.5	<14	<15	<10	<20	<8.5	<56	<13	<11	<21	<14	<40
6229-HB-5	11/2/2016	0.5-1.5	<54	<42	79	<24	<10	<220	<36	<86	<86	<35	278 J
6229-HB-6	11/2/2016	0.5-1.5	<54	<42	21.7 J	<24	17.9 J	<220	<36	<86	<86	<35	<87
6229-HB-7	11/2/2016	0.5-1.5	<54	<42	340	34 J	49	<220	<36	<86	<86	<35	<87
6229-HB-8	11/2/2016	0.5-1.5	<54	<42	112	<24	32	<220	<36	<86	91 J	<35	234 J
6229-HB-9	11/2/2016	1-2	<54	<42	76	<24	58	<220	<36	<86	<86	<35	<87
6229-HB-10	11/2/2016	0.8-1.8	<54	<42	<21	<24	<10	<220	<36	<86	<86	<35	<87
6229-HB-11	11/2/2016	0.7-1.7	69 J	<42	4,100	107	203	<220	<36	<86	<86	<35	<87



SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Sample Identification	Sample Date	Sample Depth (feet)	Tetrachloroethene	Trichloroethene	cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	Vinyl Chloride	Methylene Chloride	sec-Butylbenzene	n-Butylbenzene	Isopropylbenzene	n-Propylbenzene	Naphthalene
Residual Co In	Residual Contaminant Level - Industrial		145,000	8,410	2,340,000	1,850,000	2,080	1,150,000	145,000	108,000	268,000	264,000	24,100
Residual Contaminant Level - Non-Industrial		33,000	1,300	156,000	1,560,000	67	61,800	145,000	108,000	268,000	264,000	5,520	
Residual Co Soil to	Residual Contaminant Level - Soil to Groundwater		4.5	3.6	41.2	58.8	0.1	2.6	NE	NE	NE	NE	658
					Waste C	haracterizat	ion Samples						
		3	6,800	67 J	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
6229-PEB-1	10/2/2014	10	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		13	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		3	20,600	102	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
6229-PEB-2	10/2/2014	10	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		13	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		3	1,870	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
6229-PEB-3	10/2/2014	10	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		13	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		3	21,200	47 J	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
6229-PEB-4	10/2/2014	10	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		13	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
(220 DED 5	10/2/2014	3	440	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
6229-PEB-5	10/2/2014	10	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		13	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA NA	NA	NA	NA	NA NA	NA NA
6220 DED 6	10/2/2014	5 10	0,000	<28	<24	<29	<21	INA NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA	INA NA	NA NA
0227-FED-0	10/2/2014	10	<49	<20	<24	<29	<21	INA NA	INA NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA NA	INA NA
		13	\49 17.000	520	07	<29	<21	NA NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA NA	NA NA
6229-PEB-7	10/2/2014	10	89 000	41 I	<74	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	10, 2, 2011	13	235.000	<1400	<1200	<1450	<1050	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		3	62 J	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
6229-PEB-8	10/2/2014	6	1,420	138	67 J	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		9	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA



SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Sample Identification	Sample Date	Sample Depth (feet)	Tetrachloroethene	Trichloroethene	cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	Vinyl Chloride	Methylene Chloride	sec-Butylbenzene	n-Butylbenzene	Isopropylbenzene	n-Propylbenzene	Naphthalene
Residual Co In	ntaminant Le dustrial	vel -	145,000	8,410	2,340,000	1,850,000	2,080	1,150,000	145,000	108,000	268,000	264,000	24,100
Residual Con Non-	Residual Contaminant Level - Non-Industrial		33,000	1,300	156,000	1,560,000	67	61,800	145,000	108,000	268,000	264,000	5,520
Residual Contaminant Level - Soil to Groundwater			4.5	3.6	41.2	58.8	0.1	2.6	NE	NE	NE	NE	658
		3	330	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
6229-PEB-9	10/2/2014	6	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		9	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		3	960	34 J	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
6229-PEB-10	10/2/2014	10	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		13	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		3	18,300	80 J	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
6229-PEB-11	10/2/2014	10	65 J	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		13	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		3	6,300	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
6229-PEB-12	10/2/2014	10	94 J	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		13	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		3	3,200	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
6229-PEB-13	10/2/2014	10	4,700	102	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		13	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		3	83 J	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
6229-PEB-14	10/2/2014	10	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		13	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
6229-PEB-15	10/2/2014	10	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
022/ TED 15	10/2/2014	13	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		3	6,300	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
6229-PEB-16	10/2/2014	10	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		13	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		3	2,350	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
6229-PEB-17	10/2/2014	10	640	141	238	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		13	2,840	480	870	77 J	59 J	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA



SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Sample Identification	Sample Date	Sample Depth (feet)	Tetrachloroethene	Trichloroethene	cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	Vinyl Chloride	Methylene Chloride	sec-Butylbenzene	n-Butylbenzene	Isopropylbenzene	n-Propylbenzene	Naphthalene
Residual Con Inc	ntaminant Le dustrial	vel -	145,000	8,410	2,340,000	1,850,000	2,080	1,150,000	145,000	108,000	268,000	264,000	24,100
Residual Con Non-	ntaminant Lev Industrial	el -	33,000	1,300	156,000	1,560,000	67	61,800	145,000	108,000	268,000	264,000	5,520
Residual Con Soil to C	ntaminant Lev Groundwater	el -	4.5	3.6	41.2	58.8	0.1	2.6	NE	NE	NE	NE	658
					Excava	tion Sidewal	l Samples						
WS-1	4/22/2014	4	134	83 J	40 J	35 J	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-2	4/22/2014	4	216	35 J	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WIG 2	4/22/2014	5*	35,000	43 J	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
w 5-5	4/22/2014	8	1,930	199	610	50 J	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
W/C 4	4/22/2014	6	13,700	91	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
W 3-4	4/22/2014	8	88 J	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-5	4/22/2014	4	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	NA
WS-6	4/22/2014	4	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-7	4/22/2014	4	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-8	4/23/2014	8	900	29.2 J	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-9	4/23/2014	8	630	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-10	4/23/2104	3	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-11	4/23/2014	3	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-12	4/23/2014	3	58 J	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-13	4/23/2014	7	270	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-14	4/23/2014	8	8,100	420	87	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-15	4/23/2014	3	610	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-16	4/24/2014	3	109 J	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-17	4/25/2014	3	1,440	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-18	4/25/2014	8	1,150	33 J	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-19	4/25/2014	8	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-20	4/25/2014	8	<49	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-21	4/25/2014	8	730	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-22	4/25/2014	8	940	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-23	4/25/2014	8	2,280	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-24	4/25/2014	3	97 J	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-25	4/26/2014	3	59 J	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-26	4/26/2014	3	1,480	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
HB-5 (Excavation)	4/23/2014	9	138,000	340	151	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
HB-6 (Excavation)	4/23/2014	9	1,610	28.2 J	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
HB-7 (Excavation)	4/23/2014	9	2,540	59 J	126	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114



SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Lloyd's Dry Cleaners Milwaukee, Wisconsin

trans-1,2-Dichloroethene cis-1,2-Dichloroethene **Methylene Chloride** Tetrachloroethene Isopropylbenzene Sample sec-Butylbenzene Trichloroethene n-Butylbenzene Sample Sample Vinyl Chloride Depth n-Propylbenz Identification Date (feet) **Residual Contaminant Level -**2,340,000 145,000 8,410 1,850,000 2,080 1,150,000 145,000 108,000 268,000 264,000 Industrial **Residual Contaminant Level -**33,000 1,300 156,000 1,560,000 67 61,800 145,000 108,000 268,000 264,000 Non-Industrial Residual Contaminant Level -4.5 3.6 41.2 58.8 0.1 NE NE NE NE 2.6 Soil to Groundwater Excavation floor Samples FS-1 4/22/2014 3,300 235 <57 <25 <24 6 <24 <29 <21 <41 <26 FS-2 4/22/2014 5 312 <28 <24 <29 <21 <57 <41 <26 <25 <24 <57 FS-3 4/22/2014 4 <49 <28 <24 <29 <21 <41 <26 <25 <24 FS-4 13 <57 <25 <24 4/22/2014 71J<28 <24 <29 <21 <26 <41 <57 <25 <24 FS-5 4/22/2014 13 <49 <28 <24 <29 <21 <41 <26 4/22/2014 13 <29 <21 <57 <25 <24 FS-6 96 J <28 <24 <41 <26 <57 <24 FS-7 4/22/2014 13 88,000 221 <24 <29 <21 <41 <26 <25 4/22/2014 79 <29 <21 <57 <25 <24 FS-8 5 5,100 148 <41 <26 FS-9 4/23/2014 11* 97,000 1,320 1,520 <29 <21 <57 <41 <26 27.1 J 26.5 J FS-10 4/23/2014 5 1.380 <28 <24 <29 <21 <57 <41 <26 <25 <24 <24 FS-11 4/23/2014 13 1,870 <29 <21 <57 <25 <28 <24 <41 <26 <21 <57 <25 <24 FS-12 4/23/2014 13 <49 <28 <24 <29 <41 <26 FS-13 5 <29 <57 <25 <24 4/23/2014 4,100 <28 <24 <21 <41 <26 FS-14 4/25/2014 13 <49 <28 <24 <29 <21 <57 <41 <25 <24 <26 FS-15 4/25/2014 13 240 <28 <24 <29 <21 <57 <41 <26 <25 <24 FS-16 4/25/2014 5 1,570 <28 <24 <29 <21 <57 <41 <25 <24 <26 FS-17 4/25/2014 5 51,000 1.360 77 <29 <21 <57 <41 <26 <25 <24 FS-18 4/25/2014 13 <24 <29 <21 <57 <25 <24 <49 <28 <41 <26 1,870 <29 <21 <57 <25 <24 FS-19 4/25/2014 5 <28 <24 <41 <26 FS-20 29,100 <29 <57 <25 4/26/2014 5 116 <24 <21 <41 <26 <24 FS-21 4/26/2014 3,600 <29 <21 <57 <25 <24 <28 <24 <41 <26 5

Notes:

Samples analyzed using EPA SW-846 Method 8260 with Prep Method 5030

All concentrations reported in micrograms per kilogram $(\mu g/kg)$

¹ Concentration reported as tert-Butylbenzene in Sigma Environmental Services' Report **Bolded** values are above method detection limits

Italicized values exceed the Soil to Groundwater Residual Contaminant Level **Bolded** and *Italicized* values exceed the Non-Industrial Residual Contaminant Level

Bolded values exceed the Industrial Residual Contaminant Level

- J = Analyte concentration is above the method detection limit and below the reporting limit NA = Not Analyzed
- *= Trimethylbenzenes were detected at a concentration below reporting limit

†= 1,2-Dichlorobenzene was detected at a concentration below reporting limit

GP denotes samples collected by Sigma Environmental Services DP denotes samples collected by EnviroForensics via Geoprobe HA/HB denotes samples collected by EnviroForensics via hand auger PEB denotes waste characterization boring collected via geoprobe WS denotes excavation wall grab sample FS denotes excavation floor grab sample

Naphthalene
24,100
5,520
658
<114
<114
<114
<114
<114
<114
<114
<114
<114
<114
<114
<114
<114
<114
<114
<114
<114
<114
<114
<114



TABLE A.3.RESIDUAL SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Sample Identification	Sample Date	Sample Depth (feet)	Tetrachloroethene	Trichloroethene	cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	Vinyl Chloride	Methylene Chloride	sec-Butylbenzene	n-Butylbenzene	Isopropylbenzene	n-Propylbenzene	Naphthalene
Residual (Contaminant Lev Industrial	el -	145,000	8,410	2,340,000	1,850,000	2,080	1,150,000	145,000	108,000	268,000	264,000	24,100
Residual Contaminant Level - Non-Industrial			33,000	1,300	156,000	1,560,000	67	61,800	145,000	108,000	268,000	264,000	5,520
Residual Contaminant Level - Soil to Groundwater			4.5	3.6	41.2	58.8	0.1	2.6	NE	NE	NE	NE	658
GP-3	12/10/2010	6-8	116 J	<50	<44	< 43	<33	<119	280	810 1	223	1,100	<100
GP-4	12/10/2010	10-12	430	<50	<44	< 43	<33	<119	<35	<46	<39	<44	<100
6229-DP-8	7/26/2011	18-20	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	172	<25.0	<40.4	<25.0	<25.0	<25
6229-DP-9	7/26/2011	4-6	65.8 J	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	139	<25.0	<40.4	<25.0	<25.0	<25
6229-DP-10	7/26/2011	16-18	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	<25.0	182	<25.0	<40.4	<25.0	<25.0	<25
6229_DP_11	2/4/2013	4-6	16,000	610	170	<20	<8.3	<54	<12	<10	<20	<14	<39
0229-01-11	2/4/2013	20-22	610	33 J	<12	<25	<10	<67	<15	<13	<25	<17	<49
6229-DP-12	2/4/2013	16-18	240	<17	<11	<22	<9.3	<61	<14	<11	<22	<16	<49
6229-DP-14	2/5/2013	2-4	3,700	<11	<7.5	<15	<6.3	<42	<9.4	<7.8	<15	<11	<41
6229-DP-17	7/17/2014	3	650	<28	<24	<29	<21	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
6229-HB-4	3/8/2013	2	<15	<17	<11	<23	20 J	<62	<14	<12	<23	<16	<45
6229-HB-5	11/2/2016	0.5-1.5	<54	<42	79	<24	<10	<220	<36	<86	<86	<35	278 J
6229-HB-6	11/2/2016	0.5-1.5	<54	<42	21.7 J	<24	17.9 J	<220	<36	<86	<86	<35	<87
6229-HB-7	11/2/2016	0.5-1.5	<54	<42	340	34 J	49	<220	<36	<86	<86	<35	<87
6229-HB-8	11/2/2016	0.5-1.5	<54	<42	112	<24	32	<220	<36	<86	91 J	<35	234 J
6229-HB-9	11/2/2016	1-2	<54	<42	76	<24	58	<220	<36	<86	<86	<35	<87
6229-HB-11	11/2/2016	0.7-1.7	69 J	<42	4,100	107	203	<220	<36	<86	<86	<35	<87



TABLE A.3.RESIDUAL SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Sample Identification	Sample Date	Sample Depth (feet)	Tetrachloroethene	Trichloroethene	cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	Vinyl Chloride	Methylene Chloride	sec-Butylbenzene	n-Butylbenzene	Isopropylbenzene	n-Propylbenzene	Naphthalene
Residual (Contaminant Lev Industrial	el -	145,000	8,410	2,340,000	1,850,000	2,080	1,150,000	145,000	108,000	268,000	264,000	24,100
Residual C No	Contaminant Leve on-Industrial	el -	33,000	1,300	156,000	1,560,000	67	61,800	145,000	108,000	268,000	264,000	5,520
Residual Contaminant Level - Soil to Groundwater WS-1 4/22/2014 4			4.5	3.6	41.2	58.8	0.1	2.6	NE	NE	NE	NE	658
WS-1	4/22/2014	4	134	83 J	40 J	35 J	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-2	4/22/2014	4	216	35 J	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS 3	4/22/2014	5*	35,000	43 J	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-3	4/22/2014	8	1,930	199	610	50 J	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-4	4/22/2014	6	13,700	91	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
+-6 **	4/22/2014	8	88 J	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-8	4/23/2014	8	900	29.2 J	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-9	4/23/2014	8	630	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-12	4/23/2014	3	58 J	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-13	4/23/2014	7	270	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-14	4/23/2014	8	8,100	420	87	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-15	4/23/2014	3	610	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-16	4/24/2014	3	109 J	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-17	4/25/2014	3	1,440	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-18	4/25/2014	8	1,150	33 J	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-21	4/25/2014	8	730	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-22	4/25/2014	8	940	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-23	4/25/2014	8	2,280	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-24	4/25/2014	3	97 J	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-25	4/26/2014	3	59 J	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
WS-26	4/26/2014	3	1,480	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
HB-5 (Excavation)	4/23/2014	9	138,000	340	151	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
HB-6 (Excavation)	4/23/2014	9	1,610	28.2 J	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
HB-7 (Excavation)	4/23/2014	9	2,540	59 J	126	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114



TABLE A.3. **RESIDUAL SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS**

Lloyd's Dry Cleaners Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Sample Identification	Sample Date	Sample Depth (feet)	Tetrachloroethene	Trichloroethene	cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	Vinyl Chloride	Methylene Chloride	sec-Butylbenzene	n-Butylbenzene	Isopropylbenzene	n-Propylbenzene	Naphthalene
Residual C	Contaminant Lev Industrial	el -	145,000	8,410	2,340,000	1,850,000	2,080	1,150,000	145,000	108,000	268,000	264,000	24,100
Residual Contaminant Level - Non-Industrial Residual Contaminant Level -			33,000	1,300	156,000	1,560,000	67	61,800	145,000	108,000	268,000	264,000	5,520
Residual Contaminant Level - Soil to Groundwater			4.5	3.6	41.2	58.8	0.1	2.6	NE	NE	NE	NE	658
FS-1	4/22/2014	6	3,300	235	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
FS-2	4/22/2014	5	312	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
FS-4	4/22/2014	13	71 J	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
FS-6	4/22/2014	13	96 J	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
FS-7	4/22/2014	13	88,000	221	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
FS-8	4/22/2014	5	5,100	148	79	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
FS-9	4/23/2014	11*	97,000	1,320	1,520	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	27.1 J	26.5 J	<114
FS-10	4/23/2014	5	1,380	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
FS-11	4/23/2014	13	1,870	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
FS-13	4/23/2014	5	4,100	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
FS-15	4/25/2014	13	240	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
FS-16	4/25/2014	5	1,570	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
FS-17	4/25/2014	5	51,000	1,360	77	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
FS-19	4/25/2014	5	1,870	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
FS-20	4/26/2014	5	29,100	116	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114
FS-21	4/26/2014	5	3,600	<28	<24	<29	<21	<57	<41	<26	<25	<24	<114

Notes:

Samples analyzed using EPA SW-846 Method 8260 with Prep Method 5030

All concentrations reported in micrograms per kilogram (μ g/kg)

¹ Concentration reported as tert-Butylbenzene in Sigma Environmental Services' Report **Bolded** values are above method detection limits

Italicized values exceed the Soil to Groundwater Residual Contaminant Level

Bolded and Italicized values exceed the Non-Industrial Residual Contaminant Level

Bolded values exceed the Industrial Residual Contaminant Level

J = Analyte concentration is above the method detection limit and below the reporting limit

NA = Not Analyzed

*= Trimethylbenzenes were detected at a concentration below reporting limit

†= 1,2-Dichlorobenzene was detected at a concentration below reporting limit

GP denotes samples collected by Sigma Environmental Services DP denotes samples collected by EnviroForensics via Geoprobe

HB denotes samples collected by EnviroForensics via hand auger WS denotes excavation wall grab sample FS denotes excavation floor grab sample



TABLE A.4.VAPOR ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Lloyd's Dry Cleaners Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Sample Address	Sample Location	Sample Identification	Applicable Screening Criteria	Leak Detection Test Passed	Sample Date	Tetrachloroethene	Trichloroethene	cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	Vinyl Chloride	Benzene	Chloroform	Ethylbezene	1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene	n-Heptane
	Small Commerci	al Sub-Slab Vapo		6,000	290	NE	NE	930	530	180	1,600	1,000	NE		
	Small Commerce	ial Utility Soil Ga	s Risk Screening L		18,000	880	NE	NE	2,800	1,600	530	4,900	3,100	NE	
		6229-SG-1	Utility Soil Gas	Helium Shroud	2/6/2013	<31.9	<10.7	<198	<396	<12.8	<16.0	<8.30	<86.8	<49.2	1,670
	Exterior	6229-SG-2	Utility Soil Gas	Helium Shroud	2/6/2013	1,640	17.9	<19.8	<39.6	<1.28	8.47	2.44	<8.68	6.54	<410
	Exterior	6229-SG-3	Utility Soil Gas	Helium Shroud	7/17/2014	161	<10.7	<198	<396	<12.8	<16.0	<8.30	<86.8	<49.2	<4,100
		6229-SG-4	Utility Soil Gas	Helium Shroud	7/17/2014	<31.9	<10.7	<198	<396	<12.8	<16.0	<8.30	<86.8	<49.2	<4,100
	Slah an Crada	6229-SSV-1	Sub-Slab Vapor	Water Dam	2/6/2013	42.1	8.65	<19.8	<39.6	<1.28	9.81	0.83	10.9	8.26	<410
	Coin Laundry	6229-SSV-2	Sub-Slab Vapor	Water Dam	2/6/2013	4.88	<1.07	<19.8	<39.6	<1.28	<1.60	< 0.83	<8.68	<4.92	<410
	Com Laundry	6229-SSV-3	Sub-Slab Vapor	Water Dam	2/6/2013	57.9	<1.07	<19.8	<39.6	<1.28	1.60	0.83	<8.68	<4.92	<410
1927 N. Tautoria Ava		6220 SSV 4	Sub Slab Vapor	Water Dam	7/22/2014	38.7	<10.7	<198	<396	<12.8	<16.0	<8.30	<86.8	<49.2	<4,100
(Llovd's Cleaners)		0229-55 V-4	Sub-Slab vapol	Water Dam	1/9/2015	<31.9	<10.7	<198	<396	<12.8	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
(Lloyd's Cleaners)	Slab on Grade Dry	6220 SSV 5	Sub Slab Vanar	Water Dam	7/22/2014	1,640	56.4	<198	<396	<12.8	<16.0	<8.30	<86.8	<49.2	<4,100
	Cleaning Drop Off	0229-33 V-3	Sub-Slab Vapol	Water Dam	1/9/2015	1,610	<10.7	<198	<396	<12.8	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		6220 SSV 6	Sub Slab Vapor	Water Dam	7/22/2014	1,790	25.8	<198	<396	<12.8	<16.0	<8.30	<86.8	<49.2	<4,100
		0229-33 V-0	Sub-Slab v apol	Water Dam	1/9/2015	343	11.8	<198	<396	<12.8	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		6229-SSV-7	Sub-Slab Vapor	Water Dam	7/22/2014	165	501	21,000	1,130	20,500	<16.0	<8.30	<86.8	<49.2	<4,100
	Basement	6229-SSV-8	Sub-Slab Vapor	Water Dam	7/22/2014	998	151	5,200	<396	9,730	<16.0	<8.30	<86.8	<49.2	<4,100
	Dasement	6229-SSV-11	Sub-Slab Vapor	Water Dam	3/2/2017	19,000	303	1,510	<39.6	130	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
		6229-SSV-12	Sub-Slab Vapor	Water Dam	3/2/2017	2,180	365	1,810	<39.6	47.5	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
2724 W. Hampton Ave	Slab on Grade	6229-SSV-9	Sub-Slab Vapor	Water Dam	3/23/2015	57.0	<10.7	<198	<396	<12.8	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA
(Benz Oil)	Along East Wall	6229-SSV-10	Sub-Slab Vapor	Water Dam	3/23/2015	84.8	<10.7	<198	<396	<12.8	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA

Notes:

¹ The Vapor Risk Screeing Levels were calcuated according to the procedures described in WDNR Publication RR-800 with an attenuation factor of 0.03 for sub-slab samples and 0.1 adjustment for 1×10^5 lifetime cancer risk for carcinogens

² The Vapor Risk Screeing Levels were calcuated according to the procedures described in WDNR Publication RR-800 with an attenuation factor of 0.01 for utility soil gas samples and 0.1 adjustment for 1×10^5 lifetime cancer risk for carcinogens

All concentrations reported in until of micrograms per cubic meter ($\mu g/m^3$)

Bolded values exceed the applicable Vapor Risk Screening Level

VRSL = Vapor Risk Screening Level

SG = Soil Gas

SSV = Sub-Slab Vapor

NE = Not Established

NA = Not Analyzed



TABLE A.5.SUMP DISCHARGE ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Lloyd's Dry Cleaners Milwaukee, Wisconsin

							VOCs (ug/L))			(mg	g/L)
Sample Identification	Remediation Status	Sump *	Sample Date	Tetrachloroethene	Trichloroethene	cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	Vinyl Chloride	Toluene	Chloromethane	Oil and Grease	Total Suspended Solids
6229-SUMP-W	Pre-Interim Action	Old	7/26/2011	309	10.5	12.1	< 0.89	< 0.18	< 0.67	< 0.24	NS	NS
6229-SUMP-1	Pre-Interim Action	Old	3/5/2013	340	9.3	18	< 0.25	< 0.10	< 0.54	4.5	NS	NS
6229-SUMP-4/14	Post-Interim Action	New	4/28/2014	98	2.37	7.8	< 0.35	0.78	< 0.69	< 0.81	NS	NS
6229-SUMP	Post-Interim Action	New	5/15/2014	86	3.5	14.6	< 0.35	1.47	< 0.69	< 0.81	< 0.99	<4
6229-SUMP 6/2	Post-Interim Action	New	6/2/2014	92	4.9	18.4	< 0.35	0.33 J	< 0.69	< 0.81	<1.98	26
6229-SUMP 6/18	Post-Interim Action	New	6/18/2014	155	4.4	8.3	< 0.35	0.34 J	< 0.69	< 0.81	< 0.99	120
6229-SUMP	Post-Interim Action	New	7/22/2014	64	4.5	45	0.53 J	< 0.18	< 0.69	< 0.81	< 0.99	<4
6229-SUMP	Post-Interim Action	New	10/15/2014	120	6.2	17.5	< 0.35	< 0.18				
6229-SUMP	Post-Interim Action	New	1/7/2015	19.6	1.94	17.6	< 0.54	< 0.17				
6229-SUMP	Post-Interim Action	New	4/11/2015	104	3.2	9.4	< 0.54	< 0.17	< 0.44	<1.9		
6229-SUMP	Post-Interim Action	New	10/1/2015	38	1.89	9.5	< 0.54	< 0.17	< 0.44	<1.9		
6229-SUMP	Post-Interim Action	New	4/1/2016	64	2.15	5.3	< 0.54	< 0.17				
6229-SUMP	Post-Interim Action	New	10/4/2016	49	7.8	18.4	< 0.54	< 0.17	0.76 J	<1.9		
6229-SUMP	Post-Remediation	New	4/7/2017	14	< 0.45	0.68 J	< 0.35	< 0.19	< 0.67	<1.3		
6229-SUMP	Post-Remediation	New	6/14/2017	1.52	< 0.45	< 0.41	< 0.35	< 0.19	< 0.67	<1.3		
6229-SUMP	Post-Remediation	New	8/21/2017	1.55	< 0.45	< 0.41	< 0.35	< 0.19				
6229-SUMP	Post-Remediation	New	4/6/2018	1.56	< 0.45	< 0.41	< 0.35	< 0.19	< 0.19	< 0.54		
Public Health Enforcement Standard (ug/L)				5	5	70	100	0.2	800	30	NA	NA
Public Health Preven	Public Health Preventive Action Limit (ug/L)				0.5	7	20	0.02	160	3	NA	NA
MMSD Do not exceed	limit (mg/L)		NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	300	100	

Notes:

 $\mu g/L = micrograms per liter$

mg/L = milligrams per liter

-- = Not Analyzed

J = Analyte concentration is above the method detection limit and below the reporting limit

* A new sump and perimiter drain system were installed as part of the interim action. The old sump was abandoned.

MMSD = Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District

NA = Not Applicable

Bolded values exceed the Enforcement Standard

Bolded and *italicized* values exceed the Preventive Action Limit

Italicized values exceed the MMSD "Do Not Exceed" limit



TABLE A.6.WATER LEVEL ELEVATIONS

Location ID	Date	TOC Elevation	Depth to Water	Groundwater Elevation (AMSL)
	2/11/2013	644.89	NM	NM
	3/6/2013	644.89	NM	NM
	Early Spring 2013	644.89	NM	NM
	5/7/2013	644.89	8.32	636.57
	Summer 2013	644.89	13.83	631.06
MXX 1	Fall 2013	644.89	13.87	631.02
101 00 - 1	Winter 2013	644.89	12.06	632.83
	Spring 2014	644.89	11.22	633.67
	7/17/2014	644.89	9.01	635.88
	10/15/2014	644.89	8.40	636.49
	1/7/2015	644.89	10.78	634.11
	4/11/2015	644.89	5.71	639.18
	2/11/2013	643.64	NM	NM
	3/6/2013	643.64	NM	NM
	Early Spring 2013	643.64	DRY	DRY
	5/7/2013	643.64	DRY	DRY
	Summer 2013	643.64	DRY	DRY
	Fall 2013	643.64	DRY	DRY
IVI VV -2	Winter 2013	643.64	DRY	DRY
	Spring 2014	643.64	DRY	DRY
	7/17/2014	643.64	DRY	DRY
	10/15/2014	643.64	13.42	630.22
	1/7/2015	643.64	3.83	639.81
	4/11/2015	643.64	5.74	637.90
	2/11/2013	644.31	NM	NM
	3/6/2013	644.31	NM	NM
	Early Spring 2013	644.31	NM	NM
	5/7/2013	644.31	11.48	632.83
	Summer 2013	644.31	7.36	636.95
MXV 2	Fall 2013	644.31	7.26	637.05
IVI W - 3	Winter 2013	644.31	6.02	638.29
	Spring 2014	644.31	5.46	638.85
	7/17/2014	644.31	4.74	639.57
	10/15/2014	644.31	5.00	639.31
	1/7/2015	644.31	5.16	639.15
	4/11/2015	644.31	7.24	637.07



TABLE A.6.WATER LEVEL ELEVATIONS

Lloyd's Dry Cleaners Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Location ID	Date	TOC Elevation	Depth to Water	Groundwater Elevation (AMSL)
PZ-1	2/11/2013	644.72	20.00	624.72
	3/6/2013	644.72	20.00	624.72
	Early Spring 2013	644.72	20.00	624.72
	5/7/2013	644.72	20.15	624.57
	Summer 2013	644.72	22.74	621.98
	Fall 2013	644.72	22.64	622.08
	Winter 2013	644.72	21.75	622.97
	Spring 2014	644.72	20.57	624.15
	7/17/2014	644.72	19.11	625.61
	10/15/2014	644.72	18.10	626.62
	1/7/2015	644.72	10.15	634.57
	4/11/2015	644.72	13.66	631.06
PZ-2	2/11/2013	643.75	25.90	617.85
	3/6/2013	643.75	NM	NM
	Early Spring 2013	643.75	25.80	617.95
	5/7/2013	643.75	25.80	617.95
	Summer 2013	643.75	25.90	617.85
	Fall 2013	643.75	DRY	DRY
	Winter 2013	643.75	DRY	DRY
	Spring 2014	643.75	23.95	619.80
	7/17/2014	643.75	23.90	619.85
	10/15/2014	643.75	22.59	621.16
	1/7/2015	643.75	22.53	621.22
	4/11/2015	643.75	22.91	620.84
PZ-3	2/11/2013	644.66	NM	NM
	3/6/2013	644.66	NM	NM
	Early Spring 2013	644.66	22.51	622.15
	5/7/2013	644.66	15.25	629.41
	Summer 2013	644.66	15.30	629.36
	Fall 2013	644.66	15.30	629.36
	Winter 2013	644.66	13.95	630.71
	Spring 2014	644.66	13.00	631.66
	7/17/2014	644.66	12.67	631.99
	10/15/2014	644.66	12.68	631.98
	1/7/2015	644.66	17.92	626.74
	4/11/2015	644.66	20.39	624.27

Notes:

All values are in feet AMSL = above mean sea level DTW = Depth to water NM = Not Measured TOC = Top of Casing


TABLE A.7.SSDS COMMISSIONING DATA

Lloyd's Dry Cleaners Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Date	Flow Rate (FPM)	Vacuum (inches of water)					System Inspection
		EP-1	EP-2	EP-3	SSV-11	SSV-12	System inspection
4/19/2017	NM	NM	NM	NM	-0.131	-0.126	All components in good condition; no repairs needed.
6/14/2017	NM	-0.8	-0.3	-0.8	-0.131	-0.415	All components in good condition; no repairs needed.
7/17/2017	NM	-1.0	NM	-1.3	-0.145	-0.43	All components in good condition; no repairs needed.
8/21/2017	NM	NM	NM	NM	-0.371	-0.425	All components in good condition; no repairs needed.
4/6/2018	1078	-1.5	-1.1	-1.5	-0.25	-0.197	All components in good condition; no repairs needed.
7/3/2018	1312	-1.7	-0.6	-1.7	-0.32	-0.237	All components in good condition; no repairs needed.

Notes:

See Figure B.4.c.1 for measurement locations

FPM = feet per minute

NM = Not Measured



ATTACHMENT B – MAPS, FIGURES, AND PHOTOS

- Figure B.1.a. Site Location Map
- Figure B.1.b. Site Layout Map
- Figure B.1.b.2. Site Building Detail
- Figure B.1.c. RR Sites Map
- Figure B.2.a. Soil Contamination
- Figure B.2.a.1. Soil Analytical Results of Exterior Borings
- Figure B.2.a.2. Coil Analytical Results of Basement Borings
- Figure B.2.a.3. Pre-Excavation Soil Samples and PCE Concentrations at 3 Feet BGS
- Figure B.2.a.4. Pre-Excavation Soil Samples and PCE Concentrations at 9-10 Feet BGS
- Figure B.2.a.5. Pre-Excavation Soil Samples and PCE Concentrations at 13 Feet BGS
- Figure B.2.b. Residual Soil Contamination
- Figure B.3.a. Geologic Cross-Section Transect Map
- Figure B.3.a.1 Geologic Cross-Section A-A'
- Figure B.3.a.2 Geologic Cross-Section B-B'
- Figure B.3.a.3 Geologic Cross-Section C-C'
- Figure B.3.b. Extent of Groundwater Impacts Exceeding Regulatory Standards
- **Figure B.3.c.** Groundwater Flow Direction
- Figure B.3.d. Monitoring Wells
- Figure B.4.a. Vapor Intrusion Map
- Figure B.4.b. Not Applicable No other media of concern exists
- Figure B.4.c.1. Sub-Slab Depressurization System Layout
- Figure B.4.c.2. Basement Collection Trench and SSDS Layout Detail
- **B.5. Structural Impediment Photos**





	Property boundary
GAS	Underground gas utility line
WTR	Underground water utility line
UGT	Fiber optic utility line
SAN	Sanitary sewer utility line
STM	Storm sewer utility line
	Previous excavation area
M	Sanitary sewer manhole
F	Fire Hydrant
PZ-1 ↔	Piezometer location (Proposed to be abandoned)
MW-1 🔶	Monitoring well location (Proposed to be abandoned)
	PCE = Tetrachloroethene AST = Aboveground Storage Tank



O)
WTR	
SAN	
STM	
FDCM	



Figure B.1.c. RR Sites Map - Lloyd's Cleaners





GAS WTR UGT SAN STM M (F	Property boundary Underground gas utility line Underground water utility line Fiber optic utility line Sanitary sewer utility line Storm sewer utility line Previous excavation area) Sanitary sewer manhole) Fire Hydrant
GP-1	Geoprobe soil boring location (Sigma)
DP-6 ●	Direct-push boring location
DP-15/SG-1 💿	Direct-push/Soil Gas boring location
DP-11/PZ-1 🔶	Direct Push boring/Piezometer location
HB-1 븆	Hand Auger
FS-1-1	Floor excavation soil sample location
WS-1-1●	(Floor Sample-Sample ID-Depth) Side wall excavation soil sample location (Wall Sample-Sample ID-Depth)
	Excavation Limits (0-5 ft)
	Excavation Limits (5-13 ft)
	Impervious Barrier location
Noto	Extent of soil contamination exceeding soil to groundwater pathway RCLs (Dashed where inferred)

Note:

There are no Direct-Contact RCL exceedances in the 0-4 feet depth interval

Structural impediment to further investigation

	SOIL CONTAMINATIO	N					
	Lloyd's Cleaners						
	4837 N. Teutonia Avenue						
	Milwaukee, WI						
/8/18		Figure					
EB	ENVIRO Prensics	B.2.a					
EB							
BK	825 North Capitol Avenue Indianapolis IN 46204	Project					
-1053	EnviroForensics.com	6229					



	Property boundary
GAS	Underground gas utility line
WTR	Underground water utility line
UGT	Fiber optic utility line
SAN	Sanitary sewer utility line
STM	Storm sewer utility line
	Previous excavation area
M	Sanitary sewer manhole
F	Fire Hydrant
GP-1	Geoprobe soil boring location (Sigma)
DP-6 ●	Direct-push boring location
DP-15/SG-1 💿	Direct-push / Soil Gas boring
	location
DP-11/PZ-1	Direct Push boring / Piezometer

P-11/PZ-1 ↔	Direct Push boring / Piezometer
	location

	Soil Residual Containment Level					
Analytes	Ingestion Industrial	Residential	Soil to Groundwater			
PCE	153,000	30,700	4.5			
TCE	8,810	644	3.6			
cis-1,2-TCE	2,400,000	156,000	41.2			
trans-1,2-DCE	976,000	211,000	58.8			
MC	1,070,000	60,700	2.6			
sec-Bb	NE	NE	NE			
n-Bb	NE	NE	NE			
Ipb	NE	NE	NE			
n-Pb	NE	NE	NE			

Soil Notes:

- 1. Bold, shaded blue values are above SRCL Soil to Groundwater Closure Levels
- 2. Bold, shaded orange values are above SRCL Ingestion Industrial Levels
- 3. Results reported in micrograms per kilogram = ug/kg
- 4. J = Estimated concentration above the method detection limit and below the reporting limit
- 5. PCE = Tectrachloroethene
- 6. TCE = Trichloroethene
- 7. cis-1,2-DCE = cis-1,2-Dichloroethene
- 8. trans-1,2-DCE = trans-1,2-Dichloroethene
- 9. MC = Methylene Chloride
- 10. sec-Bb = sec-Butylbenzene
- 11. n-Bb = n-Butylbenzene
- 12. Ipb = Isopropylbenzene
- 13. n-Pb = n-Propylbenzene
- 14. ND = Compounds not detected
- 15. NE = Not Established
- 16. VOCs = Volatile Organic Compounds

]	SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS OF BORINGS	EXTERIOR				
	Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 N. Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI					
2/3/14		Figure				
EB	ENVIRO Pensics	B.2.a.1				
EB	ENVIRONMENTAL EORENSIC INVESTIGATIONS INC	Project				
BK	602 N Capitol Ave. Ste 210 Indianapolis IN 46204	Tiojeet				
-0666	EnviroForensics.com	6229				



	0.11		1	
Analytes	Soll	Residual Containment L	Level	
(ug/kg)	Industrial	Non-Industrial	Soil to Gro	undwater
PCE	153,000	30,700	4.5	5
TCE	8,810	644	3.0	^s N
cis-1,2-TCE	2,400,000	156,000	41.	2
trans-1,2-DCE	976,000	211,000	58.	8
VC	2,030	67	0. 1	L 4
Votes: • Bold, shack Groundwater 2. Bold, shack Residual Cor 5. Bold, shack Residual Cor 5. Bold, shack Results re 1g/kg 5. J = Estimat letection lim 5. PCE = Ter 7. TCE = Tri 6. cis-1,2-DO 7. trans-1,2-1 0. VC = Vin 1. ND = Cor 2. VOCs = V Legend HB-1	led blue values exce Residual Contamir led green values ex- traminant Level ported in microgram ted concentration a it and below the rep ctrachloroethene CE = cis-1,2-Dichlo DCE = trans-1,2-Di yl Chloride mpounds not detector Volatile Organic Co Basemer 0 SOIL ANALY 48	eed the Soil to ant Level ceed the Non-Indu acceed the Industria as per kilogram = bove the method orting limit roethene chloroethene ed mpounds at investiga 10 Approximate Scale in FICAL RESULT BORINGS Lloyd's Cleane 37 N. Teutonia A Milwaukee, V	strial d tion lo r Feet TS OF BA ers Avenue VI	20 ASEMENT
5/6/13		Grandia		Figure
МММ	EINVIRO	-rensic	S	B.2.a.2
MMM				Project
BK	2 N. Capitol Ave. Ste 210	Indianapolis IN 462	04	110j001
7-11 1	EnviroFore	nsics.com		6229

			1		
		Total PCE			
	Denth	Concentration	Concentration		1
Sample ID	(feet)	(ua/ka)	(ug/L)		5
		(49,19)	(49,2)		- H
0229-FED-1 3	10	0,000			3 3
0229-PED-1 10	10	< 49			
6229-PEB-1 13		< 49			
6229-PEB-2 3	3	20,600	110		
6229-PEB-2 10	10	< 49			
6229-PEB-2 13	13	< 49		PEB-15	
0229-PED-3 3		1,870		Parking	Ó
0229-PED-3 10	10	49			
0229-PED-3 13	13	21 200			
6229-PED-4 3		21,200	52		
6229-PED-4 10	10	< 49			
6229-PED-4 13	13	< 49 440			
6229-PED-3-3	10	440 < 10		PEB-13 PEB-14	
6229-PEB-5 13	13	< 49			Z
6229-PEB-6 3'	10	6,40			
6229-PEB-6 10'	10	< 49			
6229-PEB-6 13'	13	< 49		15 S	
6229-PEB-7 3'	3	47 000	150	PEB/12	Ĩ.
6229-PEB-7 10'	10	89,000	2 000		
6229-PEB-7 13'	13	235 000	4 300		
6229-PEB-8 3'	3	62 "J"			
6229-PEB-8 6'	6	1.420			
6229-PEB-8 9'	9	< 49		PEB-11 Sign	SE .
6229-PEB-9 3'	3	330		PEB-8 PEB-8	
6229-PEB-9 6'	6	< 49			S R
6229-PEB-9 9'	9	< 49		PEB-9	
6229-PEB-10 3'	3	960		PEB-3	
6229-PEB-10 10'	10	< 49		PEB-17 //PEB-10 stm 1	SAZ 1
6229-PEB-10 13'	13	< 49		PEB-1	°S ↓ ↓
6229-PEB-11 3'	3	18,300	150		SAZ
6229-PEB-11 10'	10	65 "J"		PEB-2 sp. 8 3 51M	
6229-PEB-11 13'	13	< 49			
6229-PEB-12 3'	3	6,300		PEB-5	
\ 6229-PEB-12 10'	10	94 "J"		WTR SAW	
6229-PEB-12 13	13	< 49		WIR	SA
6229-PEB-13 3'	3	3,200	-	SAN PEB 7 PEB-6	
6229-PEB-13 10'	10	4,700		st CLD-7	
6229-PEB-13 13'	13	< 49			
6229-PEB-14 3'	3	83 "J"		PEB-16	
6229-PEB-14 10'	10	< 49			
6229-PEB-14 13'	13	< 49			
6229-PEB-15 10'	10	< 49			
6229-PEB-15 13'	13	< 49			
6229-PEB-16 3'	3	6,300			
6229-PEB-16 10'	10	< 49		CLEANERS	
6229-PEB-16 13'	13	< 49		CLEARLERS	
6229-PEB-17 3	3	2,350			
6229-PEB-1/ 10		640			
0229-PEB-1/ 13	13	2,840			Date: 2/
	\	ĺ			Designed:
Ctore		ì			Designed.
\cap piora	ge \				Chackad:
\leq \backslash	\	۱.			DWG CL
					DWG file: 6229-



Ν



·	r	-			
		Total PCE	TCLP PCE		
	Depth	Concentration	Concentration		2
Sample ID	(feet)	(ug/kg)	(ug/L)		Q
6229-PEB-1 3'	3	6,800	-		
6229-PEB-1 10'	10	< 49	-		
6229-PEB-1 13	13	< 49			
6229-PEB-2 3		20,600	110		
6229-PEB-2 10	10	< 49			
6229-PEB-2 13	13	< 49		PEB-15	
6229-PED-3 3		1,870		Parking	
6229-PED-3 10	10	< 49		WIR-	
6229-PEB-4 3'	3	21 200	52		
6229-PEB-4 10'	10	< 19	JZ		
6229-PEB-4 13	13	< 49			
6229-PEB-5 3'	3	440			
6229-PEB-5 10'	10	< 49		PEB-13 PEB-14	
6229-PEB-5 13'	13	< 49			K Z
6229-PEB-6 3'	3	6.600			
6229-PEB-6 10'	10	< 49			
6229-PEB-6 13'	13	< 49	-		
6229-PEB-7 3'	3	47,000	150	PEB-12	
6229-PEB-7 10'	10	89,000	2,000	No second s	
6229-PEB-7 13'	13	235,000	4,300		SAZ
6229-PEB-8 3'	3	62 "J"			
6229-PEB-8 6'	6	1,420		PEB-11 Sign	Ser 1
6229-PEB-8 9'	9	< 49			
6229-PEB-9 3'	3	330	-	PEB-8	
6229-PEB-9 6'	6	< 49			Ĩ
6229-PEB-9 9	9	< 49		PEB-3 PEB-9	C Po
6229-PEB-10 3	3	960	_	PEB-17	SAZ
6229-PEB-10 10	10	< 49			e
6229-PEB-11 3'	3	18 300		PEB-4	
6229-PEB-11 10'	10	65 ".J"	- 100	PER-2	
6229-PEB-11 13'	13	< 49	_		8
6229-PEB-12 3'	3	6,300		PEB-5	SZ SZ
\6229-PEB-12 10'	10	94 "J"		SAM SAM	
\6229-PEB-12 13'	13	< 49		WIR	SAX
6229-PEB-13 3'	3	3,200		SAN PEB-6	
6229-PEB-13 10'	10	4,700	-	si O'ROB-P	
6229-PEB-13 13'	13	< 49			
6229-PEB-14 3'	3	83 "J"	-	PEB-16	
6229-PEB-14 10'	10	< 49	-		
6229-PEB-14 13	13	< 49			
6229-PEB-15 10 [°]		< 49			
6229-PEB-15 13	13	< 49		eg en	
6229-PEB-16 10'	10	6,300			
6229-PEB-16 13	10	< 19		CLEANERS	
6229-PEB-17 3'	3	2 350			
6229-PEB-17 10'	10	640			
6229-PEB-17 13'	13	2.840	_		
		<u> </u>			Date: 3/2
	\				Designed:
Stora	ge \	ĺ			Drawn:
\bigcirc	\sim	ì			Checked:
	\	į			DWG file: 6229



Ν



			1		
		Total PCE	TCLP PCE		
	Depth	Concentration	Concentration		ム
Sample ID	(feet)	(ug/kg)	(ug/L)		Õ
6229-PEB-1 3'	3	6,800			R
6229-PEB-1 10'	10	< 49			
6229-PEB-1 13'	13	< 49			
6229-PEB-2 3'	3	20,600	110		
6229-PEB-2 10'	10	< 49			
6229-PEB-2 13'	13	< 49		PEB-15	H G
6229-PEB-3 3'	3	1,870		Parking	
6229-PEB-3 10'	10	< 49		2 WTR	
6229-PEB-3 13'	13	< 49		A WIR	
6229-PEB-4 3'	3	21,200	52		
6229-PEB-4 10'	10	< 49			
6229-PEB-4 13	13	< 49			
6229-PEB-3 3	3 10	440		PEB-13 PEB-14	
6229-PED-5 10	10	< 49			Z
6229-PEB-6 3'	10	6 600			
6229-PEB-6 10'	10	< 49			
6229-PEB-6 13'	13	< 49		No. 1	
6229-PEB-7 3'	3	47,000	150	PEB-12	ž
6229-PEB-7 10'	10	89,000	2,000		
6229-PEB-7 13'	13	235,000	4,300		SA
6229-PEB-8 3'	3	62 "J"			
6229-PEB-8 6'	6	1,420			
6229-PEB-8 9'	9	< 49		PED-11	
6229-PEB-9 3'	3	330		PEB-8	
6229-PEB-9 6'	6	< 49			SPZ
6229-PEB-9 9'	9	< 49		PEB-9	
6229-PEB-10 3'	3	960		PEB 17	S. S.
6229-PEB-10 10'	10	< 49			
6229-PEB-10 13'	13	< 49		PEB-1 PEB-4 STM	
6229-PEB-11 3	3	18,300	150	STM STM	ž
6229-PEB-11 10	10	65 "J"		PEB-2 STM	و <mark>هري</mark> \ \
6229-PED-11 13	13 3	< 49 6 200			SAZ
6229-PEB-12 10'	10	0,500 94 '' I''		PEB-5	
6229-PEB-12 13	13	< 49		WTR SAN FI	
6229-PEB-13 3'	3	3.200		DEB 6	
6229-PEB-13 10'	10	4.700	_	PEB-7 ILD-0	
6229-PEB-13 13'	13	, < 49			
6229-PEB-14 3'	3	83 "J"		9 PEB-16	
6229-PEB-14 10'	10	< 49			
6229-PEB-14 13'	13	< 49			
6229-PEB-15 10'	10	< 49			
6229-PEB-15 13'	13	< 49			
6229-PEB-16 3'	3	6,300			
6229-PEB-16 10'	10	< 49		LLUYD'S	UGE \
6229-PEB-16 13'	13	< 49		CLEANERS	
6229-PEB-17 3'	3	2,350			
6229-PEB-17 10'	10	640			
6229-PEB-1/ 13	13	2,840			Date: 2/2
	\	ĺ			Designed:
Store		ì			Drawn:
	gc /				Checked [.]
\sim	\	Ĭ			DWG file: 6220
	\	<u> </u>		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	0229-



Ν





GAS WTR UGT SAN STM	Property boundary Underground gas utility line Underground water utility line Fiber optic utility line Sanitary sewer utility line Storm sewer utility line Previous excavation area) Sanitary sewer manhole
(F) Fire Hydrant
DP-6 •	Direct-push boring location
DP-15/SG-1 🕥	Direct-push/Soil Gas boring location
DP-11/PZ-1 +	Direct Push boring/Piezometer location
FS-1-1	Floor excavation soil sample location (Floor Sample-Sample ID-Depth)
WS-1-1●	Side wall excavation soil sample location (Wall Sample-Sample ID-Depth)
	Excavation Limits (0-5 ft)
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Excavation Limits (5-13 ft)
	Impervious Barrier location
] 	Extent of residual soil contamination exceeding soil to groundwater pathway RCLs
Note: There are no unsaturated	Direct-Contact RCL exceedances in the zone
Str	uctural impediment to further investigation



	GEOLOGIC CROSS SECTION TRANSECT MAP A-A', B-B', AND C-C'		
	Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 N. Teutonia Avenu Milwaukee, WI	e	
2/3/14		Figure	
EB	ENVIRO Prensics	B.3.a	
EB			
BK		Project	
-0670	825 North Capitol Avenue Indianapolis, IN 46204 EnviroForensics.com	6229	

A NORTH MW-3/ MW-1/ DP-13/ DP-11/ 0-DP-10 PZ-3 DP-9 GP-5 GP-4 DP-6 PZ-1 ///// P-9 7/26/11 2/5/13 Depth 4-6 ft 6-8 ft ND PCE 65.8 J MC 139 10-276 MW-3 4/11/15 VOCs ND 274 VOCs ND DP-10 7/26/1 Depth 16-18 ft MC 182 20-610 ND 33 ND
 PZ-1
 4/11/15

 VOCs
 ND

30-

	Public Health	Public Health
Analytes	Enforcement	Preventive Action
	Standards	Limit
PCE	5	0.5
TCE	5	0.5
cis-1,2-TCE	70	7.0
trans-1,2-DCE	100	20
VC	0.2	0.02
MC	5.0	0.5
Benzene	5.0	0.5
Ethylbenzene	700	140
n-Pb	NE	NE
Toluene	1,000	200
Xylenes (Total)	10,000	1,000

	Soil Residual Containment Level					
Analytes	Ingestion Industrial Residential		Soil to Groundwater			
PCE	145,000	33,000	4.5			
ГСЕ	8,410	1,300	3.6			
cis-1,2-TCE	2,340,000	156,000	41.2			
trans-1,2-DCE	1,850,000	1,560,000	62.6			
MC	1,150,000	61,800	2.6			
sec-Bb	145,000	145,000	NE			
n-Bb	108,000	108,000	NE			
lpb	268,000	268,000	NE			
n-Pb	264,000	264,000	NE			
Soil Notes:						

Area of Excavation

- Extent of residual groundwater impacts exceeding the preventive action limit (Dashed where inferred)
- Extent of residual soil contamination in unsaturated zone exceeding soil to groundwater pathway RCLs

Langual		Toluene	1,000	200			
Legend		Xylenes (Total)	10,000	1,000		Soil Notes:	
Concrete/Asphalt Fill Clay Top Soil		Groundwater N 1. Bold, sh Groundw 2. Results r 3. J = Estin detection 4. PCE = T 5. TCE = T	 Jroundwater Notes: Bold, shaded blue values are above SRCL Soil to Groundwater Closure Levels Results reported in micrograms per liter = ug/L J = Estimated concentration above the method detection limit and below the reporting limit PCE = Tectrachloroethene TCE = Trichloroethene 		to	 Bold, shaded blue values are above SRCL Soil to Groundwater Closure Levels Bold, shaded orange values are above SRCL Ingestion Industrial Levels Results reported in micrograms per kilogram = ug/kg J = Estimated concentration above the method detection limit and below the reporting limit PCE = Tectrachloroethene 	
	Soil sample depth interval Groundwater sample depth interval	6. cis-1,2-I 7. trans-1,2 8. MC = M 9. n-Pb = n	DCE = cis-1,2-Dich P-DCE = trans-1,2- Tethylene Chloride -Propylbenzene	lloroethene Dichloroethene		 TCE = Trichloroethene cis-1,2-DCE = cis-1,2-Dichloroethene trans-1,2-DCE = trans-1,2-Dichloroethene MC = Methylene Chloride 	
	Monitoring well screen	10. VOCs = 11. ND = No 12. NE = No	Volatile Organic C on-Detect ot Established	Compounds		 sec-Bb = sec-Butylbenzene n-Bb = n-Butylbenzene Ipb = Isopropylbenzene n-Bb = n-Butylbenzene 	
 	 Dashed boundaries are inferred Area of excavation Sewer lateral Water line 	13. NR = No	ot Recorded			 13. h-PD - h-Propyroenzene 14. ND = Compounds not detected 15. NE = Not Established 16. VOCs = Volatile Organic Compounds 	

Date: Designed: Drawn: Checked: DWG file:





30-

Analytes	Public Health Enforcement Standards	Public Health Preventive Action Limit
PCE	5	0.5
TCE	5	0.5
cis-1,2-TCE	70	7.0
trans-1,2-DCE	100	20
VC	0.2	0.02
MC	5.0	0.5
Benzene	5.0	0.5
Ethylbenzene	700	140
n-Pb	NE	NE
Toluene	1,000	200
Xylenes (Total)	10,000	1,000

	Soil Residual Containment Level					
Analytes	Ingestion Industrial	Residential	Soil to Groundwate			
PCE	145,000	33,000	4.5			
TCE	8,410	1,300	3.6			
cis-1,2-TCE	2,340,000	156,000	41.2			
trans-1,2-DCE	1,850,000	1,560,000	62.6			
MC	1,150,000	61,800	2.6			
sec-Bb	145,000	145,000	NE			
n-Bb	108,000	108,000	NE			
Ipb	268,000	268,000	NE			
n-Pb	264,000	264,000	NE			

Legend



Groundwater Notes:

- 1. Bold, shaded blue values are above SRCL Soil to Groundwater Closure Levels
- 2. Results reported in micrograms per liter = ug/L
- 3. J = Estimated concentration above the method
- detection limit and below the reporting limit PCE = Tectrachloroethene 4.
- 5. TCE = Trichloroethene
- 6. cis-1,2-DCE = cis-1,2-Dichloroethene7. trans-1,2-DCE = trans-1,2-Dichloroethene
- 8. MC = Methylene Chloride
- 9. n-Pb = n-Propylbenzene
- 10. VOCs = Volatile Organic Compounds
- 11. ND = Non-Detect12. NE = Not Established
- 13. NR = Not Recorded

Soil Notes:

- 1. Bold, shaded blue values are above SRCL Soil to Groundwater Closure Levels
- 2. Bold, shaded orange values are above SRCL Ingestion Industrial Levels
- 3. Results reported in micrograms per kilogram = ug/kg
- 4. J = Estimated concentration above the method detection limit and below the reporting limit
- 5. PCE = Tectrachloroethene
- 6. TCE = Trichloroethene
- 7. cis-1,2-DCE = cis-1,2-Dichloroethene
- 8. trans-1,2-DCE = trans-1,2-Dichloroethene
- 9. MC = Methylene Chloride
- 10. sec-Bb = sec-Butylbenzene
- 11. n-Bb = n-Butylbenzene
- 12. Ipb = Isopropylbenzene
- 13. n-Pb = n-Propylbenzene
- 14. ND = Compounds not detected
- 15. NE = Not Established
- 16. VOCs = Volatile Organic Compounds

- Extent of residual groundwater impacts exceeding the preventive action limit (Dashed where inferred)
- Extent of residual soil contamination in unsaturated zone exceeding soil to groundwater pathway RCLs

Date:	12
Designed:	
Drawn:	
Checked:	
DWG file:	6229-





	Public Health	Public Health
Analytes	Enforcement	Preventive Action
	Standards	Limit
PCE	5	0.5
TCE	5	0.5
cis-1,2-TCE	70	7.0
trans-1,2-DCE	100	20
VC	0.2	0.02
MC	5.0	0.5
Benzene	5.0	0.5
Ethylbenzene	700	140
n-Pb	NE	NE
Toluene	1,000	200
Xylenes (Total)	10,000	1,000

	Soil Residual Containment Level					
Analytes	Ingestion Industrial Residential		Soil to Groundwater			
PCE	145,000	33,000	4.5			
TCE	8,410	1,300	3.6			
cis-1,2-TCE	2,340,000	156,000	41.2			
trans-1,2-DCE	1,850,000	1,560,000	62.6			
MC	1,150,000	61,800	2.6			
sec-Bb	145,000	145,000	NE			
n-Bb	108,000	108,000	NE			
Ipb	268,000	268,000	NE			
n-Pb	264,000	264,000	NE			

Cor	ncrete/Asphalt
Fill	
Cla	у
Тор	o Soil
Grade Gra	vel
- I.	Soil sample depth interval
•	Groundwater sample depth interval
	Monitoring well screen
	Dashed boundaries are inferred
	Area of excavation

Groundwater Notes:

- 1. Bold, shaded blue values are above SRCL Soil to Groundwater Closure Levels
- 2. Results reported in micrograms per liter = ug/L
- 3. J = Estimated concentration above the method
- detection limit and below the reporting limit 4. PCE = Tectrachloroethene
- 5. TCE = Trichloroethene
- 6. cis-1,2-DCE = cis-1,2-Dichloroethene
- 7. trans-1,2-DCE = trans-1,2-Dichloroethene
- 8. MC = Methylene Chloride
- 9. n-Pb = n-Propylbenzene
- 10. VOCs = Volatile Organic Compounds
- 11. ND = Non-Detect
- 12. NE = Not Established
- 13. NR = Not Recorded
- erred

Soil Notes:

- 1. Bold, shaded blue values are above SRCL Soil to Groundwater Closure Levels
- 2. Bold, shaded orange values are above SRCL Ingestion Industrial Levels
- 3. Results reported in micrograms per kilogram = ug/kg
- 4. J = Estimated concentration above the method detection limit and below the reporting limit
- 5. PCE = Tectrachloroethene
- 6. TCE = Trichloroethene
- 7. cis-1,2-DCE = cis-1,2-Dichloroethene
- 8. trans-1,2-DCE = trans-1,2-Dichloroethene
- 9. MC = Methylene Chloride
- 10. sec-Bb = sec-Butylbenzene
- 11. n-Bb = n-Butylbenzene
- 12. Ipb = Isopropylbenzene
- 13. n-Pb = n-Propylbenzene
- 14. ND = Compounds not detected
- 15. NE = Not Established
- 16. VOCs = Volatile Organic Compounds

Area of Excavation

Extent of residual groundwater impacts exceeding the preventive action limit (Dashed where inferred)

Date:	4/1
Designed:	
Drawn:	
Checked:	
DWG file:	6229-

-0 -10 -20-30 10 -Horizontal Scale: 1'' = 10'Vertical Scale: 1" = 10' VERTICAL EXAGGERATION: 1X 0 0 10 APPROXIMATE SCALE GEOLOGIC CROSS SECTION C-C' Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 N. Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI 10/17 Figure ENVIRO EB rensics B.3.a.3 EB Project BK 825 North Capitol Avenue
 Indianapolis, IN 46204 6229 -0670 EnviroForensics.com



Legend	
	Property boundary
GAS	Underground gas utility line
WTR	Underground water utility line
UGT	Fiber optic utility line
SAN	Sanitary sewer utility line
STM	Storm sewer utility line
	Previous excavation area
M	Sanitary sewer manhole
F	Fire Hydrant
DP-11/PZ-1 🕁	Direct Push boring / Piezometer
т	location
MW-1 🔶	Monitoring well location
HA1/HB-1 🌑	Grab groundwater location

Analyte	Public Health Preventive Action Limit	Public Health Enforcement Standard		
PCE	0.5	5		
TCE	0.5	5		
cis-1,2-DCE	7	70		

Note:

- 1. Bolded and blue shaded values exceed the Public Health Preventive Action Limit
- 2. Bolded and orange shaded values exceed the Public Health Enforcement Standard
- 3. Bolded values are above detection limits
- J = Estimated concentration above the method detection 4. limit and below the reporting limit
- 5.
- Samples analyzed using EPA SW-846 Method 8260 All results reported in units of micrograms per liter (ug/L) 6.
- PCE = Tetrachloroethene 7.
- 8. TCE = Trichloroethene
- 9. cis-1,2-DCE = cis-1,2,-Dichloroethene
- 10. VOCs = Volatile Organic Compounds
- 11. ND = Not detected

Extent of residual groundwater impacts exceeding PALs

	EXTENT OF GROUNDWATER IMPACTS EXCEEDING REGULATORY STANDARDS								
	Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 N. Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI								
22/17		Figure							
EB	ENVIRO Prensics	B.3.b							
EB									
BK	225 North Copital Avanua 🌲 Indiananalia IN 46204	Project							
-1058	EnviroForensics.com	6229							





-	Date	Elevation (Feet				
	1/7/15	634.11				
т						

Note:

Water table contours based on April 2015 groundwater 1. elevation data

638.00-

G

Groundwater elevation contour

	GROUNDWATER FLOW DIRECTION								
	Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 N. Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI								
/22/17		Figure							
EB	ENVIRO <i>Prensics</i>	B.3.c							
EB		Durient							
BK	205 North Operidal Augusta An Indiananalia IN 40204	rioject							
1059	825 North Capitol Avenue ♦ Indianapolis, IN 46204 EnviroEorensics.com	6229							



	Property boundary
GAS	Underground gas utility line
WTR	Underground water utility line
UGT	Fiber optic utility line
SAN	Sanitary sewer utility line
STM	Storm sewer utility line
	Previous excavation area
M	Sanitary sewer manhole
F	Fire Hydrant
PZ-1 ↔	Piezometer location (Proposed to be abandoned)
MW-1 🜩	Monitoring well location (Proposed to be abandoned)

	MONITORING WELLS	5						
	Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 N. Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI							
22/17		Figure						
EB	enviro	B.3.d						
EB	ENVIRONMENTAL FORENSIC INVESTIGATIONS, INC.	Project						
BK 1057	825 North Capitol Avenue Indianapolis, IN 46204 EnviroForensics.com	6229						









	Legend	
	Concrete	
	Stone Fill	
	Pea Gravel	
	Clay - Brown	
	Not To Scale	
	BASEMENT COLLECTION TREN	CH AND SSDS
	LAYOUT DETAIL	
	Lloyd's Cleaners	
	4837 N. Teutonia Avenu Milwaykaa Wi	ie
	wiiwaukee, wi	F:
4/4/17 EB	ENVIRO Arensics	P 4 a 2
EB		<u>Б.4.С.2</u>
BK		Project

825 North Capitol Avenue
Indianapolis, IN 46204
EnviroForensics.com

6229



The western boundary of the exterior excavation was the footing for the slab on grade portion of the building. The building was a structural impediment for remediation under the floor slab.



Natural gas and electrical utility infrastructure creating a structural impediment for remediation between the west wall of the Site building and the beighboring Benz Oil building.

ATTACHMENT C – DOCUMENTATION OF REMEDIAL ACTION

C.1. Site Investigation Documentation – Not Applicable. All investigation data was previously reported.

C.2. Waste Disposal Documentation

C.3. Not Applicable – Default RCLs were used

C.4. Remedial Action Report

C.5. Decommissioning of Remedial Systems – Not Applicable. There are no remediation systems at the site.

C.6. Other - Not Applicable

print or type. (Form	designed for use or	n elite (12-pltch) type	wäten)	2 Page 1 of 1 3. Em	amenov Response	Phone	4. Waste Tra	cking Numi	ber	
NON-HAZARDOUS		. Q. R. R. S. Q	8.8 8.8	1 414	-236-1080			1.0	0.7.0.3	
Generator's Name and Lloyds Clean 4837 N Teut	Mailing Address GIS Shite Avenue		Att. Tom /	Anderson Gener	exer's Sile Addross	jif different the	in mäling addres	5]		
Mitwaukce V	VI 53209	17						Surver		
Transporter 1 Compar Radioar Dis	posal of Will	Inc.					U.S. EPAID N	9.8	8580	056
Transporter 2 Compar	, Rama	4					1			
Badger Disp 5611 West	ama and Site Address oset of WI, Inc lemiock Stree	2. A. :					U.S. EPA ID \$	4µmber		
Belity's Phone:	VI 53223						WI C	9.8	8 5 8 0	0.5.6
9a. Sb. U.S. DOT D HM and Packing Gr	escription (including P) oup (if eny])	roper Shipping Name, H	agard Class, ID Number,		10, Conta No.	Type	11. Total Quantity	12. Ura VitaVd	035 SHERE	
^{1.} Non-reg	lated material				u	DM	605	G	NONE	
2 Non-reg	lated material				7		11.0		NONE	
s.						DM		G		
								-		
4.										
14. GENERATOR'S	CERTIFICATION: 10	entify the materials desc	ribed above on this mani	fest are not subject to Sinceto	federal regulation	s for reporting	proper disposal o	Hazardov	s Wasle. Morith	Day
Generator's Offeror's P	Anted/Typed Name	- Agent 6	Sr Lloyals	Cleaners Despect from U.S.	Port of		Im		¢۲	17 10
Transporter signature	(for exports only):				Date la	aving U.S.:				
16. Transporter Acknow Transporter 1 Printed/1	yped Nam	T Matenals		Signatu	e		72		7 Month	Day
Muice Transporter 2 Printed	Typed Name	ersu		Signatu	IC.				Mant	Day
17. Discrepancy										_ : • •
17a. Discrepancy India	ation Space	Quantity	Туре		Residue		Partial F	Rejection	L	Full Rejector
					(Jankerst Data	man blumbait				
175. Allemate Facility	(or Generator)		•		Manifest Refere	ace <u>Numbert</u>	U.S. EPAI	D Number		
575. Allemete Facility Facility's Plicete: 17c. Signature of Alfec	(or Generator) nato Facility (or Gener	 nator)	•		Manifest Refere	ars <u>Number:</u>	U.S. EPAI	D Number	ł Ażson	thi Day
T75. Allemete Facility Facility's Pliccie: 176. Signature of Allec	(or Generator) nata Faciliy (or Ĝener	nabar)			Manifest Refere	ans Number.	U.S. EPAU	D Number	J.Xoh	th Day
770. Altemate Facility Facility's Plices 176. Signature of Affec 199. Signature of Affec	(or Generator) nate Facility (or Gene	nabar)			Manifest Refere	cnes Numberf.	U.S. EPA U	D Number	J Ažon	th Day
576. Alternate Facility Facility's Plicene: 176. Eignature of Alter 176. Eignature of Alter 186. Designated Facilit Printet(Typed Name	(or Generator) nate Facility (or Gener y Owner or Operator:	rator) Cartificator of receipt of	rimateniels converted by th	e mervirest except es Stignat	Manifest Refere			D Number	J.Xoh	

WASTE MANIFEST 01314 5. Generator's Name and Mailing Address Generator's Site Address (if different than mailing address) Generator's Phone: 0.S. EPA ID Number 6. Transporter 1 Company Name U.S. EPA ID Number 7. Transporter 2 Company Name U.S. EPA ID Number 8. Designated Facility Name and Site Address U.S. EPA ID Number	1925 JJ
Generator's Phone: Generator's Phone: U.S. EPA ID Number T. Transporter 2 Company Name U.S. EPA ID Number S. Designated Facility Name and Site Address U.S. EPA ID Number U.S. EPA ID Number	588 791
Generator's Phone: U.S. EPA ID Number 6. Transporter 1 Company Name U.S. EPA ID Number 7. Transporter 2 Company Name U.S. EPA ID Number 8. Designated Facility Name and Site Address U.S. EPA ID Number	588 791
Generator's Phone: U.S. EPA ID Number 6. Transporter 1 Company Name U.S. EPA ID Number 7. Transporter 2 Company Name U.S. EPA ID Number 8. Designated Facility Name and Site Address U.S. EPA ID Number U.S. EPA ID Number U.S. EPA ID Number	588-791
C. Transporter 1 Company Name U.S. EPA ID Number	588-791
7. Transporter 2 Company Name U.S. EPA ID Number 8. Designated Facility Name and Site Address U.S. EPA ID Number	588 791
8. Designated Facility Name and Site Address 49050 N 194 SER VICE DRIVE U.S. EPA ID Number U.S. EPA ID Number	
8. Designated Facility Name and Site Address ALC HIGAPILING POSAL QUASTE DREATED FOR THE U.S. EPAID Number	
49350 N 1.94 SERVICE DRIVE	
CALL CONTRACT CONTRACT CONTRACT	
1534111121111111111111111111111111111111	1.1.1.18181
Facility's Phone: (800) 592 5489	
9a. 9b. U.S. DOT Description (including Proper Shipping Name, Hazard Class, ID Number	
HM and Packing Group (if any))	13. Waste Codes
 RU RAJUTT HAZARDOUS WASTE SOLID NO S But C.M. 	CEVILE 1
CLEARACHLUMOLPT (LENE) & PGH, 0039	1414(0)0
2.	
3	
5.	
4.	
14 Special Upgetting to be stored	
15. GENERATOR'S/OFFEROR'S CERTIFICATION: I hereby declare that the contents of this consignment are fully and accurately described above by the proper shipping name, marked and labeled/placarded, and are in all respects in proper condition for transport according to applicable lister and accurately described above by the proper shipping name,	and are placelified medianed
Exporter, I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attached EPA Acknowledgment of Consent.	ment and I am the Primary
Exporter, I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attached EPA Acknowledgment of Consent. I certify that the waste minimization statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.27(a) (if I am a large quantity generator) or (b) (if I am a small quantity generator) is true.	ment and I am the Primary
Exporter, I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attached EPA Acknowledgment of Consent. I certify that the waste minimization statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.27(a) (if I am a large quantity generator) or (b) (if I am a small quantity generator) is true. Generator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed Name Signature	Month Day
Exporter, I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attached EPA Acknowledgment of Consent. I certify that the waste minimization statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.27(a) (if I am a large quantity generator) or (b) (if I am a small quantity generator) is true. Generator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed Name 16. International Shipments	Month Day
Exporter, I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attached EPA Acknowledgment of Consent. I certify that the waste minimization statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.27(a) (if I am a large quantity generator) or (b) (if I am a small quantity generator) is true. Signature 16. International Shipments Transporter signature (for exports only): Description: Transporter signature (for exports only): Description:	Month Day
Exporter, I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attached EPA Acknowledgment of Consent. I certify that the waste minimization statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.27(a) (if I am a large quantity generator) or (b) (if I am a small quantity generator) is true. Signature 6. International Shipments Transporter signature (for exports only): 7. Transporter Acknowledgment of Receipt of Materials	Month Day
Exporter, I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attached EPA Acknowledgment of Consent. I certify that the waste minimization statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.27(a) (if I am a large quantity generator) or (b) (if I am a small quantity generator) is true. Generator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed Name I Import to U.S. Iransporter signature (for exports only): 7. Transporter Acknowledgment of Receipt of Materials ransporter 1 Printed/Typed Name Signature Signature Signature Signature Signature S	Month Day
Exporter, I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attached EPA Acknowledgment of Consent. I certify that the waste minimization statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.27(a) (if I am a large quantity generator) or (b) (if I am a small quantity generator) is true. Signature I6. International Shipments Import to U.S. Irransporter signature (for exports only): 7. Transporter Acknowledgment of Receipt of Materials ransporter 1 Printed/Typed Name Signature	Month Day
Exporter, I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attached EPA Acknowledgment of Consent. I certify that the waste minimization statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.27(a) (if I am a large quantity generator) or (b) (if I am a small quantity generator) is true. Generator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed Name Signature Insport to U.S. Export from U.S. Port of entry/exit: Date leaving U.S.: 7. Transporter Acknowledgment of Receipt of Materials Signature ransporter 1 Printed/Typed Name Signature ransporter 2 Printed/Typed Name Signature	Month Day
Exporter, I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attached EPA Acknowledgment of Consent. I certify that the waste minimization statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.27(a) (if I am a large quantity generator) or (b) (if I am a small quantity generator) is true. Generator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed Name 6. International Shipments Import to U.S. Fransporter signature (for exports only): 7. Transporter Acknowledgment of Receipt of Materials ransporter 1 Printed/Typed Name Signature	Month Day Month Day Month Day
Exporter, I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attached EPA Acknowledgment of Consent. I certify that the waste minimization statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.27(a) (if I am a large quantity generator) or (b) (if I am a small quantity generator) is true. Generator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed Name 6. International Shipments Import to U.S. Port of entry/exit: Date leaving U.S.: 7. Transporter Acknowledgment of Receipt of Materials ransporter 2 Printed/Typed Name Signature 8. Discrepancy	Month Day Month Day Month Day Month Day
Exporter, I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attached EPAAcknowledgment of Consent. I certify that the waste minimization statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.27(a) (if I am a large quantity generator) or (b) (if I am a small quantity generator) is true. Senerator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed Name Signature 6. International Shipments Import to U.S. Transporter signature (for exports only): Date leaving U.S.: 7. Transporter Acknowledgment of Receipt of Materials ransporter 2 Printed/Typed Name Signature 8a. Discrepancy Quantity	Month Day Month Day Month Day
Exporter, I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attached EPAAcknowledgment of Consent. I certify that the waste minimization statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.27(a) (if I am a large quantity generator) or (b) (if I am a small quantity generator) is true. Senerator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed Name Signature 6. International Shipments Import to U.S. Irransporter Signature (for exports only): Date leaving U.S.: 7. Transporter Acknowledgment of Receipt of Materials Signature ransporter 2 Printed/Typed Name Signature 3. Discrepancy Quantty Type Residue Partial Rejection	Month Day Month Day Month Day Month Day
Exporter, I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attached EPA Acknowledgment of Consent. Iterative the waste minimization statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.27(a) (if I am a large quantity generator) or (b) (if I am a small quantity generator) is true. Senerator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed Name Signature 6. International Shipments Import to U.S. Transporter signature (for exports only): Date leaving U.S.: 7. Transporter Acknowledgment of Receipt of Materials Signature ransporter 1 Printed/Typed Name Signature 8. Discrepancy Signature 8. Discrepancy Quantty Type Residue Manifest Reference Number: Manifest Reference Number:	Month Day Month Day Month Day Month Day Full Rejection
Exporter, I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attached EPA Acknowledgment of Consent, I certify that the waste minimization statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.27(a) (if I am a large quantity generator) or (b) (if I am a small quantity generator) is true.	Month Day Month Day Month Day Month Day Full Rejection
Exporter, I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attached EPAAcknowledgment of Consent. Iterative that the waste minimization statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.27(a) (if I am a large quantity generator) or (b) (if I am a small quantity generator) is true. Generator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed Name Signature 16. International Shipments Import to U.S. Transporter signature (for exports only): Date leaving U.S.: 7. Transporter Acknowledgment of Receipt of Materials Transporter 1 Printed/Typed Name Signature 8. Discrepancy Signature 8. Discrepancy Quantty Type Bb. Alternate Facility (or Generator) U.S. EPA ID Number	Month Day Month Day Month Day Month Day Full Rejection
Exporter, I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attached EPA Acknowledgment of Consent. I certify that the waste minimization statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.27(a) (if I am a large quantity generator) or (b) (if I am a small quantity generator) is true. Senerator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed Name Signature 6. International Shipments Import to U.S. Transporter signature (for exports only): Date leaving U.S.: 7. Transporter Acknowledgment of Receipt of Materials Signature ransporter 2 Printed/Typed Name Signature 8. Discrepancy Signature 8. Discrepancy Quantty Type 8. Discrepancy Manifest Reference Number: U.S. EPA ID Number Stort Partial Facility (or Generator) U.S. EPA ID Number Signature	Month Day Month Day Month Day Month Day Full Rejection
Exporter, I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attached EPA Acknowledgment of Consent. I certify that the waste minimization statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.27(a) (if I am a large quantity generator) (b) (if I am a small quantity generator) is true. Senerator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed Name 6. International Shipments Import to U.S. Import to U.S. International Shipments Import to U.S. Import to U.S. International Shipments Import to U.S. Import t	Month Day
Exporter. I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attached EPA Acknowledgment of Consent. Icertify that the waste minimization statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.27(a) (if I am a large quantity generator) or (b) (if I am a small quantity generator) is true. Generator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed Name Signature 16. International Shipments Import to U.S. Transporter signature (for exports only): Date leaving U.S.: 7. Transporter Acknowledgment of Receipt of Materials Signature fransporter 1 Printed/Typed Name Signature 6. Discrepancy Signature 8. Discrepancy Quantty 8b. Alternate Facility (or Generator) U.S. EPA ID Number acility's Phone: U.S. EPA ID Number	Month Day
Exporter. I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attached EPA Acknowledgment of Consent. I certify that the waste minimization statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.27(a) (if I am a large quantity generator) or (b) (if I am a small quantity generator) is true. Generator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed Name I Inport to U.S. I Export from U.S. Port of entrylexit: I Transporter Acknowledgment of Receipt of Materials Transporter 1 Printed/Typed Name Signature I Printed/Typed Name Signature Residue Signature Residue Signature Residue Resi	Month Day Month Day Month Day Month Day Month Day Full Rejection
Exporter, I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attacked EPA Acknowledgment of Consent. I certify that the waste minimization statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.27(a) (if I am a large quantity generator) or (b) (if I am a small quantity generator) is true. Signeture Is International Shipments Import to U.S. Internatorial Shipments Import to U.S. Internatorial Shipment of Receipt of Materials Iransporter 1 Printed/Typed Name Signature Internatorial Shipment of Receipt of Materials Iransporter 1 Printed/Typed Name Signature Internatorial Shipment of Receipt of Materials Iransporter 2 Printed/Typed Name Signature B. Discrepancy Ba. Discrepancy Ba. Alternate Facility (or Generator) U.S. EPA ID Number C.S. Signature Signature Facility (or Generator)	Month Day Month Day Month Day Full Rejection
Exporter. I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attached EPA Acknowledgment of Consent. I certify that the waste minimization statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.27(a) (if I am a large quantity generator) or (b) (if I am a small quantity generator) is true. Signature i. International Shipments Internation	Month Day Month Day Month Day Full Rejection
Exporter, I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attached EPA Acknowledgment of Consent. I certify that the waste minimization statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.27(a) (ff I am a large quantity generator) or (b) (ff I am a small quantity generator) is true. Generator's Offeror's Printed/Typed Name 6. International Shipments Import to U.S. Transporter signature (for exports only): Date leaving U.S.: 7. Transporter Acknowledgment of Receipt of Materials ransporter 2 Printed/Typed Name Signature 8. Discrepancy Signature 8. Discrepancy Manifest Reference Number: 9b. Altemate Facility (or Generator) U.S. EPA ID Number 2. 3. 4. Designature of Alternate Facility (or Generator)	Month Day Month Day Month Day Month Day Full Rejection
Exporter, I certify that the contents of this consignment conform to the terms of the attached EPA-Achoweldgment of Consent. I certify that the waste minimization statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.27(a) (if I am a large quantity generator) or (b) (if I am a small quantity generator) is true. Generator's Offeror's Printed/Typed Name Signature If I international Shipments Import to U.S. If I number signature (for exports only): Date leaving U.S. 7. Transporter Acknowledgment of Receipt of Materials Signature ransporter 2 Printed/Typed Name Signature 8. Discrepancy Signature 8. Discrepancy U.S. EPA ID Number 9. Attemate Facility (or Generator) U.S. EPA ID Number scility's Phone: U.S. EPA ID Number 2. 3. 4. 1. Designated Facility Owner or Operator: Certification of receipt of hazardous waste treatment, disposal, and recycling systems) 2. 2. 3. 4.	Month Day

Plea	se prir	nt or type. (Form design	ied for use on	elite (12-pitch) ty	/pewriter.)						Form	Approved. OI	MB No. 2	050-0039
Î	UNIF W/	ORM HAZARDOUS	1. Generator ID	Number VIC: ORE 50	#1. 신선용	2. Page 1 of	3. Emergenc	y Response	e Phone	4. Manifes	Tracking Nut	^{mber} 1926	JJ	K
	5. Ger	nerator's Name and Mailing	Address	OM ANDE	民族和臣利昭朝	FRECOVE	Generator's S	ite Address	(if different that	n mailing addre	ess)			
	4837 NETELITONIA AVENUE MR WALKEE WI 53209 Generato's Phone													
	6. Tra	ator's Phone: hsporter 1 Company Name	d	4141 9/17 9	니지는						Number			
	0. 110		639245-1016							1	Number			
	7. Tra	nsporter 2 Company Name	1713.1. 1130		and could come					U.S. EPAID	Number	NULL THE I		
											Number			
	8. Designated Facility Name and Site Address A 975501 M D 444 55 FR VIC DE DIREI VIE BELLE VIE LE, MIL 48111									U.S. EPAID Number MICCOOD 724 Bist				
	Facilit	y's Phone: (80	01 593 5	1793										
	9a.	9b. U.S. DOT Descriptio	n (including Pro	per Shipping Name	Hazard Class, ID Numb	ber.		10. Contai	ners	11 Total 12 Linit				-
	HM	and Packing Group (if an	ıy))					No.	Type	Quantity Wt./Vol.		13. Waste Codes		
RATOR -	X	 RQ_NA3072 (CETRACHEO) 	UALARDOU UDETHYLH	S WASTE, SC NE: 9 PGPI	4,10 N C S 0039			001	CM		1	190 <i>3</i> /0		
- GENE		2.												
		3												
		4.												-
	11.0-					6			_					
	15. C n E I Genera	SENERATOR'S/OFFEROF narked and labeled/placard sporter, I certify that the cr certify that the waste minir ator's/Offeror's Printed/Typ	t'S CERTIFICAT led, and are in a potents of this co nization stateme ed Name	FION: I hereby dec Il respects in prope onsignment conform ent identified in 40 0	lare that the contents of or condition for transport n to the terms of the atta CFR 262.27(a) (if I am a	this consignment according to appli ached EPA Acknow large quantity gen	are fully and ac cable internatio ledgment of Cc erator) or (b) (if	curately de nal and nati onsent. f1 am a sma	scribed above onal governme all quantity gene	by the proper s ntal regulations erator) is true.	hipping name, s. If export ship	and are classifionment and I am	ed, packag the Primar	ged, Y
Ť		1- 2-1-	_ A.	ne La			nataro					1 /5L	Day	Tear
-1	16. Inte	ernational Shipments		10-1-1	HANGE CON		Country -		211	-		67	1	151
IN	Transr	orter signature (for export	import import	to U.S.	а. С	Export from L	J.S.	Port of en	try/exit:				_	
R	17. Tra	nsporter Acknowledoment	of Receipt of Ma	toriale				Date leave	ng U.S.:	-			_	
E	Transp	orter 1 Printed/Typed Nam	P. COLORIDA OF MA	tenais		<u>Sia</u>	a a hura	-		-				
0	E		1.50			l	nature					Month	Day	Year
NSI	Transp	orter 2 Printed/Typed Nam	e			Cia	natura	1			-	7	175	114
RA		ond a rankourtypourtuin				519	nature					Month	Day	Year
	18. Dis	crepancy								- 7001-0				1
	18a. D	screpancy Indication Space		anth.				11						
				Jantty			L Re	sidue		Partial Re	jection		Full Reject	tion
1							Manifes	t Reference	Number:					
Ę	18b. Al	ternate Facility (or Genera	tor)							U.S. EPA ID	Number			
CII														
E	Facility	's Phone:								1				
	18c. Si	gnature of Alternate Facilit	y (or Generator)									Month	Dav	Year
NA													1	
00	19. Ha:	zardous Waste Report Mar	agement Metho	d Codes (i.e., code	s for hazardous waste t	reatment disposal	and recueling	evelame						
iii	1.		g	2.	to to hazaroous waste t	a autoni, uisposal	, and recycling	systems)		14				
-1						0.				4.				
11	20. De	signated Facility Owner or	Operator: Cortifi	cation of receipt of	hazardous motoriale	upped by the set	ant average	and to be	10-					
	Printed	Typed Name	operator. Gertin	causi of receipt of	nazaroous materials cov	vered by the manif	est except as n	oted in Item	118a			_	in the second	
						Sig	nature					Month	Day	Year
*	-	700.00 /0 0.00												

140007-475A

ase pr	rint or type. (Form desig	ned for use on elite (12-pitch) typewriter.)		-		1	Form A	pproved. OMI	3 No. 205	0-003
UNI W	FORM HAZARDOUS	1. Generator ID Number	2. Page 1 of	3. Emergency Respo	onse Phone	4. Manifest	Tracking Num 3141	.924	JJK	(
5. Ge	enerator's Name and Mailir 48.37 M TELUTO	gAddress I COM A NUE P SO NA MIA AVENIE MI SOOD	ORMER LLOYT	Generator's Site Addr	ess (if different tha	an mailing addre	ess)			
Gene	erator's Phone:	(A13) (BC) 4650					Number			
0. 11	ansporter 1 Company Nam	le Gerser to man ¹⁴				U.S. EFRID		46791		
7. Tr	ansporter 2 Company Nam	le				U.S. EPAID	Number			
8. De	esignated Facility Name an and Second Lond S BELLEVILLE 1	d Site Address BRANDE DRIVE VII 483111	alent Versti	() K() A()	IT PL	U.S. EPA ID	Number	d 631		
9a.	9b. U.S. DOT Descripti	ion (including Proper Shipping Name, Hazard Class,	ID Number,	10. Co	ntainers	11. Total	12. Unit	13. Wast	e Codes	
HM		No. APPOINTS WAS IF SULUE AND		NO.	Type	Quantity	WLIVUI.	003%	1	
	(TETRACHLO	Role Entyr P44, 1, 9, P630, 1009				2 ¹ 1	10.			
	2.									
	3.								_	
-	4.									
15.	GENERATOR'S/OFFER(marked and labeled/place Exporter, I certify that the locatify that the waste mi	DR'S CERTIFICATION: I hereby declare that the co arded, and are in all respects in proper condition for contents of this consignment conform to the terms of imization statement identified in 40 CER 262 27(a)	ontents of this consignmen transport according to app of the attached EPA Ackno	t are fully and accurate licable international and wledgment of Consent nerator) or (b) (if I am a	ly described above d national governm	e by the proper a nental regulation nerator) is true.	shipping name, Is. If export ship	and are classifie ment and I am t	ed, package he Primary	ed,
Gen	erator's/Offeror's Printed/T	yped Name	Si	gnature	5 1/ 2	1.7	Ju Is	Month	Day	Year
1 16.	International Shipments		Export from	U.S. Port	of entry/exit:	105 181	Linst		int ?	de.
Tra	nsporter signature (for exp	orts only):		Date	leaving U.S.:					_
17.	Transporter Acknowledgme	nt of Receipt of Materials	S	onature				Month	Dav	Year
			1	3						
Tran	nsporter 2 Printed/Typed N	ame	s	ignature	-			Month	Day	Year
18.	Discrepancy								-	1997 (M.).
18a	a. Discrepancy Indication Sp	pace Quantity	Туре	Residue		Partial F	Rejection		Full Reject	ion
- 185	Alternate Facility (or Gen	erator		Manifest Refe	rence Number:	U.S. EPA I) Number			
						1				
Fac 18c	cility's Phone: c. Signature of Alternate Fa	cility (or Generator)						Month	Day	Yei
19.	Hazardous Waste Report	Management Method Codes (i.e., codes for hazardo	us waste treatment, dispo	sal, and recycling syste	ms)					-
1.		2.	3.			4.				
20.	Designated Facility Owner	r or Operator: Certification of receipt of hazardous m	aterials covered by the ma	nifest except as noted	in Item 18a					
Pri	nted/Typed Name		5	Signature				Month	Day	Yea
1	in the second									

140007 - 475A

UNIFORM HAZARDOUS	the the priority type with	01.7				For	m Anneward /	MAR NIO	2050
WASTE MANIFEST	1. Generator ID Number WHD DR8 598 56	2. Page 1 of	3. Emergency Response P	hone	4. Manifest	Tracking N	lumber	3 J.	JK
Generator's Name and Malling	Address TOM ADDERSC NIA AVENDE VI SICOR	INFORMER LLOYD	Generator's Site Address (if	different th	an mailing addre	ess)			
6. Transporter 1 Company Name	(41.41.982-9938							-	
(RIAL) TRANSP	CIDT IND'				U.S. EPA ID	Number			
7. Transporter 2 Company Name	CITAL IDIC				OK	L2 981	588 701		
					U.S. EPA ID I	Number	Automation and an a		
8. Designated Facility Name and	Site Address								
49350 ti 1-94 SE BELLEVILLE, M Facility's Phone: (804	Mill, HUSALL RVICE DRIVE 146111 31592-5489	JOPOSAL WASTE	INFATMENT D		U.S. EPA ID I	Number	24.834		
9a. 9b. U.S. DOT Description HM and Packing Group (if an	(including Proper Shipping Name, Hazard y))	Class, ID Number,	10. Container	s	11. Total	12. Unit	13. W	aste Codes	
1. mg. htsp://. h	AZARDOUS WASTE SOLED I	10 E	No.	Туре	Quantity	Wt./Vol.			
TETRACHLOR	GENEREL 9 PGID DO39		101	52.59	30.000		0039		
2.									
3.									
4.									
1			1 1						
14. Special Handling Instructions a 1 D146091 MDI / D039 ER DOM AUT	and Additional Information Solat					0.102	\$ 19.		
Special Handling Instructions a Diaborn with a Diaborn with a Diaborn with a Diaborn with a Diaborn with a Diaborn with a Diaborn with a Diaborn with a Diaborn with a Diaborn and a Diaborn a Diaborn and	S CERTIFICATION: I hereby declare that d, and are in all respects in proper condition tents of this consignment conform to the ter zation statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.1	he contents of this consignment are n for transport according to applicab rms of the attached EPA Acknowled 27(a) (if I am a large quantity genera Sinnat	fully and accurately descrit le international and national ment of Consent. lor) or (b) (if I am a small qu	bed above I I governme Jantity gene	by the proper ship intal regulations. I perator) is true.	oping name, If export ship	and are classifi orment and I arm	ed, packag the Primar	ged, Y
Special Handling Instructions a Special Handling Instructions a Special Handling Instructions	S CERTIFICATION: I hereby declare that in the second secon	he contents of this consignment are n for transport according to applicab rms of the attached EPA Acknowled 27(a) (if I am a large quantity general Signate	fully and accurately descrit le international and national gment of Consent. tor) or (b) (if I am a small qu ure	bed above i I governme uantity gene	by the proper shi ntal regulations. I erator) is true.	pping name,	and are classifi oment and I am Month	ed, packag the Primar Day	ged, y Yei
Special Handling Instructions : GENERATOR'S/OFFEROR' marked and labeled/placarde Exporter, I certify that the corr I certify that the waste minimi Benerator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed f. International Shipments Transporter signature (for exports	S CERTIFICATION: I hereby declare that in the second secon	he contents of this consignment are n for transport according to applicab rms of the attached EPAAcknowled 27(a) (if I am a large quantity genera Signati	fully and accurately descrit le international and nationa gment of Consent. tor) or (b) (if I am a small qu ure Port of entry/e Date leaving U	bed above I I governme Jantity gene xit: J.S.:	by the proper ship intal regulations. Perator) is true.	pping name,	and are classifi oment and I am Month	ed, packag the Primar Day	ged, y Ye
Special Handling Instructions i Special Handling Instructions i Second State Second State	S CERTIFICATION: I hereby declare that it d, and are in all respects in proper conditionents of this consignment conform to the terestion statement identified in 40 CFR 262.13 Name Import to U.S. only): Receipt of Materials	he contents of this consignment are n for transport according to applicab rms of the attached EPA Acknowled 27(a) (if I am a large quantity genera Signati	fully and accurately descrit le international and national gment of Consent. for) or (b) (if I am a small qu ure Port of entry/e Date leaving U	bed above I I governme Jantity gene xit: J.S.:	by the proper ship intal regulations. erator) is true.	pping name, If export ship	and are classifionment and I am Month	ed, packag the Primar Day	ged, y Ye
Special Handling Instructions i Special Handling Instructions i GENERATOR'S/OFFEROR' marked and labeled/placarde Exporter, I certify that the cor I certify that the waste minimi Senerator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed I certify that the waste minimi	S CERTIFICATION: I hereby declare that it d, and are in all respects in proper conditionents of this consonment conform to the terestation statement identified in 40 CFR 262.11 Name Import to U.S. only: Receipt of Materials	he contents of this consignment are n for transport according to applicab rms of the attached EPA Acknowled 27(a) (if I am a large quantity genera Signatu	fully and accurately descrit le international and national gment of Consent. tor) or (b) (if I am a small qu rre Port of entry/e Date leaving U re	bed above I I governme uantity gene xit: I.S.;	by the proper ship intal regulations. I erator) is true.	pping name, If export ship	and are classifionment and I am Month	ed, packag the Primar Day Day Day,	ged, y Ye
Special Handling Instructions i Special Handling Instructions i GENERATOR'S/OFFEROR' marked and labeled/placarde Exporter, I certify that the cor I certify that the waste minimi Generator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed Annaporter signature (for exports Transporter signature (for exports Transporter Acknowledgment of ransporter 1 Printed/Typed Name ransporter 2 Printed/Typed Name	S CERTIFICATION: I hereby declare that it d, and are in all respects in proper conditionents of this consonment conform to the terestation statement identified in 40 CFR 262.11 Name Import to U.S. only: Receipt of Materials	he contents of this consignment are n for transport according to applicab rms of the attached EPA Acknowled 27(a) (if I am a large quantity genera Signatu	fully and accurately descrit le international and national gment of Consent. tor) or (b) (if I am a small qu irre Port of entry/e Date leaving U re	bed above I I governme Jantity gene xit: J.S.;	by the proper ship intal regulations. I erator) is true.	pping name, If export ship	and are classifionment and I am Month	ed, packag the Primar Day Day Day	ged, y Ye Ye Ye
Special Handling Instructions a Special Handling Instructions a Special Handling Instructions a Special Handling Instructions a Special Handling Instructions	S CERTIFICATION: I hereby declare that if d, and are in all respects in proper condition tents of this consonment conform to the tere zation statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.1 Name Import to U.S. only): Receipt of Materials	he contents of this consignment are n for transport according to applicab rms of the attached EPAAcknowled 27(a) (if I am a large quantity genera Signatu	fully and accurately descrit le international and nationa gment of Consent. tor) or (b) (if I am a small qu ure Port of entry/e Date leaving U re	bed above I I governme Jantity gene xit: J.S.:	by the proper ship intal regulations. I erator) is true.	pping name,	and are classifi oment and I am Month	ed, packag the Primar Day Day Day	Ye
Special Handling Instructions i GENERATOR'S/OFFEROR' marked and labeled/placarde Exporter, I certify that the cor I certify that the waste minimi senerator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed . International Shipments 'ransporter signature (for exports 7. Transporter Acknowledgment of ransporter 1 Printed/Typed Name ransporter 2 Printed/Typed Name . Discrepancy 3. Discrepancy Indication Space	S CERTIFICATION: I hereby declare that it d, and are in all respects in proper conditionation tests of this consonment conform to the test of this consonment conform to the test of this consonnent dentified in 40 CFR 262.3 And a construction statement id	he contents of this consignment are n for transport according to applicab rms of the attached EPA Acknowled 27(a) (if I am a large quantity genera Signatu Export from U.S. Signatu Signatu	fully and accurately descrit le international and national gment of Consent. for) or (b) (if I am a small qu rre Port of entry/e Date leaving U rre re Residue	bed above l I governme uantity gene xit: J.S.:	by the proper ship ntal regulations. I parator) is true.	pping name, if export ship	and are classifionment and I am Month Month Month I	ed, packag the Primar Day Day Day Eull Reject	y Ye Ye Ye
Special Handling Instructions i GENERATOR'S/OFFEROR' marked and labeled/placarde Exporter, I certify that the cor I certify that the waste minimi Generator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed International Shipments Transporter signature (for exports 7. Transporter Acknowledgment of ransporter 1 Printed/Typed Name ransporter 2 Printed/Typed Name 8. Discrepancy 8a. Discrepancy Indication Space 8b. Alternate Facility (or Generato	S CERTIFICATION: I hereby declare that it d, and are in all respects in proper conditionation statement identified in 40 CFR 262.13 Name	he contents of this consignment are n for transport according to applicab rms of the attached EPA Acknowled 27(a) (if I am a large quantity genera Signatu Export from U.S. Signatu Signatu	fully and accurately descrit le international and national gment of Consent. for) or (b) (if I am a small qu ire Port of entry/e Date leaving U re re Residue Manifest Reference Num	bed above l I governme Jantity gene xit: J.S.: I.S.:	by the proper ship intal regulations. I parator) is true.	pping name, If export ship	and are classifionment and I am Month Month Month	ed, packag the Primar Day Day Day Eull Reject	ged, y Ye Ye
Special Handling Instructions i Special Handling Instructions i marked and labeled/placarde Exporter, I certify that the cor I certify that the waste minimi Senerator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed International Shipments Transporter signature (for exports 7. Transporter Acknowledgment of ransporter 1 Printed/Typed Name s. Discrepancy 8a. Discrepancy Bb. Alternate Facility (or Generator acility's Phone:	S CERTIFICATION: I hereby declare that it d, and are in all respects in proper condition tents of this consomment conform to the te zation statement identified in 40 CFR 262.1 I Name Import to U.S. only): Receipt of Materials	he contents of this consignment are n for transport according to applicab rms of the attached EPA Acknowled 27(a) (if I am a large quantity genera Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu	fully and accurately descrit le international and national gment of Consent. for) or (b) (if I am a small qu ire Port of entry/e Date leaving U re re Residue Manifest Reference Num	bed above l I governme uantity gene xit: L.S.: nber:	by the proper ship intal regulations. I parator) is true.	pping name, If export ship tion	and are classifioment and I am Month Month Month	ed, packag the Primar Day Day Day	Ye
Special Handling Instructions i Special Handling Instructions i marked and labeled/placarde Exporter, I certify that the corr I certify that the waste minimi Senerator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed International Shipments Transporter signature (for exports 7. Transporter Acknowledgment of ransporter 1 Printed/Typed Name ransporter 2 Printed/Typed Name 8. Discrepancy 8a. Discrepancy 8b. Alternate Facility (or Generato acility's Phone: 8c. Signature of Alternate Facility (S CERTIFICATION: I hereby declare that it d, and are in all respects in proper condition tents of this consomment conform to the te zation statement identified in 40 CFR 262.1 I Name Import to U.S. only): Receipt of Materials	he contents of this consignment are n for transport according to applicab rms of the attached EPA Acknowled, 27(a) (if I am a large quantity genera- Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu	fully and accurately descrit le international and national gment of Consent. tor) or (b) (if I am a small qu re Port of entry/e Date leaving U re re Residue Manifest Reference Nun	bed above b I governme Jantity gene Xit: J.S.: nber:	by the proper ship intal regulations. I erator) is true.	pping name, If export ship	and are classifioment and I am Month Month Month Month Month	ed, packag the Primar Day Day Day Full Reject	Ye
Special Handling Instructions i GENERATOR'S/OFFEROR' marked and labeled/placarde Exporter, I certify that the corr I certify that the waste minimi Benerator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed International Shipments Transporter signature (for exports Transporter signature (for exports Transporter 1 Printed/Typed Name ansporter 2 Printed/Typed Name B. Discrepancy Ba. Discrepancy Indication Space Bb. Alternate Facility (or Generator acility's Phone: Bc. Signature of Alternate Facility Hazardous Waste Report Mana	S CERTIFICATION: I hereby declare that if d, and are in all respects in proper conditio tents of this consonment conform to the te zation statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.3 I Name I Import to U.S. only): Receipt of Materials I Quantity O Quantity O Generator)	he contents of this consignment are n for transport according to applicab rms of the attached EPAAcknowled 27(a) (if I am a large quantity genera Signatu Export from U.S. Signatu Signatu Type	fully and accurately descrit le international and national gment of Consent. tor) or (b) (if I am a small qu ure Port of entry/e Date leaving U re re Residue Manifest Reference Nun	bed above I I governme Jantity gene xit: J.S.: nber:	by the proper ship intal regulations. I erator) is true.	pping name, If export ship	and are classificoment and I am Month Month Month Month Month Month Month	ed, packag the Primar Day Day Day Full Reject	y Ye Ye Yea
Special Handling Instructions i GENERATOR'S/OFFEROR' marked and labeled/placarde Exporter, I certify that the corr I certify that the waste minimi enerator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed International Shipments Transporter signature (for exports 7. Transporter Acknowledgment of ransporter 1 Printed/Typed Name ansporter 2 Printed/Typed Name B. Discrepancy Bb. Alternate Facility (or Generato acility's Phone: 3c. Signature of Alternate Facility (Hazardous Waste Report Mana	S CERTIFICATION: I hereby declare that if d, and are in all respects in proper conditionents of this consonment conform to the test action statement dentified in 40 CFR 262.3 I Name Import to U.S. Only): Receipt of Materials Quantity () Or Generator) gement Method Codes (i.e., codes for haze 2.	he contents of this consignment are no for transport according to applicab rms of the attached EPAAcknowled 27(a) (if I am a large quantity genera Signatu Export from U.S. Signatu Signatu Type	fully and accurately descrit le international and national gment of Consent. tor) or (b) (if I am a small qu are Port of entry/e Date leaving U re re re maintest Reference Num Manifest Reference Num	bed above I I governme Jantity gene Xit: J.S.:	by the proper ship intal regulations. I erator) is true.	pping name, If export ship	and are classificoment and I am Month Month Month Month Month Month Month	ed, packag the Primar Day Day Day Full Reject	Ye
Special Handling Instructions i GENERATOR'S/OFFEROR' marked and labeled/placarde Exporter, I certify that the com I certify that the waste minimi Benerator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed International Shipments Transporter signature (for exports Transporter signature (for exports Transporter 1 Printed/Typed Name ansporter 2 Printed/Typed Name B. Discrepancy Ba. Discrepancy Indication Space Bb. Alternate Facility (or Generator acility's Phone: Bc. Signature of Alternate Facility (B. Hazardous Waste Report Mana D. Designated Facility Owner or Original	S CERTIFICATION: I hereby declare that if d, and are in all respects in proper conditio tents of this consonment conform to the te zation statement identified in 40 CFR 262.1 I Name I Import to U.S. only): Receipt of Materials Quantity O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O	he contents of this consignment are n for transport according to applicab rms of the attached EPA Acknowled 27(a) (if I am a large quantity general Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu	fully and accurately descrit le international and nationa gment of Consent. tor) or (b) (if I am a small qu ure Port of entry/e Date leaving U re re re manifest Reference Num	bed above I I governme Jantity gene xit: J.S.: nber:	by the proper ship intal regulations. I erator) is true.	pping name, If export ship	and are classifionent and I am Month Month Month Month Month Month	ed, packag the Primar Day Day Day Eull Reject	y y Ye Ye
Special Handling Instructions i Special Handling Instructions i Marked and labeled/placarde Exporter, I certify that the corr I certify that the waste minimi Senerator's/Offeror's Printed/Typed International Shipments Transporter signature (for exports 7. Transporter Acknowledgment of ransporter 1 Printed/Typed Name ransporter 2 Printed/Typed Name B. Discrepancy 8a. Discrepancy Bb. Alternate Facility (or Generator acility's Phone: Bc. Signature of Alternate Facility (9. Hazardous Waste Report Mana 0. Designated Facility Owner or Oprinted/Typed Name	S CERTIFICATION: I hereby declare that it d, and are in all respects in proper conditio tents of this consomment conform to the te zation statement identified in 40 CFR 262.1 I Name I Import to U.S. only): Receipt of Materials Quantity O O O O Centrator Centification of receipt of hazardout	he contents of this consignment are n for transport according to applicab rms of the attached EPA Acknowled, 27(a) (if I am a large quantity general Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu Signatu	fully and accurately descrit le international and national gment of Consent. tor) or (b) (if I am a small qu re Port of entry/e Date leaving U re re Residue Manifest Reference Nun d recycling systems)	bed above I I governme Jantity gene Xit: J.S.: nber:	by the proper ship intal regulations. I erator) is true.	pping name, If export ship	and are classifioment and I am Month Month Month Month Month Month	ed, packag the Primar Day Day Day Full Reject	Ye

Lloyds Dry Cleaners

Total Tons		605.86									
Subtotal	67.11		186.38		86.77		217.66		23.63		24.31
								17			
						1045495	22.53				
						1045494	24.21				
		1045501	24.67			1045479	21.97				
		1045500	24.18			1045478	23.43				
		1045499	23.12			1045477	23.94				
		1045498	22.88			1045476	25.8				
		1045497	24.48	1045496	24.08	1045483	10.63				
1045469	23.8	1045472	22.3	1045475	17.72	1045482	18.9				
1045468	23.63	1045471	23.15	1045474	23.48	1045481	23.1	1045485	6.12		
1045467	19.68	1045470	21.6	1045473	21.49	1045480	23.15	1045484	17.51	1045490	24.31
4/21/2014		4/22/2014		4/23/2014		4/24/2014		4/25/2014		4/26/2014	
Special Was	te										

	\$	104340/
#140007-465A		
BILL TO:HIS Contractors		Waste Management Company
		ан 1
		á.
HIS Contractors		2 astron
		\sim
ENERATORS SIGNATURE:	//	. 0
Contaminated Soil	Date	
V119982WT	1. N. 1	
OFILE #		\bigcirc
	4/21/14	-
	Date 1 0, ///	0 19 Å
IVERS SIGNATURE: R. Zeller	4 1 1 MRUCK NO. 69	TONS/YARDS
	Date	A REAL PROPERTY AND INCOME
WHITE & YELLOW - GENERATOR	COPY / PINK - DISPOSAL SITE COPY / GOLD - TRANSPORTER COPY	DCE-009-8/95
#140007-465A		1045468
ILL TO: PLIS Contractors		A Waste Management Company
ANSPORTER:		1 <u>1</u>
HES Contractors		2
ENERATOR:		
ENERATORS SIGNATURE Touth T.J.	1 1 1 1 01	11.10
Contained the international the	Date Date La 10 yas Cleaners 2/	121/2012 V?
ASTE DESCRIPTION: Contaminated Solk	V /	1 Joldin VI
V119982WI		(A)
		C U IS
	4/21/14	
	, <u>4/21/14</u> Date	
IVERS SIGNATURE: R Eller	<u></u> 	TONS/VARDS
IVERS SIGNATURE:R	<u></u> 	TONS/YARDS
NIVERS SIGNATURE: REILION - GENERATOR		TONS/YARDS

	¢			
Irchard Ridge	SPECIAL WAST	E MANIFEST DISPO	SAL TICKET	10/5/69
#140007-4	165-A		1 1 1	1040400
ILL TO: HIS Cont	ractors			A Waste Management Company
	State of the second sec			
RANSPORTER:				
HIS Cont	tractors	1 A	. 1 1	, / 1
ENERATORS SIGNATURE	Tristhon Torclan A	Agent tor	Lloyds Che	amens 4 pipary
	Contaminated Soil	U Date	· 0	
VASTE DESCRIPTION:	VHOORDWIT	· · · ·	¥	1 2
'ROFILE #	V119902 W1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		à
CCEPTED BY:	R	4/21/10	1	R)
RIVERS SIGNATURE:	& Effer	4 / 1 /14 TRU	JCK NO	TONS/YARDS
e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e		Date	e di	
1,0 ₂	WHITE & YELLOW - GENERATOR C	OPY / PINK - DISPOSAL SITE COPY /	GOLD - TRANSPORTER COPY	DCE-009-8/95
		11 A.		te a sign Nach dia si su su

	and and it	$= \sum_{i=1}^{n-1} e^{-i i t}$		in the second
Orchard Ridge	SPECIAL WAS	STE MANIFEST DIS	POSAL TICKET	
#140007-4E	55A			
LITE Contra	antaina			A Waste Management Company
BILL TO:				A Waste Management Company
TRANSPORTER:			6	
GENERATOR:	actors	A	С., н.	
	The the	1. Acast for	Manda Cleans	15 4/20/2010
GENERATORS SIGNATURE	Contaminated Soi	Date		./*/00/7
WASTE DESCRIPTION:	VHOOQ2W/T	•		
PROFILE #	V119902W1		\sim	r
ACCEPTED BY:	ADA	4,22.14	()	100
Q	TAL.	Date 4,22,14	Paular	TONSWARDS
DRIVERS SIGNATURE:		/	THUCK NO.	21.60
	WHITE & YELLOW - GENERATO	R COPY / PINK - DISPOSAL SITE CO	PY / GOLD - TRANSPORTER COPY	DCE-009-8/95
	1 		dira	
Orchard Didag				
AF 14200 11	SPECIAL WAS	STE MANIFEST DIS	SPOSAL TICKET	
A 110001-90	65A			1043471-
BILL TO: HIS Contr	actors			A Wasta Nazaran o
TRANSPORTED			M MM	A Waste Management Company
HIS Contro	actors			10
GENERATOR:	en Alla	1 0		V V
GENERATORS SIGNATURE	huth the As,	funt for Lloyd	's Clances 4/E	aland r
WASTE DESCRIPTION:	Contaminated Soil	Date 0	$\sim 7^{\circ}$	7007 00
	V119982WI	and the second s		K
-A. 11 (AA	· A	And the second sec	e O
ACCEPTED BY:	XIV	4,22,14	and a second	11/
DRIVERS SIGNATURE:	Edil.	4,22,14	BUCK NO 9	ALL AND TO LOT AND TO
		Date	1	
	WHITE & YELLOW - GENERATOR	COPY / PINK - DISPOSAL SITE COP	Y / GOLD - TRANSPORTER COPY	DCE-009-8/95

Orchard Ridge SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET	1045472
\$ # 140007-465A	2
BULL TO HES Contractors	A Waste Management Company
	AL second a
TRANSPORTER:	
HIS Contractors	67
GENERATOR.	11
GENERATORS SIGNATURE: Jonathan fordan for the and for In orgels	Cleaners 7/22/00/
Contaminated Soil	
V119982WI	00
PROFILE #	DA M
ACCEPTED BY	
$\rho_{\rm T}$ \overline{Z}_{11} $1/\rho_{\rm T}$ $1/\rho_{\rm T}$	· ····
DRIVERS SIGNATURE: AMALE / AMALE TRUCK NO	TONS/YARDS
WHITE & YELLOW - GENERATOR COPY / PINK - DISPOSAL SITE COPY / GOLD - THANSPORTER COP	1 002003033

Orchard Ridge SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET	1015107
- WIDOD - HETA.	1040431
# 190001 - 985A	
BILL TO: 1-ILS Contractors	A Waste Management Company
	- 24
GENERATOR:	0
THIT! ILLE IL	all sould
GENERATORS SIGNATURE: for all foreign for the sound for the sound	reanens Apapary
WASTE DESCRIPTION:	
V119982WI	\sim
	<u> </u>
ACCEPTED BY:TYD , 4100019	2
Q Z/11 4 2214 9	()
DRIVERS SIGNATURE:	IONS/YAHDS
WHITE & YELLOW - GENERATOR COPY / PINK - DISPOSAL SITE COPY / GOLD - TRANSPORTER COP	Y DCE-009-8/95
chard Ridge SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET .	1045498
---	--
+- 140007 11/171	
#170001-965A	1
LL TO:HIS Contractors	A Waste Management Company
HES Contractors	n. 1
THI TALLEN	Leaking allow
ENERATORS SIGNATURE: Indam fordam F15 F15017 The Contry of Sugers	scanors That
Contaminated Soil	\sim 1 /
V119982WT	20
ROFILE # }	
$ \sqrt{2}$ $\frac{1}{\sqrt{2}}$	62
CEPTED BY:	0)
IVERS SIGNATURE: K ///// 4,22 14 TRUCK NO	TONS/YARDS
Date	
WHITE & YELLOW - GENERATOR COPY / PINK - DISPOSAL SITE COPY / GOLD - TRANSPORTER COPY	DCE-009-8/95
ge SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET	1045499
dge SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET # 140007-465A	1045499
dge SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET # 140007-465A HIS Contractors	1045499 A Waste Management Company
Ge SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET # 140007-465A HIS Contractors	1045499 A Waste Management Company
dge SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET # 140007-465A TO: HIS Contractors ANSPORTER: HIS Contractors	1045499 A Waste Management Company
ANSPORTER: HIS Contractors NERATOR: HIS Contractors	1045499 A Waste Management Company
ANSPORTER: HES Contractors NERATOR: MISS Contractors MERATOR: MEDIATORS SIGNATURE: MATHING TO AN A And A How	- 1045499 A Waste Management Company S Cleaners 4/2
SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET # 140007-465A TO: HIS Contractors ANSPORTER: HIS Contractors NERATOR: MIS Contractors NERATOR: MATTINE: Mathem Trachen As Accent for How	- 1045499 A Waste Management Company s Cleaners 4/2
dge SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET # 140007-465A TO: HIS Contractors ANSPORTER: HIS Contractors NERATOR: HIS	- 1045499 A Waste Management Company s Cleaners 4/2
dge SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET # 140007-465A TO: HIS Contractors ANSPORTER: HIS Contractors NERATOR: HIS Contage of the second of the s	- 1045499 A Waste Management Company S Cleaners 4/2
SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET # 140007-465A HIS Contractors ANSPORTER: HIS Contractors NERATOR: NERATORS SIGNATURE: NERATORS SIGNAT	- 1045499 A Waste Management Company s Germens 4/2 Co
SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET # 140007-465A HIS Contractors ANSPORTER: HIS Contractors INERATORS SIGNATURE: INERATORS SIGNATURE: INFORMATION INFORMAT	- 1045499 A Waste Management Company S Cleaners 4/2 S
Age SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET #140007-465A TO: HIS Contractors ANSPORTER: HIS Contractors HIS Contractors HIS Contractors NERATOR: HIS Contractors NOTATION: VI19982WI OFILE # HIS Contractors NOTATION: HIS CONTRACTOR	- 1045499 A Waste Management Company S General 4/2 C C C C C C
SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET # 140007-465A TO: HIS Contractors ANSPORTER: HIS Contractors NERATOR: HIS CONTRACTORS NERATORS SIGNATURE: HIS CONTRACTORS NERATORS NERATORS SIGNATURE: HIS CONTRACTORS NERATORS NERATORS NERATORS SIGNATURE: HIS CONTRACTORS NERATORS NERATO	1045499 A Waste Management Company S Cleanes 4/2 C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C
SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET # 140007-465A TO: HIS Contractors ANSPORTER: HIS Contractors NERATORS SIGNATURE: MARK Man Torchun NERATORS SIGNATURE: VI19982WI OFILE # OFILE # OFILE # VI19982WI Date VILL VILL VILL VILL VILL VILL VILL VILL VILL <td< td=""><td>1045499 A Waste Management Company Control of the state o</td></td<>	1045499 A Waste Management Company Control of the state o

Orchard Ridge SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET	10/5500
# 140007-465A	7040000
BILL TO:HIS Contractors	A Waste Management Company
GENERATOR:	10
GENERATORS SIGNATURE: Jonathan Jurclan As Aunt For Lloyg	Is Cleaners 4/00/1
WASTE DESCRIPTION:	
V119982WI	LIX
ACCEPTED BY:	$\langle I O \rangle$
DRIVERS SIGNATURE: R Zille H, Date TRUCK NO	TONS/YARDS
WHITE & YELLOW - GENERATOR COPY / PINK - DISPOSAL SITE COPY / GOLD - TRANSPORTER COPY	DCE-009-8/95
<u> </u>	- بر المحمد ا محمد المحمد ال
746 m	
Orchard Ridge SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET	1045501
HIS Contractors	A Woote Management Company It
	A waste management Company
TRANSPORTER:	
GENERATOR:	alada
GENERATORS SIGNATURE: Imation Judian His Agent, for bioges Chem	and 1/20/2014
WASTE DESCRIPTION:	
PROFILE #	9
ACCEPTED'BY:	25
DRIVERS SIGNATURE: R Min 4 22114 TRUCK NO. 9	TONS/YARDS
- WHITE & YELLOW - GENERATOR COPY / PINK - DISPOSAL SITE COPY / GOLD - TRANSPORTER COPY	DCE-009-8/95
the second se	and the state of the set

Orchard Ridge SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET _	
# 140007-465A	
BILL TO:	A Waste Management Company
HES Contractors	· · · · · · ·
GENERATOR:	1
GENERATORS SIGNATURE: Jonathan Fordan As Agent Fr Lloyds Cleaners	21/25/2014
WASTE DESCRIPTION:	2
PROFILE # /	N'N'
ACCEPTED BY:	d'
DRIVERS SIGNATURE: A EAUN 4,23,14 TRUCK NO. 9	TONS/YARDS
Date	
WHITE & YELLOW - GENERATOR COPY / PINK - DISPOSAL SITE COPY / GOLD - TRANSPORTER COPY	DCE-009-8/95
Orchard Ridge SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET _ # 140007-465A	1045474
BILL TO: YALO CONTRACTORS	A Waste Management Company
TRANSPORTER:	
GENERATOR HIS Contractors	
GENERATORS SIGNATURE: Jonathy Jurda Ag Agent for 2/0203	Clearers
WASTE DESCRIPTION Contaminated Soil	11/1
V119982WI	5 7/23/14
PROFILE #	5
ACCEPTED BY:	Č.
DRIVERS SIGNATURE: REALING 4,23 14 TRUCK NO. 9	TONS/YARDS
WHITE & YELLOW - GENERATOR COPY / PINK - DISPOSAL SITE COPY / GOLD - TRANSPORTER COPY	DCE-009-8/95
	and a second

Jush and Didas	i . ((:
rchara kiage	SPECIAL WA	ASTE MANIFES	T DISPOSAL T		- 1045475
				1	
1 CC Cant					
LL TO: HIS CONT	ractors		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	A Wa	ste Management Company
					1
LITS Cont	martana	ана станата на вој 1. станата на вој			
ENERATOR:	ruciors	211	- Children I.		CK I
	7 A 2 A9#	tor H	62/14 1 ·	- Taken I	
ENERATORS SIGNATURE:	Cantoningtod C	Date Date	<u>-2</u> /1		
ASTE DESCRIPTION:	Contaminated S	OII -			
. 118 ¹⁰	V119982WI	412 U			C .
10FILE #		1110-			and the second s
CCEPTED BY:	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	3119	~	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
	Q Z11	Date 11 07	14	9	
RIVERS SIGNATURE:		Date	TRUCK NO.		TONS/YARDS
	WHITE A VELLOW CENERAL	TOD CORY / DINK DISDOCA		POPTER CORY	DCE-000-8/05
	WHILE & TELLOW - GENERAL	TOR COPT / PINK - DISPOSA	L SITE COPT / GOLD - THANS	FORTER COPT	002003035
		and and a stand with the state of the	and a second	and the second secon	and a substantian and a substantian and a substantian a substantian a substantian a substantian a substantian a
)rchard Ridge	SPECIAL W	ASTE MANIFES	ST DISPOSAL T		- 1045496
	# 140	007 - 465	A		
HIS Com	tractors	19 - E		AWa	iste Management Company
ILL 10	1				1
RANSPORTER:				4]	1
HIS CON	tractors			-	, j. j.
	mapping 1. append 1	AM	01	Inda Claus	us shall
ENERATORS SIGNATURE	Jonathan Jarcla	M HS Maci	nt for m	ayers Crean	5 1/23/20
	Contaminated S	Soil		17. *	XAN
ASTE DESCRIPTION:	V110082WT				60
ROFILE #					
	20	.41/	23/14		121
ACCEPTED BY:	A TH	Date		0	CN
RIVERS SIGNATURE:	K. Edille	1 23	14 TRUCK NO.	7	TONS/YARDS
		Date			
2	WHITE & YELLOW - GENERA	ATOR COPY / PINK - DISPOS	AL SITE COPY / GOLD - TRAN	SPORTER COPY	DCE-009-8/95
54 B					

Orchard Ridge SP	ECIAL WASTE MANIEEST DISPOSAL TICK	ET
	HORA THAT I HANT ST DISPUSAL TICK	1045484
BILL TO: HIS Contractors	# 14000-1-4654	A Waste Management Company
TRANSPORTER:		
GENERATOR:	· · · · · ·	
GENERATORS SIGNATURE	30 Lloyd's Cleaners, 4, 125/14	
WASTE DESCRIPTION:	aminated Soil	V)
V119	982WI	
ACCEPTED BY:	JP . 4.125/14 "	entransference and a second
DRIVERS SIGNATURE:	Un 412514 TRUCK NO. 9	TONS/YARDS
WHITE & YE		2 COBY
		DCE-009-8/95
		in the second
Orchard Ridge	CIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICK	ET 10/E/05
	#= 140007-465A	1040400
HIS Contractors	, # 110001 10-11	A Waste Management Company
HIS Contractors	•	
GENERATORS SIGNATURE	22-14 dent for 4/25/14	0
Cont WASTE DESCRIPTION:	aminated Soil	
V119	982WI	
ACCEPTED BY:	70,4125/14	
DRIVERS SIGNATURE: R	24,25,14 TRUCK NO. 9	TONS/YARDS
WHITE & YI	LLOW GENERATOR COPY / PINK - DISPOSAL SITE COPY / GOLD - TRANSPORTE	R COPY DCE-009-8/95
وروا المراسبة المرور والمراقع والمراسبة والمراسبة والمراسبة والمراسبة والمراسبة والمراسبة والمراسبة و		

Orc	hard	Ridge	

3.

SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET _____ 1045490

HIS Contractors		A Wa	ste Management Company
BILL TO:			
TRANSPORTER:			. ²
HIS Contractors	-340 ¹¹		45
A.D.2 A	gentfor millio//	1 1	00
GENERATORS SIGNATURE:	overs (larados 17/26/15	7	
WASTE DESCRIPTION: Contáminated	Soil	*5	
V119982WI		N	
PROFILE #			A
ACCEPTED BY:	V)		V U
Really and the Real and the second se	4,26,14 TO	9	TONEWARDS
		IL B DUD	IUNS/IANUS

Orchard Ridge SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET
IF 140007-465A
21 1 100-1 100/1
BILL TO: A Waste Management Company
TRANSPORTER:
HES Contractors
GENERATOR:
GENERATORS SIGNATURE: Jamphon Indan 14 for 1000 Ling 018 Cremons 11-47 2013
WASTE DESCRIPTION:
V119982WI
100 42514 21CIS
ACCEPTED BY:
DRIVERS SIGNATURE: W 2000 TONS/YARDS
WHITE & YELLOW - GENERATOR COPY / PINK - DISPOSAL SITE COPY / GOLD - TRANSPORTER COPY DCE-009-8/95
Orchard Ridge SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET 1045481
F 140007 - 465A
HIS Contractors
GENERATOR:
mothing maching frank for 6 logas Jeanurs
Contaminated Soil
WASTE DESCRIPTION:
ACCEPTED BY: (1900) 412514 (200)
ACCEPTED BT.
DRIVERS SIGNATURE:
WHITE & YELLOW - GENERATOR COPY / PINK - DISPOSAL SITE COPY / GOLD - TRANSPORTER COPY DCE-009-8/95

Orchard Ridge SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET _	1045482
# 140007-465A	
BILL TO: HIS Contractors	A Waste Management Company
TRANSPORTER:	
GENERATOR:	n. ulaul
GENERATORS SIGNATURE: Jonathin Jordan H& Hsent for Lugds	Cleaners 1"He
PROFILE #	1590
ACCEPTED BY:	$ 0 \rangle$
DRIVERS SIGNATURE: CHAN THE 4 125 14 TRUCK NO	TONS/YARDS
Orchard Ridge SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET _	1045483
HES Contractors	A Waste Management Company
TRANSPORTER:	
GENERATOR: GENERATORS SIGNATURE: Inall Jun AS Africant for Lloyd 5 (Contaminated Soil Date	leaners 4/24/2016
V119982WI	69
ACCEPTED BY:	ê i
DRIVERS SIGNATURE:	TONS/YARDS
WHITE & YELLOW - GENERATOR COPY / PINK - DISPOSAL SITE COPY / GOLD - TRANSPORTER COPY	DCE-009-8/95

Orchard Ridge 🐴 🚶	SPECIAL WAS	TE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TI		1045476
	2	# 140007-465A		1010110
BILL TO: HIS Contrac	tors		A Waste	Management Company
				20
HIS Contrac	tors			
GENERATORS SIGNATURE:	Contaminated Soil	n As Agent-For 2	Joy Js Clean	urs ter/201
WASTE DESCRIPTION:	V119982WI		Q	· · · ·
ACCEPTED BY:	N	, Upully	N. S.	
DRIVERS SIGNATURE: R2	the	4 ,24 ,14 TRUCK NO.	9 (
	WHITE & YELLOW - GENERATOR	COPY / PINK - DISPOSAL SITE COPY / GOLD - TRANS	PORTER COPY	DCE-009-8/95
Orchard Ridge	SPECIAL WAS	TE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TI	ICKET	1045477
BILL TO:	tors AF1 44	2907484645 At A	A Waste	Management Company
TRANSPORTER:		-		
GENERATOR:	tors	1 1 1	11-10	1
GENERATORS SIGNATURE:	nathan Inda	m HS Agent for	Clay ds C	leaners s
WASTE DESCRIPTION:	VI19982WI	3		× 1/20/4
PROFILE #	~ ~	- I I A I I II	C	
ACCEPTED BY:	Ellea)	A 74 14	a J	
DRIVERS SIGNATURE:	and to be	/ # / / / / TRUCK NO Date		TONS/YARDS
	WHITE & YELLOW - GENERATOR	COPY / PINK - DISPOSAL SITE COPY / GOLD - TRANS	PORTER COPY	DCE-009-8/95

Orchard Ridge SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET 1045478
HUDDRY FULLOAF A
27 1400007 MO FOC M
BILL TO: HIS Contractors A Waste Management Company
HIS Contractors
GENERATOR:
GENERATORS SIGNATURE: Jurden As Abent Tor Lloyds Cleaners 4/24/20
WASTE DESCRIPTION: Contaminated Soil
V119982WI
ACCEPTED BY:
Date Date TONSMARDS
Date Date Thorne The Provent of the
WHITE & YELLOW - GENERATOR COPY / PINK - DISPOSAL SITE COPY / GOLD - TRANSPORTER COPY DCE-009-8/95
V
Orchard Ridge SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET
SPECIAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET 1045479
BILL TO: HIS Contractors
TRANSPORTER:
GENERATOR:
GENERATORS SIGNATURE: Tonathon Tondan As Arent for Mayds Cleaners 4/24/2016A
Contaminated Soil

WHITE & YELLOW - GENERATOR COPY / PINK - DISPOSAL SITE COPY / GOLD - TRANSPORTER COPY

Date

Date

ling

9

V119982WI

WASTE DESCRIPTION:

DRIVERS SIGNATURE:

PROFILE # _

ACCEPTED BY:

DCE-009-8/95

ONS/YARDS

Orchard Ridge SPECI	IAL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET	- 1045494
	# PHODY OF SHOT A	
BILL TO:		Waste Management Company
TRANSPORTER:		
GENERATOR:		. / /
GENERATORS SIGNATURE	The As Agent for Lloydes Cleane	is 4/21/2014
WASTE DESCRIPTION:	inated Soll	. / .
PROFILE #	ZWI	101
ACCEPTED BY:	K HCH.H	JCI
DRIVERS SIGNATURE: _ R Edler	4 24 14 TRUCK NO. 9	TONS/YARDS
		DCE-009-8/95
	W - GENERATOR COLT / FIRE - DISPOSAL SITE COLT / COLD - MIRINI COLLECTION	
ana ang anang mang ang ang bana kang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang		
		- <u></u>
Orchard Ridge SPECI	AL WASTE MANIFEST DISPOSAL TICKET	- 1045495
	A 1400071 (74) 4 5 A 845454	2010100
HIS Contractors		Waste Management Company
BILL 10:		
TRANSPORTER:		
GENERATOR:	PLATE IIICI	1/1
GENERATORS SIGNATURE: MOTUPA	budan He Agent Tor Lloyds Cleaner	5 7/24/2014
WASTE DESCRIPTION:	inated Soll	
PROFILE #	2WI C	S
	DD ,4/24/14	C/b
DRIVERS SIGNATURE: R Filler	4,24,14 TRUCK NO. 9	TONS/YARDS
	Date W - GENERATOR COPY / PINK - DISPOSAL SITE COPY / GOLD - TRANSPORTER COPY	DCE-009-8/95

ase print or type. (Form desi	gned for use on elite (12-pitch)	typewriter.)						
NON-HAZARDOUS	1. Generator ID Number		2. Page 1 of	3. Emergency Respons	se Phone	4. Waste T	racking Nur	nber
WASTE MANIFEST	WID988	598868	1	800-424-930	0		0	42318
Loyds Cleaners 4837 N Teutoni Milwaukee W Generator's Phone: 6: Transporter 1 Company Nar Badger Disport 7: Transporter 2 Company Nar	a Avenue 53209 588-9847 me sal of WI, Inc.	Att: To	om Anderson	venerator's Site Addres:	s (If different th	U.S. EPA ID	Number	8580056
			1.		- 21	1		
8. Designated Facility Name a Badger Dispose 5611 W st Hen Milwauke W Facility's Phone:	nd Sile Address I of WI, Inc. 1ock Street 53223 760-9175		m		1	U.S. EPAID	Number	
9a. 9b. U.S. DOT Descript AM and Packing Group (if	ion (including Proper Shipping Nam any))	e, Hazard Class, ID Numb	oer,	10. Conta No.	iners Type	11. Total Quantity	12. Unit Wt./Vol.	 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
^{1.} Non-regulate	ed meterial	_K		2	CIŃ	,/10	G	NONE
۵.		t in						
3.		14 million	/					
4.								
Manual and and								
14. GENERATOR'S CERTIFI Generator's/Offeror's Printed/Ty Bridge Kappel	CATION: I certify the materials des ped Name Age of for L	scribed above on this man	ifest are not subjer Sign: 2 NE (S]	at to federal regulations for	or reporting pro	oper disposal of f	Hazardous V	/aste. Month Day Yea
15. International Shipments Transporter signature (for expo	Import to U.S. ts only):		Export from U.	S. Port of ent Date leavin	try/exit:	•		
16. Transporter Acknowledgmen	of Receipt of Materials							
A Manual Andrew	Amorales		Signa	lure	X.		-	Month Day Year
Transporter 2 Printed/Typed Nar	ñe		Signa	iture	<u> </u>	~	- (Month Day Yea
17. Discrepancy				and the second second				
17a. Discrepancy Indication Spa	ce Quantity	Туре		Residue	Number	Partial Reje	ection	Full Rejection
17b. Alternate Facility (or Genera Facility's Phone:	itor)					U.S. EPA ID N	umber	
7c. Signature of Alternate Facili	y (or Generator)							Month Day Yea
P. Davisest 7.17 Million				~				
8 Designated Facility Owner or	Operator: Certification of receipt of	materials covered by the	manifest except as Signal	ure	De	the	2	Month BB
			and a local division of the local division o			the second s	and the second division of the second divisio	



NON-HAZARDOUS MANIFEST

-	NON-HAZARDOUS MANIFEST	1. Generator's US	EPA ID No.	Ma	anifest Doc	No.	2. Page 1	of			
	3. Generator's Mailing Address: Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 North Tutonia Avenue	G L 4	ienerator's Site A loyd's Cleane 837 North Tu	ddress (if d ers tonia Av	ifferent than m	ailing):	A. Manife W	st Number MNA	Generator's		
	Milwaukee Wi 53209 4. Generator's Phone (209) (390-9814	53209	.9 b. State Generation 5 b							
	5. Transporter 1 Company Name	00-0014	6.	US EPA ID) Number			ng sang ga	a parta	5-5.85	n solate
							C. State T	ansporter's I	D		
	7. Transporter 2 Company Name		8		Number		D. Transp	orter's Phone			nie Statione
			0.	00 11 412	Muniper		E. State Tr	ansporter's II	D	([ang ang kapang kapan
		• • • •					F. Transpo	orter's Phone	Maglia ana ph	a champel pp of	ek bir, abbe Seine'
	9. Designated Facility Name and Site Orchard Ridge RDF	Address	10.	US EPA	ID Number		G State E	ocility (D	a ganta shak	46885110	p.sp/27.e
	W124 N9355 Boundary Road						H. State F	acility Phone	262-25	3-8620	
	Menomonee Falls, WI 53051				933-940302			chob bete			
									ainte de la fra		
	11. Description of Waste Materials				12. Co No.	ntainers Type	13. Total Quantity	14. Unit Wt./Vol.	L.M	isc. Comme	nts
G	a. Dry Cleaning Solvent Impa	acted Soil									
E					เมืองคมพังหรายระบบเล	18-07-041-06-446-01-3076011-001-07	Station Station III a set	renn al trabana Ali		1	
E	WM Profile # V126479WI										
R	b.										
T	W/88 Drofile #				5 12 Local						
0	C.				- 1971 (Berline) 	ay go a' a daal a'	lan bit nyé		No. 1977		
R								د			
	WM Profile #					i Casteri		AS SAMP		961 (S. A.	
	d.										
ĺ			 and Reconstruction 		-						
	J. Additional Descriptions for Materi	als Listed Above			K. Dispos	al Location	80 . Statis Jac	ga webberede	19 Laboration	Bernia.	
	BILL TO:				Cell				Level		
	15. Special Handling Instructions and	Additional Informat	ion		Unu	l,,					
	Dura have Order #										
	Purchase Order #		EMERG	SENCY CONT	ACT / PHONE	NO.:	Kyle Hei	imstead (2	09) 390-9	814	
	16. GENERATOR'S CERTIFICATE:										3
	I hereby certify that the above-describ	ed materials are no	t hazardous wast	es as defin	ed by CFR P	Part 261 or a	any applicable	e state law, ha	ave been fu	ily and	
	Printed Name	Corret	Signature	"On beha	If of"		pileable regu		Month	Day	Year
_	Agent at lient,	Schacht				rut	the	6	02	15	Zoil
T R	17. Transporter 1 Acknowledgement	of Receipt of Materi	ials	1	f						
A N S	Again Smat		Signature		P	\frown			Month C2	Day	rear 17
P	18. Transporter 2 Acknowledgement	of Receipt of Materi	ials 22		0-1	$\overline{}$				-1-	1
R	Printed Name		Signature	2					Month	Day	Year
e R											
	19. Certificate of Final Treatment/Dis	posal									
A C	I certify, on behalf of the above listed	treatment facility, the	hat to the best of	my knowle	edge, the at	oove-describ	oed waste w	as managed i	n compliand	e with al	1
i L	20. Facility Owner or Operator: Certif	fication of receipt of	non-hazardous n	naterials co	overed by the	nis manifect					
Ţ	Printed Name	in the second se	Signature	2	created by th				Month	Day	-year
ľ	X								A	15	H

Customer Name ENVIROFO Ticket Date 02/15/20	Orchar W124 N Menomo Ph: (2 RENICS 1 17	d Ridge f 9355 Bour nee Falls 62) 253-8 ENVIRO FC	NDF Idary R 6. WI, 1 1620 RENSI (oad 53051 Carríer Jehirle&	MORAINENE	 Origina Ticket4 VIRONMENTAL MOR 	134660 1 1524567 AINE ENVIRON	49
Payment Type Credit Ad Manual Ticket# Hauling Ticket# Route State Waste Code A-24-(Manifest na Destination PO Profile V126479WI Generator 136-LLOYE	count)& (DRY C SCLEANE	CLEANING RS LLOYD	C E E SOLVENT S CLEAN	Container Driver Check# Billing # Ben EPA II Brid IMPACTED ERS	0004957) 501L)	1 Au Triwi	Ξ. 	annihit "I waa ka "alaa aa a" ka maa aa " ka maa aa " ka maa aa aa " ka maa aa aa a
Time In 02/15/2017 13:26:0 Dut 02/15/2017 13:40:1 Comments	Sc 7 In8 4 Out	ale Gound Bound	Ope jgin igin	rator dt dt	Inbe	rund Gross Taræ Net Tons	29840 1b 15380 15 14460 1b 7.23	
Product 1 Spwaste VOC-Tons-S 2 FUEL-Fuel Surcharg 3 EVF-L-Standard Env	LD% 100 100 100	Qty 7.23 1	UDM Tons % Load	Rate	Tax	Amount	Origin WI WI WI	
AA		>	20.1		1、清望 時間	Total Tax Total Ticket		

403WM-N

NON-HAZARDOUS MANIFEST	1. Generator's U	S EPA ID No.	Manifest Doo	c No.	2. Page	1 of	1	A 1. 100	
3. Generator's Mailing Address: Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 North Tutonia Avenue		Generator's Site Add Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 North Tutor	ress (If different than i	mailing):	A. Mani	ifest Number	! V	MUSV	2 14
Milwaukee WI 53209 4. Generator's Phone (209)	390-9814	Milwaukee WI 53	209			B. State	e Generator	's ID	
5. Transporter 1 Company Name		6. US	EPA ID Number					84 GU	14,04
7. Transporter 2 Company Name		8. US	EPA ID Number		D. Trans	porter's Phon	ID e		
					E. State	Transporter's	ID	6) E. H. H.	10
9. Designated Facility Name and Site Orchard Ridge RDF	Address	10. U	S EPA ID Number		C State	Sorter's Phone	2		
W124 N9355 Boundary Road Menomonee Fails, WI 53051					H. State	Facility ID Facility Phone	262-2	53-8620	
11 Description for									
a. Dry Cleaning Solvent Imp	acted Sail		12. Co No.	ntainers Type	13. Total Quantity	14. Unit Wt./Vol.	1. 1	Visc. Comme	ents
	acted Soll								
b.						Sak LMis			
NM Profile #									
			and a Solid and and a solid sector of the soli	A COMPANY AND		535 miljan	64:53	Notice 11	á ve
VM Profile #	_			the state to					
٠ ٨.				<u></u>	28 (14 st. st. f) 			9624-5	
/M Profile #	and an and a second	and a second state of the	1.5						
Additional Descriptions for Materia	ls Listed Above		K. Disposa	Location			¹ .		
ILL TO:			Cell				Level		
Special Handling Instructions and A	dditional Informatio	on							
rchase Order #									
		EMERGENCY C	ONTACT / PHONE N	0.:	Kyle Heir	nstead (20	9) 390-98	314	
GENERATOR'S CERTIFICATE:							-		3
curately described, classified and pack	d materials are not aged and are in pro	nazardous wastes as d per condition for tran	efined by CFR Pari sportation accord	t 261 or an Ing to appli	y applicable	state law, hav	e been full	y and	
gent of Client,	Schacet	Signature "On b	ehalf of"	A	And		Month	Day	Year
. Transporter 1 Acknowledgement of Printed Name	Receipt of Material	S			10000		02	16	
Transportor 2 Asland Lat		Signature					Month	Day	Year
Printed Name	Receipt of Materials	Signature		/					
		Conductor C	A	\mathbf{i}			Month	Day	Year
Adam Duret		1100		1			02	10 1	1
A Jan Sweet Certificate of Final Treatment/Dispos	al								
Certificate of Final Treatment/Dispos rtify, on behalf of the above listed treation licable laws, regulations, permits and	al atment facility, that licenses on the date	to the best of my kno	wledge, the above	e-described	waste was	managed in c	ompliance	with all	

.



Orchard Ridge RDF W124 N9355 Boundary Road Menomones Falls, WI, 53051 Ph: (262) 259-8620

Original Ticket# 1524923

13466295

Customer Name ENVIROPORENICS	ENVIRO FORENSI	Carrier	MORAINENEVIRONMENT	AL MORAINE ENVIRON
IICKEL DAVE UE/15/CO1/		Venitten	1	Volume
Payment Type Credit Account		Container	î	
Manual Ticket#		Driver		
Rauling Ticket#		Check#	17.	
Route		Dillina #	0004957	
State Waste Code A-24-06		Gen EPA II		
Manifest na				
Destination		Grid		
};,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,				
Profile V126479WI (DRY	CLEANING SOLVE	NT IMPACTED	EON.)	
Generator 136-LLOYDSCLEAN	VERS LLOYDS CLE	ANERG		

	Time		Scale	Operator	lnbound	Bross	31340 lb
Ľ m	02/16/2017	13:38:09	InBound	jgindt		Tare	15240 15
Cut.	02/16/2017	13:52:49	OutBound	jgindt		Ne2 &	16080 15
						Tons	(3.04)
Com	ents						

Proc	juct	1.10%	Qty	MCH	Rate	Τēt×	Amount	Origin
10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-1		· · •·· ••• · •• •• · •• ••	с на также на так так на так на так на так Г					
1	Sowaste VOC-Tons-S	100	<u>9</u> " 04	Tons				I V
(2)	FUEL-Fuel Surcharg	100		%				ΜI
3	EVF-L-Standard Env	100	1	Load				$\bowtie \Sigma$

Total Tax Total Ticket

۲



REMEDIAL ACTION REPORT

Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 North Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI 53209 WDNR BRRTS# 02-41-556811

July 13, 2017

Prepared For:

Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 North Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI 53209

Prepared By:

Environmental Forensic Investigations, Inc. N16 W23390 Stone Ridge Drive, Suite G Waukesha, WI 53188 Phone: (262) 290-4001 www.enviroforensics.com

Brian Kappen, PG Project Manager

Way

Wayne Fassbender, PG, PMP Senior Project Manager

Andrew Horwath, PE Senior Engineer



TABLE OF CONTENTS

2.0	BAC	KGROUND	
	2.1	Basement Groundwater Discharge	2
	2.2	Vapor Intrusion Mitigation Testing	4
	2.3	Proposed Remedy	5
3.0	PRE	-REMEDIAL PREPARATIONS	6
	3.1	Soil Characterization Sampling	6
4.0	REM	IEDIAL ACTION FIELD WORK	
	4.1	Health & Safety	7
	4.2	Excavation Activities	7
	4.3	Vapor Mitigation	8
	4	.3.1 Sub-Slab Vapor Sampling	
	4	.3.2 Sub-Slab Depressurization System Installation	
	4	.3.3 Floor Drain Cleaning	9
	4	.3.4 Wall Sealing	9
5.0	CON	CLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS	

TABLES

1	Pre-Excavation	Soil Sample	Analytical	Results Summary
			2	2

- 2 Sub-Slab Vapor Sample Analytical Results Summary
- 3 Sump Sample Analytical Results Summary

FIGURES

- 1 Site Location Map
- 2 Site Layout Map
- 3 Basement Layout and Soil Sample Locations
- 4 Basement Soil Sample Analytical Results
- 5 Basement Excavation Cross-Section
- 6 Soil Gas and Sub-Slab Vapor Analytical Results
- 7 Sub-Slab Depressurization System Layout



APPENDICES

- Appendix A Soil Laboratory Analytical Report
- Appendix B Waste Disposal Manifests
- Appendix C Sub-Slab Vapor Laboratory Analytical Report
- Appendix D Photographs
- Appendix E Blue Max Material Safety Data Sheet



CERTIFICATIONS

I, Andrew Horwath, hereby certify that I am a registered professional engineer in the State of Wisconsin, registered in accordance with the requirements of ch. A-E 4, Wis. Adm. Code; that this document has been prepared in accordance with the Rules of Professional Conduct in ch. A-E 8, Wis. Adm. Code; and that, to the best of my knowledge, all information contained in this document is correct and the document was prepared in compliance with all applicable requirements in chs. NR 700 to 726, Wis. Adm. Code.

Manager, Technical Group, PE #E-43831-6

Signature, title and P.E. number

P.E. stamp

I, Brian Kappen, hereby certify that I am a hydrogeologist as that term is defined in s. NR 712.03 (1), Wis. Adm. Code, am registered in accordance with the requirements of ch. GHSS 2, Wis. Adm. Code, or licensed in accordance with the requirements of ch. GHSS 3, Wis. Adm. Code, and that, to the best of my knowledge, all of the information contained in this document is correct and the document was prepared in compliance with all applicable requirements in chs. NR 700 to 726, Wis. Adm. Code.

Project Manager

Signature and title

<u>6/29/2017</u> Date



1.0 INTRODUCTION

This report provides a summary of remedial actions implemented at the Lloyd's Cleaners dry cleaning and laundry facility located at 4837 North Teutonia Avenue in Milwaukee, Wisconsin (Site). The remedial actions were conducted in accordance with the *Remedial Action Plan* dated March 14, 2016.

The remedial actions consisted of excavating soil beneath a portion of the basement floor slab, applying a vapor barrier to the basement wall, and installation of a sub-slab depressurization system (SSDS). The primary objective of the remedial actions was to eliminate the risk of vapor intrusion from elevated concentrations of chlorinated volatile organic compounds (CVOCs) detected in sub-slab vapor samples.

These remedial actions were designed to augment the interim actions implemented in 2014, and complete the remediation of accessible chlorinated solvent impacts at the Site. The interim remedial actions, documented in the *Interim Remedial Action Report*, dated August 28, 2014, included the exterior excavation of soils along leaking sanitary and storm laterals, utility lateral replacement, and installation of the basement foundation groundwater collection system.

This report summarizes the information supporting the decision to implement the selected remedial actions, provides detailed documentation of the remedial process and results, and provides recommendations for further Site actions to reach closure.



2.0 BACKGROUND

The Lloyd's Cleaners property (Site) is located at 4837 North Teutonia Avenue, Milwaukee, Wisconsin (**Figure 1**). The Site is located in an area of mixed land use consisting of residential, commercial, and industrial properties. The adjacent properties are occupied by Benz Oil Company (west), a gasoline service station (south), a vacant commercial building (north), and Teutonia Avenue to the east. The nearest residential property is located more than 200 feet east of the Site. The nearest sensitive environmental receptor is Lincoln Creek, which passes approximately 1,000 feet west of the Site and joins the Milwaukee River approximately 1.5 miles downstream.

The Site is currently occupied by a drop-off facility for clothes dry cleaned elsewhere and has an attached coin-operated laundry. The building is a single story structure with a partial basement having concrete block walls. The attached coin-operated laundry is a single story structure with a slab on grade. The general layout of the Site including relevant features and utility locations is depicted on **Figure 2**.

Previous Site investigations revealed that subsurface impacts were associated with incidental spills of tetrachloroethene (PCE) from an aboveground tank located in the southwest corner of the partial basement. It is likely that the spilled PCE entered the subsurface at the joint between the floor slab and concrete block wall, through a potential leaky floor drain, or both. Releases to the nearby floor drain entered the sanitary sewer system, which was shown to be leaky in areas outside of the building. Spillage occurring to the floor/wall joint would have entered the drain tile system in the basement foundation, along with releases from leaky floor drains. This contaminated foundation groundwater was conveyed to the storm water system, which was shown to be leaky in areas outside of the building. As mentioned, during past interim remedial actions, the sanitary and storm laterals were excavated and replaced, along with much of the contaminated soil surrounding them.

2.1 Basement Groundwater Discharge

As part of the interim remedial actions conducted in 2014, a limited amount of contaminated backfill was removed along the inside of the west wall of the basement to facilitate installation of a new groundwater collection system. The system consists of a drain tile lateral and a new sump crock and pump. The lateral was tied to the existing sanitary system. Contaminated foundation water now discharges directly to the sanitary sewer system under permit from the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District (MMSD). The results of recent discharge samples, collected



during April and June 2017, respectively, indicate rapidly decreasing CVOC concentrations following the remediation work described in the this report. The most recent PCE concentration of $1.52 \mu g/L$ is two orders-of-magnitude less than the pre-remedial PCE concentration in the sump discharge.



2.2 Vapor Intrusion Mitigation Testing

Sub-slab vapor sampling conducted in the basement in 2014 indicated that VOCs were present in vapor at concentrations above the vapor risk screening level (VRSL) for small commercial structures. The continued vapor impacts are likely associated with contaminated foundation water and shallow sub-slab soil impacts. Testing was performed to evaluate mitigation options as detailed in the *Remedial Action Plan*. Initially, diagnostic testing was performed to determine the radius of vacuum influence that could be achieved under the basement slab using a typical sub-slab depressurization system (SSDS) fan. A second phase of testing was also implemented using more powerful equipment typically used in soil vapor extraction (SVE) remedial applications. The data collected during testing resulted in the following observations and conclusions:

- Clay soil is present beneath the limited and discontinuous layer of basement fill material below the concrete floor. In addition, clay particles have been deposited in the pore space of the fill via the buildup of water which accumulated below the slab in the past. This has resulted in reduced permeability in the fill and uneven flow paths for sub-slab vapors as indicated by uneven negative pressure field extension across the slab during vacuum testing.
- 2. Testing of an SSDS fan indicated that this technology would be ineffectual for inducing an adequate negative pressure beneath the building slab.
- 3. Operation of the SVE blower could mitigate vapor risk below the slab but would require a much higher operation and maintenance cost compared to an SSDS system and would not be practical for long term operation.
- 4. Elevated concentrations of VOCs were detected along the joint between the floor slab and west concrete block wall, and from floor drains using a PID instrument. The vapors detected along the block wall are likely due to contaminated groundwater along the basement foundation, or possibly from residual impacts within the block itself. The floor drains may be conveying vapors from soil or groundwater impacts, or the floor drains may contain impacts within the piping structure itself.
- 5. The SVE blower produced significantly more chlorinated solvent vapors when hooked up to the drain tile system as opposed to when it was hooked up to a vent in the center of the



floor slab indicating that vapors are more concentrated along or within the west concrete block wall.

2.3 Proposed Remedy

An evaluation of the testing data indicated that a standard vapor mitigation approach using an SSDS would not be effective to mitigate vapor intrusion due to lack of permeable soil beneath the slab to support low cost venting, and use of SVE would be impractical. Therefore, it was determined that accessible sub-slab soil impacts should be excavated and granular fill material emplaced to support venting using a cost effective SSDS. The selected remedy included the following actions:

- 1. Sample and test soil under the concrete basement floor slab for toxicity to determine the appropriate receptor for disposal;
- 2. Remove a portion of the floor slab, excavate the native clay soil to a depth of approximately 12 inches, and transport soil to an appropriate disposal facility;
- 3. Install a vertical sheet pile keyed 2-3 inches into the clay substrate along the east edge of the existing groundwater collection system trench to prevent foundation groundwater from entering into the excavation backfill;
- 4. Install two horizontal vent pipes along the entire length of the excavated area, manifold the pipes together, and extend a riser above the roof line for active sub-slab venting;
- 5. Backfill the excavation with gravel to promote vapor flow under the concrete floor;
- 6. Clean or replace the two (2) floor drain laterals to remove residual contaminants;
- 7. Place a vapor barrier on top of the gravel backfill and replace the concrete floor slab; and
- 8. Repair holes, cracks, and joints in west concrete block wall and seal the wall with a chemical resistant coating to establish a vapor barrier.



3.0 PRE-REMEDIAL PREPARATIONS

Soil sampling was conducted within the anticipated area of excavation as part of the planning process. The objective of the soil sampling activities was to characterize the soil in the planned excavation area for disposal purposes.

3.1 Soil Characterization Sampling

On November 2, 2016, EnviroForensics personnel mobilized to the Site and advanced seven (7) hand auger borings (HB-5 through HB-11) in the basement of the Site building to facilitate soil sample collection. The soil boring locations are depicted on **Figure 3**. EnviroForensics personnel performed all field activities. The concrete floor slab was cored at each location and a hand auger was advanced to approximately 1.5 feet below the floor. No field screening was performed because the sampling intervals were predetermined.

One (1) soil sample was collected at each boring location from a depth of approximately 0.5-1.5 feet below the basement floor surface. A total of seven (7) soil samples were collected and submitted to a laboratory for analysis of VOCs according to SW-846 Test Method 8260.

The results of the source area characterization samples are summarized on **Table 1** and **Figure 4**. The laboratory report associated with the soil samples is included in **Appendix A**. The VOC concentrations detected in the soil samples indicated that all soil could be transported to a landfill for disposal as non-hazardous special waste.



4.0 **REMEDIAL ACTION FIELD WORK**

4.1 Health & Safety

On the first day of work, plastic sheeting was set up to isolate the work area from areas of active business operations and to prevent unauthorized access to the work zone. A Site Health & Safety Plan was reviewed by all site workers prior to beginning remedial activities and specific contaminant exposure concerns and safety precautions explained to all site workers during a pre-work tailgate meeting.

The work zone was periodically monitored for VOC vapors using a photo-ionization detector (PID) equipped with an 11.7 electron-volt lamp, and vinyl chloride concentrations measured using a SensodyneTM pump equipped with vinyl chloride gas detector tubes. Field readings using these instruments were collected periodically during the excavation work within the basement to ensure worker safety.

4.2 Excavation Activities

EnviroForensics contracted Horizon Construction and Exploration of Fredonia, Wisconsin to conduct the excavation, waste disposal, and Site restoration activities. These activities were completed from February 13-20, 2017. Excavating was performed in the area depicted on **Figure 3**, comprising a main storage room, two (2) bathrooms, and a hallway in the basement. The other areas of the basement, including an office, secondary storage room, and mechanical room were not targeted for remediation based on past investigation results.

The concrete slab was saw-cut around the perimeter of the excavation area, and the slab itself was broken into pieces by jackhammer. The concrete pieces were loaded onto a conveyor system that moved material up the stairs and outside to a staging area on the south side of the building. The limited fill material beneath the floor slab and native clay soil was removed by hand to a depth of approximately 12 inches below the bottom of the slab. Soil was also transported by the conveyor system to the staging area.

All soil excavated from the basement was loaded into dump trucks and sent to the Waste Management Orchard Ridge Landfill in Menomonee Falls, Wisconsin. A total of 15.27 tons of excavated material was managed and disposed of as special solid waste (refer to waste manifests and load tickets in **Appendix B**).



The excavation area was backfilled with pea gravel. Two lengths of 4-inch diameter perforated PVC vent piping were bedded within the pea gravel to facilitate sub-slab venting. The drain pipe was wrapped in filter fabric to prevent entry of soil particles. A vapor barrier (6-mil sheet plastic) was placed on top of the pea gravel. The concrete slab was replaced to an equivalent thickness as the existing slab, having an approximate thickness of 4-5-inches. Installation of the proposed vertical sheet pile between the foundation drain tile and excavation proved impractical in the field. Instead, a concrete barrier was poured immediately adjacent to the drain tile along the west basement wall. In that area, the concrete is now 14-inches thick and is intended to prevent groundwater in the foundation drain tile from entering into the excavation backfill. A cross-section of the excavation area is shown on **Figure 5**.

4.3 Vapor Mitigation

4.3.1 Sub-Slab Vapor Sampling

On March 2, 2017, sub-slab vapor samples SSV-11 and SSV-12 were collected from beneath the basement slab to determine if vapor mitigation would still be needed following excavation activities. The samples were submitted to a laboratory for analysis of PCE and associated compounds according to EPA Air Method Toxic Organics -15 (TO-15). The results are summarized and compared to small commercial vapor risk screening levels (VRSLs) for small commercial buildings on **Table 2** and **Figure 6**. PCE was detected in sample SSV-11 at a concentration of 19,000 micrograms per cubic meter (μ g/m³), which exceeds the VRSL of 6,000 μ g/m³. Trichloroethene (TCE) was detected in both vapor samples at concentrations above the VRSL of 290 μ g/m³. These results confirmed that an SSDS would need to be installed to mitigate vapor intrusion risk. The laboratory report associated with the sub-slab vapor samples is provided in **Appendix C**.

4.3.2 Sub-Slab Depressurization System Installation

An SSDS was installed in the basement of the site building on April 6-7 and April 13-14, 2017. The SSDS utilizes the two (2) horizontal vent pipes installed within the excavation backfill, one (1) vertical extraction point along the north wall of the mechanical room, and the sealed sump crock for the purpose of venting the drainage tile and block wall. Each of the piping connections is equipped with a u-tube manometer and an individual ball valve for system balancing. An audible low-vacuum alarm was also installed to alert building managers that the SSDS needed inspection and possible maintenance.



The pipes are manifolded, and a single 4-inch diameter PVC pipe is routed to the roof through an unused pipe chase in the mechanical room. The pipe is connected to a RadonAway Model GP-501 fan mounted on the roof. The fan is hardwired to a dedicated circuit breaker in an existing electrical panel with a dedicated on/off switch located next to the fan. The layout of the SSDS is depicted on **Figure 7** and photographs are included in **Appendix D**.

The post-installation pressure field extension (PFE) testing indicated that the system applies negative pressure across the entire main room and mechanical room of the basement where elevated vapor concentrations were previously detected. Permanent test points SSV-11 and SSV-12 had readings of -0.131 and -0.371 inches of water, respectively. Post-installation PFE readings are also presented on **Figure 7**.

4.3.3 Floor Drain Cleaning

There are two (2) floor drains in the basement of the Site building: one (1) in the south bathroom and one (1) in the mechanical room as shown on **Figure 3**. PID readings collected during the Site investigation were as high as 10,000 parts per million (ppm), indicating that the drains were emanating solvent vapors. Both floor drains were cleaned by a plumber using a drain auger followed by flushing with water. The post-cleaning PID readings collected from the floor drains were less than 10 ppm, demonstrating that the cleaning procedure significantly reduced the source of vapors.

4.3.4 Wall Sealing

The west block wall of the basement was sealed to mitigate potential vapor movement from the wall to indoor air. Sealing included the following activities:

- Holes and cracks in the wall were patched with mortar or expanding foam;
- The joint between the base of the wall and the floor slab was caulked; and
- Two (2) layers of Blue Max elastomeric rubberized coating manufactured by Ames Research Laboratories, Inc. (www.amesresearch.com) were applied to create a vapor barrier. Product specifications and a Material Safety Data Sheet are included in **Appendix E**.



5.0 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Additional remedial actions taken at the Site have resulted in the following:

- All accessible contaminated soil beneath the basement slab has been removed;
- The permeability of the subsurface was enhanced by removing contaminated soil beneath part of the basement and replacing it with pea gravel. This allowed for cost effective venting;
- The SSDS has induced negative pressure across the targeted portion of the basement floor slab, effectively mitigating vapor intrusion risk;
- Other potential sources of vapor intrusion, including the west concrete block wall and two (2) floor drains, have been addressed by cleaning and sealing; and
- Concentrations of CVOCs in the foundation water appear to be diminishing (see **Table 3**).

Residual CVOC impacts exist in foundation soil and groundwater that are not accessible. Therefore, according to WDNR regulations, continuing obligations will be necessary for case closure, including:

- 1. Maintenance of the engineered cover (i.e., the building and asphalt parking lot);
- 2. Operation and maintenance (O&M) of the SSDS;
- 3. Continued sampling and discharge of foundation water to the sanitary system under permit of the MMSD; and
- 4. GIS registry to indicate groundwater use restrictions and other institutional controls related to future site construction activities.

O&M Plans should be prepared to document inspections and maintenance activities related to the engineered cover and SSDS systems.



In addition, continued sampling of the sump water is required under the existing MMSD discharge permit. If CVOC concentrations in sump water continue to decrease, possible discharge to the storm sewer system under Wisconsin Pollution Discharge Elimination System (WPDES) permit should be evaluated.

Remediation of the Site has been completed to the extent practicable. There are no sensitive environmental receptors near the Site, and human health is adequately protected against risk of exposure to the remaining residual impacts. Therefore, case closure should be pursued.



TABLES

TABLE 1 BASEMENT SOIL SAMPLE ANALYTICAL RESULTS SUMMARY

Lloyd's Dry Cleaners Milwaukee, Wisconsin

trans-1,2-Dichloroethene cis-1,2-Dichloroethene Tetrachloroethene Trichloroethene n-Butylbenzene Vinyl Chloride Naphthalene Sample Sample Sample Depth Identification Date (feet) 3/6/2013 2 <14 <16 <10 <21 <8.8 <42 <11 6229-HB-1 3/6/2013 3 <13 <14 <9.5 <18 <8.0 <38 <10 3/6/2013 5.5 <15 <16 <11 <22 < 9.0 <43 <11 3/5/2013 1.5 <15 <16 <11 <22 <9.1 <43 <11 6229-HB-2 3/5/2013 3.5 <14 <15 <10 <21 <8.6 <41 <11 8 <22 3/5/2013 <14 <16 <11 < 9.0 <43 <11 3/6/2013 1.5 <16 <18 <12 <24 <9.9 <47 <12 6229-HB-3 3/6/2013 3 <14 <16 <10 <21 <8.7 <41 <11 3/6/2013 7.5 <13 <14 <9.5 <19 <8.0 <38 <9.9 3/8/2013 2 <15 <17 <23 20 J <12 <11 <45 6229-HB-4 3/8/2013 4 <14 <16 <10 <21 <8.7 <41 <11 3/8/2013 7.5 <14 <15 <10 <20 <8.5 <40 <11 6229-HB-5 11/2/2016 0.5-1.5 <54 79 <24 <10 278 J <86 <42 6229-HB-6 11/2/2016 0.5-1.5 <54 <42 21.7 J <24 17.9 J <87 <86 6229-HB-7 11/2/2016 0.5-1.5 <54 <42 340 34 J 49 <87 <86 6229-HB-8 11/2/2016 0.5-1.5 <54 <42 112 <24 32 234 J 91 J 6229-HB-9 11/2/2016 1-2 <54 <42 76 <24 58 <87 <86 6229-HB-10 11/2/2016 0.8-1.8 <54 <42 <21 <24 <10 <87 <86 6229-HB-11 11/2/2016 0.7-1.7 69 J <42 4,100 107 203 <86 <87 Residual Contaminant Level -145,000 8,410 2,340,000 1,850,000 2,080 24,100 108,000 Industrial **Residual Contaminant Level -**33.000 1.300 156.000 1.560.000 67 5.520 108.000 **Non-Industrial Residual Contaminant Level -**4.5 41.2 62.6 0.1 658.2 3.6 NE Soil to Groundwater

Notes:

Samples analyzed using EPA SW-846 Method 8260 with Prep Method 5030

All concentrations reported in micrograms per kilogram (μ g/kg)

Bolded values are above method detection limits

Bolded and blue shaded values exceed the Soil to Groundwater Residual Contaminant Level

Bolded and green shaded green values exceed the Non-Industrial Residual Contaminant Level **Bolded** and orange shaded orange values exceed the Industrial Residual Contaminant Level

J = Analyte concentration is above the method detection limit and below the reporting limit



TABLE 2SUB-SLAB VAPOR SAMPLE ANALYTICAL RESULTS SUMMARY

Lloyd's Cleaners Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Sample Location	Sample Identification	Sample Date	Tetrachloroethene	Trichloroethene	cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	Vinyl Chloride	Benzene	Chloroform	Ethylbezene	1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene
	6229-SSV-1	2/6/2013	42.1	8.65	<19.8	<39.6	<1.28	9.81	0.83	10.9	8.26
Slab on Grade Coin Laundry	6229-SSV-2	2/6/2013	4.88	<1.07	<19.8	<39.6	<1.28	<1.60	< 0.83	<8.68	<4.92
Com Launary	6229-SSV-3	2/6/2013	57.9	<1.07	<19.8	<39.6	<1.28	1.60	0.83	<8.68	<4.92
	6229-SSV-4	7/22/2014	38.7	<10.7	<198	<396	<12.8	<16.0	<8.30	<86.8	<49.2
		1/9/2015	<31.9	<10.7	<198	<396	<12.8	NA	NA	NA	NA
Slab on Grade	6229-SSV-5	7/22/2014	1,640	56.4	<198	<396	<12.8	<16.0	<8.30	<86.8	<49.2
Drop Off		1/9/2015	1,610	<10.7	<198	<396	<12.8	NA	NA	NA	NA
-	6220 SSV 6	7/22/2014	1,790	25.8	<198	<396	<12.8	<16.0	<8.30	<86.8	<49.2
	0229-33 V-0	1/9/2015	343	11.8	<198	<396	<12.8	NA	NA	NA	NA
	6229-SSV-7	7/22/2014	165	501	21,000	1,130	20,500	<16.0	<8.30	<86.8	<49.2
Decement	6229-SSV-8	7/22/2014	998	151	5,200	<396	9,730	<16.0	<8.30	<86.8	<49.2
Dasement	6229-SSV-11	3/2/2017	19,000	303	1,510	<39.6	130	NA	NA	NA	NA
	6229-SSV-12	3/2/2017	2,180	365	1,810	<39.6	47.5	NA	NA	NA	NA
Small Commercial Vapor Risk Screening Level ¹		6,000	290	NE	NE	930	530	180	1,600	1,000	

Notes:

¹ The Vapor Risk Screeing Level was calcuated according to the procedures described in WDNR Publication RR-800 including an attenuation factor of 0.03 for sub-slab vapor samples and a 0.1 adjustment for 1 x 10⁻⁵ lifetime cancer risk for carcinogens

All concentrations reported in units of micrograms per cubic meter ($\mu g/m^3$)

Bolded values are above method detection limits

Bolded and orange shaded values exceed the Vapor Risk Screening Level

NA = Not Analyzed

NE = Not Established



TABLE 3SUMP SAMPLE ANALYTICAL RESULTS SUMMARY

Lloyd's Dry Cleaners Milwaukee, Wisconsin

					VOCs (ug/L)							
Sample Identification	Remediation Status	Sample Date	Tetrachloroethene	Trichloroethene	cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	Vinyl Chloride	Toluene	Chloromethane	Oil and Grease	Total Suspended Solids	
6229-SUMP-W	Pre-Interim Action	7/26/2011	309	10.5	12.1	< 0.89	< 0.18	<0.67	< 0.24	NS	NS	
6229-SUMP-1	Pre-Interim Action	3/5/2013	340	9.3	18	< 0.25	< 0.10	< 0.54	4.5	NS	NS	
6229-SUMP-4/14	Post-Interim Action	4/28/2014	98	2.37	7.8	< 0.35	0.78	<0.69	< 0.81	NS	NS	
6229-SUMP	Post-Interim Action	5/15/2014	86	3.5	14.6	< 0.35	1.47	<0.69	< 0.81	< 0.99	<4	
6229-SUMP 6/2	Post-Interim Action	6/2/2014	92	4.9	18.4	< 0.35	0.33 J	<0.69	< 0.81	<1.98	26	
6229-SUMP 6/18	Post-Interim Action	6/18/2014	155	4.4	8.3	< 0.35	0.34 J	<0.69	< 0.81	< 0.99	120	
6229-SUMP	Post-Interim Action	7/22/2014	64	4.5	45	0.53 J	< 0.18	<0.69	< 0.81	< 0.99	<4	
6229-SUMP	Post-Interim Action	10/15/2014	120	6.2	17.5	< 0.35	< 0.18					
6229-SUMP	Post-Interim Action	1/7/2015	19.6	1.94	17.6	< 0.54	< 0.17					
6229-SUMP	Post-Interim Action	4/11/2015	104	3.2	9.4	< 0.54	< 0.17	< 0.44	<1.9			
6229-SUMP	Post-Interim Action	10/1/2015	38	1.89	9.5	< 0.54	< 0.17	< 0.44	<1.9			
6229-SUMP	Post-Interim Action	4/1/2016	64	2.15	5.3	< 0.54	< 0.17					
6229-SUMP	Post-Interim Action	10/4/2016	49	7.8	18.4	< 0.54	< 0.17	0.76 J	<1.9			
6229-SUMP	Post-Remediation	4/7/2017	14	< 0.45	0.68 J	< 0.35	< 0.19	<0.67	<1.3			
6229-SUMP	Post-Remediation	6/14/2017	1.52	<0.45	<0.41	< 0.35	<0.19	<0.67	<1.3			
Public Health Enforcement Standard (ug/L)			5	5	70	100	0.2	800	30	NA	NA	
Public Health Preve	entive Action Limit (ug/	L)	0.5	0.5	7	20	0.02	160	3	NA	NA	
MMSD Do not exceed limit (mg/L)			NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	NA	300	100	

Notes:

 $\mu g/L = micrograms per liter$

mg/L = milligrams per liter

-- = Not Analyzed

J = Analyte concentration is above the method detection limit and below the reporting limit

MMSD = Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage District

NA = Not Applicable

Bolded values are above method detection limits
Bolded and orange shaded values exceed the Enforcement Standard
Bolded and blue shaded values exceed the Preventive Action Limit
Bolded and green shaded values exceed the MMSD Do not exceed limit





FIGURES












Legend



Floor drain Partial basement HB-1 • Sub-slab investigation location

	C			
Analyte	Soil to Groundwater Residual Contaminant Level	Residential Residual Contaminant Level	Industrial Residua Contaminant Leve	
PCE	4.5	30,700	153,000	
TCE	3.6	644	8,810	
cis-1,2-DCE	41.2	156,000	2,400,000	
trans-1,2-DCE	58.8	211,000	976,000	
Vinyl Chloride	0.1	67	2,030	

Note:

- 2. Bolded values are above detection limits
- 3. J = Analyte concentration less that laboratory detection limits
- Samples analyzed using EPA SW-846 Method 8260 4.
- 5. All results reported in units of micrograms per kilogram (μ g/kg)
- PCE = Tetrachloroethene 6.
- 7. TCE = Trichloroethene
- 8. cis-1,2-DCE = cis-1,2-Dichloroethene
- 9. trans-1,2-DCE = trans-1,2-Dichloroethene
- 10. CVOCs = Chlorinated Violate Organic Compounds
- 11. ND = Not detected



^{1.} Bolded and blue shaded values exceed the Soil to Groundwater Residual Contaminant Level



	Legend	
	Concrete	
	Stone Fill	
	Pea Gravel	
	Clay - Brown	
	Not To Scale	
	BASEMENT COLLECTION TREN LAYOUT DETAIL	CH AND SSDS
	Llovd's Cleaners	
	4837 N. Teutonia Avenu	ie
	Milwaukee, WI	
4/4/17	ENVIRO Grensics	Figure
EB		5
BK	ENVIRONMENTAL FORENSIC INVESTIGATIONS, INC.	Project
-0433	EnviroForensics.com	6229



Legend

	Property boundary
GAS	Underground gas utility line
WTR	Underground water utility line
UGT	Fiber optic utility line
SAN	Sanitary sewer utility line
STM	Storm sewer utility line
	Previous excavation area
M	Sanitary sewer manhole
F	Fire Hydrant

Direct-push / Soil Gas boring location DP-15/SG-1 🗿

SSV-1 \bigotimes Sub-slab vapor location

Analytes	Soil Gas Vapor Risk Screening Level
PCE	18,000
TCE	880
Benzene	1,600
Chloroform	530
1,2,4-TMB	NE
N-Heptane	NE

Notes:

- Bold, shaded orange values exceed Vapor Risk Screening Levels 1.
- Bolded values are above detection limits 2.
- 3. Results reported in micrograms per cubic meter = ug/m3
- PCE = Tectrachloroethene 4
- TCE = Trichloroethene 5.
- 1,2,4-TMB = 1,2,4-Trimethytlbenzene 6.
- VOCs = Volatile Organic Compounds
- ND = Not detectedNE = Not Established10. 11

Sub-slab vapor					
	Small Commercial				
Analyte	Vapor Risk				
	Screening Level 1				
PCE	6,000				
TCE	290				
cis-1,2-DCE	NE				
trans-1,2-DCE	NE				
Vinyl Chloride	930				
Benzene	530				
Chloroform	180				
Ethylbenzene	1,600				
1,2,4-TMB	1,000				

Note

Gras

- 1 Bolded and shaded values exceed Small Commercial Vapor Risk Screening Levels
- All results reported in micrograms per cubic meter (ug/m3) 2.
- 3. 1 = Vapor Risk Screening Levels are based on U.S. E.P.A.'s Regional Screening Levels (RSL's) for industrial indoor air with an attenuation factor of 0.1 for sub-slab samples a 0.1 adjustment for $1 \ge 10-5$ lifetime cancer risk for carcinogens 4. cis-1,2-DCE = cis-1,2-Dichloroethene
- trans-1,2-DCE = trans,1,2-Dichloroethene 5.
- 6. 1,2,4-TMB = 1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene

	SOIL GAS AND SUB-SLAB VAPOR . RESULTS	ANALYTICAL							
	Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 N. Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI								
21/17		Figure							
EB	ENVIRO Ferisics	6							
EB									
WF	ENVIRONMENTAL FORENSIC INVESTIGATIONS, INC.	Project							
-0683	825 North Capitol Avenue Indianapolis, IN 46204 EnviroForensics.com	6229							





APPENDIX A

Soil Laboratory Analytical Report

Synergy Environmental Lab, INC.

1990 Prospect Ct., Appleton, WI 54914 *P 920-830-2455 * F 920-733-0631

WAYNE FASSBENDER ENVIROFORENSICS 825 N. CAPITOL AVENUE INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46204

Report Date 09-Nov-16

=

Project Name L Project # 6	LOYD'S C 229 PO#20	CLEANERS Invoice # E32020 016234											
Lab Code Sample ID Sample Matrix Sample Date	5032020A 6229 HB-5 Soil 11/2/2016	0.5-1.5											
		Result	Unit	LOD	LOQ D	Dil	Method	Ext Date	Run Date	Analyst	Code		
General													
General													
		71.0	07			1	5021		11/4/2016	TOO	1		
Solids Percent		/1.0	%0			1	5021		11/4/2016	ICC	1		
Organic													
VOC's													
Benzene		< 0.016	mg/kg	0.016	0.049	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
Bromobenzene		< 0.039	mg/kg	0.039	0.12	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
Bromodichlorometh	ane	< 0.015	mg/kg	0.015	0.048	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
Bromoform		< 0.023	mg/kg	0.023	0.073	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
tert-Butylbenzene		< 0.035	mg/kg	0.035	0.11	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
sec-Butylbenzene		< 0.036	mg/kg	0.036	0.11	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
n-Butylbenzene		< 0.086	mg/kg	0.086	0.27	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
Carbon Tetrachlorid	e	< 0.021	mg/kg	0.021	0.067	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
Chlorobenzene		< 0.039	mg/kg	0.039	0.12	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
Chloroethane		< 0.045	mg/kg	0.045	0.14	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
Chloroform		< 0.026	mg/kg	0.026	0.081	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
Chloromethane		< 0.25	mg/kg	0.25	0.78	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
2-Chlorotoluene		< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.093	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
4-Chlorotoluene		< 0.032	mg/kg	0.032	0.1	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
1,2-Dibromo-3-chlor	ropropane	< 0.078	mg/kg	0.078	0.25	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
Dibromochlorometh	ane	< 0.031	mg/kg	0.031	0.098	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
1,4-Dichlorobenzene	e	< 0.03	mg/kg	0.03	0.096	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
1,3-Dichlorobenzene	e	< 0.03	mg/kg	0.03	0.097	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
1,2-Dichlorobenzene	e	< 0.039	mg/kg	0.039	0.12	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
Dichlorodifluoromet	hane	< 0.043	mg/kg	0.043	0.14	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
1,2-Dichloroethane		< 0.03	mg/kg	0.03	0.096	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
1,1-Dichloroethane		< 0.025	mg/kg	0.025	0.079	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
1,1-Dichloroethene		< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.093	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
cis-1,2-Dichloroethe	ene	0.079	mg/kg	0.021	0.068	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
trans-1,2-Dichloroet	hene	< 0.024	mg/kg	0.024	0.076	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
1,2-Dichloropropane	e	< 0.025	mg/kg	0.025	0.078	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
2,2-Dichloropropane	e	< 0.1	mg/kg	0.1	0.33	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
1,3-Dichloropropane	2	< 0.031	mg/kg	0.031	0.097	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		
Di-isopropyl ether		< 0.012	mg/kg	0.012	0.04	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1		

Project Name LLOYD'S CLEANERS

Project # 6229 PO#2016234

Lab Code	5032020A
Sample ID	6229 HB-5 0.5-1.5

11/2/2016

Sample	Matrix	Soil
Sample	TATCOULT	2011

Sample Date

	Result	Unit	LOD	LOQ	Dil	Method	Ext Date	Run Date	Analyst	Code
EDB (1,2-Dibromoethane)	< 0.035	mg/kg	0.035	0.11	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Ethylbenzene	< 0.027	mg/kg	0.027	0.086	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Hexachlorobutadiene	< 0.11	mg/kg	0.11	0.36	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Isopropylbenzene	< 0.037	mg/kg	0.037	0.12	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
p-Isopropyltoluene	< 0.056	mg/kg	0.056	0.18	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Methylene chloride	< 0.22	mg/kg	0.22	0.7	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Methyl tert-butyl ether (MTBE)	< 0.025	mg/kg	0.025	0.078	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Naphthalene	0.278 "J"	mg/kg	0.087	0.28	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
n-Propylbenzene	< 0.035	mg/kg	0.035	0.11	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane	< 0.013	mg/kg	0.013	0.04	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane	< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.093	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Tetrachloroethene	< 0.054	mg/kg	0.054	0.17	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Toluene	< 0.031	mg/kg	0.031	0.099	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene	< 0.085	mg/kg	0.085	0.27	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene	< 0.12	mg/kg	0.12	0.38	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,1,1-Trichloroethane	< 0.04	mg/kg	0.04	0.13	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,1,2-Trichloroethane	< 0.033	mg/kg	0.033	0.11	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Trichloroethene (TCE)	< 0.042	mg/kg	0.042	0.13	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Trichlorofluoromethane	< 0.06	mg/kg	0.06	0.19	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene	< 0.078	mg/kg	0.078	0.25	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene	< 0.089	mg/kg	0.089	0.28	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Vinyl Chloride	< 0.01	mg/kg	0.01	0.031	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
m&p-Xylene	< 0.07	mg/kg	0.07	0.22	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
o-Xylene	< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.092	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
SUR - 1,2-Dichloroethane-d4	110	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
SUR - 4-Bromofluorobenzene	88	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
SUR - Dibromofluoromethane	108	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
SUR - Toluene-d8	95	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1

Project NameLLOYD'S CLEANERSProject #6229 PO#2016234					Invoice # E32020					
Lab Code 50320 Sample ID 6229 Sample Matrix Soil Sample Date 11/2/2	020B HB-6 0.5-1.5 2016									
	Result	Unit	LOD	LOQ	Dil	Method	Ext Date	Run Date	Analyst	Code
General										
General										
Solids Percent	71.2	%			1	5021		11/4/2016	TCC	1
Organic										
VOC's										
Benzene	< 0.016	mg/kg	0.016	0.049	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Bromobenzene	< 0.039	mg/kg	0.039	0.12	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Bromodichloromethane	< 0.015	mg/kg	0.015	0.048	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Bromoform	< 0.023	mg/kg	0.023	0.073	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
tert-Butylbenzene	< 0.035	mg/kg	0.035	0.11	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
n-Butylbenzene	< 0.036	mg/kg	0.030	0.11	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Carbon Tetrachloride	< 0.021	mg/kg	0.021	0.067	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Chlorobenzene	< 0.039	mg/kg	0.039	0.12	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Chloroethane	< 0.045	mg/kg	0.045	0.14	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Chloroform	< 0.026	mg/kg	0.026	0.081	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Chloromethane	< 0.25	mg/kg	0.25	0.78	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
2-Chlorotoluene	< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.093	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
1 2-Dibromo-3-chloropropa	< 0.032	mg/kg	0.032	0.1	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Dibromochloromethane	< 0.031	mg/kg	0.031	0.098	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,4-Dichlorobenzene	< 0.03	mg/kg	0.03	0.096	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,3-Dichlorobenzene	< 0.03	mg/kg	0.03	0.097	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2-Dichlorobenzene	< 0.039	mg/kg	0.039	0.12	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Dichlorodifluoromethane	< 0.043	mg/kg	0.043	0.14	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2-Dichloroethane	< 0.03	mg/kg	0.03	0.096	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
1 1-Dichloroethene	< 0.023	mg/kg	0.023	0.079	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	0.0217 "J"	mg/kg	0.021	0.068	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	< 0.024	mg/kg	0.024	0.076	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2-Dichloropropane	< 0.025	mg/kg	0.025	0.078	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
2,2-Dichloropropane	< 0.1	mg/kg	0.1	0.33	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,3-Dichloropropane	< 0.031	mg/kg	0.031	0.097	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
D1-1sopropyl ether FDB (1.2-Dibromoethane)	< 0.012	mg/kg	0.012	0.04	· 1	8260B 8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Ebb (1,2-Dibioinocinane) Ethylbenzene	< 0.027	mg/kg	0.033	0.086	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Hexachlorobutadiene	< 0.11	mg/kg	0.11	0.36	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Isopropylbenzene	< 0.037	mg/kg	0.037	0.12	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
p-Isopropyltoluene	< 0.056	mg/kg	0.056	0.18	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Methylene chloride	< 0.22	mg/kg	0.22	0.7	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Methyl tert-butyl ether (MT	BE) < 0.025	mg/kg	0.025	0.078	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
n-Propylbenzene	< 0.087	mg/kg	0.087	0.28	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroethane	< 0.013	mg/kg	0.013	0.04	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroethane	< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.093	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Tetrachloroethene	< 0.054	mg/kg	0.054	0.17	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Toluene	< 0.031	mg/kg	0.031	0.099	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene	< 0.085	mg/kg	0.085	0.27	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2,3-1richloroethane	< 0.12	mg/kg	0.12	0.38	1	8260B 8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
1.1.2-Trichloroethane	< 0.04	mg/kg mg/kg	0.04	0.13	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Trichloroethene (TCE)	< 0.042	mg/kg	0.042	0.13	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Trichlorofluoromethane	< 0.06	mg/kg	0.06	0.19	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene	< 0.078	mg/kg	0.078	0.25	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene	< 0.089	mg/kg	0.089	0.28	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Vinyl Chloride	0.0179 "J"	mg/kg	0.01	0.031	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
m&p-Xylene	< 0.07	mg/kg	0.07	0.22	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
o-Ayiene	< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.092	1	8200B		11/8/2016	CJK	1

Project Name Proiect #	LLOYD'S 0 6229 PO#2	CLEANERS 016234					Invo	bice # E3202	20		
Lab Code Sample ID Sample Matrix Sample Date	5032020E 6229 HB- x Soil 11/2/2016	3 -6 0.5-1.5 5									
		Result	Unit	LOD	LOQ	Dil	Method	Ext Date	Run Date	Analyst	Code
SUR - 1,2-Dichlo	proethane-d4	112	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
SUR - Toluene-d	8	93	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
SUR - 4-Bromofl	uorobenzene	94	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
SUR - Dibromofl	uoromethane	120	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1

Project Name Ll Proiect # 62	LOYD'S CI 29 PO#201	LEANERS 16234					Invo	bice # E3202	20		
Lab Code Sample ID Sample Matrix Sample Date	5032020C 6229 HB-7 Soil 11/2/2016	0.5-1.5									
		Result	Unit	LOD	LOQ	Dil	Method	Ext Date	Run Date	Analyst	Code
General											
General											
Solids Percent		73.5	%			1	5021		11/4/2016	TCC	1
Organic											
VOC's											
Benzene		< 0.016	mg/kg	0.016	0.049	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Bromobenzene	na	< 0.039	mg/kg	0.039	0.12		8260B 8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Bromoform	iic	< 0.013	mg/kg	0.013	0.048	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
tert-Butvlbenzene		< 0.025	mg/kg	0.025	0.11	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
sec-Butylbenzene		< 0.036	mg/kg	0.036	0.11	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
n-Butylbenzene		< 0.086	mg/kg	0.086	0.27	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Carbon Tetrachloride	;	< 0.021	mg/kg	0.021	0.067	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Chlorobenzene		< 0.039	mg/kg	0.039	0.12	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Chloroethane		< 0.045	mg/kg	0.045	0.14	- 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Chloroform		< 0.026	mg/kg	0.026	0.081	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Chloromethane		< 0.25	mg/kg	0.25	0.78	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
2-Chlorotoluene		< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.093	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
4-Chlorololuene	opropaga	< 0.032	mg/kg mg/kg	0.032	0.1	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Dibromochlorometha	ne	< 0.078	mg/kg	0.078	0.23	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
1.4-Dichlorobenzene	ine	< 0.031	mg/kg	0.031	0.096	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,3-Dichlorobenzene		< 0.03	mg/kg	0.03	0.097	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2-Dichlorobenzene		< 0.039	mg/kg	0.039	0.12	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Dichlorodifluorometh	nane	< 0.043	mg/kg	0.043	0.14	- 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2-Dichloroethane		< 0.03	mg/kg	0.03	0.096	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,1-Dichloroethane		< 0.025	mg/kg	0.025	0.079	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,1-Dichloroethene		< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.093	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
cis-1,2-Dichloroether	ne	0.34	mg/kg	0.021	0.068		8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1.2 Dichloropropaga	iene	0.034 "J"	mg/kg	0.024	0.076		8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
2 2-Dichloropropane		< 0.025	mg/kg	0.023	0.078	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
1.3-Dichloropropane		< 0.031	mg/kg	0.031	0.097	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Di-isopropyl ether		< 0.012	mg/kg	0.012	0.04	. 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
EDB (1,2-Dibromoet	hane)	< 0.035	mg/kg	0.035	0.11	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Ethylbenzene		< 0.027	mg/kg	0.027	0.086	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Hexachlorobutadiene		< 0.11	mg/kg	0.11	0.36	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Isopropylbenzene		< 0.037	mg/kg	0.037	0.12	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
p-Isopropyltoluene		< 0.056	mg/kg	0.056	0.18	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Methylene chloride		< 0.22	mg/kg	0.22	0.7		8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Nonhthalana	er (MIBE)	< 0.025	mg/kg	0.025	0.078		8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
n-Propylbenzene		< 0.037	mg/kg	0.035	0.20	1	8260B 8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroet	hane	< 0.013	mg/kg	0.013	0.04	. 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroet	hane	< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.093	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Tetrachloroethene		< 0.054	mg/kg	0.054	0.17	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Toluene		< 0.031	mg/kg	0.031	0.099	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2,4-Trichlorobenze	ne	< 0.085	mg/kg	0.085	0.27	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2,3-Trichlorobenze	ne	< 0.12	mg/kg	0.12	0.38	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,1,1-Trichloroethane	e	< 0.04	mg/kg	0.04	0.13	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,1,2-Trichloroethane	2)	< 0.033	mg/kg	0.033	0.11	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Trichlorofluoromethe	E)	< 0.042	mg/kg	0.042	0.13		8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
1.2.4-Trimethylbenze	ene	< 0.00	mg/kg mg/kg	0.00	0.19	1	8260B		11/8/2010	CIR	1
1.3.5-Trimethylbenze	ene	< 0.089	mg/kg	0.089	0.28	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Vinyl Chloride		0.049	mg/kg	0.01	0.031	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
m&p-Xylene		< 0.07	mg/kg	0.07	0.22	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
o-Xylene		< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.092	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1

Project Name Proiect #	LLOYD'S C 6229 PO#20	CLEANERS 016234					Invoi	ice # E3202	20		
Lab Code Sample ID Sample Matrix Sample Date	5032020C 6229 HB- x Soil 11/2/2016	7 0.5-1.5									
		Result	Unit	LOD	LOQ	Dil	Method	Ext Date	Run Date	Analyst	Code
SUR - 1,2-Dichlo	proethane-d4	120	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
SUR - 4-Bromofl	uorobenzene	88	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
SUR - Dibromofl	uoromethane	119	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
SUR - Toluene-da	8	92	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1

Project NameLLProject #62	LOYD'S CL 29 PO#201	LEANERS 6234					Invo	bice # E3202	20		
Lab Code5Sample ID6Sample Matrix5Sample Date1	5032020D 5229 HB-8 Soil 11/2/2016	0.5-1.5									
		Result	Unit	LOD	LOQ	Dil	Method	Ext Date	Run Date	Analyst	Code
General											
General											
Solids Percent		73.5	%			1	5021		11/4/2016	TCC	1
Organic											
VOC's											
Benzene		< 0.016	ma/ka	0.016	0.049) 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Bromobenzene		< 0.010	mg/kg	0.010	0.12	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Bromodichlorometha	ne	< 0.015	mg/kg	0.015	0.048	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Bromoform		< 0.023	mg/kg	0.023	0.073	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
tert-Butylbenzene		< 0.035	mg/kg	0.035	0.11	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
sec-Butylbenzene		< 0.036	mg/kg	0.036	0.11	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
n-Butylbenzene		0.091 "J"	mg/kg	0.086	0.27		8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Chlorobenzene		< 0.021	mg/kg mg/kg	0.021	0.067	1	8260B 8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Chloroethane		< 0.045	mg/kg	0.045	0.12	. 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Chloroform		< 0.026	mg/kg	0.026	0.081	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Chloromethane		< 0.25	mg/kg	0.25	0.78	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
2-Chlorotoluene		< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.093	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
4-Chlorotoluene		< 0.032	mg/kg	0.032	0.1	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2-Dibromo-3-chloro	opropane	< 0.0/8	mg/kg	0.078	0.25		8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1 4-Dichlorobenzene	lie	< 0.031	mg/kg	0.031	0.098	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
1,3-Dichlorobenzene		< 0.03	mg/kg	0.03	0.097	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2-Dichlorobenzene		< 0.039	mg/kg	0.039	0.12	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Dichlorodifluorometh	ane	< 0.043	mg/kg	0.043	0.14	- 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2-Dichloroethane		< 0.03	mg/kg	0.03	0.096	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,1-Dichloroethane		< 0.025	mg/kg	0.025	0.079	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,1-Dichloroethene	0	< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.093	1	8260B 8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
trans-1.2-Dichloroeth	ene	< 0.024	mg/kg	0.021	0.008	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2-Dichloropropane	ciic	< 0.025	mg/kg	0.025	0.078	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
2,2-Dichloropropane		< 0.1	mg/kg	0.1	0.33	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,3-Dichloropropane		< 0.031	mg/kg	0.031	0.097	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Di-isopropyl ether		< 0.012	mg/kg	0.012	0.04	- 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
EDB (1,2-Dibromoeth	hane)	< 0.035	mg/kg	0.035	0.11	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Ethylbenzene		< 0.027	mg/kg mg/kg	0.027	0.086		8260B 8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Isopropylbenzene		< 0.037	mg/kg	0.037	0.12	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
p-Isopropyltoluene		< 0.056	mg/kg	0.056	0.18	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Methylene chloride		< 0.22	mg/kg	0.22	0.7	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Methyl tert-butyl ethe	r (MTBE)	< 0.025	mg/kg	0.025	0.078	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Naphthalene		0.234 "J"	mg/kg	0.087	0.28	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
n-Propylbenzene		< 0.035	mg/kg	0.035	0.11	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroeth	nane	< 0.013	mg/kg	0.013	0.04	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Tetrachloroethene	luite	< 0.054	mg/kg	0.054	0.17	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Toluene		< 0.031	mg/kg	0.031	0.099	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2,4-Trichlorobenzer	ne	< 0.085	mg/kg	0.085	0.27	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2,3-Trichlorobenzer	ne	< 0.12	mg/kg	0.12	0.38	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,1,1-Trichloroethane	;	< 0.04	mg/kg	0.04	0.13	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,1,2-1richloroethane		< 0.033	mg/kg	0.033	0.11	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Trichlorofluorometha	ne	< 0.042	mg/kg mg/kg	0.042	0.13	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
1,2,4-Trimethylbenzer	ne	< 0.078	mg/kg	0.078	0.25	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,3,5-Trimethylbenzer	ne	< 0.089	mg/kg	0.089	0.28	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Vinyl Chloride		0.032	mg/kg	0.01	0.031	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
m&p-Xylene		< 0.07	mg/kg	0.07	0.22	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
o-Xylene		< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.092	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1

Project Name Proiect #	LLOYD'S C 6229 PO#20	CLEANERS 016234					Invoi	ice # E3202	20		
Lab Code Sample ID Sample Matrix Sample Date	5032020E 6229 HB- x Soil 11/2/2016) 8 0.5-1.5									
		Result	Unit	LOD	LOQ	Dil	Method	Ext Date	Run Date	Analyst	Code
SUR - Toluene-d	8	96	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
SUR - Dibromofl	uoromethane	115	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
SUR - 4-Bromofl	uorobenzene	96	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
SUR - 1,2-Dichlo	proethane-d4	110	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1

Project NameLLOProiect #622	OYD'S CL 9 PO#201	EANERS 6234					Invo	bice # E3202	20		
Lab Code50Sample ID62Sample MatrixSoSample Date11	032020E 229 HB-9 oil 1/2/2016	1-2									
		Result	Unit	LOD	LOQ	Dil	Method	Ext Date	Run Date	Analyst	Code
General											
General											
Solids Percent		79.2	%			1	5021		11/4/2016	TCC	1
Organic											
VOC's											
Benzene		< 0.016	mg/kg	0.016	0.049) 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Bromobenzene		< 0.039	mg/kg	0.039	0.12	. 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Bromodichloromethane	e	< 0.015	mg/kg	0.015	0.048	3 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Bromoform		< 0.023	mg/kg	0.023	0.073	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
tert-Butylbenzene		< 0.035	mg/kg	0.035	0.11	. 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
sec-Butylbenzene		< 0.036	mg/kg	0.036	0.11	. I / 1	8260B 8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Carbon Tetrachloride		< 0.080	mg/kg	0.080	0.27	1	8260B 8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Chlorobenzene		< 0.039	mg/kg	0.039	0.12	2 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Chloroethane		< 0.045	mg/kg	0.045	0.14	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Chloroform		< 0.026	mg/kg	0.026	0.081	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Chloromethane		< 0.25	mg/kg	0.25	0.78	8 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
2-Chlorotoluene		< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.093	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
4-Chlorotoluene	ronono	< 0.032	mg/kg	0.032	0.1	. I	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Dibromochloromethane		< 0.078	mg/kg	0.078	0.23	, 1 1	8260B 8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
1,4-Dichlorobenzene	-	< 0.03	mg/kg	0.03	0.096	5 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,3-Dichlorobenzene		< 0.03	mg/kg	0.03	0.097	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2-Dichlorobenzene		< 0.039	mg/kg	0.039	0.12	. 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Dichlorodifluorometha	ne	< 0.043	mg/kg	0.043	0.14	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2-Dichloroethane		< 0.03	mg/kg	0.03	0.096	5 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,1-Dichloroethane		< 0.025	mg/kg	0.025	0.079	/ I	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
cis-1 2-Dichloroethene		0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.093	2 1	8260B 8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
trans-1,2-Dichloroether	ne	< 0.024	mg/kg	0.024	0.076	5 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2-Dichloropropane		< 0.025	mg/kg	0.025	0.078	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
2,2-Dichloropropane		< 0.1	mg/kg	0.1	0.33	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,3-Dichloropropane		< 0.031	mg/kg	0.031	0.097	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Di-isopropyl ether		< 0.012	mg/kg	0.012	0.04	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
EDB (1,2-Dibromoeina	ine)	< 0.035	mg/kg mg/kg	0.035	0.11	. I . 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Hexachlorobutadiene		< 0.11	mg/kg	0.027	0.36	, 1 5 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Isopropylbenzene		< 0.037	mg/kg	0.037	0.12	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
p-Isopropyltoluene		< 0.056	mg/kg	0.056	0.18	3 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Methylene chloride		< 0.22	mg/kg	0.22	0.7	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Methyl tert-butyl ether	(MTBE)	< 0.025	mg/kg	0.025	0.078	8 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
n Bronylhonzono		< 0.08 /	mg/kg	0.08/	0.28	5 I 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
1 1 2 2-Tetrachloroetha	ine	< 0.033	mg/kg	0.033	0.11	. 1 . 1	8260B 8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroetha	ine	< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.093	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Tetrachloroethene		< 0.054	mg/kg	0.054	0.17	· 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Toluene		< 0.031	mg/kg	0.031	0.099) 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene	;	< 0.085	mg/kg	0.085	0.27	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene	;	< 0.12	mg/kg	0.12	0.38	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,1,1-1richloroethane		< 0.04	mg/kg	0.04	0.13) [1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Trichloroethene (TCF)		< 0.033 < 0.042	mg/kg mg/kg	0.033	0.11	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Trichlorofluoromethand	e	< 0.06	mg/kg	0.06	0.19) 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2,4-Trimethylbenzene	e	< 0.078	mg/kg	0.078	0.25	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,3,5-Trimethylbenzene	e	< 0.089	mg/kg	0.089	0.28	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Vinyl Chloride		0.058	mg/kg	0.01	0.031	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
m&p-Xylene		< 0.07	mg/kg	0.07	0.22	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
o-Xylene		< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.092	2 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1

Project Name Proiect #	LLOYD'S C 6229 PO#20	ELEANERS 16234					Invoi	ice # E3202	20		
Lab Code Sample ID Sample Matrix Sample Date	5032020E 6229 HB-9 Soil 11/2/2016	9 1-2									
		Result	Unit	LOD	LOQ	Dil	Method	Ext Date	Run Date	Analyst	Code
SUR - 1,2-Dichlo	roethane-d4	105	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
SUR - 4-Bromofle	uorobenzene	90	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
SUR - Dibromofle	uoromethane	107	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
SUR - Toluene-d8	3	95	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1

Project Name LI Project # 62	LOYD'S CI 29 PO#20	LEANERS 16234					Invo	bice # E3202	20		
Lab Code Sample ID Sample Matrix Sample Date	5032020F 6229 HB-1 Soil 11/2/2016	0 0.8-1.8									
		Result	Unit	LOD	LOQ	Dil	Method	Ext Date	Run Date	Analyst	Code
General											
General											
Solids Percent		70.7	%			1	5021		11/4/2016	TCC	1
Organic											
VOC's											
Benzene		< 0.016	mg/kg	0.016	0.049) 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Bromobenzene		< 0.039	mg/kg	0.039	0.12	2 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Bromodichlorometha	ne	< 0.015	mg/kg	0.015	0.048	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Bromoform		< 0.023	mg/kg	0.023	0.073	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
tert-Butylbenzene		< 0.035	mg/kg	0.035	0.11	. 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
sec-Butylbenzene		< 0.036	mg/kg mg/kg	0.036	0.11	· 1	8260B 8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Carbon Tetrachloride		< 0.080	mg/kg	0.021	0.067	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Chlorobenzene		< 0.039	mg/kg	0.039	0.12	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Chloroethane		< 0.045	mg/kg	0.045	0.14	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Chloroform		< 0.026	mg/kg	0.026	0.081	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Chloromethane		< 0.25	mg/kg	0.25	0.78	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
2-Chlorotoluene		< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.093		8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1 2-Dibromo-3-chlore	opropane	< 0.032	mg/kg	0.032	0.1	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Dibromochlorometha	ne	< 0.031	mg/kg	0.031	0.098	8 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,4-Dichlorobenzene		< 0.03	mg/kg	0.03	0.096	5 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,3-Dichlorobenzene		< 0.03	mg/kg	0.03	0.097	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2-Dichlorobenzene		< 0.039	mg/kg	0.039	0.12	. 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Dichlorodifluorometh	nane	< 0.043	mg/kg	0.043	0.14	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2-Dichloroethane		< 0.03	mg/kg mg/kg	0.03	0.096) 1) 1	8260B 8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
1,1-Dichloroethene		< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.093	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
cis-1,2-Dichloroether	ne	< 0.021	mg/kg	0.021	0.068	8 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
trans-1,2-Dichloroeth	iene	< 0.024	mg/kg	0.024	0.076	5 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2-Dichloropropane		< 0.025	mg/kg	0.025	0.078	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
2,2-Dichloropropane		< 0.1	mg/kg	0.1	0.33	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,3-Dichloropropane		< 0.031	mg/kg	0.031	0.097		8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
EDB (1.2-Dibromoet	hane)	< 0.012	mg/kg	0.012	0.04	r 1 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Ethylbenzene		< 0.027	mg/kg	0.027	0.086	5 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Hexachlorobutadiene		< 0.11	mg/kg	0.11	0.36	5 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Isopropylbenzene		< 0.037	mg/kg	0.037	0.12	. 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
p-Isopropyltoluene		< 0.056	mg/kg	0.056	0.18	8 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Methylene chloride	(MTRF)	< 0.22	mg/kg	0.22	0.7		8260B 8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Naphthalene	n (MIBE)	< 0.023	mg/kg	0.023	0.078	, 1 , 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
n-Propylbenzene		< 0.035	mg/kg	0.035	0.11	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,1,2,2-Tetrachloroet	hane	< 0.013	mg/kg	0.013	0.04	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,1,1,2-Tetrachloroet	hane	< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.093	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Tetrachloroethene		< 0.054	mg/kg	0.054	0.17	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Toluene		< 0.031	mg/kg	0.031	0.099		8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2,4-Trichlorobenzei	ne	< 0.083	mg/kg	0.083	0.27	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
1,1,1-Trichloroethane		< 0.04	mg/kg	0.04	0.13	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,1,2-Trichloroethane	e	< 0.033	mg/kg	0.033	0.11	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Trichloroethene (TCH	E)	< 0.042	mg/kg	0.042	0.13	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Trichlorofluorometha	ine	< 0.06	mg/kg	0.06	0.19) 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2,4-Trimethylbenze	ene	< 0.078	mg/kg	0.078	0.25) 1) 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Vinyl Chloride	ane	< 0.089	mg/kg mg/kg	0.089	0.28) I 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
m&p-Xylene		< 0.07	mg/kg	0.07	0.22	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
o-Xylene		< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.092	. 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1

Project Name Proiect #	LLOYD'S C 6229 PO#20	CLEANERS 016234					Invo	ice # E3202	20		
Lab Code Sample ID Sample Matrix Sample Date	5032020F 6229 HB- x Soil 11/2/2016	10 0.8-1.8									
		Result	Unit	LOD	LOQ	Dil	Method	Ext Date	Run Date	Analyst	Code
SUR - 1,2-Dichlo	oroethane-d4	108	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
SUR - 4-Bromofl	uorobenzene	97	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
SUR - Dibromofl	uoromethane	113	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
SUR - Toluene-da	8	96	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1

Project Name Proiect #	LLOY 6229 I	D'S CL PO#201	EANERS 6234					Invo	oice # E3202	20		
Lab Code Sample ID Sample Matrix Sample Date	5032 6229 Soil 11/2	2020G 9 HB-11 /2016	1 0.7-1.7									
			Result	Unit	LOD	LOQ	Dil	Method	Ext Date	Run Date	Analyst	Code
General												
General												
Solids Percent			75.9	%			1	5021		11/4/2016	TCC	1
Organic												
VOC's												
Benzene			< 0.016	mg/kg	0.016	0.049) 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Bromobenzene			< 0.039	mg/kg	0.039	0.12	2 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Bromodichloromet	hane		< 0.015	mg/kg	0.015	0.048	3 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Bromoform			< 0.023	mg/kg	0.023	0.073		8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
sec-Butylbenzene			< 0.035	mg/kg	0.035	0.11	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
n-Butylbenzene			< 0.086	mg/kg	0.030	0.11	7 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Carbon Tetrachlori	de		< 0.021	mg/kg	0.021	0.067	7 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Chlorobenzene			< 0.039	mg/kg	0.039	0.12	2 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Chloroethane			< 0.045	mg/kg	0.045	0.14	4 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Chloroform			< 0.026	mg/kg	0.026	0.081		8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Chloromethane			< 0.25	mg/kg	0.25	0.78	5 I 2 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
2-Chlorotoluene			< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.093	> 1 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
1.2-Dibromo-3-chl	oropror	ane	< 0.032	mg/kg	0.078	0.25	5 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Dibromochloromet	hane		< 0.031	mg/kg	0.031	0.098	3 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,4-Dichlorobenzer	ne		< 0.03	mg/kg	0.03	0.096	5 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,3-Dichlorobenzer	ne		< 0.03	mg/kg	0.03	0.097	7 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2-Dichlorobenzer	ne		< 0.039	mg/kg	0.039	0.12	2 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1.2 Dichlorodifluorom	ethane		< 0.043	mg/kg	0.043	0.14	+ 1 5 1	8260B 8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
1,2-Dichloroethane	;		< 0.03	mg/kg	0.03	0.090) 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
1.1-Dichloroethene			< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.093	3 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
cis-1,2-Dichloroeth	nene		4.1	mg/kg	0.021	0.068	3 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
trans-1,2-Dichloroe	ethene		0.107	mg/kg	0.024	0.076	5 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2-Dichloropropa	ne		< 0.025	mg/kg	0.025	0.078	8 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
2,2-Dichloropropa	ne		< 0.1	mg/kg	0.1	0.33	3 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,3-Dichloropropa	ne		< 0.031	mg/kg	0.031	0.09	/ 1 1 1	8260B 8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
EDB (1.2-Dibrome	oethane)		< 0.012	mg/kg	0.012	0.11	• 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
Ethylbenzene	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,		< 0.027	mg/kg	0.027	0.086	5 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Hexachlorobutadie	ne		< 0.11	mg/kg	0.11	0.36	5 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Isopropylbenzene			< 0.037	mg/kg	0.037	0.12	2 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
p-Isopropyltoluene			< 0.056	mg/kg	0.056	0.18	3 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Methylene chloride	th on OM	TDE	< 0.22	mg/kg	0.22	0.7		8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Naphthalene	ther (M	IBE)	< 0.025	mg/kg mg/kg	0.025	0.078	8 I 8 I	8260B 8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
n-Propylbenzene			< 0.035	mg/kg	0.035	0.11	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,1,2,2-Tetrachloro	oethane		< 0.013	mg/kg	0.013	0.04	4 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,1,1,2-Tetrachloro	oethane		< 0.029	mg/kg	0.029	0.093	3 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Tetrachloroethene			0.069 "J"	mg/kg	0.054	0.17	7 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Toluene			< 0.031	mg/kg	0.031	0.099) 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2,4-1richloroben	zene		< 0.085	mg/kg	0.085	0.21	/ I	8260B 8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
1,2,3-1 richloroeth	ane		< 0.12 < 0.04	mg/kg mg/kg	0.12	0.38	5 I 3 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
1,1,2-Trichloroetha	ane		< 0.033	mg/kg	0.033	0.11	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Trichloroethene (T	CE)		< 0.042	mg/kg	0.042	0.13	3 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Trichlorofluoromet	hane		< 0.06	mg/kg	0.06	0.19) 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,2,4-Trimethylber	nzene		< 0.078	mg/kg	0.078	0.25	5 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
1,3,5-Trimethylber	nzene		< 0.089	mg/kg	0.089	0.28	3 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
Vinyl Chloride			0.203	mg/kg	0.01	0.031	1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
map-Aylene			< 0.07	mg/kg	0.07	0.22	2 I) 1	8260B		11/8/2016	CIR	1
0 11/10/10			- 0.027	111 <u>6</u> / Kg	0.029	0.072	- 1	02000		11/0/2010	Con	1

Project Name Proiect #	LLOYD'S C 6229 PO#20	ELEANERS 16234					Invo	ice # E3202	20		
Lab Code Sample ID Sample Matrix Sample Date	5032020G 6229 HB-1 x Soil 11/2/2016	11 0.7-1.7									
		Result	Unit	LOD	LOQ	Dil	Method	Ext Date	Run Date	Analyst	Code
SUR - Toluene-d	8	99	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
SUR - 1,2-Dichlo	proethane-d4	106	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
SUR - 4-Bromofl	uorobenzene	88	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
SUR - Dibromofl	uoromethane	106	Rec %			1	8260B		11/8/2016	CJR	1
"J" Flag:	Analyte detected	l between LOD a	nd LOQ]	LOD Lim	it of De	tection	LOQ Lii	mit of Quantita	ation	

Code Comment

1

Laboratory QC within limits.

All solid sample results reported on a dry weight basis unless otherwise indicated. All LOD's and LOQ's are adjusted for dilutions but not dry weight. Subcontracted results are denoted by SUB in the analyst field.

Authorized Signature

Michaelphil

Lab 10 -		1910000				5063	1		syr	ierg		y		0	Up,	A		Pag	ge _	1	of	1		~		
Account No. :			Quo	te No.:		312		nviro	nme	ntal l	La	ab	. 1	In	с.				Sa	mp	le ŀ	land	ling R	eque	st	
Proiect #: / 7	70						-	1000	Prosport C		14/1	540	14				(F	lush	Rus es a	ccep	naly	/sis [only w	Date R	equire or auth	ed orizati	on)
Sampler' (signature	"		-6	~			-	920)-830-2455	• FAX 920-7	33-	063	1						-	×	No	rmal	Turn	Aroun	d	
Project (Name / I	ocation):	Indi	11.		1-	11	1.	-			1		nalu	eie I	Real	este	L	-	-		_		Ot	per An	alveis	_
Benorts To:	Fessberg	es l	, cee	rers	Invo	ice To	arke	- Les				ſ	lineary		lequ						1	r r			ury sis	-
Company -	-	/K.Heim	isteod	A	Corr	inany																				
Addrees	rotorens	ils	-		Add	party					-								LIDS							
City Plate Zie	23390 5	tere Ridge	Dr., 1	Ste G	Aud	Ptete 7	1				95)	95)					ENE		OS C		R	3				
City State Zip	tubesh	awss	5818	8	City	State Z	ιþ				Sep	Sep	Ш			(F	HAL		NDEL) 12	S	Her				
Phone 317-9	72-78	70			Pho	ne			1		DRO	GRO	ITRI	ASE	8270	N 802	THA		SPE	8260	TAL	5				PID
FAX	10		47.550	72	FAX				0	T	pow	Mod	TEN	GRE	EPA	(EP/	+ NA	TE	SUS	EPA	AME	10				FID
Lab I.D.	Sam	ple I.D.	Colle Date	ection Time	Comp	Grab	Filtered Y/N	No. of Containers	Sample Type (Matrix)*	Preservation	DRO (I	GRO (NITRA	OIL & (PAH (E	PVOC	PVOC	SULFA	TOTAL	VOC	8-RCH	TUP				
320201 6	229-HB-	5-6.5-1.5) 1YZ	915		×	N	3	5	MeOH									-	×		×				
B 6	25-HB-6	6-6.5-1.5)	11/2	935		×	N	3	2	MeOH			-			-	-	-	-	×	-	×		-	-	
<u> </u>	27-HB-7	1-(05-1.5)	11/2	955		×	N	3	3	MeOH	-		-		-	-			-	×	-	×		++		
5 68	Ch-HB-8	(0.5-1.5)	1/2	1015	1	*	~	2	3	PleOH	-		-		+	-	-		-	×	-	<		-	-	
E G	229-113	-9-(1-2)	11/2	1050		*	N	2	20	MOH			+		-		1			×	-	×				
66	29-HB-11	-(0.7.1.7)	11/2	1205		×	N	3	S	MOH									+	×		X				
		Chiny	10	100 2																						
Comments/Sp Sample Integr	ecial Instru PO	Hold	becify	ground 34 ANC -	Water " TZLF	GW", [So Reli	Drinking V P nquished B	Vater "DW", W us for po by: (sign)	vaste Water	"WW", Soil "S" - (ara (y Time 10:25	', Aii	r "A", 'S Date	0il, ;	Rece	ved I	(c.)	ign)	Le	5 6	2,×0	e	ed	20 Tim 10 :	к л. е	-1e Date 11/3	, e //
Me Te Cooler seal in	thod of Sl mp. of Ter tact upon	hipment: mp. Blank , receipt:	Sm ~ ° X Ye:	C On I	ce: 🔀 No	Rec	eived in La	boratory By:	tento	J.R.	_						т	ime:	0	2:0	~		Date	: <u>Mu</u>		



APPENDIX B

Waste Disposal Manifests

Remedial Action Report Document: 6229-0970



NON-HAZARDOUS MANIFEST

-	NON-HAZARDOUS MANIFEST	1. Generator's US	EPA ID No.	Ma	anifest Doc	No.	2. Page 1	of			
	3. Generator's Mailing Address: Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 North Tutonia Avenue	G L 4	ienerator's Site A loyd's Cleane 837 North Tu	ddress (if d ers tonia Av	ifferent than m	ailing):	A. Manife W	st Number MNA	Generator's		
	Milwaukee Wi 53209 4. Generator's Phone (209) (890-9814	Ailwaukee WI	53209				D. State		\mathcal{L}	>
	5. Transporter 1 Company Name	00-0014	6.	US EPA ID) Number			ng sang ga	a pagas	5-5.85	n solate
							C. State T	ansporter's I	D		
	7. Transporter 2 Company Name		8		Number		D. Transp	orter's Phone			nie Statione
			0.	00 11 412	Muniper		E. State Tr	ansporter's II	D	([ang ang kapang kapan Kapang kapang
		• • • •					F. Transpo	orter's Phone	Maglia ana ph	a champel pp of	ek bir, abbe Seine'
	9. Designated Facility Name and Site Orchard Ridge RDF	Address	10.	US EPA	ID Number		G State E	ocility (D	a ganta shak	46885110	p.sp/27.e
	W124 N9355 Boundary Road						H. State F	acility Phone	262-25	3-8620	
	Menomonee Falls, WI 53051				933-940302			chob bete			
									ainte de la fra		
	11. Description of Waste Materials				12. Co No.	ntainers Type	13. Total Quantity	14. Unit Wt./Vol.	L.M	isc. Comme	nts
G	a. Dry Cleaning Solvent Impa	acted Soil									
E					เมืองคมพังหรายระบบเล	18-07-041-06-446-11-3076-11-3076-11-3076-1	Station Station 1000 See	renner i Frahanskali		1	
E	WM Profile # V126479WI										
R	b.										
T	W/88 Drofile #				5 12 Local						
0	C.				- 1971 (Berline) 	ay go a' a daal a'	lan bit nyé		No. 1977		
R								د			
	WM Profile #					i Casteri		an seet		961 (S. A.	
	d.										
ĺ			 and Reconstruction 		-						
	J. Additional Descriptions for Materi	als Listed Above			K. Dispos	al Location	80 . Statis juli	ga webberede	19 Laboration	Bernia.	
	BILL TO:				Cell				Level		
	15. Special Handling Instructions and	Additional Informat	ion		Unu	l,,					
	Dura have Order #										
	Purchase Order #		EMERG	SENCY CONT	ACT / PHONE	NO.:	Kyle Hei	imstead (2	09) 390-9	814	
	16. GENERATOR'S CERTIFICATE:										3
	I hereby certify that the above-describ	ed materials are no	t hazardous wast	es as defin	ed by CFR P	Part 261 or a	any applicable	e state law, ha	ave been fu	ily and	
	Printed Name	Corret	Signature	"On beha	If of"		pileable regu		Month	Day	Year
_	Agent at lient,	Schacht				rut	the	6	02	15	Zoil
T R	17. Transporter 1 Acknowledgement	of Receipt of Materi	ials	1	f						
A N S	Again Smat		Signature		P	\frown			Month C2	Day	rear 17
P	18. Transporter 2 Acknowledgement	of Receipt of Materi	ials 22		0-1	$\overline{}$				-1-	1
R	Printed Name		Signature	2					Month	Day	Year
e R											
	19. Certificate of Final Treatment/Dis	posal									
A C	I certify, on behalf of the above listed	treatment facility, the	hat to the best of	my knowle	edge, the at	oove-describ	oed waste w	as managed i	n compliand	e with al	1
i L	20. Facility Owner or Operator: Certif	fication of receipt of	non-hazardous n	naterials co	overed by the	nis manifect					
Ţ	Printed Name	in the second se	Signature	2	created by th				Month	Day	-year
ľ	X			\square					A	15	H

Customer Name ENVIROFO Ticket Date 02/15/20	Orchar W124 N Menomo Ph: (2 RENICS 1 17	d Ridge f 9355 Bour nee Falls 62) 253-8 ENVIRO FC	NDF Idary R 6. WI, 1 1620 RENSI (oad 53051 Carríer Jehirle&	MORAINENE	 Origina Ticket4 VIRONMENTAL MOR 	134660 1 1524567 AINE ENVIRON	49
Payment Type Credit Ad Manual Ticket# Hauling Ticket# Route State Waste Code A-24-(Manifest na Destination PO Profile V126479WI Generator 136-LLOYE	count)& (DRY C SCLEANE	CLEANING RS LLOYD	C E E SOLVENT S CLEAN	Container Driver Check# Billing # Ben EPA II Brid IMPACTED ERS	0004957) 501L)	1 Au Triwi	Ξ. 	annihit "I waa ka "alaa aa a" ka maa aa " ka maa aa " ka maa aa aa " ka maa aa aa a
Time In 02/15/2017 13:26:0 Dut 02/15/2017 13:40:1 Comments	Sc 7 In8 4 Out	ale Gound Bound	Ope jgin igin	rator dt dt	Inbe	rund Gross Taræ Net Tons	29840 1b 15380 15 14460 1b 7.23	
Product 1 Spwaste VOC-Tons-S 2 FUEL-Fuel Surcharg 3 EVF-L-Standard Env	LD% 100 100 100	Qty 7.23 1	UDM Tons % Load	Rate	Tax	Amount	Origin WI WI WI	
1 AA		>	20.1		1、清望 時間	Total Tax Total Ticket		

403WM-N

NON-HAZARDOUS MANIFEST	1. Generator's U	S EPA ID No.	Manifest Doo	c No.	2. Page	1 of	1	A 1. 100		
3. Generator's Mailing Address: Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 North Tutonia Avenue		Generator's Site Add Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 North Tutor	ress (If different than i	mailing):	A. Mani	ifest Number	! V	MUSV	2 14	
Milwaukee WI 53209 4. Generator's Phone (209)	390-9814	Milwaukee WI 53	209		B. State Generator's ID					
5. Transporter 1 Company Name		6. US	EPA ID Number							
7. Transporter 2 Company Name		8. US	EPA ID Number		D. Trans	porter's Phon	r's ID one			
					E. State	Transporter's	ID	6) 20 4 1 M	10	
9. Designated Facility Name and Site Orchard Ridge RDF	Address	10. U	S EPA ID Number		C State	Sorter's Phone	2			
W124 N9355 Boundary Road Menomonee Fails, WI 53051					H. State	Facility ID Facility Phone	262-2	53-8620		
11 Description for										
a. Dry Cleaning Solvent Imp	acted Sail		12. Co No.	ntainers Type	13. Total Quantity	14. Unit Wt./Vol.	1. 1	Visc. Comme	ents	
	acted Soll									
b.						Sak LMis				
NM Profile #										
			and a strain of the second s	A COMPANY AND		535 miljan	64:53	Notice 11	á ve	
VM Profile #	_			the state to						
٠ ٨.				<u></u>	28 (14 st. st. f) 			9624-5	- 11. es	
/M Profile #	and an and a second	and an approximate the second s	1.5							
Additional Descriptions for Materia	ls Listed Above		K. Disposa	Location			¹ .			
ILL TO:			Cell		Level					
Special Handling Instructions and A	dditional Informatio	on								
rchase Order #										
		EMERGENCY C	ONTACT / PHONE N	0.:	Kyle Heir	nstead (20	9) 390-98	314		
GENERATOR'S CERTIFICATE:							-		3	
curately described, classified and pack	d materials are not aged and are in pro	nazardous wastes as d per condition for tran	efined by CFR Pari sportation accord	t 261 or an Ing to appli	y applicable	state law, hav	e been full	y and		
gent of Client,	Schacet	Signature "On b	ehalf of"	A	And		Month	Day	Year	
. Transporter 1 Acknowledgement of Printed Name	Receipt of Material	S			10000		02	16		
Transportor 2 Asland Lat		Signature					Month	Day	Year	
Printed Name	Receipt of Materials	Signature		/						
		Conductor C	A	\mathbf{i}			Month	Day	Year	
Adam Duret		1100		1			02	10 1	1	
A Jan Sweet Certificate of Final Treatment/Dispos	al									
Certificate of Final Treatment/Dispos rtify, on behalf of the above listed treation licable laws, regulations, permits and	al atment facility, that licenses on the date	to the best of my kno	wledge, the above	e-described	waste was	managed in c	ompliance	with all		

.



Orchard Ridge RDF W124 N9355 Boundary Road Menomones Falls, WI, 53051 Ph: (262) 259-8620

Original Ticket# 1524923

13466295

Customer Name ENVIROPORENICS	ENVIRO FORENSI	Carrier	MORAINENEVIRONMENT	AL MORAINE ENVIRON
IICKEL DAVE UE/15/CO1/		Venitten	1	Volume
Payment Type Credit Account		Container	î	
Manual Ticket#		Driver		
Rauling Ticket#		Check#	17.	
Route		Dillina #	0004957	
State Waste Code A-24-06		Gen EPA II		
Manifest na				
Destination		Grid		
};,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,				
Profile V126479WI (DRY	CLEANING SOLVE	NT IMPACTED	EON.)	
Generator 136-LLOYDSCLEAN	VERS LLOYDS CLE	ANERG		

	Time		Scale	Operator	lnbound	Bross	31340 lb
Ľ m	02/16/2017	13:38:09	InBound	jgindt		Tare	15240 15
Cut.	02/16/2017	13:52:49	OutBound	jgindt		Ne2 &	16080 15
						Tons	(3.04)
Com	ents						

Proc	juct	1.10%	Qty	MCH	Rate	Τēt×	Amount	Origin
10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-1		· · •·· ••• · •• •• · •• ••	с на также на так так на так на так на так Г					
1	Sowaste VOC-Tons-S	100	<u>9</u> " 04	Tons				I V
(2)	FUEL-Fuel Surcharg	100		%				ΜI
3	EVF-L-Standard Env	100	1	Load				$\bowtie \Sigma$

Total Tax Total Ticket

۲



APPENDIX C

Sub-Slab Vapor Laboratory Analytical Report



EnvisionAir 1441 Sadlier Circle West Drive Indianapolis, IN 46239 Ph: 317-351-0885 Fax: 317-351-0882 www.envision-air.com

Mr. W. Fassbender Enviroforensics N16 W. 23390 Stone Ridge Dr Suite G Waukesha, WI 53188

March 14, 2017

EnvisionAir Project Number: 2017-137 Client Project Name: 6229 / Lloyd's

Dear Mr. Fassbender,

Please find the attached analytical report for the samples received March 3, 2017. All test methods performed were fully compliant with local, state, and federal EPA methods unless otherwise noted. The project was analyzed as requested on the enclosed chain of custody record. Please review the comments section for additional information about your results or Quality Control data.

Feel free to contact me if you have any questions or comments regarding your analytical report or service.

Thank you for your business. EnvisionAir looks forward to working with you on your next project.

Yours Sincerely,

Stanty O. Thinnicutt

Stanley A Hunnicutt

Project Manager EnvisionAir, LLC



Canister Pressure / Vacuum

Client Name: ENVIROFORENSICS

Project ID:

6229 / LLOYD'S

Client Project Manager: W FASSBENDER

EnvisionAir Project Number: 2017-137

Sample Summary

			START Date	START Time	End Date	End Time	Date	Time	Initial Field	Final Field	<u>Lab</u> Received
Laboratory Sample Number:	Sample Description:	Matrix:	Collected:	Collected:	Collected:	Collected:	Received:	Received	<u>(in. Hg)</u>	<u>(in. Hg)</u>	<u>(in. Hg)</u>
17-598	6229-SSV-11	A	3/2/17	14:15	3/2/17	14:19	3/3/17	10:10	-30	-4	-4
17-599	6229-SSV-12	А	3/2/17	14:46	3/2/17	14:50	3/3/17	10:10	-29	-4	-4



Client Name:	ENVIROFORENSICS			
Project ID:	6229 / LLOYD'S			
Client Project Manager:	W FASSBENDER			
EnvisionAir Project Number:	2017-137			
Analytical Method: Analytical Batch:	TO-15 030817AIR			
Client Sample ID:	6229-SSV-11	Sample Collection START Date/Time:	3/2/17	14:15
Envision Sample Number: Sample Matrix:	17-598 AIR	Sample Collection END Date/Time: Sample Received Date/Time:	3/3/17	14:19
<u>Compounds</u>	Sample Results ug/m ³	Reporting Limit ug/m ³	<u>Flag</u>	
cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	1,510	793	2	
Tetrachloroethene	19,000	638	2	
trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	< 39.6	39.6		
Trichloroethene	303	10.7		
Vinyl Chloride	130	6.4		
4-bromofluorobenzene (surroga	ite) 111%			
Analysis Date/Time:	3-8-17/22:43			
Analyst Initials	tjg			



Client Name:	ENVIROFORENSICS			
Project ID:	6229 / LLOYD'S			
Client Project Manager:	W FASSBENDER			
EnvisionAir Project Number:	2017-137			
Analytical Method: Analytical Batch:	TO-15 030817AIR			
Client Sample ID:	6229-SSV-12	Sample Collection START Date/Time:	3/2/17	14:46
Envision Sample Number: Sample Matrix:	17-599 AIR	Sample Collection END Date/Time: Sample Received Date/Time:	3/3/17	14:50
<u>Compounds</u>	Sample Results ug/m ³	<u>Reporting Limit ug/m³</u>	<u>Flag</u>	
cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	1,810	317	1	
Tetrachloroethene	2,180	255	1	
trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	< 39.6	39.6		
Trichloroethene	365	10.7		
Vinyl Chloride	47.5	6.4		
4-bromofluorobenzene (surroga	te) 109%			
Analysis Date/Time:	3-8-17/22:10			
Analyst Initials	tjg			



LCS LCSD

Analytical Report

TO-15 Quality Control Data

EnvisionAir Batch Number:	030817AIR		
Method Blank (MB):	MB Results (ppbv)	Reporting Limit (ppbv)	Flags
cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	< 5	5	
Tetrachloroethene	< 0.47	0.47	
trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	< 10	10	
Trichlorethene	< 0.2	0.2	
Vinyl Chloride	< 0.5	0.5	
4-bromofluorobenzene (surrogate)	113%		
Analysis Date/Time:	3-8-17/12:03		
Analyst Initials	tjg		
			LCS/D
LCS/LCSD	LCS Results (ppbv)	LCSD Results (ppbv)	Conc(ppbv)
Vinvl Chloride	9.82	10	10

LCS/LCSD	LCS Results (ppbv)	LCSD Results (ppbv)	Conc(ppbv)	Rec.	Rec.	<u>RPD</u>	Flag
Vinyl Chloride	9.82	10	10	98%	100%	1.8%	
trans-1,2-Dichloroethene	10.6	10.9	10	106%	109%	2.8%	
cis-1,2-Dichloroethene	11	11.2	10	110%	112%	1.8%	
Trichloroethene	9.29	9.53	10	93%	95%	2.6%	
Tetrachloroethene	9.53	9.46	10	95%	95%	0.7%	
4-bromofluorobenzene (surrogate)	115%	111%					
Analysis Date/Time:	3-8-17/10:53	3-8-17/11:29					
Analyst Initials	tjg	tjg					



Flag Number

1 2

Comments

Reported value is from an 80x dilution. TJG 3-14-17 Reported value is from a 200x dilution. TJG 3-14-17

EnvisionAir Proj#:______2017-137 Page ______ of _____

CHAIN OF CUSTODY RECORD

EnvisionAir | 1441Sadlier Circle West Drive | Indianapolis, IN 46239 | Phone: (317) 351-0885 | Fax: (317) 351-0882

Client: NFO		P.O. N	umber: 7	2017-	0334								
Address: Stone Rid	Be Dr.	Projec	t Name or ZZ9 -	Number:	19,2	1		D PARAME	TERS				
Report To: W. Fass	bender	Sample	ed by: 💪	. Sel	nacht	1	./.	/ / /					
Phone: 414-982.	-3988	QA/QC	Required	: (circle if app el III Lev	licable) vel IV		/ /.	///	/ 1	EI		310	JNAIK
Invoice Address: SAF	IE-	Report ug/m	ing Units i mg/m	needed: (cin 1 ³ PPBV	cle) PPMV		Les List		Soil-Gas:	1			
Desired TAT: (Please Circle O 1 day 2 days 3 days Std	ne) (5 bus. days)	Media type	e: 1LC = 1 Liter 6LC = 6 Liter TB = Tedlar TD = Therm	Canister Canister Bag al Desorption Tub	be .	2	3 2 2		Sub-Slab: Indoor-Air: 🗆	Caniste	www.er	vision-air.c <i>Vacuum</i>	:om
Air Sample ID	Media Type (see code above)	Coll. Date (Grab/Comp Start)	Coll. Time (Grab/Comp Start)	Coll. Date (Comp. End)	Coll. Time (Comp. End)			Canister Serial #	Flow Controller Serial #	Initial Field (in. Hg)	Final Field (in. Hg)	Lab Received (in. Hg)	EnvisionAir Sample Number
6229-550-11	110	3-2-17	1415	3-2-17	1419	X		2229		-30	-4	-4	17-598
6229-550-12	110	3-2-17	1446	3-2-17	1450	X		83730		-29	- 4	-4	17-599
	1	le la compañía de la comp					1			9		1	9.2
	1 1									1			
													ic .
				1.1									
			3										
			£ ≦		4				. *	- <u>(</u>)			
	1						12		1. T	á i e			
Comments: C.C.	Lab	rest	, 1 1 5	to C	*o. S	chachd		6.45			and the second sec		
Relin	quished	by:	9		Date	Time	-	Rec	eived by:	1	Da	te	Time
- TILET SCRE	- ay ac		100	3-	*	12:28	1 Fee	in Mun	metto	2°.	3/3/	117	1010


APPENDIX D

Photographs



Pre-Excavation conveyor setup. Facing south.



Conveyor moving material out the southeast building entrance. Facing west.



Main storage room with concrete slab removed. Facing south.



Soil excavation along west wall of storage room.



Excavation in south restroom.



North restroom backfill and horizontal vent pipe.



Horizontal vent pipes and pea gravel backfill in main storage room. Facing south.



Vent pipe risers. Facing north.



Vapor barrier and preparation for concrete slab replacement



Excavation work completed.



SSDS extraction points at north end of main storage room.



SSDS extraction point in sump crock



SSDS extraction point at north end of mechanical room.



APPENDIX E

Blue Max Material Safety Data Sheet

Ames' Blue Max^{TM}

Regular-grade



Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS)

HMIS-NPCA-MFPA	Health	1
	Flammability	1
	Reactivity	0
	Personal Protection	

SECTION 1 – CHEMICAL PRODUCT AND COMPANY IDENTIFICATION			
PRODUCT NAME	Ames' Blue Max [™] Regular-grade		
IDENTIFICATION			
DATE PRINTED			
PRODUCT USE/CLASS	Latex Paints & Coatings, water born dispersion		
MANUFACTURER	Ames Research Laboratories, Inc.	Corporate Office:	
	Salem, Oregon 97302	1891 16th St SE	
		Salem, Oregon 97302-1436	
EMERGENCY TELEPHONE	1-888-345-0809		
PREPARER (optional)			
PHONE	(503) 588-3330		
PREPARE DATE	09-02-15		

SECTIO	ON 2 – COMPOSITION/INFORMATION ON INGREDIENTS		
ITEM	CHEMICAL NAME	CAS NUMBER	% BY WT
01	A specialty formulated waterbase man-made rubber technology. Further information provided upon qualified request to our customers. Fax your request to 503-364-2380. Include: address, phone number, and company name for further information.	Proprietary	45-55
02	Water	7732-18-5	45-55
03			

Material is not known to contain Toxic Chemicals under section 313 of Title III of the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986 and 40 CFR 372. Product alkaline to PH-10. May cause stomach distress if ingested. Do not ingest.

SECTION 3 – HAZARDO	DUS IDENTIFICATION	
EMERGENCY OVERVIEW: No significant immediate hazards for emergency response are known. Milky white liquid		
emulsion. Slight odor. Dik	e and contain spill. Avoid dilution of spills.	
EYE CONTACT	May cause slight transient (temporary) eye irritation. Corneal injury unlikely.	
SKIN CONTACT	Short single exposure not likely to cause significant skin irritation. Prolonged and repeated	
	exposure may cause slight skin irritation. Material may stick to skin causing irritation upon	
	removal. A single, prolonged exposure is not likely to result in the material being absorbed	
	through skin in harmful amounts.	
INHALATION	With good ventilation, a single exposure to vapors is not expected to cause adverse effects.	
INGESTION	Single dose oral toxicity is considered to be extremely low. No hazards anticipated from	
	swallowing small amounts incidental to normal handling operations.	
SYSTEMIC EFFECTS	No relevant information found.	
(Other target organs)		

SECTION 4 - FIRS	T AID MEASURES
FIRST AID	
EYE CONTACT	Immediately flush eyes with large quantities of clean water for at least 15 minutes. Consult a physician.
SKIN CONTACT	Wash skin with soap and water. Remove contaminated clothing. Seek medical attention if irritation develops. Wash contaminated clothing before reuse.
INHALATION	Remove affected individual(s) to fresh air. Seek medical attention if breathing difficulty develops.
INGESTION	If swallowed, seek medical attention. Do not induce vomiting unless directed to do so by medical personnel.
NOTES TO PHYSICIAN	No specific antidote. Supportive care. Treatment based on judgement of the physician in response to reactions of the patient.



SECTION 5 - FIRE FIGHTING MEASURES	
FLASH POINT	Not applicable
METHOD USED	Not applicable
AUTOIGNITION TEMPERATURE	Not applicable
FLAMMABLE LIMITS IN AIR (LOWER)	Not applicable
FLAMMABLE LIMITS IN AIR (UPPER)	Not applicable
FIRE FIGHTING EXTINGUISHING MEDIA	To extinguish combustible residues of this product, use water fog, carbon
	dioxide, dry chemical or foam.
FIRE FIGHTING EQUIPMENT	Wear self-contained breathing apparatus (SCBA) and full fire-fighting
	protective clothing. If protective equipment is not available or not used,
	fight fire from a protected location or safe distance.
FIRE FIGHTING INSTRUCTIONS	Keep people away. Isolate fire area and deny unnecessary entry.
	Containers of this material may build up pressure if exposed to heat (fire).
	Use a water spray to cool fire-exposed containers.
FIRE/EXPLOSION HAZARDS	This material will not burn unless it is evaporated to dryness.
HAZARDOUS COMBUSTION PRODUCTS	Under fire conditions, some components of this product may decompose.
	The smoke may contain unidentified toxic and/or irritating compounds.
	Hazardous combustion products may include and are not limited to
	hydrocarbons, carbon monoxide and dense smoke.

SECTION 6 – ACCIDENTAL RELEASE MEASURES		
STEPS TO BE TAKEN IN CASE MATERIAL IS RELEASED OR SPILLED:		
PERSONAL PRECAUTIONS	Avoid unnecessary exposure and contact. Barricade the area to restrict access. Persons not wearing protective equipment (see section 8) should be excluded from the area of the spill until clean-up has been completed.	
ENVIRONMENTAL PRECAUTIONS	Stop leak at source when it is safe to do so. Dike and contain spill. Prevent spilled material from contaminating soil or entering drains, sewers, streams or other bodies of water.	
CLEANUP PROCEDURES	Avoid dilution with water to minimize the extent of the spill. Recover and recycle spilled latex if possible, otherwise, collect with absorbent material and transfer to appropriate containers for disposal. Water may be used for final cleaning of affected area.	

SECTION 7 – HANDLING AND STORAGE		
HANDLING:	Practice reasonable care to avoid repeated, prolonged skin contact. An eye wash station and a safety	
	shower should be readily accessible to workers wherever this material is stored or used.	
STORAGE:	Keep from freezing. Store at temperatures between 40° F and 110° F. Material may develop bacteria	
	odor on long-term storage. No safety problems known.	

SECTION 8 – EXPOSURE CONTROLS/PERSONAL PROTECTION		
EXPOSURE LIMITS GUIDELINES	There are no exposure limits assigned to the polymer in this product by the	
	Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) or American Conference	
	of Governmental Industrial Hygenists (ACGIH).	
ENGINEERING CONTROLS	Good general ventilation should be sufficient for most conditions.	
PERSONAL PROTECTIVE	EYES: Wear safety glasses with side shields or goggles.	
EQUIPMENT		
	SKIN: Wear clean, long-sleeved, body-covering, clothing. Nitrile, neoprene [®] , or	
	rubber gloves should provide protection against skin contact.	
	INHALATION: For most conditions, no respiratory protection should be needed:	
	however, if material is heated or spraved, or areas are poorly ventilated, use an	
	approved air-purifying respirator.	



SECTION 9 – PHYSICAL AND CHEMICAL PROPERTIES BOILING RANGE: 212°F (100^o C) VAPOR DENSITY: 0.624 @ 80° F (26.7° C) ODOR: Slight odor PHYSICAL STATE Liquid APPEARANCE: Thick, blue liquid. SPECIFIC GRAVITY: 0.98 - 1.04 9.0 – 10.0 32^o F (0^o C) pН VAPOR PRESSURE 17.5 mm Hg @ 68° F (20° C) FREEZING POINT SOLUBILITY Product is sold as dilutable. Polymer component is insoluble ADDITIONAL The physical data listed are for a series of latexes. For specific properties on any given latex, see INFORMATION the product bulletin.

(See Section 16 for abbreviation legend)

SECTION 10 – STABILITY AND REACTIVITY	_
STABILITY	This material is stable during storage and during its extended use.
INCOMPATIBLE MATERIALS/SUBSTANCES	Addition of chemicals, such as acids or multivalent metal salts, may
	cause coagulation.
CONDITIONS TO AVOID	Avoid freezing temperatures (less than 32° F or 0° C). Products
	decompose at elevated temperatures.
HAZARDOUS DECOMPOSITION PRODUCTS	Hazardous decomposition products depend upon temperature, air
	supply and the presence of other materials. Thermal decomposition
	may produce various hydrocarbons and irritating, acrid vapors.
HAZARDOUS POLYMERIZATION	Hazardous polymerization will not occur.

SECTION 11 – TOXICOLOGICAL PROPERTIES		
ACUTE TOXICITY	Refer to section 3 for available information on potential health effects. For detailed	
(HUMANS)	toxicological data, write or call the address or non-emergency number shown in section 1.	
SKIN:	Based on properties of similar polymers, the polymer is not hazardous.	
INGESTION:	Based on properties of similar polymers, the polymer is not hazardous.	
INHALATION:	Based on properties of similar polymers, the polymer is not hazardous.	

SECTION 12 – ECOLOGICAL INFORMATION		
MOVEMENT & PARTITIONING	Latex dispersions will color water a milky white. No bioconcentration of the	
	polymeric component is expected because of its high molecular weight.	
DEGRADATION & PERSISTENCE	The polymeric component is not expected to biodegrade.	
ECOTOXICITY	Based largely or completely on information for similar material(s): Material is practically non-toxic to aquatic organisms on an acute basis (LC50 or EC50 > 100 mg/L in the most sensitive species tested).	

SECTION 13 – DISPOSAL CONSIDERATIONS				
DISPOSAL METHOD:	Do not dump into any sewers, on the ground, or into any body of water. All disposal methods			
	Waste characterizations and compliance with applicable laws are the responsibility solely of			
	the waste generator.			

SECTION 14 – TRANSPORTATION INFORMATION				
DEPT. OF TRANSPORTATION (DOT) – US	This product is not regulated by D. O. T. when shipped domestically			
	by land.			
TRANSPORTATION OF DANGEROUS GOODS	This product is not regulated by TDG when shipped domestically by			
(TDG) - CANADA	land.			



Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS)

SECTION 15 – REGULARTORY INFORMATION

U.S. FEDERAL REGULATIONS: Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA): This material is not classified as hazardous under the criteria of the US Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) Hazard Communication Standard, 29 CFR 1910.1200.

TSCA Section 8(b) – Inventory Status: All components of this material are listed on or are exempt from the US toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA) inventory.

TSCA Section 12(b)-Export Notification: 4-Vinylcyclohexene (CAS# 100-40-3) is subject to the US Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA) Section 12(b) Export Reporting requirements.

SARA Title III Section 304 – CERCLA: Components of this product are not subject to reporting under the requirements of the Comprehensive Environmental Response. Compensation, and Liability Act. (CERCLA)

SARA Title III Section 313 Toxic Chemical List (TCL): To the best of our knowledge, this product contains no chemical subject to SARA Title III Section 313 supplier notification requirements.

SARA Hazard Category: This product has been reviewed according to the EPA "Hazard Categories" promulgated under Sections 311 and 312 of the Superfund Amendment and Reauthorization Act of 1986 (SARA Title III) and is considered, under applicable definitions, to meet the following categories: - Not to have met any hazard category.

WORKPLACE HAZARDOUS MATERIALS INFORMATION SYSTEM (WHMIS) – CANADA: Workplace Hazardous Materials Information System (WHMIS) – Canada: This material is not classified as a controlled product under the Canadian workplace Hazardous Material Information System.

Canadian Inventory Status: All components of this material are listed on the Canadian Domestic Substances List (DSL).

Additional Canadian Regulatory Information: This product does not contain a substance present on the WHMIS Ingredient Disclosure List. (IDL) which is at or above the specified concentration limit.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: California Proposition 65: This material contains a chemical known to the State of California to cause cancer. The California Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act of 1986 requires that clear and reasonable warning be given prior to exposing any person to this chemical. - 4-Vinylclohexene

SECTION 16 – OTHER INFORMATION					
HMIS RATINGS:	HEALTH	FLAMMABILITY	REACTIVITY	PERSONAL	
	1	1	0	PROTECTION	
PREVIOUS REVISION DATE	12-11-08				
REASON FOR REVISION	Added information for	Canada			
LEGEND:	N.A. not applicable, N	.E. Not established, N	I.D. Not determind	ed	
VOLATILE ORGANIC COMPOUNDS	VOC compliant				
ABBREVIATIONS USED:	N/A (information or data not available); NTP (National Toxicology Program); IARC (International Agency for Research on Cancer); NIOSH (National Institute of occupational Safety and Health administration); PEL (Permissible Exposure Limit) [8 hr. TWA][OSHA]; TLV (Threshold Limit Value)[8 hr. TWA][ACGIH]; STEL (Short term exposure limit)[15 min. TWA][OSHA]: C (ceiling value)				
DISCLAIMER:	STEL (Short term exposure limit)[15 min. TWA][OSHA]; C (ceiling value). Ames Research Laboratories, Inc. believes that the information provided is accurate and reliable as of the date of this material safety data sheet and is given in good faith. No warranty expressed or implied is made as to the accuracy, reliability or completeness of the information. Any use of this data and information must be determined by the user to be in accordance with applicable Federal, State and Local laws and regulations. Ames Research Laboratories, Inc. urges persons receiving this information to make their own determination as to the information's suitability and applicability for an intended use. Note: This information must be included in all MSDS that are copied and distributed for this material				

ATTACHMENT D - MAINTENANCE PLANS AND PHOTOGRAPHS

D.1.a Cap Maintenance Plan

- **D.2.a** Figures
- **D.3.a** Photographs
- D.4.a Inspection and Maintenance Log
- D.1.b Sub-Slab Depressurization System Operation, Maintenance, and Monitoring Plan
 - **D.2.b** Figures
 - **D.3.b** Photographs (incorporated into Attachment D.4.b)
 - **D.4.b** Inspection and Maintenance Log



CAP MAINTENANCE PLAN

September 18, 2019

Property located at:

4837 NORTH TEUTONIA AVENUE MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN 53209 BRRTS# 02-41-556811

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO 2994 IN SE 1/4 SEC 36, TOWNSHIP 8 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN PARCEL 3

TAX ID#: 2070833000

INTRODUCTION

This document is the Maintenance Plan for the asphalt and concrete surface materials (the "Cap") covering soil contaminated with chlorinated volatile organic compounds at the abovereferenced property in accordance with the requirements of s. NR 724.13(2), Wis. Adm. Code. The maintenance activities relate to the existing asphalt parking lot areas and concrete building foundation, which occupy the area over the residual soil contamination.

More site-specific information about this property/site may be obtained from:

- The case file in the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) Regional office;
- <u>BRRTS on the Web (WDNR's internet based data base of contaminated sites)</u>for the link to a PDF for site-specific information at the time of closure and on continuing obligations;
- <u>RR Sites Map/GIS Registry layer</u> for a map view of the site, and
- The WDNR project manager.



DESCRIPTION OF CONTAMINATION

Soil contaminated by chlorinated volatile organic compounds (CVOCs) is located at a depth of approximately 1 to 14 feet below ground surface (bgs) in the area under the southern half of the site building and asphalt parking/walkway areas on the south and east sides of the building. Groundwater contaminated by CVOCs is encountered at a depth of approximately 10-20 feet bgs beneath the same areas. The extent of residual CVOC contamination in soil and groundwater is shown on the attached **Figure D.2.a.1** and **Figure D.2.a.2**, respectively.

DESCRIPTION OF CAP

The cap consists of the site building, including its concrete floor slab and foundation, and the asphalt parking/walkway areas that extend from the building to the property boundary to the south and east; and north to the defined extent of soil and groundwater impacts. The location and extent of the cap is depicted on **Figure D.2.a.3**. The existing cap is an infiltration barrier to minimize soil-to-groundwater contamination migration. There are no soil concentrations that pose a risk of direct contact exposure to humans. The asphalt/concrete cap is 4 to 6 inches think across the property.

ANNUAL INSPECTION

The asphalt/concrete cap will be inspected once per year, normally in the spring after all snow and ice is gone, for deterioration, cracks and other potential problems that would allow a direct conduit for infiltration of rain water. The inspections will be performed by the property owner or their designated representative. The inspections will be performed to evaluate damage due to settling, exposure to the weather, wear from traffic, increasing age, and other factors. Any area where large cracks or other openings have occurred or are likely to occur will be documented.

A log of the inspections and any repairs will be maintained by the property owner on WDNR Form 4400-305 (Continuing Obligations Inspection and Maintenance Log), included as **Attachment D.4.a**. The log will include recommendations for necessary repair of any areas where underlying soils are exposed. Once repairs are completed, they will be documented in the Inspection Log. A copy of this Cap Maintenance Plan and the Inspection Log will be kept at the property and available for submittal or review by WDNR representatives upon their request.

MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES

If problems are noted during the annual inspections or at any other time during the year, repairs will be scheduled as soon as practical. Repairs can include patching and filling or larger



resurfacing or construction operations. In the event that maintenance activities that involve soil removal and disposal are necessary, the property owner must sample any soil excavated from the site prior to disposal to ascertain if contamination is present. The soil must be treated, stored, or disposed of by the owner in accordance with applicable local, state and federal law.

In the event the asphalt and or concrete building foundation cover overlying the contaminated soil are removed or replaced, the replacement barrier must be equally impermeable. Any replacement barrier will be subject to the same maintenance and inspection guidelines as outlined in this Cap Maintenance Plan unless indicated otherwise by the WDNR or its successor. The property owner, in order to maintain the integrity of the asphalt/concrete cap, will maintain a copy of this Maintenance Plan on-site and make it available to all interested parties (i.e. on-site employees, contractors, future property owners, etc.) for viewing.

PROHIBITION OF ACTIVITIES AND NOTIFICATION

The following activities are prohibited on any portion of the property where an asphalt/concrete cap is required as depicted on the attached **Figure D.2.a.3**, unless prior written approval has been obtained from the WDNR: 1) removal of the existing barrier; 2) replacement with another barrier; 3) excavating or grading of the land surface; 4) filling on capped or paved areas; 5) plowing for agricultural cultivation; 6) construction or placement of a building or other structure; 7) changing the use or occupancy of the property to a residential exposure setting, which may include certain uses such as single or multi-family residences, a school, a daycare, or senior center; or 8) changing the construction of the building if the changes affect the operation of the vapor mitigation system.

If removal, replacement or other changes to the asphalt/concrete are considered, the property owner will contact WDNR at least 45 days before taking such an action, to determine whether further action may be necessary to protect human health, safety, or welfare or the environment, in accordance with s. NR 727.07, Wis. Adm. Code.

AMENDMENT OR WITHDRAWAL OF MAINTENANCE PLAN

This Maintenance Plan can be amended or withdrawn by the property owner and its successors with the written approval of the WDNR.



CONTACT INFORMATION

Site Owner and Operator:	Lloyd's Cleaners Thomas Anderson 4837 N. Teutonia Ave Milwaukee, WI 53209
Consultant:	EnviroForensics, LLC Wayne Fassbender, PG, PMP N16 W23390 Stone Ridge Dr., Suite G Waukesha, WI 53188 (262) 290-4001
WDNR Project Manager:	John Hnat Wisconsin Dept. of Natural Resources 2300 Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Dr. Milwaukee, WI 53212 (414) 263-8644



FIGURES



GAS	Property boundary Underground gas utility line Underground water utility line Fiber optic utility line Sanitary sewer utility line Storm sewer utility line Previous excavation area
(M)	Sanitary sewer manhole
(F)	Fire Hydrant
DP-6 ●	Direct-push boring location
DP-15/SG-1 🔘	Direct-push/Soil Gas boring location
DP-11/PZ-1 +	Direct Push boring/Piezometer location
FS-1-1	Floor excavation soil sample location (Floor Sample-Sample ID-Depth)
WS-1-1●	Side wall excavation soil sample location (Wall Sample-Sample ID-Depth)
	Excavation Limits (0-5 ft)
	Excavation Limits (5-13 ft)
I	mpervious Barrier location
——— I е I	Extent of residual soil contamination exceeding soil to groundwater pathway RCLs
Note:	
There are no	Direct-Contact RCL exceedances in the
Sur	uctural impediment to further investigation



Legend	
	Property boundary
GAS	Underground gas utility line
WTR	Underground water utility line
UGT	Fiber optic utility line
SAN	Sanitary sewer utility line
STM	Storm sewer utility line
	Previous excavation area
M	Sanitary sewer manhole
F	Fire Hydrant
DP-11/PZ-1 🕁	Direct Push boring / Piezometer
I	location
MW-1 🔶	Monitoring well location
$H\Delta 1/HB_{-1}$	Grab groundwater location
	Grab groundwater location

Analyte	Public Health Preventive Action Limit	Public Health Enforcement Standard	
PCE	0.5	5	
TCE	0.5	5	
cis-1,2-DCE	7	70	

Note:

- 1. Bolded and blue shaded values exceed the Public Health Preventive Action Limit
- 2. Bolded and orange shaded values exceed the Public Health Enforcement Standard
- Bolded values are above detection limits 3.
- J = Estimated concentration above the method detection 4. limit and below the reporting limit
- 5.
- Samples analyzed using EPA SW-846 Method 8260 All results reported in units of micrograms per liter (ug/L) 6.
- PCE = Tetrachloroethene 7.
- 8. TCE = Trichloroethene
- 9. cis-1,2-DCE = cis-1,2,-Dichloroethene
- 10. VOCs = Volatile Organic Compounds
- 11. ND = Not detected

Extent of residual groundwater impacts exceeding PALs

	EXTENT OF GROUNDWATER IMPACTS EXCEEDING REGULATORY STANDARDS			
	Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 N. Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI			
22/17		Figure		
EB	ENVIRO erensics	D.2.a.2		
EB		During		
BK	825 North Capital Avanua	Project		
-1058	EnviroForensics.com	6229		



	LOCATION AND EXTENT OF ASPHALT/CONCRETE CAP				
	Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 N. Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI				
19/17		Figure			
EB	ENVIRO Prensics	D.2.a.3			
KH	/				
BK	ENVIRONMENTAL FORENSIC INVESTIGATIONS, INC.	Project			
-1011	602 N. Capitol Ave., Ste. 210 Indianapolis, IN 46204 EnviroForensics.com	6229			



ATTACHMENT D.3.a

PHOTOGRAPHS





Overview of asphalt cap – facing north





Overview of asphalt cap – facing south





Asphalt on south side of building – facing west





Basement concrete floor slab





Basement mechanical room concrete floor slab



ATTACHMENT D.4.a

Continuing Obligations Inspection and Maintenance Log

State of Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources dnr.wi.gov

Continuing Obligations Inspection and Maintenance Log

Form 4400-305 (2/14)

Page 1 of 2

Directions: In accordance with s. NR 727.05 (1) (b) 3., Wis. Adm. Code, use of this form for documenting the inspections and maintenance of certain continuing obligations is required. Personal information collected will be used for administrative purposes and may be provided to requesters to the extent required by Wisconsin's Open Records law [ss. 19.31-19.39, Wis. Stats.]. When using this form, identify the condition that is being inspected. See the closure approval letter for this site for requirements regarding the submittal of this form to the Department of Natural Resources. A copy of this inspection log is required to be maintained either on the property, or at a location specified in the closure approval letter. Do NOT delete previous inspection results. This form was developed to provide a continuous history of site inspection results. The Department of Natural Resources project manager is identified from the database, BRRTS on the Web, at http://dnr.wi.gov/botw/SetUpBasicSearchForm.do, by searching for the site using the BRRTS ID number, and then looking in the "Who" section.

Activity (Site) Name

BRRTS No.

Notivity (One	, rume						
Inspections are required to be conducted (see closure approval letter): annually semi-annually other – specify 			When submittal of this form is required, submit the form electronically to the DNR pr manager. An electronic version of this filled out form, or a scanned version may be s the following email address (see closure approval letter):				
Inspection Date	Inspector Name	ltem	Describe the condition of the item that is being inspected	Recommendations for repair or mainte	enance imple	vious iendations mented?	Photographs taken and attached?
		monitoring well cover/barrier vapor mitigation system other:	-		OY	⊖ N	OYON
		monitoring well cover/barrier vapor mitigation system other:			OY	⊖ N	OYON
		monitoring well cover/barrier vapor mitigation system other:			OY	⊖ N	O Y O N
		monitoring well cover/barrier vapor mitigation system other:			OY	⊖ N	O Y O N
		monitoring well cover/barrier vapor mitigation system other:			OY	⊖ N	O Y O N
		monitoring well cover/barrier vapor mitigation system other:			OY	⊖ N	OYON




SUB-SLAB DEPRESSURIZATION SYSTEM OPERATION, MAINTENANCE & MONITORING PLAN

Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 North Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI 53209 WDNR BRRTS# 02-41-556811 FID# 241417330

August 1, 2019

Prepared For:

Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 North Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI 53209

Prepared By:

EnviroForensics, LLC N16 W23390 Stone Ridge Drive, Suite G Waukesha, WI 53188 Phone: (262) 290-4001 <u>www.enviroforensics.com</u>



TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0	BACKGROUND 1.1 Site History	1
2.0	CONTACTS	1
3.0	SYSTEM DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION	2
	3.1 System Commissioning	3
4.0	SYSTEM OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, AND MONITORING	4
	4.1 System Operation	4
	4.2 System Inspection, Monitoring, and Maintenance	4
5.0	DECOMMISSIONING AND CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS	5

FIGURES

Figure D.2.b.1	Site Layout Map
Figure D.2.b.2	Sub-Slab Depressurization System Layout

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment D.4.b Inspection and Maintenance Log



1.0 BACKGROUND

Lloyd's Cleaners is located at 4837 North Teutonia Avenue, Milwaukee, Wisconsin (Site). The layout of the Site is shown on **Figure D.2.b.1**. The Site is located in an area of mixed land use consisting of residential, commercial, and industrial properties. The dry cleaning building is a single story structure with a partial basement having concrete block walls. The attached coin-operated laundry is a single story structure with a slab on grade. Sub-slab vapor sampling conducted in the basement in 2017 indicated that VOCs were present in vapor at concentrations above the vapor risk screening level (VRSL) for small commercial structures. Therefore, a sub-slab depressurization (SSD) system was installed to mitigate the vapor intrusion risk.

The SSD system is designed to depressurize the sub-slab space and prevent vapors from migrating into the building and affecting indoor air quality. The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WDNR) requires that SSD systems be monitored and maintained to ensure ongoing effectiveness. Proper operation of the SSD system is necessary to prevent exposure to the chemicals of concern via vapor intrusion.

1.1 Site History

The Site was operated by others as an active dry cleaning facility from the early 1960's until 1981, when current owner Tom Anderson bought the property now known as Lloyd's Cleaners. Tetrachloroethene (PCE) was historically used as a dry cleaning solvent at this property until 2011, when Mr. Anderson discontinued active dry cleaning. PCE migrated vertically through soil in the vicinity of the former PCE holding tank, and along the sanitary sewer lateral beneath the Site building causing soil, groundwater, and sub-slab vapor impacts that exceed WDNR health-based standards and screening levels.

2.0 CONTACTS

Property Owner: Tom Anderson Address: 4837 North Teutonia Avenue, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53209 Telephone #: 414-442-1010

System Design and Installation: EnviroForensics, LLC Address: 825 N. Capital Ave., Indianapolis, IN 46204 Contact: Vapor Mitigation Technician Contact/Telephone #: 317-972-7870



Consultant: EnviroForensics, LLC Address: N16 W23390 Stone Ridge Dr., Suite G, Waukesha, WI 53188 Contacts: Brian Kappen, Project Manager; Wayne Fassbender, Senior Project Manager Telephone #: 262-290-4001 Email: <u>bkappen@enviroforensics.com</u> or <u>wfassbender@enviroforensics.com</u>

WDNR Project Manager: John Hnat Address: 2300 N. Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Dr. Milwaukee, Wisconsin Telephone #: 414-263-8644 Email: John.Hnat@wisconsin.gov

3.0 SYSTEM DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION

EnviroForensics designed and installed the SSD system in the basement of the Site building. The system was installed during April 6-7 and April 13-14, 2017. The layout of the SSD system is depicted on **Figure D.2.b.2**. Sub-slab vacuum is induced by a Radon-Away model GP-501 fan mounted on the roof and hardwired to a dedicated circuit breaker in the electrical panel in the southeast room of the Site building. There is also a dedicated on/off switch located next to the fan. The fan is connected to the following sub-slab extraction points:

- Combined horizontal extraction piping (EP-1) installed within the backfill of an excavation beneath the basement floor slab;
- The sealed sump crock (EP-2) for the purpose of venting the drainage tile and block wall along the west side of the building. In addition to venting, the west block wall was repaired by sealing holes and cracks in the block, followed by sealing with a vapor protection coating; and
- One (1) vertical extraction point (EP-3) along the north wall of the mechanical room.

Each extraction point is equipped with a u-tube manometer located a few feet above floor level. The manometers are u-shaped tubes filled with red liquid and a fixed gauge that measures vacuum in inches of water. Individual ball valves are also installed just above the manometers on each extraction point for system balancing. The ball valves have red plastic handles that are open when positioned parallel to the pipe and closed when positioned perpendicular to the pipe. Directions for opening and closing the valves are imprinted on the handles.

The extraction point pipes connect to a common 4-inch diameter PVC vent pipe in the mechanical room. The vent pipe is routed to the fan on the roof through an unused pipe chase in the mechanical room.



An audible low-pressure alarm was also installed on one of the horizontal extraction points in the main storage room. If there is a loss of vacuum caused by fan failure, vent pipe obstruction, high water level, or other issue, a loud beeping sound will occur. Additional description and photos of system components are provided in **Attachment D.4.b**.

3.1 System Commissioning

Commissioning of the SSD system was performed to demonstrate vapor intrusion mitigation in all conditions. System measurements were collected on three (3) occasions during the first year of operation. System commissioning events included the following activities:

- 1. Measurement of sub-slab pressure field extension (PFE). The PFE were measured by connecting a hand-held digital manometer to sub-slab test ports installed in the basement floor. Two (2) permanent test ports designated TP-1 and TP-2 are installed at the locations shown on **Figure D.2.b.2**.
- 2. Measurement of flow rate in the vent pipe leading to the fan using a thermo-anemometer inserted into a port in the piping.
- 3. Checking u-tube manometers at each extraction point for confirmation of induced vacuum.
- 4. Visual inspection of the concrete floor penetration seals and all system components including fans, manometers, pressure switches, and piping connections.

The pressure field extension (PFE) testing indicated that the system applied negative pressure across the entire main storage room and mechanical room of the basement where elevated vapor concentrations were previously detected. Vacuum readings at the extraction points (observed in u-tube manometers) and permanent test ports TP-1 and TP-2 are summarized in the table below and shown on **Figure D.2.b.2** for reference.

Dete	Flow Rate		Vacuum	ater)		
Date	(FPM)	EP-1	EP-2 (Sump)	EP-3	TP-1	TP-2
6/14/2017	NM	-0.8	-0.3	-0.8	-0.131	-0.415
4/6/2018	1,078	-1.5	-1.1	-1.5	-0.250	-0.197
7/3/2018	1,312	-1.7	-0.6	-1.7	-0.320	-0.237

Notes: NM = not measured. Fpm = feet per minute



4.0 SYSTEM OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, AND MONITORING

Lloyd's Cleaners will be responsible for operation, maintenance, and monitoring (OM&M) of the SSD system installed in the building until the WDNR grants case closure for the Site. After closure, any current or future owner of the Site will be responsible for OM&M of the SSD system if there is a continued vapor intrusion risk that must be mitigated. Future sub-slab vapor sampling may be performed to confirm that the vapor intrusion risk is no longer present (see Section 5.0 below).

System monitoring and maintenance procedures described below and in **Attachmennt D.4.b** follow the recommendations presented in WDNR Publication RR-800: *Addressing Vapor Intrusion at Remediation Redevelopment Sites in Wisconsin*. The conditions that must be maintained for continued long-term protection from vapor intrusion are listed on the Inspection and Maintenance Log in **Attachment D.4.b**.

4.1 System Operation

The system is designed and intended to operate continuously. Operation of the SSD system can be confirmed as follows:

- Inspect the fan mounted on the roof, which can be accessed using a ladder from outside. Noise caused by the movement of air and slight vibration are indications that the fan is running; and
- Check the u-tube manometers located on the extraction point piping. The liquid level inside the u-shaped tube will be uneven if vacuum is present.

If the fan stops operating the audible alarm will sound. In that event, a vapor mitigation professional should be contacted as soon as possible to troubleshoot the problem and make the necessary repairs.

4.2 System Inspection, Monitoring, and Maintenance

System inspection and monitoring is required to be conducted at least once during the heating season. A second inspection and monitoring event is recommended in spring when the water level beneath the floor slab is expected to be highest. Inspection and maintenance logs (**Attachment D.4.b**) shall be completed by the person or group responsible for OM&M of the SSD system. The property owner will maintain a copy of this SSDS OM&M Plan on-site and make it available to all interested parties (i.e., on-site employees, contractors, future property owner, etc.) for viewing and made available to WDNR upon request.



Inspection and monitoring requirements are summarized in **Attachment D.4.b**. The fan and outdoor vent pipe, suction points, and alarm unit must be inspected for integrity and normal function as described in **Attachment D.4.b**. Under normal operating conditions, the manometers affixed to each suction point should read between 0.3 and 1.7 inches of vacuum. The concrete floor of the basement must be inspected for penetrating cracks, holes, or open joints that would cause "short-circuiting" of indoor air and limit sub-slab vacuum influence. Keeping the concrete floor in good condition is essential for SSD system effectiveness.

Proper function of the basement sump is also required for the SSD system to operate effectively. The sump should be inspected to confirm air-tight seals around the cover and pipe penetrations. If there are leak(s), the vacuum indicated by the EP-2 manometer will drop. The lowest vacuum observed at EP-2 during system commissioning was -0.3 inches of water. The sump pump should also be tested as part of the routine inspection. If the sump pump fails, water around the foundation may rise to the bottom of the floor slab, which restricts vacuum created by the fan. The pump can be tested by adding water through the capped opening in the sump lid. The pump should start automatically once the water reaches a certain level. If it does not, make sure the pump is plugged in to an energized outlet and the float moves freely. Replace the sump pump if troubleshooting does not resolve the problem.

The mitigation fan is factory sealed and requires no maintenance. In the event that a fan stops operating due to mechanical failure, the fan shall be replaced with an identical model or a fan with the same performance specifications. Replacement of fans should be handled by a mitigation contractor and/or an electrician. Maintenance and repair activities on other components, including piping, suction point seals, or openings in the concrete floor, can be performed by the environmental consultant or building maintenance personnel. Leaks around suction point seals can be fixed by adding caulk around the openings and/or tightening the bolts securing the sump lid and pipe penetrations. Minor cracks or holes in the concrete floor can typically be fixed with hydraulic cement patch or self-leveling sealant. More significant deterioration will require repair by a concrete professional.

5.0 DECOMMISSIONING AND CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS

The SSD system will be operated until it is no longer needed to prevent vapor intrusion. The WDNR shall be notified at least 45 days before any actions are taken which would terminate or interrupt operation of the SSD system for more than one week.



Decommissioning of the system will require re-assessment of vapor intrusion according to the following procedure:

- Notify WDNR of the decommission plan;
- Turn the fan off at the switch or circuit breaker;
- Collect sub-slab vapor samples for analysis of volatile organic compounds (VOCs) according to the following schedule, ensuring that two (2) of the sampling events occur during the heating season:
 - First event 2 to 4 weeks after shutting off the fan;
 - Second event 2 to 6 months after shutting off the fan;
 - Third event within 1 year of shutting off the fan.
- If the concentration of a VOC in any sample exceeds the applicable VRSL, return to long-term SSD system operation and monitoring.
- Request WDNR approval to remove the vapor mitigation requirement from the Site.

Because the SSD system was needed to mitigate vapor intrusion at the time of case closure, there was a continuing obligation for any owner of 4837 N. Teutonia Ave to operate and maintain the SSD system post-closure. The continuing obligation can be removed by going through the post-closure modification process. Contact WDNR for current guidance on this process.



FIGURES



Legend

	Property boundary
GAS	Underground gas utility line
WTR	Underground water utility line
UGT	Fiber optic utility line
SAN	Sanitary sewer utility line
STM	Storm sewer utility line
	Previous excavation area
(M)	Sanitary sewer manhole
\cup	~~····
F	Fire Hydrant
) F PZ-1 ↔	Fire Hydrant Piezometer location (Proposed to be abandoned)
(F) PZ-1 ↔ MW-1 �	Fire Hydrant Piezometer location (Proposed to be abandoned) Monitoring well location (Proposed to be abandoned)

	SITE LAYOUT MAP				
	Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 N. Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI	e			
22/17		Figure			
EB	ENVIRO erensics	D.2.b.1			
EB		Dutut			
BK		Project			
-1057	825 North Capitol Avenue Indianapolis, IN 46204 EnviroForensics.com	6229			



Legend

₽-1 🔂	Floor drain Extraction point with u-tube manometer and ball valve
	Conveyance piping
	Horizontal extraction pipe
TP-1 💿	Sub-slab vacuum test port
(-0.131)	Vacuum reading in inches of water during system commissioning







ATTACHMENT D.4.b

Inspection and Maintenance Log

VAPOR MITIGATION SYSTEM INSPECTION AND MAINTENANCE LOG LLOYD'S DRY CLEANERS, MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN

		S	SYSTEM COMPONENT			
NAME	РНОТО	FUNCTION	CHECK	NORMAL OBSERVATION	POSSIBLE REPAIR	DATE
		Fan creates a vacuum and lowers pressure below foundation.	Fan Operation	Fan is on Fan mounted outside and secure	Fan may need to be replaced every 15 to 20 years.	
Fan	T	The fan also removes soil gasses from below foundation for discharge to	Fan Location	Fan motor is quiet (loud motor may	Replacement fan to have similar specifications as original with respect to flow and vacuum.	
		atmosphere.	Motor Noise	indicate a problem)	Fan Type = RadonAway GP501	
		Suction Point : Soil gases are collected in a				
Suction Point with		pit below the foundation, and tight seal prevents soil gas from entering the building.	Suction Point Seal	penetrations.	Suction point seals or vent pipe may need to be replaced if cracks or leaks appear.	
Vent Pipe		Vent Pipe: Pipe conveys the vacuum from the fan, and collects soil gases for discharge to the atmosphere.	Vent Pipe Condition	Vent pipe is connected to fan and has not cracked.	Have professional test pressures if pipes are modified or cracks appear.	
Manometer	Leader of the second	Measures differential pressure between vacuum side of vent pipe and indoor space.	Liquid Level in	Liquid level on each side of the u-tube is uneven. Normal range is 0.3 to 1.7	A change in liquid level indicates a change in the vacuum below the foundation. This could be caused by fan failure, vent pipe blockage, shallow water below foundation, or other	
		This measurement confirms the fan is creating a vacuum.	Manometer	inches of water.	conditions. Troubleshoot or hire professional to identify the cause and repair if needed.	
Audible Alarm		Signals a loss of vacuum in the system	Power to alarm unit	Alarm unit is plugged in and green indicator light is on The alarm is silent	Contact a professional if the alarm sounds to troubleshoot the cause.	
		piping	Tubing from the alarm to extraction point pipe	Tubing from the alarm unit connects to the extraction point pipe	Push tubing back through the small hole in the pipe	
Outdoor Vant Pipe	E	Pipe carries soil gas outside and vents it to	Vent Pipe Condition	Vent pipe remains connected to fan. End of pipe free from obstructions.	Vent pipe may require replacement, or cleaning to remove ice or debris.	
		the atmosphere.	Vent Pipe Location	The exhaust is more than 15 feet from windows and air intakes.	Have professional test pressures if pipes are modified or cracks appear.	
			Foundation Condition	No penetrating cracks or holes in foundation.	Seal cracks or other penetrations as you would to prevent water from entering.	
Foundation Floor		Foundation is a barrier that minimizes soil gas entry into building.	Foundation Footprint	No alterations or additions to building	If building floor plan has changed, contact a professional contractor or WDNR to evaluate if	
				foundation.	modifications to the mitigation system are necessary.	
		Collecte meter from the four detion to	Sealed sump cover and	Cover and pipe openings are air-tight	Tighten seals and clamps; replace the cover if damaged.	
Sump and Sump Pump		ensure unsaturated sub-slab conditions and application of vacuum.	Proper function of sump pump	Sump pump operates automatically as water accumulates in the sump. Pump operation can be tested by adding water through the capped opening.	Make sure the pump is plugged in and the float is free to move. Replace the pump in the event of failure.	
				Pin is sealed and capped when not in use.	Repair or replace the seal and cover as needed.	
Sub-Slah Test Port		This is a sample port to measure vacuum	Pin Seal/Cap	A manometer can be connected to the		
540-5140 Test FUIL		or collect soil gas sample(s) if needed.	Pin Condition	vapor pin to check sub-slab vacuum (not required). Vacuum should be less than -0.004 in H ₂ 0.	Permanently seal hole if vapor pin is ever removed.	

ANNUAL INSEPECTION					
NOTES / REPAIR COMPLETED					

ATTACHMENT E – MONITORING WELL INFORMATION

All groundwater monitoring wells were abandoned on April 30, 2019.

ATTACHMENT F – SOURCE LEGAL DOCUMENTS

- F.1. Deed.
- F.2. Certified Survey Map
- **F.3.** Verification of Zoning
- F.4. Signed Statement

OFF-SOURCE y w state faile and the second se Α REEL 2887 IMAGE 756 PROPERTY STATE BAR OF WISCONSIN FORM 3-1982 QUIT CLAIM DEED THIS SPACE RESERVED FOR RECORDING DATA DOCUMENT NO. 6676290 d. A statement of the statemen REGISTER'S OFFICE Milwaukee County, WI -11 15AM ROBERTA F. ANDERSON, RECORDED AT OCT 161992 guit-claims to THOMAS M. ANDERSON REEL 2881 IMAGE 50 REGISTER OF DEEDS the following described real estate inMilwaukee 1.0777 State of Wisconsin: JOGEN 10 - GERN ANUT TH N. FARWELL 411W, WI 53202 Tax Parcel No: 207-0833 CSM2994 in Southeast 1/4, Section 36, Township 8 North, Range 21 East, in Parcel 3. 3376<u>8</u>90 # 10,00 RECORD is not homestead property. This . 374 October 19.92 Dated this day of and a second (Millsom (SEAL) (SEAL) Roberta F. Anderson (SEAL) AUTHENTICATION ACKNOWLEDGMENT Signature(s) Roberta F. Anderson STATE OF WISCONSIN 53.County. of October authentidated this Personally came before me thisday of N. The-John J./Germanotta TITLE: MEMBER STATE BAR OF WISCONSIN (If not, authorized by § 706.06, Wis. Stats.) to me known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledge the same. THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY Attorney John J. Germanotta (Signatures may be authenticated or acknowledged. Both are not necessary.) date: Ð 01 QUIT CLAIM DEED STATE BAR OF WISCONSIN FORM No. 3 - 1982 Wiscowin Legal Blank Co. Inc. Milwaukee, Wis. المتحديد والمحمد وأنهاج والمحتج والمتحج والمحتج والمحاج والمحاج



CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.

TAX KEY NO.

BEING LOTS 1 AND 2 AND PART OF LOTS 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 24 25 and 26 IN BLOCK 10 IN ORIGINAL NORTH MILWAUKEE SUBDIVISION NO. 1 AND A PART OF VACATED NORTH 28TH STREET ADJOINING SAID LOTS 1, 2 AND 3 IN THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 36, T 8 N, R 21 E, IN THE CITY OF MILWAUKEE, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

SURVEYOR'S AFFIDAVIT STATE OF WISCONSIN) :55

MILWAUKEE COUNTY (

I, KENNETH E BERKE, a registered surveyor, being first duly sworn on oath do hereby depose and say:

THAT I have surveyed, divided and mapped Lots 1 and 2 and part of Lots 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 24, 25 and 26 in Block 10 in Original North Milwaukee Subdivision No. 1 and a part of vacated North 28th Street adjoining said Lots 1, 2 and 3 in the SE 1/4 of Section 36, T 8 N, R 21 E, in the City of Milwaukee, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, which is bounded and described as follows:

Beginning at the Northeast corner of said Lot 1; thence South 21° 35' 40" East along the Southwesterly line of North Teutonia Avenue 431.47 ft. to a point, said point being 220.00 ft. North 21° 35' 40" West of the Southeast corner of said Block 10; thence South 70° 32' 20" West 115.86 ft. to a point, said point being 167.50 ft. North 05° 13' 00" West of the South line of said Block 10; thence North 05° 13' 00" West 55.95 ft. to a point, said point being 100.00 ft. South 68° 24' 20" West of the Southwesterly line of North Teutonia Avenue; thence North 15° 13' 00" West 398.02 ft. to a point in the South line of West Stark Street; thence due East along the South line of West Stark Street 60.00 ft. to the point of beginning.

THAT I have made such survey, land division and map by the direction of SOPHIA WEISFEIDT, individually and SOPHIA WEISFEIDT and HARRY J WEISFEIDT. TRUSTEFS FOR THE ESTATE OF SIMON C WEISFELDT, land contract vendors, and LEON LEOPOLD and HUGO BAUTZ, land contract vendees of said land.

THAT such map is a correct representation of all the exterior boundaries of the land surveyed and the land division thereof made.

THAT I have fully complied with the provisions of Chapter 236 of the Wisconsin Statutes and Chapter 9 of the Milwaukee Code of Ordinances in surveying, dividing and mapping the same.

OCT 29, 1976

Kenneth & Berke

Kenneth E Berke, Registered Wisconsin Land Surveyor S 107

12/8/10

13/7

LAND CONTRACT VENDOR'S CERTIFICATE

Date

AS LAND CONTRACT VENDOR'S we hereby certify that we caused the land described on this map to be surveyed, divided, mapped and dedicated as represented on this map in accordance with the requirements of Section 9-5.5 of the City of Milwaukee Code of Ordinances.



Doe Yr: 2012 Doc# 05071186 Page# 2 of 5

833

QF

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.

TAX KEY NO.

BEING LOTS 1 AND 2 AND PART OF LOTS 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 24 25 and 26 IN BLOCK 10 IN ORIGINAL NORTH MILWAUKEE SUBDIVISION NO. 1 AND A PART OF VACATED NORTH 28TH STREET ADJOINING SAID LOTS 1, 2 AND 3 IN THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 36, T 8 N, R 21 E, IN THE CITY OF MILWAUKEE, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

In consideration of the approval of the map by the Common Council, the undersigned covenants and agrees to and with the City of Milwaukee that no lot or parcel as hereon set forth shall at any time subsequent to the recording of this map be in any manner divided, described or conveyed so as to result in lots parcels or building sites having dimensions, areas, or courses other than as herein set forth, unless said divisions, descriptions or conveyances are first approved by the Common Council of the City of Milwaukee, and that such restrictions are binding on the undersigned, his, her, or their heirs and assigns. Such approval, however, shall not be required for the taking of land for public purposes.

THAT all utility lines to provide electric power and telephone service to all lots in the Certified Survey Map shall be installed underground in easements provided therefore.

WITNESS the hand and seal of said land contract vendors this <u>18th</u> day of <u>November</u>, 1976.

In The Presence of: inona A Thompson Vinona A. uries Maurice B. Weisfeldt hill sheer h Phillip Green

Sophia Weisfeldt, Individually

Harry J Weisfeldt, Trustees for Estate of Simon C Weisfeldt

STATE OF WISCONSIN) 到现代系。 :SS MILWAUKEE COUNTY (.

100

PERSCNALLY came before me this 18thday of <u>November</u>, 1976, the above named SOPHIA WEISFELDT, INDIVIDUALLY and SOPHIA WEISFELDT, and HARRY J. WEISFELDT, Trustees for the Estate of Simon C Weisfeldt, to me known to be the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same.

Maurie B.

Maurice B. Weisfeldt Notary Public, State of Wisconsin My Commission Expires (is Permanent)

LAND CONTRACT VENDEE'S CERTIFICATE

AS LAND CONTRACT VENDEE'S, we hereby certify that we caused the land described on this map to be surveyed, divided, mapped and dedicated as represented on this map in accordance with the requirements of Section 9-5.5 of the City of Milaukee Code of Ordinances.

5071186
SISTER'S OFFICE vaukee County, Wis. } 55 CORDED AT-11 10 AM_M on in JAN 24 1977 989 image 630. to 634 incl.

833

833

4 OF

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.

TAX KEY NO.

BEING LOTS 1 AND 2 AND PART OF LOTS 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 24 25 and 26 IN BLOCK 10 IN ORIGINAL NORTH MILWAUKEE SUBDIVISION NO. 1 AND A PART OF VACATED NORTH 28TH STREET ADJOINING SAID LOTS 1, 2 AND 3 IN THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 36, T 8 N, R 21 E, IN THE CITY OF MILWAUKEE, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

In consideration of the approval of the map by the Common Council, the undersigned covenants and agrees to and with the City of Milwaukee that no lot or parcel as hereon set forth shall at any time subsequent to the recording of this map be in any manner divided, described or conveyed so as to result in lots, parcels or building sites having dimensions, areas, or courses other than as herein set forth, unless said divisions, descriptions or conveyances are first approved by the Common Council of the City of Milaukee, and that such restrictions are binding on the undersigned, his, her, or their heirs and assigns. Such approval, h however shall not be required for the taking of land for public purposes.

THAT all utility lines to provide electric power and telephone service to all lots in the Certified Survey Map shall be installed underground in easements provided therefore.

WITNESS the hands and seals of said land contract vendee's this 18 th day of Movember, 1976.

In The Presence of:

Winona A Thompson Maurice B. eisfeldt

STATE OF WISCONSIN) :SS

MILWAUKEE COUNTY (

PERSONALLY came before me this <u>18</u> day of <u>Moulmber</u>, 1976 the above named LEON LEOPOLD and HUGO BAUTZ, to me known to be the land contract vendee's and the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same.

Maurice B. Weisfeldt

Notary Public, State of Wisconsin My Commission (expires) is permanent

KENNETH E BERKE OW S-207 MILWADKEE, S-207 MILWADKEE, CHANNETH E S-207 MILWADKEE, S-207 MILWADKEE, S-207 S-

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.

TAX KEY NO.

BEING LOTS 1 AND 2 AND PART OF LOTS 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 24, 25 AND 26 IN BLOCK 10 IN ORIGINAL NORTH MILWAUKEE SUBDIVISION NO. 1 AND A PART OF VACATED NORTH 28TH STREET ADJOINING SAID LOTS 1, 2 AND 3 IN THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 36, T 8 N, R 21 E, IN THE CITY OF MILWAUKEE, MILWAUKEE COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

CERTIFICATE OF CITY TREASURER STATE OF WISCONSIN) :SS

MILWAUKEE COUNTY (

I, WAYNE WHITTOW, being the duly elected, qualified and acting City Treasurer of the City of Milwaukee, do hereby certify that in accordance with the records in the office of the City Treasurer of the City of Milwaukee there are no unpaid taxes or unpaid special assessments on any of the lands included in the above description of this certified survey map.

annand 7, 1977 Dafe

1 Wh

Wayne Whittow, City Treasurer

COMMON COUNCIL RESOLUTION

Be it noted that this Certified Survey Map, submitted under File No 76-1552being Lots 1 and 2 and part of Lots 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 24, 25 and 26 in Block 10 in Original North Milwaukee Subdivision No. 1 and a part of vacated North 28th Street adjoining said Lots 1, 2 and 3 in the SE 1/4 of Section 36, T 8 N R 21 E, in the City of Milwaukee, Milwaukee County, Wisconsin, having been approved by the Department of City Development, has been approved by the Milwaukee Common Council.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Certified Survey Map was approved by Common Council Resolution on ________ JAN 1 8 1977



City Clerk, City of Milwaukee AMM Muse Henry W Maier, Mayor

10/29/16

THIS INSTRUMENT WAS DRAFTED BY KENNETH E BERKE SURVEYOR

833



Responsible Party Statement Parcel Identification No. 2070833000 4837-4847 N. Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI 53209

Legal Description:

CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO 2994 IN SE 1/4 SEC 36, TOWNSHIP 8 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN PARCEL 3

I, Thomas Anderson, believe that the legal description provided above and on Milwaukee County Register of Deeds Doc No. 6676290 accurately describes the contaminated property.

Signature: <u>Romes Andercon</u> Title: <u>Owner</u> Date: <u>7/11/17</u>

ATTACHMENT G – SOURCE LEGAL DOCUMENTS

G.A. City of Milwaukee Right-of-Way

Notification Letter Proof of Delivery

G.B. 4811 N. Teutonia Avenue

Notification Letter Proof of Delivery Deed Certified Survey Map Verification of Zoning Signed Statement



G.A. City of Milwaukee Right-of-Way Documents





interior instanti neocipi

RIGHT-OF-WAY

Notification of Continuing Obligations and Residual Contamination Form 4400-286 (9/15)

Section B: ROW Notification: Residual Contamination and/or Continuing Obligations - Non-DOT ROWs

KEEP THIS DOCUMENT WITH YOUR PROPERTY RECORDS

841 N. Broadway, Room 701 Milwaukee, WI, 53202

Dear Mr. Polenske:

I am providing this notification to inform you of the location and extent of contamination remaining in a right-of-way for which you are responsible, and of certain long-term responsibilities (continuing obligations) for which city of Milwaukee may become responsible. I investigated a release of:

Tetrachloroethene (PCE) dry cleaning solvent

on 4837 N. Teutonia Avenue, Milwaukee, WI, 53209 that has shown that contamination

remains in the right-of-way for which city of Milwaukee is responsible.

I have responded to the release, and will be requesting that the Department of Natural Resources (DNR) grant case closure. Closure means that the DNR will not be requiring any further investigation or cleanup action to be taken. However, continuing obligations may be imposed as a condition of closure approval.

You have 30 days to comment on the proposed closure request:

The DNR will not review my closure request for at least 30 days after the date of this letter. As an affected right-of-way holder, you have a right to contact the DNR to provide any technical information that you may have that indicates that closure should not be granted for this site. If you would like to submit any information to the DNR that is relevant to this closure request, you should mail that information to the DNR contact: 2300 North Martin Luther King Drive, Milwaukee, WI, 53212, or at john.hnat@wisconsin.gov.

Residual Contamination:

. Soil Contamination:

Soil contamination remains at:

Under the sidewalk and terrace along and adjacent to the sanitary and storm sewer laterals. Residual contaminant concentrations and depths are shown on the attached Figures 1 and 2.

The remaining contaminants include :

Tetrachloroethene (PCE), trichloroethene (TCE) and cis-1,2-dichloroethene

at levels which exceed the soil standards found in ch. NR 720, Wis. Adm. Code. The following steps have been taken to address any exposure to the remaining soil contamination.

The most heavily impacted soil around the sewer lines was excavated and replaced with clean fill. The sewer lines were also replaced with modern pipe. Impermeable rubber membranes were placed on the east walls of the excavation areas to prevent further migration of residual contamination into the right-of-way.

If residual soil or groundwater contamination is likely to affect water collected in a pit/trench that requires dewatering, a general permit for Discharge of Contaminated Groundwater from Remedial Action Operations may be needed. If you or any other person plan to conduct utility or building construction for which dewatering will be necessary, you or that person must contact the DNR's Water Quality Program, and if necessary, apply for the necessary discharge permit. Additional information regarding discharge permits is available at http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/wastewater/GeneralPermits.html.

Continuing Obligations on the Right-of-Way (ROW) : As part of the response actions, I am proposing that the following continuing obligations be used at the affected ROW. If my closure request is approved, you will be responsible for the following continuing obligations:

Form 4400-286 (9/15)

RIGHT-OF-WAY

AFFECTED

Α PROPERTY

> If soil is excavated from the areas with residual contamination, the right-of-way holder at the time of excavation will be responsible for the following:

- . determine if contamination is present,
- determine whether the material would be considered solid or hazardous waste,
- ensure that any storage, treatment or disposal is in compliance with applicable statutes and rules. . Contaminated soil may be managed in-place, in accordance with s. NR 718, Wis. Adm. Code, with prior Department approval.

The right-of-way holder needs to be aware that excavation of the contaminated soil may pose an inhalation or other direct contact hazard and as a result special precautions may need to be taken during excavation activities to prevent a health threat to humans from ingestion, inhalation or dermal contact.

Depending on site-specific conditions, construction over contaminated soils or groundwater may result in vapor migration of contaminants into enclosed structures or migration along newly placed underground utility lines. The potential for vapor inhalation and means of mitigation should be evaluated when planning any future redevelopment, and measures should be taken to ensure the continued protection of public health, safety, welfare and the environment at the site.

GIS Registry and Well Construction Requirements:

If this site is closed, all properties within the site boundaries where contamination remains, or where a continuing obligation is applied, will be listed on the Bureau for Remediation and Redevelopment Tracking System (BRRTS) on the Web, at http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/Brownfields/clean.html. Inclusion on this database provides public notice of remaining contamination and of any continuing obligations. Documents can be viewed on this database, and include final closure letters, site maps and any applicable maintenance plans. The location of the site may also be viewed on the Remediation and Redevelopment Sites Map (RR Sites Map), on the "GIS Registry" layer, at the same internet address listed above.

DNR approval prior to well construction or reconstruction is required for all sites included in the GIS Registry, in accordance with s. NR 812.09 (4) (w), Wis. Adm. Code. This requirement applies to private drinking water wells and high capacity wells. Special well construction standards may be necessary to protect the well from the remaining contamination. Well drillers need to first obtain approval from a regional water supply specialist in DNR's Drinking Water and Groundwater Program. The well construction application, form 3300-254, is on the internet at http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/wells/documents/3300254.pdf.

If you have any questions regarding this notification, I can be reached at: (262) 290-4001 wfassbender@enviroforensics.com

responsible pafty/environmental consultant for the responsible party

Date Signed

Attachments **Contact Information**

Figures 1 and 2 - Residual Soil Contamination

RIGHT-OF-WAY

Notification of Continuing Obligations and Residual Contamination

Form 4400-286 (9/15)

C. I. Page

The affected property is:

- O the source property (the source of the hazardous substance discharge), but the property is not owned by the person who conducted the cleanup (a deeded property)
- \bigcirc a deeded property affected by contamination from the source property
- a right-of-way (ROW)
- O a Department of Transportation (DOT) ROW

Include this completed page as an attachment with all notifications provided under sections A and B.

Contact Information

Responsible Party: The person responsible for sending this form, and for conducting the environmental investigation and cleanup is:

Responsible Party Name Lloyd's Dry Cleaners

Contact Person Last Name	erson Last Name First		MI	Phone Number (include area code)		
Anderson	Tom			(414) 422-1010		-1010
Address		City			State	ZIP Code
4837 N. Teutonia Avenue		Milwaukee			WI	53209
E-mail						

Name of Party Receiving Notification:

Business Name, if applicable: City of Milwaukee

Title II ast Name First				I MI	Phone Num	hor (inc	lude area code)
Mr.	Polenske	Jeff	Jeff		(41	4) 286	6-2489
Addre	SS		City		1	State	ZIP Code
841 N. Broadway, Room 701		Milwaukee			WI	53202	

Site Name and Source Property Information:

Site (Activity) Name Lloyd's Dry Cleaners			
Address	City	State Z	ZIP Code
4837 N. Teutonia Avenue	Milwaukee	WI	53209
DNR ID # (BRRTS#) 02-41-556811	(DATCP) ID #		

Contacts for Questions:

If you have any questions regarding the cleanup or about this notification, please contact the Responsible Party identified above, or contact:

Environmental Consultant: EnviroForensics

Contact Person Last Name	First	First		Phone Number (include area code)		
Fassbender	Wayne		P	(262) 290-4001		0-4001
Address		City			State	ZIP Code
N16W23390 Stone Ridge Drive, S	uite G	Waukesha			WI	53188
E-mail wfassbender@enviroforensi	cs.com					and the second

Department Contact:

To review the Department's case file, or for questions on cleanups or closure requirements, contact:

Department of: Natural Resources (DNR)

Address		City			State ZIP Code	
2300 North Martin Luther King Dr	rive	Milwaukee			WI	53212
Contact Person Last Name	First		MI	Phone Number (include area code		ude area code)
Hnat	John		J (414) 263-8644		-8644	
E-mail (Firstname.Lastname@wiscons	sin.gov) john.hnat@wisco	nsin.gov				











Analytes	RCL Soil to Groundwater	RCL Industrial
PCE	4.5	145,000
TCE	3.6	8,410
cis-1,2-DCE	41.2	2,340,000
trans-1,2-DCE	62.6	1,850,000

- 1. Shaded blue values exceed the Residual Contaminant Level
- Bolded values exceed laboratory detection levels

- Samples analyzed using for VOCs using US EPA SW-846

- 11. J = Analyte concentration is above the method detection



- Impervious Barrier location
- Underground water utility line
- Underground sanitary sewer utility line
- Underground storm sewer line



FINAL EXCAVATION LIMITS WITH FLOOR SAMPLE ANALYTICAL RESULTS

Figure	
2	
Project	
6229	



G.B. 4811 N. Teutonia Avenue Documents





February 22, 2019

Diljeet S. Khahra 10631 Turnberry Drive Mequon, Wisconsin 53092

Subject: Notification of Continuing Obligations BRRTS#: 02-41-556811

Dear Mr. Khahra:

A Notification of Continuing Obligations and Residual Contamination associated with regulatory closure of the Lloyd's Dry Cleaners site is enclosed. We previously sent this notification on June 22, 2017; however, the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources requested that the notification also include a statement indicating that vapor intrusion could be an issue if a building is constructed in the vicinity of soil boring DP-17 (see Figure 1). That statement appears on Page 2 of the form under "Continuing Obligation on Your Property" and represents the only change compared to the previous notification.

If you have any questions or concerns, please contact me at 414-982-3988 or by email at <u>wfassbender@enviroforensics.com</u>. The WDNR project manager is Mr. John Hnat, and he can be contacted at 414-263-8644. We greatly appreciate your help and patience with this matter.

Sincerely, EnviroForensics, LLC

Wayne Fassbender, PMP, PG Senior Project Manager

enclosures

Notification of Continuing Obligations and Residual Contamination Form 4400-286 (9/15) Page 1 of 3

Section A: Deeded Property Notification: Residual Contamination and/or Continuing Obligations

KEEP THIS DOCUMENT WITH YOUR PROPERTY RECORDS

10631 Turnberry Drive Mequon, WI, 53092

Dear Mr. Khahra:

I am providing this letter to inform you of the location and extent of contamination remaining on your property, and of certain long-term responsibilities (continuing obligations) for which you may become responsible. I have investigated a release of:

Tetrachloroethene (PCE) dry cleaning solvent

on 4837 N. Teutonia Avenue, Milwaukee, WI, 53209 that has shown that contamination has migrated onto your property.

I have responded to the release and will be requesting that the Department of Natural Resources (DNR) grant case closure. Closure means that the DNR will not be requiring any further investigation or cleanup action to be taken. However, continuing obligations may be imposed as a condition of closure approval.

You have 30 days to comment on the attached legal description of your property and on the proposed closure request:

Please review the enclosed legal description of your property, and notify Wayne Fassbender at N16W23390 Stone Ridge Drive, Suite G, Waukesha, WI, 53188 within the next 30 days if the legal description is incorrect.

The DNR will not review my closure request for at least 30 days after the date of receipt of this letter. As an affected property owner, you have a right to contact the DNR to provide any technical information that you may have that indicates that closure should not be granted for this site. If you would like to submit any information that is relevant to this closure request, or if you want to waive the 30 day comment period, you should mail that information to the DNR contact: 2300 North Martin Luther King Drive, Milwaukee, WI, 53212, or at john.hnat@wisconsin.gov.

Your Long-Term Responsibilities as a Property Owner and Occupant:

The responses included

Soil excavation

The continuing obligations I am proposing that affect your property are listed below, under the heading **Continuing Obligations**. Under s. 292.12 (5), Wis. Stats., current and future owners and occupants of this property are responsible for complying with continuing obligations imposed as part of an approved closure.

The fact sheet "Continuing Obligations for Environmental Protection" (DNR publication RR 819) has been included with this letter, to help explain the responsibilities you may have for maintenance of a certain continuing obligation, the limits of any liability for investigation and cleanup of contamination, and how these differ. If the fact sheet is lost, you may obtain copies at http://dnr.wi.gov/files/PDF/pubs/rr/RR819.pdf.

Contract for responsibility for continuing obligation:

Before I request closure, I will need to inform the DNR as to whom will be responsible for the continuing obligation/s on your property.

The current and any future owner of 4811 N. Teutonia Ave will be responsible for the continuing obligations.

Under s. 292.12, Wis. Stats., the responsibility for maintaining all necessary continuing obligations for your property will fall on you or any subsequent property owner, unless another person has a legally enforceable responsibility to comply with the requirements of the final closure letter. If you need more time to finalize an agreement on the responsibility for the continuing obligations on your Property, you may request additional time from the DNR contact identified in **Contact Information**.

(Note: Future property owners would need to negotiate a new agreement.)
Remaining Contamination:

AFFECTED B PROPERTY

Soil Contamination:

Soil contamination remains at : Northwest part of the property, in the vicinity of boring DP-17 (see attached map). The remaining contaminants include: Tetrachloroethene (PCE)

at levels which exceed the soil standards found in ch. NR 720, Wis. Adm. Code. The following steps have been taken to address any exposure to the remaining soil contamination.

Contaminated soil at Lloyd's Cleaners was excavated and removed from the site. The residual contamination in soil on your property is below direct-contact standards.

Continuing Obligations on Your Property: As part of the cleanup, I am proposing that the following continuing obligations be used at your property, to address future exposure to residual contamination. If my closure request is approved, you will be responsible for the following continuing obligations.

To construct a new well or to reconstruct an existing well, the property owner at the time of construction or reconstruction will need to obtain prior approval from the DNR. See the paragraph **GIS Registry and Well Construction Requirements**. Typically, this results in casing off a portion of the aquifer during drilling, when needed, to protect the water supply.

Residual Soil Contamination:

If soil is excavated from the areas with residual contamination, the property owner at the time of excavation will be responsible for the following:

- determine if contamination is present
- determine whether the material would be considered solid or hazardous waste

ensure that any storage, treatment or disposal is in compliance with applicable statutes and rules.

Contaminated soil may be managed in-place, in accordance with ch. NR 718, Wis. Adm. Code, with prior DNR approval. In addition, all current and future property owners and occupants of the property and right-of-way holders need to be aware that excavation of the contaminated soil may pose an inhalation or other direct contact hazard and as a result special precautions may need to be taken during excavation activities to prevent a health threat to humans.

Depending on site-specific conditions, construction over contaminated soils or groundwater may result in vapor migration of contaminants into enclosed structures or migration along underground utility lines. The potential for vapor inhalation and means of mitigation should be evaluated when planning any future redevelopment, and measures should be taken to ensure the continued protection of public health, safety, welfare and the environment at the site.

Vapor: Future Actions to Address Vapor Intrusion:

While vapor intrusion does not currently exist, if a building is constructed on this property, or reconstructed, or if use of a building is changed to a residential-type use, vapor intrusion may become an issue. If closure is approved, notification of the DNR will be required before construction of a building or changing the use of an existing building to residential occupancy. The use of vapor control technologies or an assessment of the potential for vapor intrusion will be required at that time.

Maintenance and Audits of Continuing Obligations:

If compliance with a maintenance plan is required as part of a continuing obligation, an inspection log will need to be filled out periodically, and kept available for inspection by the DNR. Submittal of the inspection log may also be required. You will also need to notify any future owners or occupants of this property of the need to maintain the continuing obligation and to document that maintenance in the inspection log. Periodic audits of these continuing obligations may be conducted by the DNR, to ensure that potential exposure to residual contamination is being addressed. The DNR provides notification before conducting site visits as part of the audit.

GIS Registry and Well Construction Requirements:

If this site is closed, all properties within the site boundaries where contamination remains, or where a continuing obligation is applied, will be listed on the Bureau for Remediation and Redevelopment Tracking System (BRRTS) on the Web, at <u>http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/Brownfields/clean.html</u>. Inclusion on this database provides public notice of remaining contamination and of any continuing obligations. Documents can be viewed on this database, and include final closure letters, site maps and any applicable maintenance plans. The location of the site may also be viewed on the Remediation and Redevelopment Sites Map (RR Sites Map), on the "GIS Registry" layer, at the same internet address listed above.



Notification of Continuing Obligations and Residual Contamination

Form 4400-286 (9/15)

Page 3 of 3

DNR approval prior to well construction or reconstruction is required for all sites included in the GIS Registry, in accordance with s. NR 812.09 (4) (w), Wis. Adm. Code. This requirement applies to private drinking water wells and high capacity wells. Special well construction standards may be necessary to protect the well from the remaining contamination. Well drillers need to first obtain approval from a regional water supply specialist in DNR's Drinking Water and Groundwater Program. The well construction application, form 3300–254, is on the internet at http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/wells/documents/3300254.pdf.

Site Closure:

If the DNR grants closure, you will receive a letter which defines the specific continuing obligations on your property. The status of the site (open or closed) may also be checked by searching BRRTS on the Web. You may view or download a copy of the closure letter (sent to the responsible party) from BRRTS on the Web. You may also request a copy of the closure letter from the **responsible party** or by writing to the DNR contact, at John Hnat, john. hnat@wisconsin.gov, (414) 263-8644. The final closure letter will contain a description of the continuing obligation, any prohibitions on activities and will include any applicable maintenance plan.

If you have any questions regarding this notification, I can be reached at: (262) 290-4001 wfassbender@enviroforensics.com

Wayn P Land

Date Signed

2/22/2019

Signature c,ponsiole party/environmental consultant for the responsible party

Attachments Contact Information Legal Description for each Parcel:

Factsheets:

RR 819, Continuing Obligations for Environmental Protection



Notification of Continuing Obligations and Residual Contamination

Form 4400-286 (9/15)

C. I. Page

The affected property is:

- O the source property (the source of the hazardous substance discharge), but the property is not owned by the person who conducted the cleanup (a deeded property)
- a deeded property affected by contamination from the source property
- a right-of-way (ROW)
- O a Department of Transportation (DOT) ROW

Include this completed page as an attachment with all notifications provided under sections A and B.

Contact Information

Responsible Party: The person responsible for sending this form, and for conducting the environmental investigation and cleanup is:

Responsible Party Name Lloyd's Dry Cleaners

Contact Person Last Name	First		MI	Phone Number (include area cod		
Anderson	Tom	Tom		(414) 422-1010		2-1010
Address		City			State	ZIP Code
4837 N. Teutonia Avenue		Milwaukee			WI	53209
E-mail						

Name of Party Receiving Notification:

Business Name, if applicable: AKAL Quik Mart Property LLC

Title	Last Name	First	First		Phone Number (include area		lude area code)
Mr.	Khahra	Diljeet		S			
Addre	SS	Contraction of the second	City			State	ZIP Code
10631	l Turnberry Drive		Mequon			WI	53092

Site Name and Source Property Information:

Site (Activity) Name Lloyd's Dry Cleaners

Address	City	State ZIP Code
4837 N. Teutonia Avenue	Milwaukee	WI 53209
DNR ID # (BRRTS#) 02-41-556811	(DATCP) ID #	

Contacts for Questions:

If you have any questions regarding the cleanup or about this notification, please contact the Responsible Party identified above, or contact:

Environmental Consultant: EnviroForensics

Contact Person Last Name	First	First		Phone Number (include area code		
Fassbender	Wayne	Wayne		(262) 290-4001		0-4001
Address		City		-	State	ZIP Code
N16W23390 Stone Ridge Drive, Su	uite G	Waukesha			WI	53188
E-mail wfassbender@enviroforensi	cs.com	A				

Department Contact:

To review the Department's case file, or for questions on cleanups or closure requirements, contact:

Department of: Natural Resources (DNR)

Address		City			State	ZIP Code
2300 North Martin Luther King Di	rive	Milwaukee			WI	53212
Contact Person Last Name	First	First		Phone Number (include area code)		
Hnat	John		J	(4)	4) 263	3-8644
E-mail (Firstname.Lastname@wiscons	sin.gov) john.hnat@wisco	nsin.gov		1		



Legend

Underground gas utility line
Underground water utility line
Fiber optic utility line
Sanitary sewer utility line
Storm sewer utility line
Previous excavation area
Sanitary sewer manhole
Fire Hydrant
Geoprobe soil boring location (Sigma)
Direct-push boring location
Direct-push / Soil Gas boring
location

DP-11/PZ-1 ↔	Direct Push boring / Piezometer
	location

	Soil Residual Containment Level				
Analytes	Ingestion Industrial	Residential	Soil to Groundwater		
PCE	145,000	33,00	4.5		
TCE	8,410	1,300	3.6		
cis-1,2-TCE	2,340,000	156,000	41.2		
trans-1,2-DCE	1,850,000	1,560,000	62.6		
MC	1,150,000	61,800	2.6		
sec-Bb	NE	NE	NE		
n-Bb	NE	NE	NE		
Ipb	NE	NE	NE		
n-Pb	NE	NE	NE		

Soil Notes:

- Bold, shaded blue values are above SRCL Soil to Groundwater 1. Closure Levels
- 2. Bold, shaded orange values are above SRCL Ingestion Industrial Levels
- Results reported in micrograms per kilogram = ug/kg 3.
- J = Estimated concentration above the method detection limit 4. and below the reporting limit
- 5. PCE = Tectrachloroethene
- 6. TCE = Trichloroethene
- 7. cis-1,2-DCE = cis-1,2-Dichloroethene
- 8. trans-1,2-DCE = trans-1,2-Dichloroethene
- 9. MC = Methylene Chloride
- 10. sec-Bb = sec-Butylbenzene
- 11. n-Bb = n-Butylbenzene
- 12. Ipb = Isopropylbenzene13. n-Pb = n-Propylbenzene
- 14. ND = Compounds not detected
- 15. NE = Not Established
- 16. VOCs = Volatile Organic Compounds

	SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS OF EXTERIOR BORINGS				
	Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 N. Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI				
2/3/14		Figure			
EB	ENVIRO Perisics	1			
EB					
BK	ENVIRONMENTAL FORENSIC INVESTIGATIONS, INC.	Project			
0-0666	602 N. Capitol Ave., Ste. 210 • Indianapolis, IN 46204 EnviroForensics.com	6229			

AFFECTED	
В	
PROPERTY	

State Bar of Wisconsin Form 3-2003 QUIT CLAIM DEED

Document Number

Document Name

THIS DEED, made between Dilject S. Khahra

("Grantor," whether one or more),

and Akal Quick Mart Property, LLC

("Grantee," whether one or more).

Grantor quit claims to Grantee the following described real estate, together with the rents, profits, fixtures and other appurtenant interests, in <u>Milwaukee</u> County, State of Wisconsin ("Property") (if more space is needed, please attach addendum):

That part of Block 10 in Original North Milwaukee Subdivision No. 1 in the Southeast ¼ of Section 34, Town 8 North, Range 21 East, and that portion of vacated alley adjacent in the City of Milwaukee, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin, bounded and described as follows:

Beginning at the Southeast corner of said Block 10; thence West on the South line thereof 175 feet to a point; thence Northwesterly on a line forming an interior angle with said South boundary line of 95 degrees 03', a distance of 167.5 feet, more or less; thence Northeasterly in a straight line approximately 115 feet to a point of beginning measured along North Teutonia Avenue; thence Southeasterly along North Teutonia Avenue 220 feet to the point of beginning except, that part of Lots 15, 16, 17 and 18, Block 10, in the Original North Milwaukee Subdivision No. 1, in the Southeast ¼ of Section 36, Town 8 North, Range 21 East, in the City of Milwaukee, County of Milwaukee, State of Wisconsin, more particularly described as follows; Commencing at the Southeast corner of Lot 15, in Block 10, (please see addendum)

DOC.# 09238440

REGISTER'S OFFICE | SS Milwaukee County, WI

RECORDED 05/19/2006 11:40AM

JOHN LA FAVE REGISTER OF DEEDS

AMOUNT: 13.00

Recording Area

Name and Return Address John D. Foley 13500 West Capitol Drive Brookfield, W1 53005

207-0743-210-2

Parcel Identification Number (PIN)

This is not bomestead property.

<u>77.25 (15)</u>S

- mana (SEAL)	(SEAL
* Diljeet S. Khahra	*	······································
	SEAL)	(SEAI
\$ 	*	
AUTHENTICATION	ACKNOWLEDGMENT	**
Signature(s) Diljeet S. Khahra	STATE OF WISCONSIN)	
authentionad on May 17, 2006	COUNTY)	58,
John D. Foley	Personally came before me on	 \$.
TITLE: MEMBER STATE BAR OF WISCONSIN	the above-named	
authorized by Wis. Stat. § 706.06)	to me known to be the person(s) who executed th instrument and acknowledged the same.	e foregoing
THIS INSTRUMENT DRAFTED BY:		
ohn D. Foley	*: 	
	Notary Public, State of Wisconsin My Commission (is permanent) (expires:	,

* Type name below signatures.

Dated May 17, 2006

ł



W. HAMPTON AVE.

66' WIDE

STATE OF MISCONSIN) MILWAUKEE COUNTY)

I hereby certify that I have surveyed the above described property and the above map is a true representation thereof and shows the size and location of the property, its exterior boundaries, the location of all visible structures and dimensions of all principal buildings thereon, boundary fences, apparent easements, roadway and visible encroachments, if any.

This survey is made for the present owners of the property, and also those who purchase, mortgage, or guarantee, the title thereto within (1) year from date hereof.

Dated at MILWAUKEE, WI	this 29th day	of SEPTEMBER 19 95
Recertified NOVEMBER 15,	1999 1000	um
	Surveyor	$r \tau$





Responsible Party Statement

Parcel Identification No. 2070743210

4811 N. Teutonia Avenue

Milwaukee, WI 53209

Legal Description:

THAT PART OF BLOCK 10 IN ORIGINAL NORTH MILWAUKEE SUBDIVISION NO. 1 IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 36, IN TOWN 8 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, AND THAT PORTION OF VACATED ALLEY ADJACENT IN THE CITY OF MILWAUKEE, BOUNDED AND DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS, TO-WIT: BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEAST THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID BLOCK 10, THENCE WEST ON THE SOUTH LINE THEREOF 175 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ON A LINE FORMING AN INTERIOR ANGLE WITH SAID SOUTH BOUNDARY LINE OF 95'03' A DISTANCE OF 167.5 FEET MORE OR LESS; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY IN A STRAIGHT LINE APPROXIMATELY 115 FEET TO A POINT OF BEGINNING ALONG NORTH TEUTONIA AVENUE; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG NORTH TEUTONIA AVENUE 220 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, EXCEPT THAT PART OF LOTS 15, 16, 17 AND 18 IN BLOCK 10, THE ORIGINAL NORTH MILWAUKEE SUBDIVISION NO. 1, IN THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 36, TOWN 8 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, IN THE CITY OF MILWAUKEE, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 15, IN BLOCK 10, THE ORIGINAL NORTH MILWAUKEE SUBDIVISION NO. 1, IN THE SOUTH EAST 1/4 OF SECTION 36, TOWN 8 NORTH, RANGE 21 EAST, SAID POINT ALSO LYING IN THE PRESENT NORTH LINE OF WEST HAMPTON AVE.; RUNNING THENCE WEST ALONG SAID NORTH LINE OF WEST HAMPTON AVE. 119.26 FEET TO A POINT; SAID POINT LYING 5.16 FEET WEST OF THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 18 IN SAID BLOCK 10; THENCE NORTH 84 DECREES 16 MINUTES 34 SECONDS EAST ALONG A LINE 100.11 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG A LINE 17.92 FEET TO A POINT IN THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF NORTH TEUTONIA AVENUE, SAID POINT LYING 27.41 FEET NORTHWESTERLY OF THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 15; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE SOUTHWESTERLY LINE OF NORTH TEUTONIA AVENUE 27.41 FEET TO THE POINT OF COMMENCEMENT.

I, Thomas Anderson, believe that the legal description provided above and on Milwaukee County Register of Deeds Doc No. 09238440 accurately describes the contaminated property.

Signature: <u>Mona Andere</u>an Title: <u>Owner</u> Date: _____7/11/17

State of Wisconsin DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 2300 N. Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive Milwaukee WI 53212-3128

Tony Evers, Governor Preston D. Cole, Secretary Telephone 608-266-2621 Toll Free 1-888-936-7463

TTY Access via relay - 711



AFFECTED A PROPERTY

October 28, 2019

City of Milwaukee Attn: Jeff Polenske 841 North Broadway, Room 701 Milwaukee, WI 53202

Subject: Notice of Closure Approval with Continuing Obligations for Rights-of-Way Holders for 4837 North Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI Final Case Closure for Lloyd's Cleaners, 4837 North Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI FID: 241417330, BRRTS: 02-41-556811

Dear Mr. Polenske:

The Department of Natural Resources (DNR) recently approved the completion of environmental work done at the Lloyd's Cleaners site. This letter This letter describes how that approval applies to the right-of-way (ROW) adjacent to 4837 North Teutonia Avenue. As the right-of-way holder, you are responsible for complying with these continuing obligations for any work you conduct in the right-of-way.

State law directs parties responsible for environmental contamination to take actions to restore the environment and minimize harmful effects. The law allows some contamination to remain in soil and groundwater if it does not pose a threat to public health, safety, welfare or to the environment.

On June 22, 2017, you received information from Enviroforensics about the volatile organic compound contamination from Lloyd's Cleaners in the ROW located at 4837 North Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI, and about the continuing obligations. Continuing obligations are meant to limit exposure to any remaining contamination.

Applicable Continuing Obligations

The continuing obligations that apply to this right-of-way are described below, and are consistent with Wis. Stat. § 292.12, and Wis. Admin. § NR 700 series.

Residual Soil Contamination (ch. NR 718, chs. 500 to 536, Wis. Adm. Code or ch. 289, Wis. Stats.)

Soil contamination remains at locations indicated on the **attached map**, **Residual Soil Contamination**, **Figure B.2.b**, **dated January 8**, **2018**. If soil in the specific locations described above is excavated in the future, the property owner or right-of-way holder at the time of excavation must sample and analyze the excavated soil to determine if contamination remains. If sampling confirms that contamination is present, the right-of-way holder at the time of excavation will need to determine whether the material is considered solid or hazardous waste and ensure that any storage, treatment or disposal is in compliance with applicable standards and rules. Contaminated soil may be managed in accordance with ch. NR 718, Wis. Adm. Code, with prior DNR approval.



In addition, all current and future owners the right-of-way need to be aware that excavation of the contaminated soil may pose an inhalation or other direct contact hazard and as a result special precautions may need to be taken to prevent a direct contact health threat to humans.

Send all written notifications in accordance with these requirements to:

Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources Southeast Regional Office Attn: Environmental Program Associate 2300 Dr. M. L. King drive Milwaukee, WI 53212

Additional Information

Additional information about this case is available at the DNR's Bureau for Remediation and Redevelopment Tracking System (BRRTS) on the Web (BOTW) at dnr.wi.gov and search "BOTW". Enter BRRTS #02-41-556811 in the **Activity Number** field in the initial screen, then click on **Search**. Scroll down and click on the **CO Packet** link for information about the completion of the environmental work. The site may also be seen on the map view, RR Sites Map. RR Sites Map can be found online at dnr.wi.gov and search "WRRD".

Please contact John J. Hnat, the DNR Project Manager at 414-263-8644, or email john.hnat@wisconsin.gov with any questions or concerns.

Sincerely,

Land

Pamela A. Mylotta Southeast Region Team Supervisor Remediation & Redevelopment Program

Attachments:

- Residual Soil Contamination Lloyd's cleaners, Figure B.2.b, Enviroforensics, dated January 8, 2018
- cc: Thomas Anderson Mequon, WI Wayne Fassbender – Enviroforensics, n16 W23390 Stone Ridge Drive, Suite G Waukesha, WI 53212



	GAS WTR UGT SAN STM	Property boundary Underground gas utility line Underground water utility line Fiber optic utility line Sanitary sewer utility line Storm sewer utility line Previous excavation area Sanitary sewer manhole			
	F Fire Hydrant				
	DP-6 ●	Direct-push boring location			
	DP-15/SG-1 🕥	Direct-push/Soil Gas boring location			
	DP-11/PZ-1	Direct Push boring/Piezometer location			
	FS-1-1	Floor excavation soil sample location (Floor Sample-Sample ID-Depth)			
	WS-1-1	Side wall excavation soil sample location (Wall Sample-Sample ID-Depth)			
		Excavation Limits (0-5 ft)			
		Excavation Limits (5-13 ft)			
		mpervious Barrier location			
	Extent of residual soil contamination exceeding soil to groundwater pathway RCLs				
	Note: There are no Direct-Contact RCL exceedances in the unsaturated zone				
	Str	uctural impediment to further investigation			
AFFECTED A PROPERTY					

State of Wisconsin DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 2300 N. Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive Milwaukee WI 53212-3128



Tony Evers, Governor Preston D. Cole, Secretary Telephone 608-266-2621 Toll Free 1-888-936-7463 TTY Access via relay - 711



October 28, 2019

Mr. Diljeet S. Khahra 10631 Turnberry Drive Mequon, WI 53092

> Subject: Continuing Obligations and Property Owner Requirements for 4811 North Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI
> Parcel Identification Number: 2070743210
> Final Case Closure for Lloyd's Cleaners, 4837 North Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI
> FID: 241417330, BRRTS: 02-41-556811

Dear Mr. Khahra:

The purpose of this letter is to notify you that certain continuing obligations apply to the property at 4811 North Teutonia Avenue, (referred to in this letter as the "Property") due to contamination remaining on the Property. The continuing obligations are part of the cleanup and case closure approved for the above referenced case, located at 4837 North Teutonia Avenue. (The case is referenced by the location of the source property, i.e. the property where the original discharge occurred, prior to contamination migrating to the Property.) The continuing obligations that apply to the Property are stated as conditions in the attached closure approval letter, and are consistent with s. 292.12, Wis. Stats., and ch. NR 700, Wis. Adm. Code, rule series. They are meant to limit exposure to any remaining environmental contamination at the Property. These continuing obligations will also apply to future owners of the Property, until the conditions no longer exist at the Property.

It is common for properties with approved cleanups to have continuing obligations as part of cleanup/closure approvals. Information on continuing obligations on properties can be found by using the Bureau for Remediation and Redevelopment Tracking System (BRRTS) on the Web (BOTW). This database is found at dnr.wi.gov and search "WRRD". This page also provides information on how to find further information about the closure and residual contamination, and how to use the map application, RR Sites Map, which shows environmental cleanup sites, including those closed with residual contamination and continuing obligations.

The DNR reviewed and approved the case closure request regarding the chlorinated volatile organic compound contamination in soil at this site based on information submitted by Enviroforensics. As required by state law, you received notification about the requested closure from the person conducting the cleanup. No further investigation or cleanup is required at this time. However, the closure decision is conditioned on the long-term compliance with certain continuing obligations, as described below.

Continuing Obligations Applicable to Your Property

A number of continuing obligations are described in the attached case closure letter to Mr. Thomas Anderson, dated October 28, 2019. However, only the following continuing obligations apply to your Property.

Residual Soil Contamination (ch. NR 718, chs. 500 to 536, Wis. Adm. Code or ch. 289, Wis. Stats.)

Soil contamination remains at locations DP-16 and DP-17 indicated on the **attached map**, **Residual Soil Contamination**, **Figure B.2.b**, **dated January 8**, **2018**. If soil in the specific locations described above is excavated in the future, the Property owner at the time of excavation must sample and analyze the excavated soil to determine if contamination remains. If sampling confirms that contamination is present, the Property owner at the time of excavation will need to determine whether the material is considered solid or hazardous waste and ensure that any storage, treatment or disposal is in compliance with applicable standards and rules. Contaminated soil may be managed in accordance with ch. NR 718, Wis. Adm. Code, with prior DNR approval.





In addition, all current and future owners and occupants of the Property need to be aware that excavation of the contaminated soil may pose an inhalation or other direct contact hazard and as a result special precautions may need to be taken to prevent a direct contact health threat to humans.

Vapor Mitigation or Evaluation (s. 292.12 (2), Wis. Stats., s. NR 726.15, s. NR 727.07, Wis. Adm. Code)

Future Actions to Address Vapor Intrusion: Vapor intrusion is the movement of vapors coming from volatile chemicals in the soil or groundwater, into buildings where people may breathe air contaminated by the vapors. While vapor intrusion does not currently exist at locations DP-16 and DP-17, if a building is constructed on this Property at or near these locations, or reconstructed, vapor intrusion may become an issue. Notification to the DNR will be required before construction of a building. The use of vapor control technologies or an assessment of the potential for vapor intrusion will be required at that time.

DNR Database – Well Construction Approval Needed

Because of the residual soil contamination and the continuing obligations, this site, which includes your Property, will be listed on the Bureau for Remediation and Redevelopment Tracking System (BRRTS) on the Web (BOTW), at dnr.wi.gov and search "WRRD". If you intend to construct or reconstruct a well on the Property, you will need to get department approval in accordance with s. NR 812.09 (4) (w), Wis. Adm. Code. To obtain approval, Form 3300-254 needs to be completed and submitted to the DNR Drinking and Groundwater program's regional water supply specialist. A well driller can help with this form. This form can be obtained online at dnr.wi.gov and search "3300-254". If at some time, all these continuing obligations are fulfilled, and the remaining contamination is either removed or meets applicable standards, you may request an update to the database regarding the Property.

Property Owner Responsibilities

The owner (you and any subsequent Property owner) of this Property is responsible for compliance with these continuing obligations, pursuant to s. 292.12, Wis. Stats. You are required to pass on the information about these continuing obligations to anyone who purchases this Property from you (i.e. pass on this letter), in accordance with s. NR 727.05. For residential property transactions, you are required to make disclosures under Wis. Stats. s. 709.02. You may have additional obligations to notify buyers of the condition of the Property and the continuing obligations set out in this letter and the closure letter.

If you lease or rent the Property to an occupant who will be responsible for maintaining a continuing obligation, you will need to include that responsibility in a lease agreement, in accordance with s. NR 727.05, Wis. Adm. Code.

Please be aware that failure to comply with the continuing obligations may result in enforcement action by the DNR. The DNR intends to conduct inspections in the future to ensure that the conditions included in this letter, including compliance with referenced maintenance plans, are met.

These responsibilities are the Property owners. A Property owner may enter into a legally binding agreement (such as a contract) with someone else (the person responsible for the cleanup) to take responsibility for compliance with the continuing obligations. If the person with whom any Property owner has an agreement fails to adequately comply with the appropriate continuing obligations, the DNR has the authority to require the Property owner to complete the necessary work.

A legal agreement between you and another party to carry out any of the continuing obligations listed in this letter does not automatically transfer to a new owner of the Property. If a subsequent Property owner cannot negotiate a new agreement, the responsibility for compliance with the applicable continuing obligations resides with that Property owner.

When maintenance of a continuing obligation is required, the Property owner is responsible for inspections, repairs, or replacements as needed. Such actions should be documented by the Property owner and the records kept accessible for the DNR to review for as long as the department directs.



You and any subsequent Property owners are responsible for notifying the department at least 45 days before making a change to a continuing obligation, and obtaining approval, before making any changes to the Property that would affect the obligations applied to the Property. Send all written notifications in accordance with the above requirements to:

Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources Remediation and Redevelopment Program Attn: Environmental Program Associate 2300 Dr. M. L. King Drive Milwaukee, WI 53212

The DNR fact sheet, RR-819, "Continuing Obligations for Environmental Protection" helps explain a property owner's responsibility for continuing obligations on their property. This fact sheet should have been sent to you when you received a notification letter before the closure request was submitted to the DNR. You may obtain a copy at dnr.wi.gov and search "RR-819".

The DNR appreciates your efforts. If you have any questions regarding this closure decision or anything outlined in this letter, please contact John J. Hnat at 414-263-8644, or email <u>john.hnat@wisconsin.gov</u> If you have any questions or concerns.

Sincerely,

Land

Pamela A. Mylotta Southeast Regional Team Supervisor Remediation & Redevelopment Program Attachments:

- Residual Soil Contamination, Lloyd's Cleaners, Figure B.2.b, Enviroforensics, dated January 8, 2018
- RR-819: Continuing Obligations Fact Sheet

cc: Thomas Anderson – Mequon, WI Wayne Fassbender – Enviroforensics, N16 W23390 Stone Ridge Drive, Suite G, Waukesha, WI 53188



Legend

	GAS	Property boundary Underground gas utility line Underground water utility line Fiber optic utility line Sanitary sewer utility line Storm sewer utility line Previous excavation area			
•	M) Sanitary sewer manhole			
	F) Fire Hydrant			
	DP-6 ●	Direct-push boring location			
	DP-15/SG-1 🕥	Direct-push/Soil Gas boring location			
	DP-11/PZ-1+	Direct Push boring/Piezometer location			
	FS-1-1 •	Floor excavation soil sample location (Floor Sample-Sample ID-Depth) Side wall excavation soil sample			
		location (Wall Sample-Sample ID-Depth)			
		Excavation Limits (0-5 ft)			
		Excavation Limits (5-13 ft)			
		Impervious Barrier location			
] 	Extent of residual soil contamination exceeding soil to groundwater pathway RCLs			
	Note:				
	There are no Direct-Contact RCL exceedances in the				
unsaturated zone					
Structural impediment to further investigation					
	AFFECTED B PROPERTY				

	RESIDUAL SOIL CONTAMINATION				
	Lloyd's Cleaners 4837 N. Teutonia Avenue Milwaukee, WI				
1/8/18		Figure			
EB	ENVIRO erensics	B.2.b			
EB		Dutut			
BK	005 North Operial Assessments Indiananalia IN 40004	Project			
-1076	EnviroForensics.com	6229			